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i NOTICE TO ‘THE SHAREHOLDERS i
\ \ \

NOTICE is hereby given that the Thirty First Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of Sun TV Network Limited will be held at
Kalaignar Arangam, Anna Arivalayam, 367 / 369, Anna Sala}i, Teynampet, Chennai - 600 018 on Friday, the 23rd day of Septerpber

2016 at 10.00 AM to transact the following business:
\ \ \

ORDINARY BUSINESS \ \ \
\ \ \

1. Adoption of Financial Statements:

To receive, consider and adopﬁ the Financial Statements as at March 31, 2016 including the Audited Balance Sheet as at March
31, 2016, the Statement of ﬂrofit & Loss Account fo[ the year ended on that date and the audited consolidated finapcial
statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2016 and the Reports of the Board of Directors (the Board) and
Auditors thereon. | | ‘

2. Confirmation of Interim Divideqd: | |

To confirm the Interim Dividen& of Rs. 6.00/- per equity éhare (120%), Rs. 2.00/- per equity share (40%) and Rs. 7.50/- per eauity
share (150%) of face value of Rs. 5.00/- each alreadly paid, as final dividend for the financial year ended March 31, 2016.
| \ \

3. Appointment of Mrs. Kavery Kalanithi as Director:

To appoint a Director in the place of Mrs. Kavery Kalanithi (DIN 00113905) who retires by rotation and being eligible, offfers
herself for re-appointment. ‘ ‘ ‘

4. Ratification of Appointment of §tatutoryAuditors: | |
| | |

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: ‘

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant tc‘) the provisions of Sectio‘n 139 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, £013

and the Rules framed thereuhder, as amended from time to time, the appointment of M/s. S.R. Batliboi & Associates \LLP,
Chartered Accountants, (ICAI lfirm Registration No: 10:}.049W) as the Auditors of the Company approved by the shareholdqrs at
the 29th Annual General Meeting (AGM), for a term of three years, i.e. till the conclusion of 32nd AGM, which was subject to
ratification at every AGM, be and is hereby ratified to hol‘d the office from the conclusion of this AGM till the conclusion of the 32nd
AGM of the Company to be held in the year 2017, at such remuneration plus applicable taxes, out-of-pocket expenses, etd., as
may be mutually agreed betweren the Board of Directors‘ of the Company and the Auditors”. |

| | BY ORDER OF THE BOARD |

\ \ \
| | |
Place: Chennai | | R.RAVI |
Date: July 8,2016 ‘ ‘ COMPANY SECRETARY ‘

| | |

NOTES: | | |
1. AMEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE, AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT ONE OR MORE PROXIES
TO ATTEND AND VOTE ON POLL INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE AMEMBER OF THE

COMPANY. | | |

A person can act as proxy on thalf of members not e)ﬁtceeding fifty (50) and holding in aggregate not more than ten percent of
the total share capital of the Company carrying voting ri?hts.

|
| |
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| NOTICE TO THE SHAREHOLDERS |

The instrument appointing proxy (duly completed, stamped and signed) in order to be effective must be deposited af the
registered office of the compapy not less than 48 hourf before the commencement of the 31st Annual General Meeting o‘f the
company

| | |
Corporate Members intending to send their authorisqd representatives to attend the Meeting are requested to send a‘duly
certified copy of Board Resolution on the letterhead of the Company, signed by one of the Directors or Company Secretary or
any other authorized signatory and / or duly notarized FLower of Attorney, authorizing their representatives to attend and vote on
their behalf atthe Meeting. | | |

Details under Regulation 36(%) of the SEBI (Listing bbligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (Ligting
Regulations) with the Stock Exchange in respect of tHe Director seeking appointment/re-appointment at the Annual General
Meeting, form an integral pa[t of the notice. The Dil(ector has furnished the requisite declaration for her appointmeqt/re-
appointment. | | |

The equity shares of the Company are listed on National Stock Exchange of India Limited and BSE Limited. |
The Register of Members and ‘Share Transfer books of khe Company will remain closed from September 16, 2016 to Septerlnber
23,2016 (both days inclusive)| | \

\ | |
Members holding shares in electronic form are requested to intimate immediately any change in their address or bank mandates
to their Depository Participant%, with whom they are ma‘intaining their demat accounts. Members holding shares in physical form
are requested to advice any|change in their address immediately to the Company/ Registrar and Share Transfer Agent,
M/s. Karvy Computershare Pri‘vate Limited. | |
Pursuant to Section 72 of the|Companies Act, 2013, shareholders holding shares in physical form may file nomination in the
prescribed Form SH-13 with the Company’s Registrar ?nd Share Transfer Agent, M/s. Karvy Computershare Private Limited. In
respect of shares held in electronic / demat form, the nomination form may be filed with the respective Depository Participant.

| | |
The Securities and Exchange‘ Board of India (SEBI) h‘as mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number (PAN) by
every participant in securities market. Members holdin? shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit the PAN to
their Depository Participants \/L/ith whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members holding shares in physical form
can submit their PAN details to/the Company/Registrars and Transfer Agent, M/s. Karvy Computershare Private Limited. |

Voting through Electronic Means

\ \ \
In compliance with provision§ of Section 108 of thq Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Management‘ and
Administration) Rules, 2014 and subject to Regulation 44 of the Listing Regulations, the Company is pleased to offer remote
E-Voting facility as an alternaté, for its shareholders to Enable them to cast their votes electronically at the 31st Annual Geljweral
Meeting (AGM) through e-voting service provided by M/s. Karvy Computershare Private Limited |
PROCEDURE FOR E-VOTIN‘G | |

| | |
In terms of Regulation 44 of thp Listing Regulations, th? Company is pleased to provide the facility to Members to exercise ‘their
right to vote by electronic means. A person, whose name is recorded in the register of members or in the register of beneficial
owners maintained by the depbsitories as onthe cut-oﬁf date i.e. September 16, 2016 only shall be entitled to avail the facil‘ty of
remote e-voting. The e-voting|period will commence from Tuesday, September 20, 2016 at 9.00 am and will end at 5.00 pm on
Thursday, September 22, 2016. The e-voting module will be disabled on September 22, 2016 at 5.00 pm. The voting rights shall
be reckoned on the paid up value of shares registered in the name of the member / beneficial owner (in the case of electronic
shareholding) as on the cut-offldate i.e. September 16, 2016. \

| | |
The Company has entered into an arrangement with M/s. Karvy Computershare Private Limited (Karvy) for facilitating e-voting
for AGM. The instructions for é-voting areasunder: | ‘

Open your web browser durin% the voting period and nﬂvigate to ‘https://evoting.karvy.com’ |

Enter the login credentials (i.e| user-id & password) mentioned on the Attendance Slip / Email forwarded through the electronic
notice. | | |
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| NOTICE TO THE SHAREHOLDERS |

User - ID For Shareholder(s) / Beheficial Owner(s) Holding Shares In Demat Form:- \
| a) For NSDL:- 8 Characters DP ID Followed By 8 Digits Client ID |
‘ b) For CDSL:- ]T6 Digits Beneficiary ID ‘
For Members holding shares in Physical Form:-

e Folio Number registered with the company

Password Your Unique password is printed on the AGM Attendance Slip / sent via email forwarded |
‘through the electronic nqtice. ‘

\ \ \
‘Enter the Verification ﬁode for Security reasons i.e., please enter the alphabets and |
numbers in the exact way as they are displayed.

Captcha

After entering these details apdropriately, clickon “LOG‘N". |
\

Members holding shares in Igemat / Physical form v‘vill now reach password change menu wherein they are required to
mandatorily change their Iogiﬁ password in the new pbssword field. The new password has to be minimum eight characters
consisting of at least one upper case (A-2Z).One lower case (a- z), one numeric value (0 - 9) and a special character (like *, fﬁ @
etc.). Kindly note that this password can be used by the Demat holders for voting for resolution of any other Company on which
they are eligible to vote, providled that Company opts for e-voting through M/s. Karvy Computershare Private Limited e-vd)ting
platform. System will prompt you to change your passyvord and update any contact details like mobile no, email ID etc on 1st
login. You may also enter the Secret Question and answer of your choice to retrieve your password in case you forget it. It is
strongly recommended not td share your password With any other person and take utmost care to keep your password
confidential. Kindly ensure thatyou note down your password for future reference. \

You need to login again with the new credentials. | \

On successful login, system WJ” prompt to selectthe ‘E\}ent’ i.e.,'Sun TV Network Limited'. |

If you are holding shares in Demat form and had logged on to https://evoting.karvy.com and casted your vote earlier for any other
company, then your existing Ioéin id and password are to be used. |

On the voting page, you will se‘e Resolution Description‘and against the same the option ‘FOR / AGAINST / ABSTAIN'’ for vo‘ting.

Enter the number of shares untler ‘FOR / AGAINST / ABSTAIN' or alternatively you may partially enter any number in ‘FOR'and
partially in ‘AGAINST’, but the Fotal number in ‘FOR /AC%AINST‘ taken together should not exceed your total shareholding. If‘ you
do notwantto castavote, you Tay select '‘ABSTAIN'. | |
After selecting the resolution iT you have decided to cast vote on the same, click on “SUBMIT” and a confirmation box wiLI be
displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL" and accordingly modify
your vote. \ \ |

Once you ‘CONFIRM’ your vo#e on the resolution, you l/vill not be allowed to change it subsequently or cast the vote again.‘You
may participate in the general meeting even after exercising your right to vote through remote e-voting but shall not be allowéd to
vote again. | | |

Corporate / Institutional Members (Corporate / FIs / Flls / Trust / Mutual Funds / Banks, etc) are required to send scanned ¢opy
(PDF format) of the relevant Board resolution to the Scrutinizer through e-mail to lakshmmi6é@gmail.com with a copy to
evoting@karvy.com. The file s&anned image / pdffile of&he Board Resolution should be in the naming format “Corporate Narhe”.

Smt. Lakshmmi Subramanian, Senior Partner, M/s. Lakshmmi Subramanian & Associates, Practicing Company Secretary
(Membership No. 3534) has been appointed as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the e-voting process in a fair and transpdrent
manner. ‘ ‘ ‘

The Scrutinizer, after scrutinising the votes cast at the meeting and through remote e-voting, will, not later than two days of the
conclusion of the meeting, malfe a consolidated scrutinjzer's report and submit the same to the Chairman. The results declgred
along with the consolidated scrutinizer's report shall be placed on the website of the Company www.suntv.in and on the website
of Karvy. The results shall simultaneously be communichted to the Stock Exchanges (SE’s). \

Contact for issues relating to é-voting: M/s. Karvy Conputershare Private Limited, Karvy Selenium Tower B, plot N0.31-§2,
Financial District, Gachibowli,|Hyderabad-500 032. | |

| |
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Sun TV Network Limited \ \ |
\ \ \

DETAILS OF DIRECTOR SEEKING RE-ARPOINTMENT AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING |
(Pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI(Listing Qbligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

Name of the Directdr \ Mrs. Kavery Kalanithi \

| | |
Brief Profile | Mrs. Kavery Kalanithi aged 46 years has a bachelor’s degree in arts
from University of Madras, Chennai. She is actively involved in the
| business and operations of M/s. Sun TV Network Limited including|
| monitoring the viewer feedback with regard to the programming‘
and deciding the content mix on various channels of our Company.
\ IShe also assists in the selection of anchors, newscasters
‘ and programme presenters. She is also actively involved in‘
philanthropic activities.

Directorship held in other Com‘panies Nil |
(Excluding Private Companies|and | |
Foreign Companies) | | |

Memberships / Chairmanshipg of ember of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of Sun |
Committees in Public Companies V Network Limited
| | |
\ \ \
Shareholding | ‘Nil |
Relationships between Directqrs inter-se Wife of Mr. Kalanithi Maran, Executive Chairman |

Route Map |
‘ \
T

31" Annual General Meeting |

Date 23" September 2016 | \
Day : Friday ‘ ‘ \
Time : 10.00 am

Venue : Kalaignar Arangan‘n Anna Arivalayam, on Chetty Road |

367 / 369, Anna Salai, Teynampet, \
Chennai - 600 018‘.

Ramee Mall
. \

,ﬁnna Arivalayam ‘
Teynampet

Anna Salai -




__ BOARD OF DIRECTORS \ I

\ \ \ | I \ |1
CORPOR;‘ATE INFORMATI?N m | N

Kalanithi Maran
K. Vijaykun]ar

| Execptive Chairman ||| | |
| Man?ging Director % ﬁr‘li‘ef Execuﬁive Off‘cem |

S. Selvam Director
Kavery Kalénithi | Execbtive Director LTI | N
J. Ravindran | Independent Director| || | | [ ] ]

M.K. Harinarayanan
Nicholas Martin Paul
R. Ravivenkatesh

Independent Direct?r‘ N | NN
Independent Director
‘Indeﬁendent Directér‘ 1 | I

C?MPANM SECRETARY R. Ravi | | | i | N
& ‘COMPLHIANCE OFFICER ‘ ‘ ‘ m | I
BANKERS | | | LI | LI
| | Andhra Bank | Axis Bank 11 I
City Union Bank Corporation Bank
| | HDFC Banﬂ( ‘ICICI‘ Bank 1T | I
\ [ Indian Bank | Indiah Overseas Bahnk| | | \ L
‘ I Karur Vysy@ Bank ‘ Kotalf Mahindra Barm | ‘ N
Ratnakar Bank Standard Chartered Bank
| H State Bank 'of India ‘Yes éank T | I
i I i i i HHH | LI
AYDITORS | | 1111 I
| | M/s S.R. Batliboi &Associa}es LL‘P ] | B
Chartered Accountants,
| I 6th & 7th Floor - 'A' Block | | LTI | LI
I (Module 601,701,702) | | 1111 Y
| I Tidel Park,é\lo. 4, Rajiv Gaqdhi S?Iai, I | B
Taramani, Chennai - 600 113.
i I i i i RERR | LI
SECRETARIAL AUDITORS | | | 1] ] | | |] ]

M/s. Lakshmmi Subramani?n & AFsociates
Practicing (.l,ompany Secretaries,
Murugesa Naicker Office C&)mplek

No. 81, Greams Road, | |
Chennai - qOO 006. | |

| | |
Murasoli Maran Towers, | |
73, MRC Nagar Main Road
MRC Nagar, Chennai - 600 028.
www.suntv.‘n | |

RI.T.GISTRﬁR AND SHARE TRANSFERA:AGENT | |

M/s Karvy Computershare Private Limited
Karvy Selenium Tower B, |

Plot Number 31 & 32, Finaricial Djistrict,
Gachibowli,‘ Hyderabad - 5q0 032‘.
www.karvyc‘:omputershare.c‘om
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__ AUDIT COMMITTEE ] |

J.Ravindran

M.K. Harinarayanan
Nicholas Martin Paul | | |
R. Ravivenkatesh ‘ ‘ ‘

“Chairman

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE L

J. Ravindran Chairman

M.K. Harinarayanan | | |
Nicholas Martin Paul \ \ \
R. Ravivenkatesh ‘ ‘ ‘

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE \ \

M.K. Harinarayanan
J. Ravindran

Nicholas Martin Paul | | |
R. Ravivenkatesh \ | \

\Chairman \ \

M‘ANAGé‘MENT

Kalanithi Maran Executive Chairman |
K. Vijaykumar
Kavery Kalanithi Executive Director

President |

‘Managing Direc}or & q:hief Executivq (Pﬁiper

R. Maheshkumar
| | V. C. Unnikrishnan Chief Financial Qfficet [ 1] ]
| H C. Praveen ‘Chief Operating Offic%r 1]
S. Kannan Chief Technical bfficer
| | R.Ravi Company Secrettary & Compliance Officer
| I | | | T
| I | | | LT
\ I \ \ \ LT
| I | | | 11T
| I | | | LTI
| Contents | | | Page Nos
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Directors Report
Management Discussion and An‘alysis Report
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REPORT OF‘THE DIRECTOI‘QS TO THE SHAREI‘-IOI‘.I‘)ERS

| Your Directors are pleased to present the Thirty First Annual Report and Audited Financial

Accounts of the ﬁ)mﬁanyiforﬁe financial year ‘eindeq31§t MErch?Oﬂﬁ | ‘7

| | |FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS | | | LT \ N
o | HThefinancial highlightsforthe‘ earended 31st‘March‘ 2016 are giver‘l t‘x‘-:"lc‘)w: | I
L ! | 1 (Rs. in Grores) | 11
Particulars | H For the year ended | For the! %br ended ]
| | | | Standalone | | Consplidated | [ ]|
| | H 31st Mﬁrch, 31st March,‘ 31st Marﬁh‘,‘ I 31st I\flarch, Ll
L ‘ ) 2016 2015 2016 | 2015 o
1 \ 1 \ \ \ T \ — |
Totall Income! H 2,493/30 2,331.45 | 2,680.41 || 249429 | || |
Total Expenditure | | | | LI | |1 |
QEquuding In‘terest &financial ‘ ‘ ‘ BN ‘ | |
(Eha‘rges) | I 1,178r66 1,21‘7.24 | 1,300.5% i 1,33‘3.45 N
I\’roTit before‘ intere: ‘t and tax 1,314(64 1,11‘4.21 | 1,379.8? i 1,16‘0.84 B
Interest & Financial Charges 21 2.22 2.20 2.29

ILro}it Befor&J-s ExtraoHrdinary | | | T | I
items and Tax | 1,312.53 111190 | | 137768 !l 115855 | |
Extrbordinar;Jr items (%et) 1797 - 17.97 |11/] oo
Profit Beforé Tax affer \ \ \ T \ L]
Extraordinary items 1,330,50 1,111.99 | 1,395.65 ||| | 1,158.55 | || |
IfrO\(ision for‘Taxatiorv 463T25 37‘4.76 ‘ 475.4? i 37‘5.96 Ll
I"rofit beforeT minoriﬁy interest | | | 1 | BN

Share in Net Profit of

issociates | ! 867‘.25 73‘7.23 | 920.1& il 78‘2.59 s
éhaL’e in Proijit from AUssociates | - | - | 10.6§ il 1‘3.53 I
Profit after taxes | 86725 737.23 | 930.79 | /| 79612 | ]|
Profit attributable to : | | \ LT | LI
Owners of Equity | | - |- 913.38 || ||| 782.04 | || |
Minority Interest [ | - | - 17.41 11| 14.08 | || |
Irrofit after tf)xes H 867T25 7%7.23 ‘ 913.3§ Il 78@.04 L
ficcumulated Profit | | 1] N
beginning of the year 2,227.04 2,019.14 2,195.48 1,942.77

I‘nter‘im Divid<‘end ! 610.83 443.35 | 610.8% Al 44‘3.35 I
+ax ‘on Interirln Divide‘%d 124‘.35 §5.98 | 124.3& 1] 8‘5.98 aa
Profit Carried Forward 2,359.11 222704 | | 237368 |1 219548 | |||
Earnings Per Share (Face value | | | LI | |1 |
Rs.5/-) beforle extradrdinary items 21,55 18.71 | 22.72 ||| 19.84 | || |
Earnings Per Share (Face value \ \ \ [ \ | ]|
‘Rs.fS/-) after‘extraorqﬁinary items 22T01 1‘8.71 ‘ 23.1§ I 1‘9.84 N
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! REPORT OF‘THE DIRECTOI‘QS TO‘THE SHAREI‘-I(‘)‘I‘.I‘)ERS ‘ L

| SUMMARY OF OPERATIONS o L | N

| The Total Income for the yedr ended 31st March 2016 was Rs. 2,483.30 crores as against

H Rs. 2,331.45 crores during thF previous year ndej 31st March Z(ﬂ)? Erofit Before Tag aftFr
extraordinary items was Rs.'1,330.50 crores as against Rs. 1,111. é rores in the previou

|year. Profit After Tax after extraordinary items was Rs. 867.25 crdres| as against Rs. 737,23
H crores in the previous year. | | | I | B

I BUSINESS OVERVIEW ‘ ‘ ‘ LI ‘ L]

I Your Company, one of the largest Television Br adcaﬁters in India OZ r?tfng Satelllte Tele ism
Channels across four languages of Tamil, TeIugPu, Kannada and Mal jglam and presently airi g
|FM radio stations across India continues to have sustained and ihcteased viewership| of|itg
H channels with Sun TV being thF most watched ?hannfl in India. 1 | B

|DIVIDEND \ I [ \ I

H During the financial year end?d 31st March 2016, tl're Board of Dirﬁ:‘i rF declared the Inte‘rirg
Dividends of Rs. 6.00/- per equity share (120%), Rs. 2.00/- pe Zuity shar (40%5 arg
|Rs. 7.50/- per equity share (150%) at the Board Mestings held on Apfil|30, 2015, February 12}
H2016 and March 14, 2016 respectively and h?ve not recommend?é/ﬁ y Final Divideng. Thz
dividend payout would resultin a total dividend of 310%, i.e., Rs. 15. —ger equity share ffgé
|value of Rs.5.00/- each for the financial year ended 31st March 2016 (Prev. Year of 225%, ije.|
Rs 11.25/- per equity share of face value of Rs.?.OO/— each). The Payorjt r?tio currently stand? aﬁ
l8a 77%. \ \ T \ 1l

H \ I [T \ I
H TRANSFER TO RESERVES

During the financial year 201 5-‘1 6, no amount hgs beén transferred t(g Mé beneral Iieservel. I

I \ | | I | LI
| DIRECTORS’RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT | m | o
In terms of Section 134 (3) (c) and 134 (5) of tLe Companies Act, ZOH your Directors confirm
Ithat, to the best of their knowledge and belief: | | [T | |1

H: In the preparation of‘the Statement clf Prof‘t & Loss for thé Lfi‘runcial yea‘r endeé 3‘1‘5*
[ March, 2016 and Balance Sheet as at that date (“financial statements”), the applicable

Accounting Standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to
H material departures; | | | T | N

= Appropriate accoun‘ting policies hgve b‘een selected ‘Ar“i‘ applied ‘consis‘ter“l;ﬁ

| and made such judgments and estimates that are reasonablel and prudent so|as ftd
give a true and fair yview of the state of afffirs of the COE??W as at the end ?f ﬁhﬁ

financial year and of the profit of the Cgmpa y for that period; | |

I \ | \ | LI \ | L
=

Proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
[ accordance with the provisions of thig Act fdr safeguarding|/théldssets of the Company
H and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregulfrmes. To enﬁure this, Ehz

Company has established internal control ;Lstems, consis é ith its size and atuL’
| of operations. In wejghing the assurance [provided by any [such system of interfial
controls its inherent limitations shou|d be recognized. Th F ?ystems re review 3
and updated on an éngoing basis. Periodic internal auditfir@ conducted to prjov@
[ reasonable assurande of compliance with these systems. The Audit Committee meets
at regularintervalsto‘reviewthe interqalauﬁitfunction; ] | B

H = The financial statem?nts have been p(eparefd on agoing cqnﬁ?rp basis. | BN

1= Proper internal financial controls were in Qlace and that Mq ‘financial cpntrols‘w?fq
adequate and were operating effectively.

I \ | | LT | I
= Proper systems are in place to ensure ?ompliance of arl laws applicable to ﬁhe
| Company: | | il RN
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| | |DIRECTORSAND KEY MANAGERIALPERSONNEL | [l ‘ N

[ ] | |None of the Company's dirgctors are disqualified| from being appointed as g director |as
| | Hspe(:ifiedin Section 164 (2)ofﬁheCompanies/-\ct, 20?3. 1 | BN

| ‘ I Retirement by Rotation ‘ ‘ ‘ ] ‘ N

o | HAs per the provisions of the‘ Companies Act, 2013, Mrs. Kavery‘ g Ifnithi, Director faf jr‘\ei
Company will retire at the ensuing AGM and being eligible, seeks re-a E intment. *he Board o

| | | Directors recommend her re-appointment. | | L1 | |

[ ] | | The information on the particulars of director eligible|for re-appointrént in terms of Regulation
H 36(3) of the Listing Regulatio‘ns has been pr?vided‘ in annexure t? ‘tme‘ notice c?nveniqg Wﬁ
Annual General Meeting.

Key Managerial Personnel

| | H Pursuant to the provisions o# Section 203 of‘the dompanies Act,‘ %)LI& the Ke)l ManabeHa‘
| | |Personnel of the Company are Mr. K. VijayKumar,| Managing Dirg¢tor and Chief Exec¢utjye

Officer, Mr. V.C. Unnikrishnan, Chief Financial Officer and Mr. R. Ravi, Company Secret?ry
| | HThere has been nochangeinthe Key Managerial PeionnelduringtllnﬁyJ arunderﬂeview.‘ I

o | HAPPOINTMENTOF MR.R. M‘AHESHKUMARJAS PkESIDENT LT | T

| | | As a part of our ongoing effonjt to strengthen dur Ménagement TeaH {Me Comparlwy app&inﬂéd
| ‘ HMr. R. Maheshkumar as Presqdent with effect from 1‘st November 2‘0(]@.‘Mr. R. M@heshkpn@q

46 is a Chartered Accountant with over 23 years’ experience out of which more than 15 years
|| lhasbeenwithMedialndusty. i A1 e

. | | CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT, MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

| \ |REPORT AND OTHER INFORMATION REQUIRED UNDER THE COMPANIES ACT,|2013

- | /AND SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS)
REGULATIONS, 2015

o | H As required under Regulation‘34 and Schedul‘e \% oTJ SEBI (Listing &)UIi‘dations an‘d DiSC|lf)Sl‘JL’J

| | |Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (hereinafter refefred to as “Listing| Regulations”) with the
Stock exchanges, we contintfe to be a pionﬁer in benchmarking o;r ic:rporate governagm

] | H policies with the best in the' media industry. The 'report on Ma% &5 ent DisL:ussiorll

| | |Analysis, Corporate Governance as well as the Auditor’s certificate| régarding compliance] jof

o | H conditions of Corporate Gover‘nance forms par}ofthe‘AnnuaI Report‘. | | B

o | HVariousinformation required to be disclosed u dertheCompaniesﬁlli,‘jfwand chedul‘e\/Hof
SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 is set outin the Annexure - 1 and fori rt of this report.

- | HAUDITORSANDSECRETAR‘IALAUDITORS‘ | i | I

| | |Pursuant to the provisions df Section 139 and other applicable| provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed rhere nder, as amenchLfrom time to time, ﬁh
] | Happointment of M/s. S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP, Chartereé A L:ountant (ICAI Firjrj
| | |Registration No: 101049W) as the Auditors ofjthe Company approyed by the Shareholders jat
the 29th Annual General Meeting (AGM), for a term orthree years, Ij tfl{uhe conclusion of 32‘nj
| | | AGM, which was subject to ralification at ove AGM. be and is hereby ratified to hold the offic
| | |from the conclusion of this AGM ill the conclusipn of the 32nd AGM of the Company to be held|in
the year 2017, at such remuneration plus applicable taxes, out-of-pocket expenses, etc., as
o ‘ H may be mutually agreed betwéen the Board of Ibirect&rs ofthe CompbW énd theAJditors. I

| | HAs per the provisions of Sectién 204 of the Corjnpaniés Act, 2013 anh Hl‘.ﬂ‘e 9 ofThé Comp‘anuag
| | | (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has

appointed Smt. Lakshmmi Subramanian, Senior Partner of M/s. Lakshmmi Subramanian &
| | ‘Associates, a firm of Compani/ Secretaries in ﬁ’ractiée to undertake‘tﬁmé‘ éecretariah Audit Bf ﬂljné
| \ | Company. The Secretarial Audit Reportis annexed herewith as Annexurg V1. ‘ ||

| | | There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks or disclaimers in the Auditors and
Secretarial Auditors Report.

| | I | | | 11T | LIl
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! REPORT OF‘THE DIRECTOI‘QS TO‘THE SHAREI‘-I(‘)‘I‘.I‘)ERS ‘ L

| CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

|In accordance with Section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Cdmpany has ¢onstituted g
Corporate Social Responsibjlity Committee. The CSR Commitr}e? f the Compan q
Happroved a CSR policy. The ‘Annual report oh CSF# activities as eHJi ed under Compan 23
I (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules‘, 20141 has been app?qi%ep in Anne{(ure Il @octpii
Report. Further details relating to the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee are provide
|inthe Corporate Governance Report, which forms patt of this report.| ||| | | I

|SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES | | | [T | |1

| Your Company has two subsidiaries viz., M/s. Kal Radio Limited and M/s. South Asia FM
Limited. There has been no material change in the nature of business of the subsidiaries.
| Shareholders interested in obtaining a copy of the audited annual lacdounts of the subsidiary
H companies may write to the Company Secretary. In terms ofprovisoio‘jit&section 3)ofS?ctmg
129 of the Act, the salient features of the financial statement of the subsidiaries is set out'in

|prescribed Form AOC —1 as Annexure V whichforms|part of the annuyal|regport. | | l] ]

IMATERIAL SUBSIDIARY COMPANY | | [T | N

HAs per Regulation 16 of the !_isting Regulatijms, your Company lpqﬂqlo materigl subqidiﬂry[
company, whose turnover or net worth exceeds 20% of the consolidated turnover or net worth
Irespectively of your Company and its subsidiaries in the immediately preceding accounting

year.
I | | | LTI | LI

HTRANSFERTOTHEINVESTPREDUCATIOI}IAND‘PROTECTIOI‘f ITHI?ID | BN

In terms of Section 125 (2) of the Companies Act, 2013, an amount of Rs. 0.02 crores bein
| unclaimed dividend pertainind; to the financial\year 2007-08, had been transferrdd duriﬁg ﬂﬁg
H current year to the Investor‘ Education and‘ Prot?ction Fund eftﬁtﬁlyshed by‘ the CFnﬁr‘a‘
Government.

| PUBLIC DEPOSITS | o [T | ]

H Your Company has not acceﬁted any Deposi{s frorjn the public in Ltérlring of Secti‘on 73 Bf Me[
HCompaniesAct, 2013 during tq\efinancialyearynder(eview. ] ‘ N

|PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES L 1] | B

HSun TV Network Limited had, 1906 employees as of 31st March 52@6‘ (previously 2005). Ig
accordance with the provisiongofSection197 12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with uIQ
|of The Companies (Appointmént and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 the
required information is annexed and forms part of this Report. However, as per the provisions of
| Section 136 of the CompaHies Act, 2013, the Directors Repoﬂ sl being seﬁt to dll the
H Shareholders of the Company‘ excluding the affresaid annexure. Agy@h?reholder intere teci i
obtaining a copy of the said annexure may write to the Company Se Jetary at thg Registe é
| Office of the Company. | | i o

ISIGNIFICANT/MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS ORCOURTS | || |

‘There were no significant or material orders passep by the regul@tgrp‘or courtq or trib‘unﬁlq
impacting the going concern status and Company’s operations in future.

H \ ] LU \ 1L
MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF

ITHE COMPANY BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR AND THE DATE OF THE
|REPORT | m R

ere were no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the
Th terial ch d itments affecting the fi ial iti f th

I Company occurred between the end of financial yeaHto which this financial statements relate to
Hand the date of this Report. ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ H ‘

HINFORMATION AS REQUIRED UNDER SEPTION 134(3)(m) OF ”;_I‘E COMP{\NIES\A%T*
2013 READ WITH RULE 8(3) OF THE COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) IJU ES, 2014

I \

(A) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

| | LTI | L
HThe Company is engaged in éatellite Televisio‘n Bro‘adcasting oper‘a%i‘o‘n‘s and the‘ inform‘atign,‘
|as intended under Section 134 (3)(m) does not arise. | [ 1]]] | [ 1]
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b I(B) TECHNOLOGYABSORPTION, ADAPTATIONANDINNOVATION | | [I]

| | | The Company uses the latést high definition (HD) digital technology in broadcasting its
| ‘ |programs. The outdated teqhnologies are ponstqzntly identified‘ @p‘q updateq with ‘Iatgsy
innovations.

] \ H | [ \ I
(C) FOREIGN EXCHANGI% EARNINGS AND ouero

L | o 1 ge indrores) !

| \ I i i | t | Il
o | | PARTICULARS | | 315“March 2016 0 315‘Mar‘ch 201‘5 I
| | H Foreign Exchange Earangs | | 144.18 I 14?.85 ]
| ‘ H Foreign Exchange Outgp ‘ ‘ 49.94 1] 6P.86 |

| [ [ [ [ [ [T [ [
| \ |CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS \ [ I]]] | |1

] ‘ |As required by Accounting Standard — AS 21 on Consolidated Finahcial/Statements issu‘ed‘w
| | | The Institute of Chartered Accpuntants of Indiaj the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements
o | ‘ofthe Company are attached. The Audited Cor‘lsolidﬁted Financial \j\tﬂ?}?r‘nents als? aCCOLTInt‘fPW

the minority interest of your Company’s subsidiary South Asia FM Limited pursuant to the
| | ‘strategicalliancewith Red FM! | | 1T | I
|| | I | | | LTI | L
| | | CEO/CFO CERTIFICATION | | | [ | | ] |

| | | The Managing Director & Chielf Executive Officer and|the Chief Finandial Officer have submitted
| ‘ |a certificate to the Board regarping the financia| statements and othe‘r mﬂters as reﬂuired }mgpr‘

o | | Regulation 17(8) of the Listing‘ReguIations, wh‘ich for‘ms part of the re‘p‘c‘)ﬁ. | N

| | | APPRECIATION AND ACKNOWLEDGMENT | [T | N

. | H Your Directors take this oppor#unity to place on‘recoré their deep apér‘euigtion ofthg dedic‘atign,‘

|| | Ihard work, solidarity, co-opefation, support and commitment of employees at!all levels! lin

|| \ |maintaining the sustained growth of your Company|and remain in|the|forefront of media gnd
entertainment business.

| | I | | | LI | I
| ‘ H Your Directors thank and express theirgratitud? fortqe supportand F?T?Peration r?ceiveq fr?m
the Central and State Governments mainly the Ministry of Information and Broadcasting and the
‘Department of Telecommunication and othcl:r staLehoIders inCh‘Ain viewers‘, prodt‘;cé#s,‘
| | lvendors, financial institutions| banks, investols, setvice providers|ds|well as regulatory and

| ‘ [ governmental authorities and §tockexchangeq, forth‘eircontinued syqpprt. ‘ ||

| | H | o OnbehaifoftheBoard | |
| \ [ \ \ \ [T \ LI
. | H Place: Chennai | | | Ka‘la‘lr“t‘hi Maran‘ I
| \ | Date: July 8, 2016 \ \ \ Chairman | LI

| | I | | | 11T | LIl
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H ‘ ANNEXUI‘?E - I‘

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) POLICY

The CSR Policy of the Company and the details about the initiatives takeh by the Company on!

QSR during the financial year as per the Companies| (Corporate Sdcjal Responsibility Pplicy)|
Fﬁules, 2014 have been disclose? inAnnexure Ilt? this I‘?eport. T | B
I | | |

[ \ I
EHXTRACTOFANNUALRETUI‘RN D e | 1

The extract of Annual Return as provided under Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 is

d‘%sclosed inAnnexure lllin the fclrm MGT-9and #orms‘part of this Rep H.‘ | | I

NUMBER OF MEETINGSOF THEBOARD | | 11T | |
ljuring the financial year, seven Board Meetings were held. The details of Heetings are furnishéld|

in the Corporate Governance Report. The intervening gap between the|meetings did not excegd|
O‘Pe hundred and twenty days. | | | I | BN

H | . T \ I
INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS’ DECLARATION

All Independent Directors have ziven declarations that they meet the criteria of independence as
laid down under Section 149 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16{1)(b) of the!
Listing Regulations. | | | I | LI

I | | | LTI | L
ROLICY OF DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION | ||| | | BN

THhe Company's policy on Diqector’s appointment pnd remuneraptpp‘ ‘including‘ criteri@ m)r‘
d‘Ftermining qualifications, posﬁtive attributes, i‘ndep ndence of a qirﬁﬁtpr and oﬁher m?tt |"s‘
provided in Section 178 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 forms part of the report as Annexure

Further information about elements of remuneration péckage of individUal directors are prO‘l/ide‘
inf the extract of Annual Return as provided in the Annexure 1l - form MGTH 9. | | 1]

H \ . [ \ I
RARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS | ||| | | NN

qetails of Loans, Guarantees apd Investments Fove@d under the pr‘ow?ipns of chtion 1@6‘%
the CompaniesAct, 2013 are given in the notes to the Financial Statements.

Fl‘ARTICULARS OF CONTRACLI'S ORARRANéEME“TS WITH REILH'HD PARTIES _

'Il‘he information on material tran‘sactions with relzgted p:Lrties pursuantu é‘e‘ction 134‘(3) (h) gft“e‘
Act, read with rule 8(2) of the Cohpanies (Accouhts) Rules, 2014, in Fofm AOC — 2 i annexed/{o!
this reportas Annexure IV. | | | L] | | 1]

H \ . T \ I
INTERNAL CONTROL | | N \ I

T‘he information about internal ,controls is set (?ut in ‘the Managem?rm Hiscussioq & Anﬁlyﬂs‘
Report, which is attached and fo‘rms part of the rer)ort. | m | ol
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H ‘ ANNEXUI‘?E - I‘

ma ! i

RISKMANAGEMENT | [ i
As per the provisions of Section|134 of the Companies|Act, 2013 and Regulation 21 of the Listing
ﬁfegulations, the Board has ‘constituted a Iﬁisk Management ??mr‘nittee cqmprisirpg ‘ Pf\
Independent Directors. The Risk Management is overseen by the Risk Management Committee

fthe Company on a continuoué basis. Major risJ(s idell]tified by the bu‘sMégses and Hunctior#s zﬂe‘
dystematically addressed through mitigating actions dn a continuous bhsis. For details, pleasel
rFferto the Management Discuqsion and Analysi§ report which form part gfphe Boarq’s Repq)rt.‘ | |
IﬂAMILIARIZATION PROGRAN‘IME FOR INDEP‘ENDI‘ENT DIRECTOI‘?Q : | S
‘#he Company has practice of cgnducting structt‘:red irLduction and faHiI‘igﬁization p#ogramlne‘ H
the independent directors as détailed in the Coanoraté Governance RHddrt which forms darﬂ of
the Annual Report. | | | LI | i

I \ \ | LTI | L
VIGIL MECHANISM/ WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

s per Section 177 (10) of the CgmpaniesAct, 261 3 an‘d Regulation 2% M‘He Listing hegulakionus,‘
the Company has a vigil mechanism to deal with instance of fraud and Hﬁsmanagdment, if aHy.\
The details of policy are explained in the Corporate Governance Report| | | | | | ] |

I \ \ \ LTI \ N
PERFORMANCE AND FINANCIAL POSITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

he financial position of each of the subsidiaries is pljovided ina se;gth‘e statemént AO& —‘ ‘1 ,‘
dttached to the Financial Statement pursuant to first pﬁoviso of Sectio‘nHﬁZ@(3) of the Compbniés‘
Act, 2013 asAnnexure V. | | | L] | | 1]

I | \ \ LTI \ L
INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS’ MEETING
A‘\s per Regulation 25 of the Lis‘ting Regulations‘, a se‘parate meeting‘; ‘o‘f‘l‘ndependént Dire‘ctc‘>‘rs‘
Was held during the financial yeér. The detailed information is givenin tHe borporate Governance

Report. \ \ \ [T \ I

H | \ [ [T | I
OARD EVALUATION | \ R

In terms of applicable provisions of the Compan‘ies Act, 2013 and SéB‘I‘I‘.i‘sting Regulations, the
Board has carried out a formal annual evallation of its own prHrhance, the directors
individually as well as the functipning of its committees. A detailed explanation has been giver in|
th1e Corporate Governance Repf)rt. | | i | N

POLICY ON PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT
AT WORKPLACE \ \ \ LI | N

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace dnd has adopted an Antiq

exual Harassment policy in Iipe with the provisions‘ of the Sexual ‘I-Hr‘a}ssment qf Worqen‘ PH
workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder. During
the year under review no complaints on sexual hgrassrhentwere receiL/ U | I

10 \‘Anpual Repprt 201@,—2016 ‘ ‘ ‘




7 1. Avriefoutline of the Company’s CSR policy, including overview of projects or programmes

| | | \ LI | L1
ANNEXURE Il : ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES

| (section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with The Companies (CSR Pblity) Rules, 2014) | Il |
[ | \ | [T | | I] ]

pﬁbposed to be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR! olicy and projeéts‘ or
Pljpgrammes | | | LT | L

Thie Corporate Social Responsibility Committee|of the Board had apprgved a CSR policy with
primary focus on health care, women empowerment, environmental sustainability and contributing
tolrural development projects. Besides these focus areas, the Company shall also undertake dny!
otFerCSRactivitieslistedin Sch?duIeVIIofthe C?mpar‘ﬂesAct, 2013. i | BN

The CSR Policy of the Company ¢an be viewed onwww,suntv.in LI ‘ |l

| | 2. Cémposition of the CSR Comniittee \ \ I \ N
| \ MF. K. Vijaykumar + Chairman \ \ I | |1l
MHS. Kavery Kalanithi -Member
| | Mr. Nicholas Martin Paul l Member | | 1T | I
o | 3. A\&erage net profit of the compa‘lny forthe last tLree f#nancial years ‘—‘ HS“I ,068.454 Crore I
| | I | | | | [T | I
o | 4. Pﬂescribed CSR Expenditure (t‘wo percent of ttre am?unt asin item‘?:‘ ?P‘ove) | B
| ‘ TWe Company is required to spenp Rs.21.37 Cror? towqrds CSR. 1] ‘ ]|
| | 5. Details of CSR spend during the financial year’ | [ 1]]] | [ ]
| | a) Tdtalamountto be spentforthe fihancial year—Rs.21.37 Crore [T | [l
b) Amountunspent,ifany—Rs. 11.77 Crore
] ‘ c) M%nnerinwhichtheamountspeﬁtduringthefinaﬁcialyéarisdetailed below!: ‘ I
| | | | L |11y (RsinCrofes) |
A t Cumulative Amount
| | H | QTJ(;:; ‘Amant spent EX;IQH iiure spént : Directlor!
.N Projects/Actiyities Sector Locations |(Budget) Proiect|| ©n the project It throug
PNe P Y ( or |garo)granj13 | or programs | the ng(@ting irApIeme tin‘é |
| | | I | wise | | Reriqds jagency | |
| 1./ | Chief Ministet's Relief| Relief for | Chennai | - | 500 500! | Direct’ |l |
Fun flood
| i o0 e | o 1111 I
| | I people \ | | LI | I
| 2] Edudation to poor Promoting| Across || - 4.55 4155 Thrpough Tiust - |
o childr‘en | Education | India | | | 1] Sun‘ Found‘atic‘)r‘w |
3. Other‘s Relief for | Chennai - ?.05 O?F Direct
e H oo | | i | )
|| \ I affected | \ \ LT \ L
people
" 1| Total I \ \ 9.60 9,60/ \ IR
o 6. The Company has partially expe‘nded 2% of its a‘veragb net profits médé‘during the‘immediatgly)
I ‘ thnee preceding financial years 15 per section 135(5) of Companies A t‘, @13 in pursuance of‘ WtST
corporate social responsibility policy since the company is yet to identify sutiable projects.
| | I | | | LI | I

| K. Vijdykumar | .
‘ Chairr‘pan of CSR Committee ‘ ‘ ‘

Tme implementation and monitori‘ng of CSR Policx isin qompliance with q:ﬁlﬁ objectiv§s and poljw
ofthe Company.
LI | i

H | | |
Nicholas Mﬂt%n Paul ‘ N
Director 1] | NN
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| [ [ \ ANNEXUI{EIII \ L \ I
| | I FORM MGT - 9 : EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN! | | | |l

As on the financial year ended 31/03/2016 |

(Management and Administratioh) Rules, 2014] 11|

A0
| | | _ ) i ,
o | ‘Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013and Rule 12(1 f ‘c‘zf the Companies
| | I | |
o ‘ I. REGISTRATIONAND OTHER DFTAILS: ‘ ‘ ‘

;CIN; ‘ H ‘ L22;110TN;1985PLCO124;9 ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ L

\
1
1
|

Registration Date | \ 18/12/1985 n \ N

Nar‘ne of the‘Comparu'ny Sun‘TV N(‘atwork Limited‘ I |

| |
[ | | | | | L | |
patpgory/Sup - Catepory of the Company ‘ Corrppany‘Limited by Shqrgﬁ/‘ Indian an- ‘

Government Company

Address of the Regidtered Office and Contact details Murasoli Maran Towers, 73, MRC Nagar Main || |
| ‘ I ‘ Roap, M&C Nagar, Cheqn‘a}iw 600028.‘ N
Ph - 91 44 44676767

Whether listed company ! Yes' ! T \ 1T

Narme, addréss and tontact details of Registrar | \ \ T \ \

‘anqi TransferAgent I ‘ M/s.‘ Karvy( Computersha‘rq‘lﬁivate Lim‘ited ‘
Karvy Selenium Tower B

] | ” | Plot Number 31 & 32, Finanéal District, |

| | I | |

Gachibowli, Hyderabad + 500 032. |
| | | Il | Ph -\ (040)\ 23420815 [ | [
[ 1T [ [ [ T [ [ I

| ‘ L. PI}INCIPALBUSINESSACTIVIT‘IESOFTHECO‘MPANY: N ‘ ]

| | All thé business activities contribdting 10% or mare of the total turnover of the co%pany‘sﬁéli

| | bestafed:- | o i L
| S.No | Nameland Description of | NIC Code df the | % to tottal turnover of the || |
L | _main products / services | Product/ service | | || company L
[1. ] | Broadkasting Services \ 92132] \ [ 100% | L

1 ! H ! I B ! I
| | lll. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES: | B

|S.No| Name and address CIN/GLN | Holding/ Yl of | Applicablg |
of the company Subsidiary/ s Section
. | cﬂ | ‘Asszciate Eﬂcﬁ | P I
] \ I \ | \ P T \ P
‘1. ‘ KaI‘Radio H‘imited U92131TN200‘5PLC057755 ‘ Suqsidiary 97.‘7@ “’/o ‘ 2(8]) I |

Murasoli Maran Towers,
|| 73, MRC Nagar Main \ | \ LT \ L

|| | Road, MRQ Nagar, | | R
12.| | SouthAsiaFM Limited | U92131TN2005PLC057987
73, MRC Nagar Main | L
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- | H ‘ ANNEXUI%E III‘

| | I FORM MGT/- 9: EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN| | |

o | V. INDEBTEDNESS: | o

| | financFlyearended 31stMarch,201?. | |

| | Therelwas no indebtedness in the form of Secured loans, Unsecured loans|or Deposifs duriﬁg the

| | VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

|| | A. Rémuneration to Managing Director, Whole-tite Directors:

\ \

s. in Crores
| L | L 1] (Rs. in Crores)
| \ I \ \ A I \ L

Name of MD / WTD
S| No. Particulars of Remuneration | | | L | Xm:ﬂlnt
| | [ Mr. Kalanithi Maran Mrs. Kavery KalanithiMr! K. Vijaykumar | | || |
i T | erdss sataly | o 11T [T
‘(a) | Sal‘ary as pHer provisions | | | T | BN

contained in section 17(1)

| \ [ as per Section 198 df the Companies A¢t,[2013.

|
o of tpe Incorpe-tax Act, 1961 1:‘3.14 ‘ ‘13.14 L 0.82 ‘ ‘ 2‘7‘.1‘0
[ [ [ I [ [ [ T [ [ [T
‘(b)‘ Value of pe(quisites u/s 17(2) | | | ] | B
| | InC\ome TaXHACt‘ 1961* | ) | | B Ll ) | | Il )
[ [ [ I [ [ [ [TTTT [ [ [T
‘(c) | Pro‘fits in Iiﬁu of salary | | | m | 0
under section 17(3) Income
||| ungersectipn 17G3) | L ] BRI
Tax Act, 1961 ; ; }
|| | TexAct 19 | L L1 RN
2 | Stock Optign | - | |- | 1] - | 11"
B | Sweat Equity |- | | - [T - Il -
| \ | [ 1] ] | | ] ]
‘4 | Ex-gratia/gonus 5%.33 | £8.32 O 0.26 | 11%.91
P | Oters plefse spedly | o e T
Total (A) | H 71.47 | 746 T 1,08 | 144.01
1 i I i i i REEN i 11
Ceiling as per the Act Being 10% of the Net Profits of the Company calculated | 144.01

| \ I \ \ \
*Iferguisites qmounteﬂj to Rs. 39,600/-, Rs. 39,600/-‘and Rs. 10,800{- resqectively.

20 \‘ Aqnual Reqort 201@-2016 ‘ ‘ ‘




[ FORM MGT -/9: EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN | || | | \

T o F.Re*mureramonfto ﬁheﬂ)iﬁct&s:T

ANNEXURI% ] ‘

.
[T (Rsl inCrAre@)‘

|| IS.No| | Name of Directors || sitting Fees | Commission || [Others | | Totall !l||
| 1. |Independent Directors | | | 1111 | | ]/
| | HMr. J. Ravindran | 0.0162 | | - L 10.016;‘? |
‘  Mr. M.K. Harinarayanan ‘ 0.0162 ‘ - LT ,0.0162
o | 'Mr. Nicholas Martin Paul 0.0176 | - T 00176 ||
| | | Mr. R. Ravivenkatesh | 0.0162 | || - [T l0.0162 ||l
| \ | Total (1) | 0.0662 | \ - | [T1- 10.0662 || |
| 12. |Non Executive Directors | ‘ ‘ 111 ‘ i
| | HMr. S. Selvam | 0.0050 | | - T }0.005(‘) ny
‘ _Total (2) ‘ 0.0050 ‘ - s .0.0050
. | ' Grand Total | 00712 ' | - BN ‘0om12 ||
] ‘ | overall Ceiling as per the Act! ‘ | Not Applicabl‘e‘ 1] ‘ 1]

(F.Remu[neration to other Directors / ‘Key Manageriaf Perqonnel other tlﬁml\(IDlWTD:‘ ‘

‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ (RS.‘ in erl’eﬁ) ‘

| ] | | KeyManagerial Persopnel || | i)l
S. No. Particulars of Remuneration
| | | * Compan)L Secriatary Chief Fihguéial Officér Totél 11
| 1 I 1 1 1 FHHH 1 —
| | 1. | Gross Salary \ \ \ LT \ Ly
| | | (a) Salary as per provision| o 1111 | il
| | | contained in section 17F1) | | i | il
o | H of the Income-tax Act, 1‘961 0.2‘0 | ?m | | 1.0}1 i)
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2)
. | | Income-tax Act, 1961* ‘- | | H-H | ‘- i
o | | (c) Profits in lieu of salary s | | [T | 1T
| | I 17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961 |- | |1 | - 1|
| | 2 || Stock Option \ - |41 \ [- 1|
|| | 3 | Sweat Equity \ - | |11 \ - ]
| | 4 | Commission | L 111 | i
- % of profit - -
| | | -asa%ofprof | ” 11T | 11|
| ' 5 || Others, please specify \ [ |1t \ = 1)
| | Total| (A) \ 020 | 0.81 | [ 1.01 [[]]

PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDIrlG Or OFFENCES:

%016. |

‘*Perquiusites amounted to Rs. 7,200/- Emd Rs. 10,800/L respéctively.

| There were no penalties, punishment or compounding pf offences during the financial year ended 31st|
‘March,

[T \ i
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| | I | | | LT | Il
Sun Ty Network Limited | o 1 I
| | \ l \ \ \ LI \ L (1]
| \ I \ \ \ I \ fbll
ANNEXURE - IV
| | I | FORMAOC-2 | LTI | I
| | | | ] L ]l
~ — — (Pursuantto Clause (h) of Sub-Section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule
| | H 8(2) of the Companies (Accolints) Rules, 2014) | ||!] | N
| | I | | | LT | |1l
| | | , \ \ | , | H\é |
Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with related
|| parties referted to in Sub-section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 in¢lulding certainlarms length!
| tranfactionﬂ‘underthird proviso thereto— | | | i | NN
| 1. | DeHaiIs of contracts orarrangemer#tsortransactiong notétarm’s length tJaLs‘iEL Not Apﬁ)licablé 1]
| | I | | | LT | Il
| | I , | o e N
o 2. | Deﬁallsofmatenal contractsorarra‘ngementortran‘sactlo‘nsatarm’sIen%tmt‘)e‘ms—NlL‘ B
| | I | | | I | LI
| | I | | | I | LI
| | I | | | LTI | LI
| | I | | | LT | Il
| | I | | | On behalf of the Board | || |
PI :Ch i
|| Ager nepnal | o 1 I
Date : July 8, 2016
| | I | | | I | LI
| | I | | | Kalanithi Maran | LI
| | I | | | Chairman | | LI
| | I | | | LT | Il
| | I | | | LT | |1l
| | I | | | LT | Il
| | I | | | I | LI
| | I | | | I | LI
| | I | | | LTI | LI
| | I | | | LT | Il
| | I | | | LT | |1l
| | I | | | LT | Il
| ‘ H [This space‘has been intent?onallx left blank] 1] ‘ ]
| | I | | | I | LI
| | I | | | LTI | LI
| | I | | | LT | Il
| | I | | | LT | |1l
| | I | | | LT | Il
| | I | | | I | LI
| | I | | | I | LI
| | I | | | LTI | LI
|| \ l \ \ \ L[] \ | 1]
|| | I | | | |11 | |1l
22 \‘Anpual Repprt 201@,—2016 ‘ ‘ ‘ L1 ‘ |l |




|
~(Parsuant to first proviso to sub-section (3{

| |
ANNEXURE -V
| FORMAOC-1 |

\
of Section 129 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014)

Statement dontaining salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/agspbciate companies/joint|

Pprt “A: Subsid\iarieS\

ventures

(All amounts‘are in Crores c‘>f Indian Rupees)

Particulars

Name of the Subsidiaties |

| I | | Kal Radio Limited| ||| SOYh AsiaFM |
L] | | | | | Il | L]
1. | | Reporting petiiod for the subsidiary concerned, if | | LT | [
| differﬁant fromche holding company’s reportipg period | ‘13t April, 2015 H T 1st ﬁpril, 2P1ﬁt
31st March, 2016 31st March, 2016
2‘. | Repo‘rting curHrency and Exchange rate as o‘n the last | LT | LI
| date é)f the reNevant Financial year in the caée of foreign | | [T | I
|| subsidliaries | | | | INR ||/ | L INR
3. || Share Capital | | | 176.94 |[/| | 615.36
4. || Reserves & Surplus | o 19.56 | | 1(B6)
5‘. ‘ Total .f\ssets I ‘ ‘ ‘ 2151@ i ‘ @35\0@
6‘. | Total !_iabilitief | | | 215.7‘q 1| | ?3%0?
Trop| Imvesments | o S T 4 i
8. Turnover 79.93 89.86
9‘. | Profit‘before tHaxation | | | 34.%4‘ Al | ‘3&.‘9J1
1b. | Proviéion for #axation | | | 12.é4‘ ] | L
1. || Profitlafter taxation | | | 22.00 ||/ | 1309t
12. || Propdsed Dividend \ \ \ A \ LIl -
13. || % of $hareholding | | | 97.78 % | ||| | 50.44%

Part “B”: Associates and ‘Joint ‘Ventures

(Ifursuan‘f to Section 129 (3) of the Con‘vpanies Act, 201‘3 re/afed to Associatg ‘@P(npanies fand Jo{nt I

Ventures)
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| I | o 1111 Ll
Sun Ty Network Limited | | 111 L

| | | | — - [
| | H | ALI2LRESEL 111 | ]|

| ] | | 1l 1
T scrbranat apotredorr VT 11T

SECRETARIAL AUDI+ REP‘ORT
|| \ I FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2016 | | \ N
| [Pursuant to Section 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of The Gompganies (Appointment| |
o | H and Remuneration‘of Managerial P‘ersonf‘:el) Rules, 201\% I | B
Cl To ! I | | | LI | I
| | TheMembers, | | | LI | I
o Sun‘TV Network Limited | | | T | Ll

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statu%ory provisions and tLe
| adherence o good corporate practices bﬂ/ Sun TV Network Limited (hereinaﬁté‘r‘ called the compbnu).‘
| Sec[etarial ﬁudit was conducted in a manner that proviqied us a reasonablq quris for evpluating tﬂe‘
o corp‘orate coHnducts/statutory compliances a‘nd expressing o‘uropir‘ﬂon thereon. ] | 1
|| Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minuté books, forms and teturns filed and othér!
| recqrds mainﬂmtained by the company and al§o the informatiqn proyided by the anwgpy, its offi?ers, agerﬂs‘

and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, We hereby report that in our opinion,
o the éompan has, during the audit period cbvering the finchiaI yéar ended on 3hﬂ {\)Aarch, 201‘6, corﬁpligd‘
| with|the statbtory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proger Board-pracesses$ apd|
com‘pliance-‘Pwechanism in place tothe extePt, inthe manner‘and srbject tothe remrﬂn‘g made hfzreinafferi N
| We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and othér recordd maintained|
| by Sun TV Network Limited (“the Company’) for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2016 according|to|
the ?rovisiorﬂs as applicable tothe Compan)(during the perio‘d ofau.fdit: I | B

| i. The Comfbanies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under and the C‘o%bénies Act,‘ 1956 fo the!
|| extentapplicable;; | | | LI | N

ii. TLe SecuHrities Contracts (Regulation)Ac‘t, 1956 (‘SCRA‘)‘and th‘e rules made th‘e‘r‘e‘ L‘Jnder; | T

] \ H \ . [ \ I
| iii. The Depgsitories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-lgws framed there| under to the extent |of]|
Feoulation SoA: | o 1l

] iv. Fbreign E‘}xchange ManagementAct, 1999 and the rules and redulations made there under to the extentof!
| External Commercial Borrowings; | | | ] | | ] |
V. TLe foIIovU/ing Regulations and Guideline‘,s prescribed un(‘jerthc‘a Securities anc‘j E)‘«‘:hange B(‘)ard of‘lnéi‘a‘
| Alct, 1992l('SEBI Act'):- \ \ \ T \ N
| | I | | | LI | I
a? The Fecurities and Exchange Board of India (Suqstantifl Acquisition ?f ﬁqares and Takeover?)
| . _ ! \ | T
Regulations, 2011;
| | I | | | LI | I
| b) The $ecurities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992 and|
the Securities and Exchange Board of India (ProhiFition ‘a) of Insider Tﬁcmg Regula}ions, %01‘?)‘
Applil:able with effect from 15 May, 2015;
| | I | | | [T | I
| c) The $ecurities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars|to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)|
Reglhlations, 1993 regarding the Cor‘npaniesActand ‘dealin‘g with client; ] | B

| | I | | | 11T | LIl
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\ I \ TSR -‘VI \ | I \ bl

| I SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT | []]] | |l

“Vi. ?p@ifi?wﬁapﬁcaﬂe a?mﬁtioﬁed?ereﬁndﬁ: * | | M ‘* | R
. U\plinking\VdownIinking policy/guidelines\issued by MinistlLy of Information and Bﬁdédcasting; | |1l
. The Cabl? Television Network(ReguIatiqns)Act, 1995 anq:l ruleq framed thereuqup‘r;‘ ‘ | ]
. Iqtellectu?l Property Rights related laws; | | L] | L
. Standards of Quality of Service (Duration of Advertisements in Television (L)Lannels) (Amendment)
Regulatidhs, 2013 issued by Telecom Regulatory Authority of India; and I \ N
5. The Telegommunication (Broadcasting and Cable Serviges) Interconnection (Digital Addressable Cable|
T?Ievisiorﬂ Systems) Regulations, 2012 | | | I | B

vii. We have also examined compliance with the applicable tlauses of the following:! | | \ N

A WON =

ax The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company‘ with the Stoc{k ‘Eﬁchangesw wher? tﬂe‘
Securities of the Company are listed and the uniform kisting agreement with lhe said stock exchanges
| pursliant to the provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Discldsure Requirements)!
‘ Regtﬂlations,2015(app|icab|e with qffectfrom1 Decqmber,‘2015). 1] ‘ ]|
b.‘ SecrLtariaI Standards with respect {o Meetings of B‘oard clf Directors (Sé-wgnd Genellal Mee‘tings‘

| (SS-2)issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India applicable with éffect from i July 2015. |

\ I \ \ \ LT \ L
We report tWat during the period under review the Company haicomplied wit tm ‘provisionf of th? Act

Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, etc. mentiohed above, excebtfort e below, Iy
| I | | | LI | I

a TPe Company has partially expended 2% of its averagﬁ net profits made du "‘T jhe imme?iately }hr e‘
preceding financial years as per Sectio% 135(5) of Companieg Act. 2013 in ;Lu 4 ance of its corporate
sobcial responsibility policy since the company is yet to idemtify suitable projects. | | | \ L

\ H \ o [T \ I
MANAGEMENT RESPONSIBILITY: | L O | K

1. Maintenahce of secretarial record is the responsibilitﬂl of the managemén&‘ of the Cohwpany.‘ olur!
responsibjlity is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audjt. \ ||

2. V\‘/e have pollowed the audit practices ancJ processes as w‘ere ap‘propriate to obia‘i#r‘easonabk‘a assur‘an‘c‘e‘
about thelcorrectness of the contents of the secretarial records! The verification Was done onlthe random!|
tqst basisHto ensure that correct facts are reflected in seqretari@ records. We Pﬂipye that thg processes
and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have hot verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial recordd andlBooks of Accounts|of]
the Compgny. | . 1 o

4. Where e\)Lﬁ,r required, we have obtained‘the Managemer%t reprgsentation abo‘u{ Wa compliaL\ce of iaV\‘/g,‘
rules and fegulations and happening of events etc., | | LI \ N

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is
tHe respou‘lsibility of the management. Ohr examination v‘vas Iin%ited to the veri%iééiigjnn of proéedures‘ oA ‘a‘
random tegst basis. | | | [T | I

\ I , o \ | | o | | Il

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the

efficacy or effectiveness with which the rﬁanagement has Eondu‘cted the affairs H’ {ijé CompaHy. I
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| \ I ‘ANNEXURE-‘VI \ | I \ bl

| | I SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT | []]] | |l
| \ [ \ \ \ [T \ LI

O Weﬁ?rﬂﬁr re‘?orﬁhaﬁher@we*re no*actbns7‘éveﬁts imhe*pur‘s*uan ‘e of N ‘* | | *H ‘*

| a) The $ecurities and Exchange Board of India (Sharg Based employee Bénefits) Regulations, 2014 |

| and t‘he Employees Stock Option Scpeme, 2007 appToved Pnder the provifi(wz of the Seg:uritie ar@j |
Exchgnge Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee é ock Purchase Scheme)

| | Guidelines, 1999; | | | LTI | N

| \ | | \ \ |11 \ L
b) The Securities and Exchange Board ‘of India (Delistin? of Ec‘Juity Shares) R(‘a%t‘.l‘la‘\tions, 2009

] \ H \ I
| ¢) The Securities and Exchange Board|of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulatigns, 1998 | | 1]

Li) The %ecurities and Exchange Bogrd of India (Isgue of‘ Capital and I%)igc‘lésure Rei}uiremleng)‘
| | Regulations, 2009; \ | | LI | i
|| \ | \ \ { |11 \ |

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;

| | I | | | LT | L
| requiring compliance thereof by the Company during the Financial Year under revigw,.| | | | |] ]

e further report, that the compliance by the Company of applicable financial laws, like direct and indir

| W } rth g rt, that th li b tlj1 C fé li Abl fi ial | WMk di t‘ di Ji elét‘
| tax laws, has not been reviewed in this Audit since the same hiave been subjett [to review by statutary |
| finar‘mcial auqftorand other designated profefsionals. | | i | N

| Wefurtherreport that: | | | I \ LI
| \ I | | | | T | |1l

The Board of Directors of the Company is well constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-
| Exeé:utive Dﬂ'ectors and Independent Direétors. There weré no cﬁanges in the cJ)rHﬂésition of Hhe Boérd ‘(gf‘
[ ] Directors duting the period underreview. | | | [ 111 | [ ] ]
I Notic‘;e is givcHen to all directors to schedule tr‘le Board Meetin‘gs, ag‘enda and detai‘le‘(‘j ‘n‘otes on a‘genda ‘we‘r‘c—:‘
| delivered and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifidations onlthe agéndﬂb\
| itemp before‘ﬁhe meeting and for meaningfu| participation att‘he mqeting. L] ‘ |l

ecisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out unanimously as recorded i

| All decisions at Board Meeti d Comrhittee Meetings are cafried out unanimous| orded in the|
| minytes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee of the Board, as the calse may be | [
We #urther rlport that during the audit peric‘;d no events hav‘e occijrred, which ha‘v‘e‘ le\‘major bel'aring o‘n tNe‘
|| Comlpany's affairs other than the following: | \ \ I \ LI

=] JThere isLn increase in investmentin Su‘bsidiary, South Asia FI\‘/I Limited to the ‘ewekt of Rs.1 é7.8 Crl)re@. |

Forﬁ.AKSHINIIMISUBRAMANIAN &ASSO‘CIATES | | I | BN

Lakshmmi Subramanian

Senforpan o | | 1111 | I
| | FCSNo.3534 | o 1111 | I
| | C.PNO.108f | ] 1111 | BN

" | Place: Chenhai | | | LI | N
| Date:July 8;2016 | | | [ | N

| | I | | | 11T | LIl
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\ [ \ANNEXURE_\"I \ L \ I
| I REMUNERATION POLICY 1T | |l

~This policy_ on Nomination “and Remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel “and Senior —

MaHagemerut has been formulated by the Nomination ‘and ﬁ?emuneration ‘C%Hmittee (NRC o# tHe‘
Committee) Jand has been approved by the Board of Directors in compliance \wijth Section 178 df the|
Con‘wpanies/‘-\ct, 2013 read along with the ay:TpIicabIe rules thefreto aTnd Clause 49 o‘fm? ’_isting A%reemept, ﬁs‘
amended frém time to time.

I

| | | | LI | N
Objective ahd purpose: \ \ \ [ | N

i | To guiﬁie the board by laying down driteria and termé and Eonditions in rél:ﬂibh to appofntmen{ aHd‘
removPI of Directors, Key ManageriaI‘PersonneI and S1enior Management. L] ‘ |l

To evaluate the performance of the meémbers of the Board. | [ | [l

To redommend to the Board a poIi(J:y, relating to the remuneration for If)iHeHors, Key‘ Manaéerﬂal‘
‘ Perso ‘ nel and formulate criteria for‘ remuneration ppyabl? to Senior quﬂgqment Pe[sonne' aﬂd‘
otheremployees.

| I | \ | LT | L
iv. &~ To pnjjvide Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Mana?ement perforrp?ﬂce based incentive? /
| rewar srelatingtotheCompany’sopérations. | | T

\ I | \ \ | 1L \ |

V. To retain, motivate and promote talent and to ensure long-term sustainability of talented Senior
Manadement and create competitive advantage through a structured talent réview. | LI

| [ | | | LI | N
Defi‘nitionsi‘ | | | BN

L1
“Remuneration” means any money or its equivalent given or passed to any person for services rendered by
him and incllides perquisites as defined under the Income-ta‘xAct, H961; LT | I

“Key Managerial Personnel” means: ‘ ‘ ‘ ] ‘ N

i) M?naging Pirector, or Chief Executive Offi‘cer or Managerﬁmd in ﬂheir absence, qwm?le-time Qirector% N
ii)Cr‘wiefFina‘Pcial Officer; | | | 1] | B
iii) C

) \ | | | LTI | L

iv) Such otheﬁrofﬁceras may be prescribed.‘ | | I | B

ompanyHSecretary; and

“Seiﬂor MaLageriaI Personnel” means ‘the personnel éf the ‘company who‘ gllé ‘memberg of its‘coue‘
managemerit team excluding Board of| Directors. Normally, | this would comptise all membets |of|
mawagemerﬂt, of rank equivalent to General Manager and above, including aIIfun?tiﬂrﬁl heads. | B

APPOINTMENT AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTOR, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND SENIOR/
MANAGEMENT | | | [ | | 1]

i. | The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification, expettide and expefience of the|
| persog for appointment as Director, KMP or at Seniqr Maqagement Ievelﬂgi recommend his / tﬁ.r‘
appoi kment, as per Company’s Policy. The Committee has'authority to deci bvhetheriualificéti ,

| expertise and experience possessed by a person is sufficient/ satisfactory forthie position. | | ]

ii. | The Company should ensure that it appoints or continlies the employment of any person ds Managing|

| Directcﬁr subject to the conditions laid ﬁiown under Part \ ofScPeduIe V ofthe ‘CﬁTPaniesAc‘t, 2013( 0

iii. | To enspre that Company shall appoint or continue th servi?e of any perso‘n T? Independ‘ent Dilfcﬁr‘
subject to the provisions of Section 149 read with Schedule IV and other apb icLabIe provisions of the
|

| Actand Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement. | | L] | |||

| [ | \ \ 27 || Annual Report 201512016
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\ I ‘ANNEXURE\‘III \ | I \ bl

\ [ REMUNERATION POLICY I \ I
"TERM/TENURE | | I N 1 N e e a | N
\ I \ \ \ I \ LI

a) Manaﬂing Director/Whole-time Director: | | m | ol

The|Compahy shall appoint or re-appoint|any person as jts Executive Chairmaln,| Managing Director [or]|
Executive Djrector for a term not exceedinP five years at a time. No re—appointm?nt shall be made earli?r
thanone yeﬂr before the expiry of term. | | T ‘ I

| I | | | LT | L
b) | IndepﬁndentDirector: | | | I | BN

An Indepenfient Director shall hold office| for a term up o fivel consecutive yiears| on the Board dof thel
Company and will be eligible for re—appoigtment on passiqg of:T special resoltitim ‘by the C?mpan¥ aﬂd‘
disclosure o#such appointmentin the Board's report.

\ I \ \ \ LT \ L
No Independent Director shall hold office f?r more than two consicutive terms of Lﬁ t? maximug1 of5 ){eﬂrs‘
each, but such Independent Director shall be eIigibIeforappL)intm ntafterexpiryg Areeyears f ceasing #o
become an Ihdependent Director. | | | L1 | |

PrO\‘/ided tth an Independent Director shal‘l not, during the gaid pgriod of three yggw be appoikted in ‘or ue‘
associated With the Company in any other capacity, either directly orindirectly. | ||| | | [ ] ]

At the time of appointment it should be ensured that number of Boards on which ‘sdc‘;#lndepen&ent DirL;ctor
servies is regfricted to seven listed companies as an Independent Director and threlg listed companies as &n|

Independent Director in case such personAs serving as a VTlhoIe-‘time Director OI ?‘Iﬁted comaany OF‘SUﬁh‘
other number as may be prescribed under the Act.

| H | L 1] R
EVALUATION
ALUATIQ | L i N

The! Committee shall carry out evaluatioh of performande of Director, KMP land |Senior Management!
Perﬁ.onnel yﬂearlyoratsuchintervals as mayf be considered qecesaary. i | N

REMOVAL | \ \ \ [ \ N
| I \ | \ L | N

The Committee may recommend with reasons recorded in writing, removal of a Director, KMP or Senior
Mar{agemer#t Personnel subject to the proL\/isions and com‘pliande of the CompéMéé Act, 201@, rules and!
regqlations ?ndthe policy of the Company. ‘ ‘ ‘ ] ‘ N

RETIREMENT \ \ \ LTI \ i
\ \ \ \ | 1] \ 1N

I \
The Director, KMP and Senior Managemenf Personnel shall retire as per the appljc til provisions ofthe’a\ t
and ‘the pre\uailing policy of the Company. The Board will rluave the discretion t ﬂe eﬁn the Dillector, k ;,‘
Senjor Management Personnel in the same position/ remuneration or otherwise gven after attaining the|
retirement a%e,forthe benefit of the Compa‘ny. | | O | O

|
POLICY FOR REMUNERATION TO DIRECTORS/KMP/SENIOR MANAGEMENTPERSONNEL | || |

| Remuﬂerationto Managing Director/{NhoIe-time Direl:tors: | T | I
\ I \ \ \ LTI \ N

a) | The Remuneration/ Commission etc. Fo be paid to Maqaging‘ Director/Who'e‘-time Directqrs, etc.‘shﬂll‘
be governed as per provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under or any other
| enactment for the time being in force aind the approvalg obtained from the Mémpers of the Company. || |

b)  The Nomination and Remuneration Eommittee shall‘ make such recomm‘e‘nueltions to tLe Boa‘rd of
| Directdrs, as it may consider appropfiate with regard lto remuneration to Mahagding Director / Whole-|
| fime Dectors. | | L] Ll

1)
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—2) ﬂ‘?eﬁu

3. Remu

\ \
ANNEXURE VII
I REMUNERATION POLICY

I \ \ \
neration to Non- Executive /Independent Directors:

The Non-Executive / Indepehdent Directors! may‘ receive sittir{g‘ 'fdes and Isuch othler!
remuneration as permissible under the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 The amount of sitting|
jes shall be such as may be recommended by the N‘omination and ﬁemuneratioq Comn‘wittﬁe‘
nd approved by the Board of Directors.
I | | | LT | L

All the remuneration of the Non#t Executive / Indépendent Directors (exXdluding remuneration for|
ﬁ‘ttending meetings as prescrib?d under Section 197 ‘(5) of the Coszfﬂi?s Act, 20‘13) shall He‘
subject to ceiling / limits as provided under Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under or
d\ny other enactment for the time being in force. The amount of such remlneration shall be!suth!
3s may be recommended by thq Nomination and‘ Remaneration Comrmq?? and app"oved Qy tﬂe‘

Board of Directors or shareholders, as the case may be. m | ol

An Independent Director shall nbt be eligible to g%t Stock Options andlalsolshall not be eIigiEIe‘ﬂo‘
participate in any share based payment schemes ofthe Company. | ||| | | | ] |

Any remuneration paid to Non- Executive / Independent Directors for services rendered which
‘re of professional in nature sh:JII not be conside%ed a§ part of the rem‘uh@rgtion for tllle purdosgs‘
df clause (b) above if the followirjg conditions are satisfied: [T | [

i The Services are rendere? by such Directo‘r in hi? capacity as th? Hﬁessional; and

In the opinion of the Com‘mittee, the dire&or pogsesses the reht‘ﬂéi{e qualificLation fér tHe‘
| practice of that profession| | | [T | L

nﬁration to Key Managerial Pers?nnel and Senior‘ManaPement: 1 | B

'Iuhe remuneration to Key Managerial Personne‘ and éenior ManageHéH shall corllsist of‘fixgd‘
pay and incentive pay, in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and|in|
q‘ccordance with the Company’sq Policy. | | i | N

'Iﬂhe Fixed pay shall include mo‘nthly remunerat%on, erlnployer’s contJitMt‘iJ)n to PrO\‘/ident Ij—’unui,‘
dontribution to pension fund, pension schemes, étc. as decided from time td time. | LI

I | | | LI | i
'h'he Incentive pay shall be decli\j:ed based on the balan‘ce between pew’fﬂmance oftl're Com‘paﬂy‘
and performance of the Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management, to be decided
d‘nnuallyoratsuch intervals as rﬁay be considered appFopriate. [T ‘ I

H \ \ \ T \ I
IMPLEMENTATION | I 11T | N

I \ \ \ | 1111 1L
I.  The Committee may issue guidelines, procedures, formats, reporting mecLanism and
| manuals in supplement and for better i‘mplerﬁentation of tIHiEHﬂolicy as | considered|
| appropriate. | | | LI | N

I | | \ LT | I
ii. The Committee may delegate any of its powers to one or more of its members.
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MANAGEM%NT DISCUSSI&N AI‘JD ANALYSIS kE‘AERT | I
| | I (Pursuant to Regulation 34 of SEBI (LODR) Regulatians) 2015) | | Il

|| | I | | \ [T | 1
~ T~ 7 TThefigures have beenstated inRs. Crores for betterreadability. — — — — —

| | HInves’tors are cautioned that this discussion ccTntain? forward Iookir‘q ﬁt?tements ‘that inYolwe‘
risks and uncertainties including, but not limited to, risks inherent in the Company’s growth

| | Ltrategy, acquisition plans, dependence on celLtain b‘usinesses, dedejr*(hénce on alvailabil‘ity ‘éf‘

| | lqualified and trained manpowel and other factors. The following disclission and analysis should |

| ‘ ‘pe read in conjunction with thq Company’s finapcial srtatements inclmjgp‘ herein arpd the qotﬂs‘
thereto.

| \ H \ \ \ [ \ I
| \ INDUSTRY \ \ \ [ \ I

| | IThe Indian Media and Entertainment (M&E) industry is a sunrise sector for the economy andlis |
| \ jmaking high growth strides. Maintaining its resilience to the world, the Indian M&E industryjis on |
o | che strong phase of growth, qacked by rising‘conswmer demand ?r‘uf‘ ifnproving‘ adverﬁisiwg‘
revenues. The industry has been largely driven by increasing digitisation and higher internet
o ‘ ‘bsage over the last decade. Internet has almost become a mainstream media for entertainment |
| | ffor most of the people. The dévelopment of payment technologies| jn¢teased penetration [of|
| | obile phones, growth of videP and audio stre?ming‘platforms and }rﬁ much anticfipated ‘wiﬁire‘

rollout of 4G services began last year and promised to gather pace in 2016. The emergence of
| | che "Networked Society" is re-ghaping all induétries énd empowerinb‘tHé consumér like Aev@r‘
| | Ibefore. Mobility, broadband ahd cloud are the primary enablers of change where 15 billioh|
| ‘ ‘onnnected; video enabled deyices by 2020 vyill driye an appetite‘fﬂr‘ Yideo tha} will cweqtp‘
unprecedented challenges and opportunities. In consideration of this strong growth the Indian
‘bovernment took various initigtives such as Jigitisilgg the cable digrxglhtion sect‘or to a{trgét‘
|| | lgreater institutional funding, increasing FDI limit from 74 per cent tol 100 jper cent in cablé and|
| \ IPTH satellite platforms, the granting of industry status to the film indystry for easy access fto|
institutional finance and the announcement ?f Dig]tal India progrfamrﬂe which ﬁransfo‘rm?fi‘

India into a digitally empowered society and knowledge economy.

Television industry continued to perform well, led by the Genera\‘ Fthertainment Channels
. | H(GEC). The year 2015 saw the launch of several new channels and hé iAtroductioL’n of ne\‘/v {/‘
| \ laudience measurement syste\m from BARC (Broadbast Audience|Research Cohncil) India. !
| | \BARC has started with a sample of 22,000 homes and will gradually ingrease it to 50,000|over|
| | the next few years further impr?ving the quality ?fdatﬂ. Accordingly, tw ‘rHal data wras roIIeF cwt |

in October, 2015 which helped the broadcasters as well as the advertisers to have insights into
| | che hitherto unknown rural market. The impleméntaticln ofthe viewergﬁiu %easuredwent sygté#n |
[ ] | by BARC, is likely to impact the way advertising spend is allocated amang different genres and |

| | ‘Fhannels, due toinclusion ofnerw markets and ir"ncreaﬁein sample sizF.‘ N | R

| | |Radio continued its strong run|with a 15.3 per ¢ent growth in 2015. Following the rew stations |
o | ‘ficensed in Phase 3 and consolidation in the inFustry‘, Radio is tranﬁf?ming from ? ‘cove(agﬁe"

media to a ‘reach’ platform. Major radio stations have been operating at high ad inventory
| | ‘htilisation levels and this coupied with the grovsl'ing aclivertiser intereét‘ ﬁils enabled increa‘se‘ih |
| | lad rates. Release of additional inventory from launch of new stations|will stabilise rates bjut|
| ‘ M’esultin continued advertiseme?ntinventory picHup. ‘ N ‘ N

| | I | | | 11T | LIl
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT
[ (Pursuant to Regulation 34 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations)| 2015) | I

TSunﬁ'VTs the most watched channel in India today and it is the FET?[ in So?h IFdETPyT -
Eenetration, viewership & ad revenues. It airs assortment of ficticin d non-fiction content
Imixed with movies across channels. Sun TV|Netwbrk Limited (Sl |Network) maintains its|
ominant position in the soutpern states of India as one of the Ia‘rqgﬁ televisio‘n and {aqi‘o‘
entertainment Company in India with a portfolio of Satellite Television Channels spread across
‘kour languages and in genres &f GEC, news, m‘usic, éction, life, mov‘iéé,‘ Rids and cbmedy.‘ Sl‘]‘ﬂ‘
INetwork also has a large netwark pan India in the FM Radio broadcasting segment along with ts|
subsidiaries. Sun Network continues to consolidate its leadership pos}t' n, built over the years,
‘Ly fortifying its hold over key aJspects of pricingfand ccess to quali{y ﬁhtent. Sui Netw&rk‘Ts‘
lone of the first Regional GE channels in cbuntry to adopt HD|anfd| it also forged Eeatly|
‘Partnershipswith OEMsto prewload SunTVapqonth?irdevices. i | N

H \ I [T \ I
OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS

I \ | | [T | I
Opportunities:

he on going digitalization of c‘ontent, shift to o‘nline gnd mobile dist‘rit‘)Uti‘on of conkent an‘d tr‘m‘e‘
rapid pace of invocation create opportunities lto serve new customers iin new markets! The!
presence of large and wealthw Indian diasporq abroqzd is another p?Wﬂ'T”' enablqr for mfarkﬁet‘
expansion abroad.

H'I'he M&E industry influenced bg/ digitalization, tﬂ‘ne con‘vergence ofT\), Mglgile teIepAony an‘d tHe‘
linternet is poised for a growth trend. The fact that signlificant househdlds loff India are still withdt|
Htelevision connectivity highligpts the scope o‘f grovyth in the segr‘ngﬂti The majority qf trme‘
revenue generated in the television industry is through advertisements, followed by
‘Eubscription. Strong growth pr&jected inDTH, digital Cable segmenﬂv%md result in substantial
lincrease in subscription revenuye over the years to come. Increasing nterest in regional content|

mong Indian population across the borders, results in increased over: sviewer?hipth reEy
Ettracting foreign investment. Radio broadcasting in Ikdia,which is sEIﬁiTtsinfancy, is evolvi ‘g‘
lto be arevenue spinner in the coming years. | \ [T | LI

I | | | LI | N
[Threats: | | | [ | N

‘It is difficult to predict our revenues and expenses as tpey fluctuate singffqantly givqn the n@tqqe‘
of the markets in which we operate. This increases the likelihood that our results could fall below
‘khe expectation of market analyysts. Certain threbts aré summarized Heww: | N

vertising income continue to be the majorisource of Sun rk’s revenues, whi
(3N Advertising i ontinue to be thelmajor! f Sun Network’s reve whichl
I could decline due to avariety of factors. ‘ L] ‘ |l

P The commercial sucgess of Sun Neqwork gepends on our ‘qh?i‘lity to cater to viem@r‘
performance and maintain high audience shares which could be affected.

The competition and increasing prices may adversely affect our abiIitY to acquire
H desired programming and anistictalth. | T I

L> Sun Network operatelsin anintensely éompétitive industry. 1T | LI
L> Sun Network is a regiBnaI broadcastert, which may limit our H)Hdrtunities fbr grovdth Qs‘
| well as our attractivenless to advertising customers and others! | | | [ ] ]
= Technological failureg could adversely affectour business. | ||| | | [ ] |
= Ourinability to effectively deploy and manage funds could affect our profitability. | || |

I | | | 11T | LIl
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| \ I | | \ fobl|
MANAGEMIJ:'NT DISCUSSI(LN AND ANALYSIS HE%RT
| \ [ (Pursuant to Régulation 34 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations) 2015) | I

| | I | \ | LTI | LI
IR e I T

Sun Network operations predopinantly relate tcT a sinﬁgle segment “Br‘om?asting”. | B

|| | I

| | [UTHooK | | 1] I

I ‘ un Network with its presence across genres Iilfe geqeral entertainnIﬁrH, ‘movies, rrpusic, evxﬁs,‘
kids, action, life and with a dominant market share in the four southern states of India (Tamil

] ‘ HNadu, Kerala, Karnataka and Andhra PradesH) enstres continued!and sustained viewe‘rsHi‘p‘

| | |and prominent role in the Media and Entertainment|Industry. A stegdy flow of highly popular|

o | Hprograms and a dominant shjre of audience v‘iewerfhip have giver‘1 ‘t‘h‘e‘ network ‘tremen‘doHs‘
pricing power vis-a-vis competitors

H'I'he drive initiated by Governnlent towards digikalisat\on and addres‘slanl\ty for cab‘le tele\Jisign‘
| | lwould help Sun TV Network, béing the largest régional television netiork to be onelof the major
| ‘ Hbeneficiaries of the recent grcPwth in the DTH‘ space, it is expectqd‘ W?t this new streqm HJf‘

revenue for the Company arising from the increased DTH subscriber base in South India would
| | Hmaintain a positive momentumlin the coming ye%rs. | 11 | N

] \ H | . T \ I
| | HFINANCEANDHUMANRES?URCE L i | 1

Finance:

| \ I \ \ \ I \ LI
he Total Income for the year ?nded 31st Marﬂh 201? was Rs. 2,49’3ﬁ ‘crores as‘ againﬁt 3?‘

T
I | ‘E,331 .45 crores during the previous year ended 31st March 2015. (Tlirofit Before Tax after
| \ lextraordinary items was Rs. 1,330.50 crores aslagainst Rs. 1,111.99 €rores in the previous year.
| ‘ HProfitAfter Tax after extraordinpry items was R§. 867*25 crores as agqiﬂqt Rs. 737*23 croqes‘i‘n‘

the previous year. During the financial year ended 31st March 2016, the Board of Directors has
| | eclared the Interim Dividends'of Rs. 6.00/- perhequityJ share (120%),‘#4.@.00/— perisquity siha‘lle‘
| | |(40%) and Rs. 7.50/- per equity share (150%) declaréd at the Board|Megtings held on April 30,
‘F015, February 12, 2016 and March 14, 201q respectively and ha\if nft recomrpendecf aly‘
Final Dividend. The dividend pgyoutwould resultin a total dividend 01J H) %,i.e.,Rs. 15.50/- per
| | lequity share of face value of Rs.5.00/- each for the findncial year endéd 31st March 2016. (Prét. |
| ‘ HYearof225%, i.e.,Rs 11.25/- per equity share offace Yalue of Rs.5.OQ/T ﬁqch). The ﬁieservge aﬂd‘

surplus of the Company as on 31st March 2016 stood at Rs. 3,314.73 crores as against Rs.
] ‘ ‘5,182.66 crores ason 31stMa|Jch 2015. ‘ ‘ [ ‘ I

HHuman Resources:

o | HAt Sun Network, with 1906 emLonees, human Lesou#ce is a key assg yaL)ital and gn impgr‘t%t‘

| \ business driver for the Company’s sustained growth and profitability. Hence, we at Sun Netwdrk|
| | ‘believe that training, like all orgranizational deve‘lopmqnt processes C?WP\t bea funcftion of‘tirrwa, |

but rather an ongoing process with the developmental needs and business planning processes
| ‘ ‘being formalized constantly. Al continuous review of the monitoring‘ dﬁd&ess is unHerwa)L and!
| | [procedures and systems are being institutionalized agross the organization. | | |] ]

| | FINANCIAL REVIEW & RISK MANAGEMENT(INCLUDING INTERNAL CONTROL) | I |
\ \ I \ L

HSeparate reportonthisis anneLed.

- o | " | OnbehalfoftheBoard |

| | I | | | LT | Il

| | I | | | I | LI
Place: Ch i K. Vij

| | [ ace: Lhenna | o "ﬂ‘_’ﬁ‘fg‘_a’ 4 LI
Date: July 8,2016 Managing Director

. | | | o Chief Executive Officer | |||
|| | | | L L1111 I

| | I | | | 11T | LIl
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o | H | FINANCIAL REVlE\A’ 2015-16 LT | ]
| \ [ (Pursuant to Régulation 34 of SEBI (LODR) Regulatiohs) 2015) | |1l

|| \ I \ \ \ |1 \ |l
o MEARNINGS T T
o (otelineome | | m L
The Total Income for the year ended 31st March 201% was up by 6.34% atRs. 2,4&3.30 crores
| | las against Rs. 2,331.45 crores during the previous ydar ended 31st Marth 2015. The sustaingd|
| ‘ ngowth and consistent higher margins are reflef;tive qf the Company(’sT Fp‘ntinued dpminaqce‘ yn‘
broadcasting business in the Southern states.
| | I | | | LI | I
| | HProfit before tax (PBT) and Profit after tax (P{\T) N | ]
Profit Before Tax after extraordinary items was up by JI9.65 % at Rs.1 ,%5.50 crores as against
|| \ IRs. 1,111.99 crores in the previous year. Profit Aftet Tax after extradtdihary items was Up By/
| ‘ H1 7.64% at Rs.867.25 crores as againstRs. 73?.23 crores inthe pre\{iwﬂyear.. ‘ ]

|| \ IDividend \ \ \ LT \ L
The outgo on account of interim dividend incluging d‘vidend taxis ﬁs 71?5.18 crorﬁs (preyioHs

| | | H \
year Rs. 529.33 crores).

| | I | | | LI | I

| | H2.FINANCIALPOSITI0N | | | 111 | B

Shareholder’s Funds
] | ‘Shareholders‘ Fund as on b‘lst March 20l16 wés Rs. 3,511.‘}7Hu'ores (prévious‘yéér‘
|| | |Rs.3,379.70 crores). | | | LT | L

| | ILoan funds | | | LI | i

|| ‘ [The Company is debt free and had no loan funds — secured or unsecyred as on 31stMarch|20(16|

| | ProviowsyearRe:ND- o I N

| | [Assets I Ll
Net block of fixed assets were at Rs. 437.83 crores. The addition to fixed assets for the year was

] ‘ IRs. 38.69 crores. The capital bxpenditure was funded through intefnal accruals. Net bldck of

| ‘ lintangible assets and capital work in progress gs on 3/1st March 2016 were at Rs. 386.17 crores
and Rs. 0.57 crores respectively.

| | [ | I 1] | |l
| \ |3- RATIOS \ I 111 \ N

| | [Earnings per share | | i o

The Earnings per share of face value of Rs.5.00 after extraordinarY iﬁrps for the year endﬁd
. | H31stMarch 2016isRs.22.01 (ﬁprevious year Rs‘. 18.71). | | | |

] \ H \ . T \ I
4.RISKANALYSIS AND MANAGEMENT

| | HRisk is an inherent feature of any business aétivity, ‘more SO when‘t%‘ &ependeﬁce is o‘n tHe‘
|| | |consistency on the deliverablgs of the Company and linked to the sustained support from the|

viewers and advertisers’ community at large. Like every organization, Sun TV Network Limited
] | H(Sun Network) business is als$ impacted by a r\umb r of factors. Gi\re‘ L)L}IOW is ar\‘IVovervihewﬁ)f‘
[ ] | |[some of the major risks affecting any business and Sun’s position vis{aris these risks. [ ] |

| | IPRINCIPAL RISKSAND THEIRMITIGATION | | [T | I

| | HSTRATEGIC RISK | | | LI | I

| | HThe performance and growth‘ of media indusLtry aré dependent omﬂﬁé health Jf the Ihdian‘

| | Jeconomy and in particular the|economies of the regional markets it senves. These economigs|
could be adversely affected by various factors, such as political and regulatory action including

| | Hadverse changes in Iiberalizat*on policies, social disfurbances, terrchTft‘ lttacks aAd othera s‘

| | |of violence or war, natural calgmities, interest rates, ¢ommodity and|gnetgy prices|and various|
other factors.

| \ H \ | LI \ i
|| \ [ \ \ \ 33 || Annual Report 201512016
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] \ | \ L | \ N
FINANCIAL REVIEW 2015-16

| \ [ (Pursuant to Régulation 34 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations) 2015) | Ll
|| | I | | | 11T | N

T T - T o T‘I’he*meﬁa industry in India has Feen*coﬁnbﬁusﬁfra*ught*wiﬁrﬁﬂ!zﬁryTssufs irﬁllfcﬁg‘

tthose of license, investment caps and ownership I‘mits. Regulati uch as ban on multi

| \ frequency ownership in the same city for Radio| FDI Cap of 49% in brdad¢asting, no dubbing|of|

| | ‘content (Kannada Market) are some of the reg IationF holding this iqd TW back.A‘Ithougr‘w SHn‘

Network has performed well in spite of these adversities, further regulatory changes always

| | lremain a concern. | | | [T | I

| | I | | | |1 \ Il

Sun TV Network has been able to capitalize on its leadership positio ﬁuilt over the years,(ﬁy

‘#ortifying its hold over quality éontent. It is able to prgctice its strat gO #selling t Iecast‘sl s‘

[ ] | lunder exclusive agreements and additionally ensuring a continued supply of quality contént| Al

| | teady flow of highly popular ‘programs and ﬂ domipant share of ?gw?nce viewFrship ‘hame‘

given the network tremendous pricing power vis-a-vis competitors. South India produces the

| | Hlargest number of films per yéar with a huge movie following targét‘ é‘u‘dience, Sun Network!

| [ |ensures access to popular content, by purchasi‘ng Iarger quantum oﬂaﬁl@puth India‘n movips on|
aperpetual rights basis.

| | IRisk Mitigation | | | LI | I
. | HSun Network believes that it ‘would not be d%sadva‘\ntaged and w‘o‘u‘lc‘j‘manage ‘compe‘titign‘
| | through content and a pan India spread. | | LT | Il

o \ H \ I [T \ I
OPERATIONAL RISK

| | I | | | [T | I
| ] | |Possible decline in the populafity of channels of Surj Network, such &|déecline shall adversely|
o | Himpact its revenue, both from afivertisement as T/vell a? subscription r?vﬁwe. | R

| | IRisk Mitigation | | | LTI | L
| \ I y \ | A i

Sun Network’s competitive advantages stems from its high popularity, exclusive access to high
| | ‘buality content and a large movie library, giviné it sig‘nificant pricingmd\lvler to capi{alize o‘n tﬁe‘
|| | [fast growing advertisement and subscription market. Sun Network will endeavour to keep tragk|
L | Hand abreast with high quality c?ntentand Iibrary‘. | I | B

| | IFINANCIAL RISK \ | | LTI | i

\ \ \ I \ L
L | LI'reasurylnvestments Risk | | | " | I
|| \ [The Company carries significant amounts of jsurplus cash on its jpglance sheet, which gre|
invested in various securities; the value of tPese rnvestments rrwam ‘b‘e eroded‘ if theY 1r‘e‘

Hdeployed inrisky asset classes.

o | H | L 1 RN
| | Risk Mitigation | o i T

| ‘ IThe Company follows a conservative policy of invésting, which disallows any éxposdre to!
| ‘ ‘p/olatile assets like equity shqres or illiquid assets |ike real estate. "I"Ip@ policy i§ defingd to|

preserve capital by permitting investments only into AAA rated instruments, with reasonable
| | Hrates of return and allows quiclJ liquidation by avjoidinQJ long dated seéul‘iws. | I

| | H | L i RN
| | f-everageRisk | L i R

| | |Ahigh debt component could résultin an excessive interestdrain. | || 1] | LI

| | I | | | 11T | LIl
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FINANCIAL REVIEW 2015-16
[ (Pursuant to Regulation 34 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations) 2015) | I

RiskMitigation | o m R
HThe company is a zero debtcompany. ‘ ‘ L1 ‘ |l
IReceivable Risk \ | | [T | N

HDelays in collection of accounts receivable cduld affect the Compéﬁwsl cash roW, with‘pd&)r‘
Hfollow up potentially leading to gelinquencyand‘write ?ffs. N ‘ ]

IRisk Mitigation | | | LTI | i

IThe company constantly monitors its debt collection and ensures! that the debtors drel
Hperiodicallyreviewed anddueﬁmaintained atle‘velstnatdonotaffect‘itﬁcﬁshflow. | BN

LEGAL AND STATUTORY RISKS L i R
IRisk on contractual liabilities [ [ [T | N

‘H’he risk arising outofnon-combliance with statL‘Jtory réquirements. [T | I
HRiskMitigation \ \ \ LTI \ L
H'I'he Company constantly re‘views all Agre ‘ment‘, documents ‘a‘ y ‘contract‘ to erLs ‘r‘e‘
Hcompliance with the accepted tgusiness procedires. ? | m | ﬁ | LM |
HCompliancefailure risk | | | 1T | I

I | | | LTI | L
The riskarisingoutofnon-comPIiancewith statlftory r?quirements. N | BN

I
HRiskmitigation ‘ \ \ 1] ] | |

|At Sun Network statutory compliance has been ensured through an|intérnal process and|legal
Hcompliance is givendue import‘ance inthe Comfany’s‘ management process.

LT \ I

[Weak internal control can jeopardize the Company’s financial position.| || | | |l

IRisk mitigation | | | I | LI
HThe Company has in place syéstems and processes, commensurat WE‘h its size apd nat re‘gf‘
business so as to ensure ddequate internal control while ens #i d smooth' conduct 'of
Joperations and compliance with statutory requirements under all applicable legis|ations; The|
Company has implemented SAP ERP system, which ensures significant automation of
Iprocesses, with sufficient IT system controls in place. Independent intdidl audit is darried but/tol

ensure adequacy of internal control system ani adh?rence to policicﬁ ?PF practicas. The T’-\uﬂit
HCommittee reviews the functioning of the internal audit function. |
I | | | [T | I

Cautionary Statement

I | | | LT | L
Statements in this Management Discussion & Analysis describing LP companiﬁs objective,
Hprojections,estima’[es and expectations may constitute "Forward Io$ iﬁg‘stateme t" within t e‘
‘meaning of applicable laws & regulations. Actupl resqlts, performan%? ‘oLr achievernents ?Olﬂd‘

differ materially from those expressed or implied in such forward-looking statements..

I \ \ \ LTI \ N
H ‘ ‘ | Onbehalfofthé Board | I
I | | | [T | I
|Place: Chennai | | | K. Vijaykumar | |
HDate: July 8,2016 | I\‘nana%ing Director &‘ (“,‘rl‘it‘ef Execut‘ive Off‘ice‘l" |

I | | | LI | N
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REPOR'IJ ON CORPORA‘TE GEVERNANCE ] | 1T
| | | (Pursuant to Regulation 34 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations,20135)| | [ ]|

I | MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS | _ L L IQhi b
| | | | [ ] | LIl

1. Company’s Philosophy on CoJe of Governanc‘e
. | Corpoﬂate Governance is about comrlnitment to valueé and éthical businesg Q)Hduct that «Lvolvec& O\‘/l%lj
| | aperigd of time. We believe good governance is an essential ingredient of good business that aligns|all
our actions with clearly defined ethical principles. The corporate governance philoscrphy aﬁ Sun
| | Netwo#k is about maximizing shareholder value Iegélly, ethically and on ‘aﬂshitainable basis, wHiIe‘
| ‘ ensurimg fairness to every stakehqlder, customerq, employees, invesqo‘rﬂ ‘vendor-plartnerq, qme?
government of the land and the community. We believe good governance is an essential ingredient o
| | good business that aligns all our actions with clearly deffined ethical prindiples. Thus, corporate
o | governance is a reflection of a Comp?ny’s culture, po'icies, ‘its relationship‘inW ‘the stakepolder?, a‘r‘ld‘
its commitment to values.

1] \ 1L
We believe that it is our responsibility to adhere and enforce the principJes of sound Corporake
| | Goverhance with the objectives of transparency, proféssionalism and accduntability, while facilitating
o | eﬁectwe management of the busines?es and eﬁiciencyin opTarations. 1] | BN

| | 2. Board of Directors \ \ \ T | L
| | » Composition | \ \ [T | i

| | The Board of Directors of our Comparjy consists of Five NonsExecutive and Threie Executive Diregtors |
The Chairman of the Board is an Executive Director and Four Non-Executive Directors are
| ‘ Indepéndent Directors as per the critéria of independénce stated in Regula‘tin 17 of the SEBI (L‘istng‘
| ‘ Obligafions and Disclosure Requirements) Reg Iatioqs hereinafter‘ Weﬁqrred to as “L‘istiﬂg‘
Regulations”. The optimum combination of Executive, Non-executive and Independent Directors
| | ensurdindependence of the Board and separation of Board function of governance and managemenit. |

] |« Board Meetings | | | I | LI

| | SevenlBoard Meetings were held duﬁng the financial\year 2015-16. The maximum gap betweeh eJW
| | two meetings did not exceed one hunfired and twenty pays ?s stipulated unpﬂrﬁegulatior‘n 17(2) Pf We‘
Listing Regulations.

The dates on which the said meetings held are as follows:

| \ [ | | \ LI \ LI
30th April 2015, 29th May 2015, 31st July 2015, 28th October 2015, 5th November 2015, 12th
| | February 2016 and 14th March 2016. | | 1] | | TH

| Attend‘ance of each Director at Board ‘Meetings &AnnL‘JaI Ge‘neral Meeting (Lf“]‘e‘ Compan;‘/ held cjuriug‘
[ ] | the year and the number of Directorship(s) and Committee Chairmanships|/ Memberships held |by|

L | themirH1 other companies are given be‘ow: | | UL | L

. N Committee
‘ ‘ H ‘ NOI.LOf DII:eC'!:OI"ShI ?\ ‘ ‘ Chairlhanshib/ H ‘
Name of the Category Attendance public limite Memberships
| Dirdctor | | | |companies ('nclu*dMQH (including this || |
——— | U2 COMPANYY, |y Company)
L ‘ ) Board | AGM ‘ _ .| Chairman| Member_
'Mr Kalanithi Maran' Executive | | | AL | BN
| | | [ Chairman | 4 Yes | | 1 | [ | Nil | Nil || |
1Mr§. Kaverx Kalanitl‘hi Executive Director | 5 Yes | | 1 Ll Nil | Nil |
 Mr, K. Vijaykumar | Managing Director , 6 Yes | | 2 Lol NI 1.
I I I [l I I I T I I [
Mr, S. Selvam ) Director L7 Yes ‘ 1 Lo, NiE Nil |
] \ I \ \ \ RN \ 1T
Mr. J. Ravindran Independent Director 7 No 3 3 4
‘Mr.‘ M.K. Ha‘rinaraygnan Independent Director | 7 Yes | | 1 T 1 | 5 o
‘Mr.‘ Nicholag MartinHPauI Independent Director | 4 Yes | | 1 T Nil | ﬁ I
'Mrl R. Ravivenkatesh Independent Director 7 Yes | ‘ 1 U N 2 11
\

| | I | | | 11T | LIl
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
| [ (Pursuant to Regulation 34 of SEBI (LlODR) |Regulations,2015) | | | | |l

‘*Reprelents directorship(s) / memberghip(s) of Audit And Stlakeholders’ Re“a‘turl\ship Cor%mittee‘(s)‘ #n‘
'public limited companies governed by the Companies Act, 2013. LT | LI

| I | | | LT | Il
‘None oﬁ the Directors of the Company‘are related interrse eﬁcept for Mrs. K@yﬂry Kalanitqi, who is tne‘
wife of Mr. Kalanithi Maran, Executive Chairman of the Company.

| I \ \ \ LT | L
‘The Bo%rd has been provided with all %aterial and subgtantialll information ag H@ﬂioned iH Scheduleull‘
|of Part A of the SEBI Listing Regulations, that facilitates thermn for imparting [sighificant decisions Wwhile|
‘discharping its duties as trustees ofshﬁreholders. | | 1] | N

¢ Familiarisation Programme ForIndependent Directors

lIndepefident Directors are familiarized with their roles, rights and responsibilities in the Company &s|
‘well ausith the nature of industry arpd business mogel of‘the Company ‘tmwgh varioys indqctiﬂn‘
prograTmeS. The details of such programme are menti?ned iT www.suntv.in

. ‘Perforljhance Evaluation | ‘ ‘ LTI | LI
| I | | | I | LI

|In line |with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and|other applicable |provisions| if any, aur|
‘Compa y has adopted a formal evalua?tion process for‘reviewing the perforr‘n qﬁe of the I%oard, I?Ojr‘d‘
Committees, Chairman, Non-Independent and Independent Directors. A structured questionnaire for
‘the pur%ose, covering various aspectsl of Board Gove#nancé, Composition,‘ d)&ﬁpetencieg, Guid‘anue‘
|etc., wds prepared after taking into consideration the|inputs received from the Directors| The Board|
‘carried Hout an annual evaluation of i‘ts own perform?nce aPnd of its commiﬁtﬂas. Evalu‘ation qf tﬂe‘
Chairman and Non-Executive Non-Independent Director(s) was carried out by the Independent
‘Directoﬁs in their separate meeting. +he Independenk Direétors, based o#1 ‘tHe‘ criteria As fram‘ed ‘&‘
Irecomniended by the members of the Nomination Committee, were evaluatéd byl the Board as a whole|
‘eXC|UdiIH'Ig the Director being evalua‘ted. The overaql perfprmance evalgqt‘iw was agreed tp He‘
‘satisfa ‘tory by all the Directors. | | | I | B
poLicies | | o 11 I
| I | | | LT | L
| The Board of Directors of the Companjyy has in compliance with the requirements of Listing Agreement|
‘with Stock Exchanges, SEBI (Listing Obligations and D‘scloswe Requiremer‘ltﬁ)ﬁegulatioqs, 201 ‘TS aﬂd‘
‘CompaFiesAct, 2013approvedthefo|l‘owing policies. | | i | 1
+ [Code of Conduct | \ \ LI \ N
| I | | | LI | I
‘Adeclaﬂation signed by the Managing @irector& CEO, ﬁtating‘that all Directom ?mﬂ senior rqanagef'newt‘
personnel of the Company have affirmed compliance with the code of conduct of the Company is
‘enclos d at the end of the report. Thls code of condu‘ct is Available on thé w&site of tﬁe Com‘paHy‘
lwww.suntv.in. | | | [T | I

\ H \ \ \ | 111 \ N
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| | [ (Pursuant to Regulation 34 of SEBI (LlODR) |Regulations,2015)| | | | | |

—‘ ‘— —o A"reven‘kionoflnsiderTrading — L - - — L i - — 7‘M‘L — L 7‘7” L
| | I | | | LI | I
| ‘Pursuawt to the provisions of the SEBI ‘(Prohibition of Ir}sider"l'rading) Regulﬁﬁi?PF, 2015, as amemdewj,‘

our Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for prevention of Insider Trading and a policy for Fair
| ‘DisclosUJre of Unpublished Price Sgnsitive Informétion. ‘This Code is‘ guglicable té) all éogrjd‘
|| Imembéls/officers/designated employees. The objective of this code is to prévet/purchase and/ot sale|
| ‘ofsharﬁs ofthe Company byaninsider‘onthe basis ofuppubliﬁhed price sen§iqiyfe‘informati9n. N

| . Isecretarial Standards: ‘ | ‘ LTI \ |1

| | I | | | LI \ I
| ‘The Se‘T;retariaI and the operating prﬁctices generally‘ followed by our Cor‘nﬂemy are in I‘ine witP tﬂe‘

Standards on Secretarial practice relating to meetings of the éoard, Committees and General meetings
o ‘(SS- 1)‘Land (SS-2)stipulated by The Institute ofCompény Sécretaries of Indid./ | | ‘ I

|| | I | | | LTI | L
. ‘VigilMﬁchanismIWhistle BIowerPﬁlicy | | N | BN

| |Sun Gfoup believes in highest ethical behavior, |transparency, professidnalism and acclrdte|
| ‘compliaﬂnce with all laws, formulates tr}e ‘Whistle Blowgr PoIiFy’ to enable Dfrgﬂt?rs and Emplques‘qo‘

report concerns about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s
| ‘code o#‘conduct. This policy (copy of l/vhich is uploadéd on {he website of Mé ‘dompany)‘ safegL‘Jar s‘
| \whistleblowers from reprisals or victimization. During the yedr under review| nd émployeelwas déniéd!

|| ‘accessNotheAuditCommittee. ‘ ‘ ‘ LI ‘ |l

‘Relateﬁ Party Transaction Policy | | | 1T | I

| \ I \ \ \ LTI \ L
o ‘In compliance with Regulation 23 of the Listing Regulatxons, tPe Board of Dir?ﬂ?rﬁ of the C?mpan}/ hﬁs‘

approved Related Party Transaction Policy (Policy can be viewed on www.suntv.in) to faclilitate
| ‘managgment toreport and seek approllal forany Relatéd Par{y Transaction ﬂrBUJsed to be‘entereﬁ ir“o‘
|| by the Gompany. | \ \ LT \ L

| | I | | | [T | N
Audit Committee
\ ﬁ\ \ \ \ LT \ L

| ¢ CGomposijtion, Names of Members and Chairman | | [ 1]]] | [ 1]

'Iihe Audiu Committee comprises of Mr. j] Ravindran, Mr‘. M.K.‘Harinarayana%, ‘I\‘/IL.‘ NichoIas‘Martin‘PaLLl‘

| and Mr.|R. Ravivenkatesh, all are Non-Executive Indepdndent Directots |of the Company| with|
‘ ‘ IYIr.J.Ra}(indran as its Chairman. ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ H ‘ ‘ ‘ H ‘

o

| Nr. R. Rayvi, Company Secretary acts as{Secretary of the Commiittee. ] ] \ |l
| \ H \ [T \ N

¢ Meetings and the attendance during tLe year

| Four meétings of the Audit Committee were held during the year 29th May 2015 31st July 2015,|27th|
| 9ctober%015and12th February 2016. | | | i | N

| | | Name of the Director \ No. of Meetings attended| [ N

||| [y RavidEn ; N ALY o
Mr. M.K. Harinarayanan 4

| | | Mr!Nicholas Martin Paul \ T [TITT \ I

| ‘ Mr, R. Ravivenkatesh | | | 4 L []]] | | 1]

| | I | | | 11T | LIl
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
| [ ((Pursuant to Regulation 34 of SEBI (ILODR)|Regulations,2015) | | | | |

\ I \ \ \ | \ i
e Briﬁdeﬁ:riﬁtioﬁoftérm?ofTefe?ent? - T - mH* — T 7\7\\ ‘*

The Terms of Reference of Audit Committee cover the matters specified for Audit Committee ynder
Regulation 18 of the SEBI Listing Regulations as wellasin Section 177 of the C?mpaniesAit, 2013.The
rJoIeofA dit Committee is as prescribed underPartCoféchedl‘JleIIofthe List#nb I{?Lﬁ,gulation . I
\ I \ | | LTI | L

4, l‘\lominaﬁion and Remuneration ComTittee | | O | K

J ﬁ:omposﬂition,Names of Members ancﬁ Chairman | | I | BN

g] line ‘ith Section 178 of the CompePnies Act, 2013 ‘and Regulation 19 ?f‘ Hﬁting Regylationﬁ;, tne‘
‘ oard has constituted the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

he No Hination and Remuneration Committee of our Company has been constituted to recommend to
the Boarrrﬂi the appointment/reappointment of the Executil/e an Non-ExecutivJe Hil’ictors, th induct%or# LH
Board miembers into various committédes and suggest] revision in total remunération package of the|

xecutivHs Director(s) keeping in view tqe prevailing statutory guidelines. Thq ?ﬂn‘mmittee hafs also‘beﬂn‘
empowered to review / recommend the periodic increments, if any, in salary and annual incentive of the
Executive Directors. \ | | LTI | N

+he Non#ination and Remuneration Corlnmittee comprisles of Nﬂr. J. Ravindrar%,‘lur.‘ M.K. Ha#inarayén%,‘
Mr. Nichélas Martin Paul and Mr. R. Rayivenkatesh, all are Ndn-Executive Indépendent Directors of the|
?ompanﬁ/with Mr. J. Ravindran as its anirman. | | 1] | B

Mr. R. Rﬂvi,CompanySecretaryacts as‘Secretaryofthe‘Comnpittee. ] ‘ N
* Meetings and the attendance during the year | | [ 1]]] | [ ]

This Committee comprises of entirely of Independent Directors. The Committee/met on 29th May‘20‘1‘ 5

§nd 5th IWIovember2015. ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ H ‘

| | Naime of the Director | Category | No. of Meeétings attended | || |

‘ MrHJ Ravindran \ Chairmam \ ||| \Z \ |l
Mr. M.K. Harinarayanan ‘ Member ‘ L2 ‘

| Mr.'Nicholas Martin Paul ‘ Member ' ‘ B ‘ I

| Mr.R. Ravivenkatesh ‘ Member | ‘ [ 1112 ‘ I

. ?rief defcription of terms of referenf;e | | Emn | N

The terms of reference of Nomination|and Remuneratjon Cq>mmittee are in ggoordance with chtipn\
178 of the Companies Act, 2013. The role of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is as
ﬂ)rescrib&d under Part D of the Schedulé Il of the Listing Fiegula‘tions. LTI | Il

. kemuneration Policy

In compliance with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, the policy on Remuneration of Directors,
key Ma%agerial Personnel and Senior Management of the Company has 'been formulated bg/ thel
q\lominaqion and Remuneration Comrqlittee and has q>een @pproved by thlq @pard of Qirectorg. ﬁn‘
extract of the Remuneration Policy has beenincluded as a part of this Annual Report as Annexure VII.

| I | | | 11T | LIl
‘ [ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘SWQ\nnual quort 2(?1%2{)16
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~+ Remuneration to Directors

|11 | bbb
REPORT Oh CORPORATIQ GOVERNANCE
((Pursuant to Regulation 34 of SEBI (LODR)|Regulations,2015) | | | \ |l

'f'he Rer‘wuneration paid to the ExecutiYe Chairman for ‘the y?ar ended 31st M?E hs2i(r)11((:3ri0 2)3 foIIPWﬁ: |
| Il | | | | [ |
salr i — i
}Perquis}i}tes and other allowances* } } } L - } ol
px - arafa / Bonus | — R
‘Total 7\1\

I

|
*Perquisites amounted to Rs. 39,600/ ‘ I
\ I \ \ \ T \ i

The Remuneration paid/payable to the Managing Director and/Chief Executive Officer for the yearénd@d‘
(}1st Maqph 2016 is as follows: ‘ ‘ ‘ | | MF]QS. in Croqe) |l

Salary | | | | | [0182 | LI
IPerquisites and other allowances* | | \ [T - \ |1
[Ex - grdtia / Bonus \ | \ | 10126 | LI
Total | | | | | 1108 \ |1l

*Perquisites amounted to Rs. 10,800/4 \ \ I | LI

\ | \ o [T \ I
The Rermuneration paid/payable to the Executive Diregtor for the year ended B8/1st March 2016|is @as|

‘*Perquigites amounted to Rs. 39,600/-‘
\

[This space has‘ been intentionahy Ieft‘blank]

o f‘ollows: H | | | ¥ ‘ﬁl‘?s. in Cror‘e)
| Salary | | — Lk Lo B
L [Perquisjtes and other allowances* | | | LT |
[ If [ [ [ [ [
Ex - gratia / Bonus 2
| Ex-o1g | :: Rk |
\TOtal Il | | | | 7}1‘ '}4\.6 |
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REPORT ON CORPORATé GOVERNANHE
(Pursuant tol Regulation 34 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations|2015) | Ll

| \ | [T \ |1l
~ The Remuneration paid / payable to W\Ton—T%xeﬁ;ti\E DFe?ﬁrﬁTor the ‘Vear*ﬁnﬁﬁd‘*
31stMarch 2016 is as follows:
\ \ \ LI \ i

| - (Rs: fpyrore) | | |
Name of the Director \ \ Sitting|fee” | L
Mr. S. Selvam | | | 10.005 | L1
Mr. J. Ravindran | | | 00162 | |11
Mr. M.K. Harinarayanan | \ | 00162 | LIl
Mr. Nicholas Martin Paul | | pQ176 | L
Mr. R. Ravivenkatesh ‘ | ‘ pWQ“I§2 ‘ L

*Includes sitting fee paid *orattending Corhmittele Meetings. [T ‘ I

\ |
The sitting fee payable to a Non Executive Directors for attending the Board and
Committee Meetings has‘ been fixed at Rs‘. 20,060/- respectivelw 11 | I
(** Increased from Rs. 2,000 to Rs. 20,000 w.e.f 1st December, 2015) \ N

| | HS. Stakeholders’ Relation?hip Committeﬂ | i | N
| ‘ I In compliance with Sectyon 178 of the Cpmpqnies Act, 2013‘ ?W‘P\ Regulatipn 20 ?f tﬂe‘
o | | Listing Regulations, the B‘oard hasconstit‘uted S‘takeholders’ Rc‘alﬁtiﬂnship Cor‘nmitteg‘e. 0
o | I The Stakeholders’ Relationship Commﬁttee if functioning ﬁo‘ ‘I Pk into Iﬁedres?al‘f)f‘
Investor / Shareholders complaints expeditiously. The Committee has delegated the

| ‘ H power of approving ﬁequests for tHansfeF, transmissioh,‘ ' rematerialization| and
| | [ demateralization etc of shares of the Company to the Registrar/and Share Trgnsfer Agept,
o | H The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee Fomprises of ‘I\,ﬁ.‘ ‘M.K. Hal"inaray?nﬁlp,‘
Chairman, Mr. J. Ravindran, Mr. NichoJas Martin Paul and Mr. R. Ravivenkatesh as

| | I members. | o 1 N
. | H Mr. R. Ravi,CompanySe‘cretaryactsas S‘ecreta‘ryoftheComrAitLt&e‘. | I
. | | The Committee met 4 oc‘casions during tke yea‘w on 29th May %‘1‘&, 31st Jul‘y 2015,‘ 2§&h‘
| ‘ I October 2015 and 12th February 2016. The names and attendance of Committee
| | [ members are given below: | | 1] ] | | |] ]
I | H Name of the Director | | | No. of Meetiﬁé‘s‘éttended | ~ T
| | I Mr. MK. Harinarayanan ! \ \ Tl \ 1T
| ‘ | Mr. J. Ravindran | | | | 4] | L 1L
| Mr. Nicholas Martin Paul ‘ ‘ L1 ‘ L

. | ! Mr. R. Ravivenkatesh ! ! ! g ! I,

| | | LI | I
During the year, the Com‘pany received 6? Complaints mostly P?mining to nPn-receFipq Pf\
dividend warrants and few complaints like non-receipt of annual reports etc., all of these
complaints have been degltwith satisfactgrily arlnd there were ng &Mmplaints pénding Es @n‘
31stMarch, 2016 | | | [T | I

| | | 11T | LIl
‘ ‘ ‘ 41‘\‘4\pnual Req)ort 20]]5@(%16

Lt

A

SUNTV
NETWORK



| I | o 1111 T
Sun Ty Network Limited | | 111 L

. | H REPO‘RT ON CORPO‘RATE‘ GOVERNAN&IJ:" i | Sl

[ ] | | (Pursuant to |Regulation 34 of SEBI (LODR) Regulatiohs,20[15) | [ || |

|| \ I \ | \ |1 \ |l
T T — T - T T:orﬁoraTeSﬁciaTRe?po‘ﬁsilﬁﬁtyConTmi‘ﬂ@eT - \]Hi - T 7\7\\ ‘*

o | H In compliance with Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 thﬁg%ard has cinstituﬁed‘? |
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee to review the existing CSR policy and to make

| | | itmore comprehensive solas to indicate the activities to be undertaken by the Gompany as |

specified in Schedule VII ofthe Companiesf\ct, 2?13; 1 | N

| ‘ | The Corporate Social Responsibility Coqnmittqe Comprises pﬂ Mrs. Kavery Kalanithj, |
Mr. K.Vijaykumar and Mr. Nicholas Martin Paul as members.

| \ I \ \ \ LT \ L
Mr. R. Ravi, Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Committee.
| | H pany Secretary § Secretary e I

| | |  The Committee met on 14th March 2016. The names and attepdance of Commjittee |
members are given below:

o | | Name of the Director | | | No. of Meetiﬁﬂa‘]ttended | |
Mrs. Kavery Kalanithi
| | | Mr. K. Vijaykumar \ | | 41T | 1]l
| Mr. Nicholas Martin Paul | ] I | Il

| | 7. Risk Management Comnmittee | | [T | N
|| | I \ | \ | [ \ L

In compliance with Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 anJ kegulation 21 of the
| | | Listing Regulations, the Board has constituted Risk Management Committee. | LI

Business Risk Evaluation gnd Managemer#t is an‘ongoing procegé u/i{hin the OLganizgtioH. |
| | | The Company has a robust risk managemeént framework to identify] monitor and minimize |
risks as also identify busin?ss opportunitieﬁ. | I | B

| ‘ H The Risk Management Committee Comqrises ‘of Mr. Nichola Martin Paul,‘ Chairmaﬂ, ‘
Mr. M.K. Harinarayanan, Mr. J. Ravindran, and Mr. R. Ravivenkatesh as members.

| \ I \ \ \ | T \ N
Mr. R. Ravi,CompanySecr’etaryactsas Se‘cretarP/oftheCommiﬁt(ﬁaH | B

| ‘ H The Committee met on 1gth February 20‘16. qu names and P*tﬁqdance of‘Comn]ittgp‘
members are given below:

| \ \ \ \ | L] \ L L)
o | Name of the Director | | | No. of Meetiw‘s} q‘lttended | ]
Mr. Nicholas Martin Paul 1
| \ Mr. J. Ravindran \ \ \ 11111 \ 17
| ‘ Mr. M.K. Harinarayanan | | | 1 LI | L
o | Mr. R. Ravivenkatesh | | | 1 L | -
T T T 1T T T 1

| | 8. Independent Directors’ Meeting | | [T \ N

\ | AN \ ||
During the year, meeting of Independenl Directors was held on 12th February, %046
| \ | interalia, to discuss: \ \ \ LTI \ L

. | . Evaluation of the per*ormance of Nén In(Jependent Diréétg‘ré and thé Boaljd uf‘

|| | I Directors asawhole; | | | LT | L

| | H » Evaluation of the performance of the Crhairr%an of the Corqpﬁw, taking irpto acqoth‘
the views of the Executive and Non Executive Directors.

| | H » Evaluation of the qual‘ty, content and‘timelihes of flow of‘ilLlH)eration bLetweeH tme‘

| | [ management and the| Board that is |necessary for the Bpard to effectively and |
reasonably perform its duties.

| | I | | | 11T | LIl
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REPO‘RT ON CORPO‘RATIQ GOVERNAN&IJ:" i ly

(Pursuant to |Regulation 34 of $EBI (LODR) Regulatiohs,20[15) | |

N
| \ I . \ \ \ | \ i
~ 9. General Meetings =~ ~ ~— — — — o \]Hi o T *‘* o

Details of the location, date and time of thellast Three Annual Géneral Meetingg (AGM) and
the details are given below: | | 1] ] | | l] ]

| | I \ \ \ L] \ i
Year Meeting ‘ Locati‘on ‘ ‘Hp?te ‘ Tim? Ll

2014 - 15 AGM .09.2015 10.00 am
2 10-00.m, |

L1 | L
26.09.2014 | [10.00 am/| |

“Kalaignar Arangam”,
Anné Arivalayam, 367/369, ‘Anna Salai,
H Teynampet, Cheqnai - §OO 018

2013 -14 AGM |  “Kalaignar Arangam”,

Anna Arivalayam, 367/369, Anna Salai,
Teynampet, Chennai — 600 018

o | | 2012-13 AGM | “Kalaignar A‘rangar‘n",

Anna Arivalayam, 367/369,/Anna Salai,
TFynampet, Cheqnai - FSOO 018

s

Special Resolution pﬂssed in the pre‘vious‘ Three Annua‘ ﬁ?r‘leral Meﬁtings B
i LT \ L

| | I | | |
[10. Subsidiary Companies | | | [T | N

- | | The Company does not h:Lve any material ‘subsi(‘jiary whose nel v‘v‘o‘rih exceed‘s 20% LftAe‘
consolidated net worth of the holding corﬁpany‘in the immediétéw brecedind] accodntng‘
year or has generated 20% of the consolidated income of the Campany during the preyvious,
financial year. Accordingly‘, apolicy on matﬁ:rial Slfbsidiaries has Pﬂ F‘een formLTIated. B

e There were no materially significant related party transactions during the year having
conflictwith the interests dfthe Company. ‘ ‘ [ | L

. | H- There has been no non-cc‘)mpliance by the‘Comr‘)any or penalty‘o‘r‘s‘tl"icture imrLosed o‘n tue‘
] | H Company by the Stock EQchange or SEBl'or am‘/ statutory authuiw,‘ on any Hatter rélat@d‘
to capital markets, during the lastthree years. | [ 1]]] | [ ]

Disclosures | | |

The company has complied with all mandatory requirements. Ad(‘)‘rﬁl‘c;ns of noA-manJat(‘)ry
requirements are provided under item no.15 of this report. LI | [l

12. Means of Communication 1] \ | 1]

The quarterly unaudited financial results| and the annual audited financial results ate|
normally published in Finincial Express apd Mjlai Sudar. Pre;sé l"?rlfases ar? given‘to ‘:II‘
important dailies. The official announcements are posted at BSE and NSE websites. The
financial results, press réleases and communications to investdis are posted oh the

Companywebsitewww.suptv.in ‘ ‘ 1] ‘ ]

[T \ i
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13.

. The Board-Chairman’s (Pffice ‘ ‘

REPO‘RT ON CORPO‘RATE‘ GOVERNAN&IJ:" i ‘ ‘

(Pursuant to |Regulation 34 of SEBI (LODR) Regulatiohs,20/15) | |
o | BN LI .
Management Discussionf and Analysis ﬁepor‘t T | |
LTI \ \
LI | |
[T | |
LI | |
LI | |
LI | I

LT | L
The Chairman of Sun TV Network isa thle Tirqe Director and ‘hpme this pro‘vision i§ n‘o?t‘
applicable. | L m o

Management Discussion an Analysis repop is awnexed.

Shareholders Information | |
The details are enclosed elsewhere in the rdport. |

| | |
Non Mandatory Requirements | |

2. Shareholders Rights

The quarterly/annual resdlts, after the B‘oard of Directors taue‘s‘ khem on record, are
forthwith sent to the Stock E’xchanges with whom the company has listed. The résults, in the
prescribed format, are published in “Financjal Express” (English) and|“Malai Sudar” (Tamil) |
neWSpapers. | | 11 T

‘ \ | LTI | I
Audit Qualification | LI | |1

The Auditors have not quali‘fied the financial ‘statements ofthe Comﬂa‘n‘y. | N

| |

| I 111 | ]
GENEI%AL SHAREHOLDER% INFORMATIB“
. i ]
i ]
i ]
i ]
i ]
i ]
i ]
i ]

Registered Office of the C‘ompany
Murasoli Maran Towers | | |
73, MRC Nagar Main Road o
MRC Nagar, Chennai— 600028 | \
Tel: +91 44 44676767 Fax: +9144 40676161 \
E-mail: tvinfo@sunnetwork.in | |

Forthcoming Annual Gengeral Meeting | |
23rd September 2016 | | | 1] | BN
“Kalaignar Arangam”, Anna Arivalayam

367/369, Anna Salai, Teynampet, Chennai—600 0‘18

44 \‘Anpual Repprt 201@,—2016 ‘ ‘ ‘




REPO‘RT ON CORPO‘RATE‘ GOVERNAN&IJ:" i | i

(Pursuant to |Regulation 34 of SEBI (LODR) Regulatiohs,20/15) | [ || |

Book Closure Dates \ \ \ LI | N
From 16th September, 2016 to 23rd September, 2016 (both days inglusive) | [ ]

\ \ \ LT \ L
Dividend | | | 0l

During the financial year er‘1ded 31st March 2016, the Board of [Bi‘rt‘euors has declared the
Interim Dividends of Rs. 6.00/- per equity share (120%), Rs. 2.00/-/pér equity share (40%)
and Rs. 7.50/- per equity share (150%) declared at the Board Megtings held jon April 3@‘
2015, February 12, 2016 and March 14, 2016 respectively and h?v not recommended any
Final Dividend. The dividenh payout would rgsult ii atotal dividend@ilﬂ 0%, i.e.‘, Rs. 1 .5&‘/-‘
per equity share of face value of Rs.5.00/- eachlfor the financiall yebr ended |31st March|
2016. (Prev. Year of 225%, ‘i.e., Rs 11.25/- per eqqity share of facp Me}lye of Rs.q.OO/- egcm. ‘
The Payoutratio currently s‘tands at 84.77%.‘ | T | N

Unclaimed Dividend | | | LI \ Ll

Under the Transfer of Un¢laimed Dividend Rules, it would not bg possible to claim thie|
dividend amount once diposited in Invejtors’ Education and E‘rgtection Fund (I PFP.‘
Shareholders are, therefore, again requested to l:laim their unpgi ‘vidend, if not alr aéy
claimed. | | | [T | I

Financial Year |
1stApril2015to 31st March‘201 6.

Instruction to Shareholders

L Listing on Stock Exchanées and Stock CLJde | 1T | I
I 1 1 1 L 1 |
| Stock Exchange | | | Stock c??ﬁ | | ol
H National Stock Exchange Pf India Limited,‘ ‘ Symbol 1 ng TV ‘ B
Exchange Plaza, Bandra - Kurla Complex, Series -
| Bandra(E), Mumbai 400 051 L 111 )l
| BSE Limited \ \ \ Scrip Cdde - 532733 | i
H Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towe[s, | | Scrip ID‘ | H-ﬁUNTV | Ll
Dalal Street, Mumbai 400'001

Annual listing fees have beeT paid to the abo‘ve stock exchanges.

Depositories Connectivipy ‘ ‘ L1 ‘ ||

National Securities Deposftory Ltd. (NSDLﬂ ‘ [T | i
Central Depository Servic?s(lndia)Ltd.(CIPSL) ‘ 1] ‘ ]
ISIN:INE424H01027

\ \ \ [T \ N

‘ ‘ ‘ 45‘ M\pnual Req)ort 20]15@(%16

Lt

A

SUNTV
NETWORK



| I | o 1111 T
Sun Ty Network Limited | | 111 L

] \ | \ I L \ N
REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

| \ [ (Pursuant to Reglilation 34 of SEBI|(LODR) Regulations,2018)| | \ |1l
|| \ I \ \ \ |1 \ |l

Shﬂre Transfer Process | | | T | e

1. | Karvy Computershare Private Ltd processes the physical transfers @nd other reguests [from |
the Shareholders.

2. | The Board has delegated the power to approve the transfers to the Share Transfer Commjittée |
o | H and the transfers are approve? asandwhen nﬁcess:iry. N | BN

| | 3. | A Practicing Company Secrgtary carries out| the Secretarial Audit, pertaining to the share|
transfers every six months anii necessary cert}ficate to that effect are ifﬂ"ed and the samf are

| | H filed with the Stock Exchanges. | B | 1N
| \ I \ \ \ LI \ N
4. Asper SEBI'sinstructions, th? Company’s Shares c?n be sold throu%h stock exchange only in

| | | dematerialized form. | T | I
|| |

I | | | [T | I
| | I | | | LI | I
Market Price Data & Performancg in Comparisoql with ‘BSE and NSE Indices Il |

r | |
*  MarketPrice Data | | | LT | LI
| I | | | T | L
| | |

H B.S.E | | N.S.E I

\ [ \ \ \ [T \ 1Tl

| o | vorumend. | | | volmb, 1|
I | Month High Low | ofshares)  High Low, | ofshares) |||
o | Apr15 | 45695 34550 | | 1448802 | | [459.00 | 34500 | 2,02.97,860 || |
| | May-15 | 389.45 33755 | 10,77,463 | | |389.00 | 337100 @ 1,03,21,971 |||
| | Jun-15 385.00 258.00 | 1,04,57,140 | 386.00 257,00 | 7,79,08,796 |||
| " Jul-15l 345.30 256.05 | 81,58,089 | | 346.00 | 256l00 @ 6,58,40,923 Il ||
| | Aug-15 | 398.00 202.75 | 1,12,84,964 | |398.00 | 29300  6,39,08,338 ||
| | Sep-15 | 39865 33540 | 7528319 | | |399.00 @ 38500  4,0063575 |
. "Oct15 | 411.30 35000 | 3641040 | | 41300 | 35000 | 23755375 |
o i Nov-1% 406.95 354.00? 23,02,949 i i408.00 3%%6 2,0%1,40,5612 H |
- j Dec-1% 431.90 372.001 16,38,382 j 1432.00 3%31#)‘5 2,1‘5,55,6%‘6 jj |
; Jan-w% 436.00 327.00; 17,47,433 ; ; 436.00 3;2;6;.;0(;) 2,0;2,31,32;8 ;;
(Feb16 | 38440 31200 | 1632205 | 33400 31400 17579649 |

Mar-16 | 380.95 31930 | 1338592 | | 38100 | 321.00 14857810 |

| | | | |
\ \ \ \ \
|| \ I \ \ \ [T \ i
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

(Pursuant to Reglilation 34 of SEBI|(LODR) Regulations,2015)| |
| \ |

T’erF)mTan@ in?onﬁ;arEonTvitlTBSﬁSlﬁlSEix o

120.00

SHARE PR‘ICE RELATIVE TO BS& SENSELX
DURING APR -2015 TO MAR -‘ 2016 (‘]see note below)

100.00 |

80.00

* - |
T | aeeertr e, 4

60.00

—a ]

INDEX

H 40.00

| 20.00

- BSE SENSEX

9

I\l?HI\ no 'f | Il
111 | 1

The clqsing value for April is taken as 100. The value§, for qhe months, from ﬁgril' 15 to Mar' 16‘, are |

Pe#ormance in comparison with‘ NSENIFTY
|

worked out as a percentage, keeping‘the Base Value ‘for Apr' 15 as 100.

SHARE PRICE RELATIVE TO NSE NIFTY]

DURING ATPR -2015 7O MAR —‘ 2016 (*see note below)

)

@) BSE SENSEX

9

1 11
PIIT
[ \ |11

T The cldsing value for April is taken as 100. The value$ for the months, from |April’ 15 to Mar’ 16, arg |

Yvorked Tut as a percentage, keeping tPe Base Value f?r Apr" 15 as 100.

|11 | |1l
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
(Pursuant to Regulation 34 of SEBI|(LODR) Regulations,20135)| | | |

L ?haTeh?dmg pattern/ Distribution | |
Sha[eholdlng pattern as on 31st‘ March 2016 ‘ ‘

\

|

r
| | Category ‘

[T
%‘ to total Capitgl‘ |

| 75.00/ ||

odq !l o

16.76 !

|
PRI |
T |
|
|

| | Profhoter Group |

Finé‘ncial Institutions / Bank | | |

Non'Residents (NRI/ OCB / Flls)

MutlHJaI Funds | | |

5.21

Others

Tord | o b
[ | | | [

LT | |

LTI

\
|%Itd total ||
g2 |

[
|

Distribution of Shareholding as on 31st March 2016 |
I \ \ \

| %tototal || No.of Shares

Category No. of Holders

09.34 | 3047606
Above 10,000 212 " o0e6 | 30,0837.014

Total 32,148 " 10000 ' 30,40,84,620 100,00
H \ [ [T \ \

| SurrumaryofShareholding ason £1st March 201& | T
[

\

[ | | | |
% to Equity \

|

|

31936 |

o018

\
|
"1 1-10,000
|
|

No. of Holders Total Shares

i i i i 00
Tlag50

164 -
NSDL 23429 39.21,09.707
Mo | |
| M00.00

cosL 8,555 | 19,74,406

Total 32,148 39,40,84,620 \
LI | \
LI |

)

\
\ I | | |
rll
T Erovide the facH\ty

|
Physgcal 507

|
‘ Catebory
|
|

Denﬁaterialization of Shares | | |

H The Company has signed ﬁgreements with both National Sec
(NSDL) and Central Depository Services IAdla) Limited (CDSL
| holding equity shares in dematerialized form. | |

1. Depository L|m|t

| A qualified practicing Compaﬁy Secretary carriied odt a Secretarial ‘AH(M to reconEiIe thej toHaI‘
|admitted capital with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) jand Centra| Depositary|

Services (India) Limited (CDSL) and the total issued and listed capital. The audit confirms that
‘the total issued/paid up caplta\ isin agreement‘wnh the total numbe} (H lshares in p‘hysmal‘fo“n‘
|and the total number of dematé¢rialized shares held with NSDL and CDSL | | | 1]

| As on 31st March 2016, 39,40,84,113 equity shares constituting 99/99% of the total paid Up!
H capital of the company have Peen dematerialjzed. /NI the equity sr‘lqr‘qsf except tpe IoclﬂedHn‘
shares if any are freely tradable. O | o

2.

3.
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REPORT ON CORPOkATE‘ GOVERNAN&IJ:" .
(Pursuant to Regulation 34 of SEBI (LLODR) Regulations,2015) | [ ]|

Outstanding GDRs / @Rﬁ*etc.*

Address for correspondepce

Compliance Officer |

R. Ravi, |
Company Secretary,
Sun TV Network Limited
Murasoli Maran Towers

73, MRC Nagar Main Road

The Company has not isqued any GDR, ‘ADR or any conveqimq ‘instrumelpts perpdilpp‘
conversion or any other insﬁrument likely to iTwpact

MRC Nagar, Clpennai —-600 02%

Tel: +91 44 4467 6767
Fax: +9144 4067 6161

Email: ravi@sunnetwork.in

www.suntv.in

Registrars and Share Trar‘15ferAgent

M/s Karvy Computershare Privqte Lim‘ited 1] | BN

Karvy Selenium Tower B,

Plot Number 31 & 32, Financialbistric»t, LI | I
Gachibowli, deerabad —-500 0@2
Tel: (040) 23420815 Fax: (040)23420814
Email: mailmaﬁager@kawy.co

www.karvycomputershare.com|

lace: Chennai ‘

Date: July 8,2016

[This space has‘ been intentionaily Ieft‘blank] 1T | N

e
| LI | I
‘equityshare cip‘iﬁl‘ofthe coTpany. B
| [T | I
| LI | I
| LI | I
| LI | I
\ LTI \ N
| LI | i
| [T | I
| LI | I
| LI | I
| LI | I
\ LTI \ N
| LI | i

\ LTI \ L
\ LTI | L
\ LTI \ N
| LI | i
On behalf of the Board

K.Vijaykumar | ||| | | N
Managing Director &
dhiefExecutivéHﬁficer ‘ I

| | | i
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| I | o 1111 T
Sun Ty Network Limited | | 111 L

- | H REPO‘RT ON CORPOkATE‘ GOVERNAN(%%H ‘ ‘ i

| ] | | (Pursuant to Regulation 34 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations,2015) | [ || |
\ \

| \ I \ | \ i
I Kt i o A TR TS

| \ fo \ ] [ \ I

|| \ [The Members of Sun TV Network Limited | \ [T \ LI

| ‘ “\Ne have examined the compliénce of conditioHs of Cbrporate Gove}n‘éﬁée by Sun‘TV Neﬂwcﬂk‘
|| ‘ [Limited ("the Company"), for the financial yearjended on March 31,2016, as stipulated under|
Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement ("Listing Agreement") of the Company with the Stock

| | ‘Exchanges for the period April‘1 ,2015to0 Noverlnber 140, 2015and as‘pgr‘the relevarlﬂ provigioHs‘
| | |of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements)|
Eegulations, 2015 (Listing Regulations) as referred to in Regulﬁi?P 15(2) of the LWstiﬂg

egulations for the period Decémber 1,2015 to‘Marcﬁ 31,2016. | | |

‘the compliance of conditio‘ns of Corporat‘e Go‘vernance is lh‘e‘ | ‘responsib‘ility o# tHe‘
|| | Wnanagement. Our examination was limited to pPocedlhres and impleﬁnéHtétion theréof, ad&ptgd‘
| ‘ ‘Py the Company for ensuring tlpe compliance or the cpnditions of thq qip‘rporate quernaqcer ‘It‘
L | His neither an auditnoran expre‘ssion of opinion o‘n the f‘inancial statem‘e‘n‘t‘s‘ofthe Cor‘npany.‘ 0
o | ‘In our opinion and to the best C|i,f our information and ?ccording toth Empll)anations‘given io Lgs‘

e certify that the Company has complied wi{h the conditions of rate Governance as
|| | lstipulated in the above-mentioned Listing Agreément | Listing Regulations, as applicable. | || |

| | “\Ne further state that such cor%pliance is neithEr an Lassurance as tb‘tHé future viiability <£f tHe‘
|| | |ICompany nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the|
affairs of the Company.

W:or S.R.BATLIBOI &ASSOdlATES LLP | | LT | L]
| \ [Chartered Accountants \ \ \ T | L

o | HFirm Registration number: 101?49W/E300004 | | m | 0

| | ‘Eer Aniruddh Sankaran | | | i | N
artner
|| | IMembership No.: 211107 | | | L] | | 1]

| | Chennai | o i RN
puly8, 2016 | L UL L

| ‘ [ ‘Confirmation on Coqe of Conduct\ I | \ IR

| \ To | \ \ [ \ I

| | ‘H’he MembersofSunTVNetv&orkLimited, | | [T | N
L \ |l

‘Ll'his is to inform that the Boar‘d has laid down‘ a cocle of conduct for all Board members and‘
|| | lsenior management of the Company. | | 1] ] | | 1]

o ‘ It is further confirmed that all birectors and Sénior Management ﬁe‘r&bhnel of tHe Com‘paHy‘

| ‘ ‘pave affirmed compliance withthe Code of Conduct (ﬂlthe Company, a}i t 31st MaTch 201‘6, as|
envisaged in Regulation 17 oftke Listing Regulations with Stock ExcrLa g S.

| \ I \ \ LTI \ N

| | H | | Onbehalf ofthe Board | I

|| | I | | | LTI | L

| | I , | | | LT | L
Place: Chennai K. Vijaykumar

| | Date: May 27,2016 | | Managing Diredtor & | LI

L | l | | GhiefExecutive Qfficer | | ||

| | I | | | 11T | LIl
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CEOI/CFO CERTIFICATION
[ (Pursuant to |Regulation 17 of SEBI (LlODR) Regulatiohd, 20115) \ |1l ]

I | | | [T | 1

‘The Board of Directors s
‘éun TV Network Limited | | | 1T | N
I \ | \ [ \ N
‘We, K. Vijaykumar, Managing Director & Chief Exeijtive Officer aniv.ﬁ. Unnikriﬁhnan, ?hhef‘

inancial Officer of Sun TV Network Limited (“thle Company”), certify t Qt
I | | | LTI | L
H1' We have reviewed the financial statements and tZe cash flow stqt?mﬁ;nt for the‘ year epd?p‘
31stMarch, 2016 and to the best of knowledge and belief :

I \ \ \ LTI \ L
g. These statements do not contain any materially untrue statementjor gmit any material fact or|
contain statements thatmi%ht be misleading‘; | I | N

b. These statements together present a true and faif view of the Cdmipany’s affairs and arelin|
compliance with existing ac‘counting standal"ds, aprIicabIe laws am‘r‘e‘gulationﬁ BN
P. There are, to the best of our knowledge dnd bélief, no transactiohs entered|into by thle|
H Company during the year yvhich are fraudLHIent, Fllegal or violatf; ‘tm Compaqy‘s Coge ﬁ’f\
Conduct.
I | | | LI | I
h?" We accept responsibility fpr establishing fand rrpaintaining intqrrw ‘controls ror finqnc@l‘
reporting and we have evaluated the effectiveness of Company’s internal control systems
H pertaining to financial repon[ing. We have ndt comé across any reb&Ha‘ble deficiéncies i‘n tMa‘
| design oroperation of such jnternal controls| \ L] \ | ] |

L. We have indicated totheAJditorsandtheAJditCo‘mmittee: 1T | I
I \ \ \ LT \ L

f' That there are no significar‘n changes in intFrnaI ﬁ;ontrol over fin?rma}I reportinp durinp tﬂe‘
year;

\P- Thatthereareno significanF changesin accquntin$ policies during m year; ‘ L]

@:. Thatthere are no instances‘ofsignificantfraL‘Jd ofWhich we have bEEUnl]e aware.‘ i

K. Vijaykumar | . V.C.Unhikrishnan | ||
anaging Director & Chief Financial Officer
@:nhief Executive Officer | | | ik . 1T

‘blace:Chennai | | | LI \ LIl
pate: May 27,2016 | I 1] | N

I | | | 11T | LIl
[ ‘ ‘ ‘ ’:M UM\nnual R@port 2@1&'”%016



| I | o 1111 T
Sun Ty Network Limited | | 111 L

| | I \ \ \ | 11 \ NN
| | H INDFrPENDENT AHJDITQRS’ REPOR‘T‘ N | 0l

|| | I \ \ | [T | 1
o | - FotFe Members of Sun TV lTeth)rkT_imTtecr T - \]Hi o T 7\7\\ ‘*

Report on the Financial Statements

o | ‘K/Ve have audited the accomé;anying standali)ne fikancial statem‘emyof Sun 'ILV Netl/voHJ

| | LLimited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at|March 31, 2016/ the |

| | tatement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow St temer‘ltforthe yearth‘ep‘?l‘wded, and‘a sumr‘naﬂy‘
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

| | ‘Management’s Responsibili{y for the FinanEiaI S{atements [T | N
|| | I | | | LT | L

| | [The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated|in|Section 134(5) of the |
Pompanies Act, 2013 (“the ACF') with respect tP the Preparation of thﬁﬂ standalone finapciﬁzl

|| | \ : o NN g . ! |
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and

| | kash flows of the Company irl accordance with accounting principlés lgenerally accepted fin |

| ‘ India, including the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 ofthe Act, read with Rule |
7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of

] | dequate accounting records in accordance w‘th the‘ provisions of tmau\& for safejguardi%g Hf |

| | the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds|and other irregularities; |
election and application of apPropriate accounting pPIicies; making jlﬁigments anF estiqat?f

| | G _ 19 PP P8 ! |
hat are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of

| | ladequate internal financial control that were opérating effectively for énsuting the accuracy and |

| ‘ ‘Pompleteness of the accountirpg records, relev(ant tq the preparatiqn‘aepp presenQation o‘f trMa ‘
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,

| | ‘{Nhetherduetofraud orerror. | [T | I

| \ I \ \ \ LTI \ i
| \ Auditor’s Responsibility | \ \ [T \ N

|| \ I \ \ \ LT \ L
| ‘ ‘pur responsibility is to express an opinion on tmese s‘tandalone finamiﬂl Ftatemen}s basqd o
our audit. We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditin
o ‘ ‘Etandards and matters which aPe required to be ‘includLed in the audit rbbUﬁ underthé proviéioﬁi ‘
| | jof the Act and the Rules madg thereunder. We conducted our audit in jaccordance with the |
Standards on Auditing, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountka ts of India, as spe ifi?
. | ‘Lnder Section 143(10) of thé Act. Those Standards require tha u/z‘comply Tvith etcLic I‘
| | Fequirements and plan and pelrform the audit to obtdin reasonable asslurance about whether |
| | ‘}he financial statements are frere from material rrPisstatFment. 1] | BN

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
| | ‘Hisclosures in the financial sﬂatements. The broce&iures selected‘dlébénd on tH\e aud#torl’g‘
| | judgment, including the assegsment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial |
‘ftatements, whether due to fiaud or error. | maki‘ng those risk z ﬁisments, the audit r‘
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s pr E tion of t#\e fina%ci |
|| | lstatements that give a true and/fair view in orderto design audit proceldbires that are appropriate |
| ‘ ‘fn the circumstances. An audft also includes Fvalu?ting the apprqqrmeness of‘accourptiqg ‘

olicies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s
‘Eireotors, as well as evaluatind the overall presEntati&n of the financi‘ai Qtétements.‘We beiie\Ha ‘
| | that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to|provide a basis for our |
‘Fuditopinion onthe standaloneT financial statements.

| | I | | | 11T | LIl
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11 A o
(Opinion | N 111 o

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
he standalone financial staterhents give the informaLtion required bi/ W\ ‘Act in thé mannér % |
[required and give a true and fair view in conformity|with the accounting principles generally |

fccepted in India of the state ch affairs of the CPmpa‘ny as at March ‘3‘1‘, ‘%01 6,itsp

rofit, and it
fort and i)

cash flows for the year ended on that date.

HEmphasis of Matter \ | |

We draw attention to notes 41/ and 42, regardihg matters of material luncertainty inh relation fto |
ssets of the company and inv?stments in subsfdiarieP respectively. PHrﬂpinion is r‘wt qua‘lifi?fi |
in respect of these matters.

HReport on Other Legal and I-JQeguIatory Reqhirem‘ents

lh.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s repott) Order, 2016 (“thé (Order”) issued by the |
Central Government of‘lndia in terms o( sub-§ection (11) of qupn 143 of‘the Ac}, we |
give in the Annexure 1 a‘ statement on th‘e matt‘ers specified in‘ p‘amgraphs 3 ‘and 4 chtI'he |
Order.

. As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, e report that: [ 1] ] | LIl
I | | | [T | I
H(a) We have sought and oq»tained all the infprmat;on and explangq@pp which tq the bqst Rf\
H our knowledge and belie‘fwere necessar%/ fortr‘le purpose ofon‘Jrﬁﬁiit; | N
H(b) In our opinion proper Eooks of accour%t as J’equired by Ia\iv‘tl\gl/e been ‘(ept by‘/ t%‘
| Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;| | [ ]
I \ \ \ LT \ L
H(C) The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit ‘and LPss, and Cash ﬂcwv‘ Statemerpt dealq wi‘tp |
by this report are in agreement with the books of account;
I | LI | I
H(d) In our opinion, the Aforesaid standélone ‘financial statérﬁgr{ts compiy with‘ t%‘
[ Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act| read with Rule 7 of the |
H Companies (Accounts) Fules,2014; | | 1 | BN
H(e) On the basis of written‘ representations‘ rece#ved from the c‘iir‘éc‘:t‘ors as on‘ Marct‘w 3‘4, |
H 2016, and taken on record by the Board of Diréctors, none of thel directors is‘disquaiifiéﬂ ‘
I as on March 31, 2016, qrom being appoqnted asa director in terms of sectiqn 164 q2) Hf\
the Act;
I | | | LI | I
| | internal financi 'Over financial reporting of
‘(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls financial reporting of
[ the Company and the bperating effectiveness of such conttal$] Fefer to our separate |
H Reportin “Annexure 2” tpthis report; | | 1] | N
H ] , | ]
(9) The matters described in the Emphasis of Matters paragraph above, in our oplnlon,‘m?/ |

have an adverse effect A)n the functioniné ofthé Company. I |

’:'Pq U ‘ Annual R@port 2@15”%016
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With respect to the other matters toibecLFcluFFdﬁ thEALTdit?rTT I‘?EporTin ?:oo?d?nﬁﬁ |
with Rule 11 of the Comianies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, rL ouropinionandtot
best of our information and according to the explanations given to Us: \ LI

\ \ \ LT \ L
The Company has discl‘osed the impact‘of peqlding Iitigationq qrp‘iqs financiql positipn ‘ip [
its financial statementsT Refer Note 31 t(\) the financial statements;

\ T | I
The Company did not il\ave any Iong-te‘rm co‘ntracts incIudirH ugrivative c‘ontract‘s er‘
which there were any material foreseeable losses; LI \ LI

There has been no de|ay in transferriqg amq)unts, required‘ IH ‘Qe transfe‘rred, tq) ttﬁs‘
Investor Education and ‘Protection Fund ‘bythe Company

| | [For S.R.BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP | | L1 | [

| ‘ ‘pharteredAccountants ‘ ‘ ‘ L] ‘ L]
CAIl Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

|| | \ | | LI | N

| | ‘L)erAniruddh Sankaran | | | 1T | I
| | Partner | | | LT | |1l
|| \ Membership Number: 211107 | | | LT \ L

| | I
| ‘ ‘Place :

| | | LI | N
Chennai | \ | [ | N

| | pate:May 27,2016 | o i T

| | | LTI | L
\ \ \ LTI \ N
| | | LI | i
| | | LTI | L
| | | LT | L
\ \ \ LTI \ L
[This space has been Fntentipnally left bIan|<]HH ‘ N
\ \ \ LTI \ N
| | | LI | i
| | | LTI | L
| | | LT | L
\ \ \ LTI \ L
\ \ \ L \ i
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HRe: Sun TV Network Limited | | |

H(i) (a)
I

| (b)
I

[

[

I (c)
I

I

I

[

I(ii)

I

I

I(iii)

I

[

[

(0

H(|v)

I

I

[

[

H(V)
H(vi)

I

I

H(vii) (a)

Annexure to A‘uditors' Report

-Annexure referred -to in- paLagFaphA of the se‘etien on “Reﬁéﬂ ‘en otheLlegal‘aAh ‘—
Iregulatory requirements” of our report of even date

The Company has maintained proper records showing full Farticulars, includin?
quantitative detailsénd situation offil(ed aésets. 111 | | IT

All fixed assets have not been physically| verified by the management during the |
year, but there is a regular programme of verification th' h, in our, opinion, i

reasonable having |jaegard to the size ofthe‘Company and {hew] ture of itg asset l\‘li‘
material discrepancies were noticed lon su¢h verification. | ||/ | | LI

| | | LI | i
According to the inﬁormation and e planations given by‘trm r‘nanagerqent th? tiHI?‘

deeds of immovable properties included in fixed assets are held in the name of the
Company. Also refer Note 42 to thé financial statements Wrbspect of provision%l |
attachment of certgin immovable ‘prope‘rties of Comppnmy‘ ‘by the E<nforcer[neﬂt‘
Directorate, Ministry of Finance, Government of India which is sub judice at the
Hon’ble Supreme %ourtoflndia. | [T | AT

The management has conducted physical verification of inyentory at reasonabje |
intervals during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on su
physicalverificationT | F Gﬁ 1 F ? f ﬂ] |

According to the information and explanations given to us| the Company has not |
granted any loans, secured or un?ecurﬁd to companiTsm ‘fi ms or o}her parti |
covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Accordingly, the pravisions of clause 3(iii)(a) and (b) of the Order are nott applidable |
to the Company anq hence not comr@enteq upon. L] ‘ N

In our opinion and‘ according to tr‘1e information and explanations given to us,
provisions of Sectibn 186 of the dompdnies Act, 2013 WHespect of loans| and |
advances given, investments made and, guarantees, and |securities |given have |
been complied with by the Company. The Company dj t have any loans t

directors including éntitiesinwhicht eyaréinterestedin r&&letofwhic proviéior@‘
of Section 185 of thd Companies Act| 2013 are applicable.| | || | | | 1]

\ \ \ LT \ L
TheCompanyhasWotacceptedanyFepOﬁitsfromthepuqliﬁ" | BN

To the best of our linowledge and aLs exp‘lained, the Ce#t‘rg‘l ‘Governm‘ent hag nHt‘
specified the maintenance of cost records under clause|148(1) of the Companies |
Act, 2013,forthese"vicesoftheCom‘pany.‘ 1] | N

The Company is r‘egular in depos‘,iting \‘Nith appropriate authorities undisputed
statutory dues inc|uding provideni fund, income-tax, | \Wdlth-tax, dervice | ta&, \
customs duty, cess, employees’ staFe insquance and othpny ‘mgterial stqtutory gu% ‘
applicable to it. The provisions relating to sales-tax, Excise duty and value added
tax are not applicable to the Company. | [T | AT

’:'Pq U ‘ Annual R@port 2@15”%016
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Annexyre to AuditorF' RePort (Continyﬁcﬂ | B

“According to the information and Exp%atii?nsigivein toij,ﬁ? ‘ﬁdi@ut? aﬁ?unt |
payable in respect oprrovidentfund,e ployees’ state insu akce, income-tax, wealth-
tax, service tax, customs duty, cess and other matetidl | statutory |dues Wete!
outstanding, at the Year end, for a‘ periqd of more th@m ﬁix month‘s from HPF\
date they became pay?ble. | | O | O

According to the records of the Contnpan% the dues odt%férﬁding of incomé-ta‘*,‘
customs duty and servjice tax, on accoqntofa‘nydispute,are‘ag‘fp‘llows: ‘ IR

o Namé of the H Nature of dues Aanount ﬁeriod‘to which I #orum where I

| || statute |

(Rs. in crores) | the amount relates | | |dispute is pending || |

| \ [
| || Act, 1961 |

Income tax Income Tax 338.78 FY 2004 — 05 to H
|

| | | ‘Jg‘;f‘w Court of‘Madra‘s Ik
\

| FY 2008 —|09 [ 1] ] | |1

[ || Incometax | Income Tax 114.97 FY 2006 —|07 to 2008- | |Copimissioner of | || |

Act, 1‘961 I

-09 1& FY 2012-13 ‘Ipﬁo‘me Tax (/‘-\ppeal§)

Custo‘ms Differential 3.45 FY 2b07— 68 Customs, Excise and
] Act, 1062 H Customs Duty ‘ ‘ ‘ | Sérvice TaprpeIIatb ]

\ \ \  Tribunal \ L

1 Act 1904

Finance Service Tax 1.66 May 2008 — @zfjoms, Ex?ise an?

| Sept mbeJ’ 2011 ice Tax Appellate I
| | | | Tribunal | |1

\ \ \ 1] IR
According to information and explanations given to us, there are no dues o#wealth-tax,
excise duty, and cess which are outstaﬁding on account ofaM Hfépute. ‘ I

Based on our audit prpcedures and as per ttpe information gwg‘qxplanatiqns givern W‘
the management, we are of the opinion that the Company has not defaulted in
repayment of dues to La bank. The Corﬁpany ‘did not have arw ihkstanding‘debenﬁurég |
during the year. | | | LTI | L

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has not raisL;d any money wgy of irfitial public offe /‘#Lﬂher publié offer/‘deut |
instruments and termloans hence, reporting under clause (ix} is not applicable to the |
Company and hence r‘10tcommented u‘pon. | i | N

Based upon the audit‘procedures perf‘ormecj for the purpos‘e‘c‘)# reporting the true and
fair view of the financial statements and accdrding to the information and explanations |
given by the managqment, we repor} that no fraud by tqe‘ company or no frquq‘/‘
material fraud on the company by the officers and employees of the Company has
been noticed orreporttad during the year. | LT | I

According to the information and explanations given by |the management, the|
managerial remuneration has been paid / provided in acc?rcﬁnce with the requisite
approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read‘ i{h Schedule V t tMe‘
CompaniesAct, 2013) | | [ 1111 | [ ] ]

| | | LI | I
In our opinion, the Corppany is not a nighi company. TherefoT ‘Tf provisior[:s ofclfu?re |
3(xii) of the order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

56 \‘ Aqnual Reqort 201@-2016




\ H \ ] [ \ I I

A

\ | \ \ \ LI \ | 1] SUNTV

INETWORK
| I \ \ \ I \ fbl|
| H Annexyre to AudltorF RePort (Contlnyﬁcﬂ | B

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions
‘ H with the related partieis arein compliche With Section 177 én‘d HES of Corﬁpanieé AH ‘
| [ 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed injthe notes to the financial |
statements, as requir(Td by the applica?le ac?ounting Sta”dﬁrﬁjﬁ- | | BN

| ‘kxiv) According to the imJormation and éxplangtions given tu U§ and on‘ an o&erg‘ll‘
| | examination of the balance sheet, the campany has not /made any |preferential |
allotment or private pl?cement ofsharﬁs orfwlly orpartly conv? itfle debentures dwrinp
| I : . . : i
the year under review and hence, reporting requirements under clause 3(xiv) are not
| I applicable to the company and, not corhmented upon. I \ LI

\ I \ \ \ LT \ L

‘ ‘ﬂxv) According to the infprmation and qxplan@tions given tM Jt‘h‘e manaqemenH trme‘
Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons

| I connected with him a§ referredtoin SeEtion i92 of Companibg‘Aét, 2013. | N

‘ ‘vai) According to the infoqmation and expl‘anatiqns given to us, m@‘provision§ of septiqm

| | 45-1Aof the Reserve B‘ank of India Act,‘ 1934 ‘are notapplicat‘alﬁt‘o‘ the Comr‘)any. 0

| I | | | [T | N

‘ HForS.R. BATLIBOI&ASSOC!ATES LLP ‘ ‘ L1 ‘ ||
artered Accountants

| (Chartered Accountant | i o

\
| HICAIFirm Registration Number‘: 101049W/E30?OO4 | 1 | ]|

\ lper Aniruddh Sankaran \ \ \ 11T \ LI

| Partner | | | [T | I

| HMembership Number: 211107 | | | I | BN
Place : Chennai

| bbate:May27, 2016 | . 1111 Iy

| I | | | LI | I

\ I \ \ \ LTI \ N
| I | | | LI | i
| I | | | [T | I
| I | | | LI | I
| I | | | LI | I
[This space has‘been intentionafly Ieft‘blank] 1 | B
\ I \ \ \ LTI \ N
| I | | | LI | i
| I | | | [T | I
| I | | | LI | I
| I | | | LI | I
\ l \ \ \ L] \ | 1]

\ H \ \ \ | 111 \ N
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o | H ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUBlToﬂ’s REPORT cﬂ ‘IJ:'\‘IEN DATE ON ‘ILHIJE‘ |
| | I STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF SUN TV NETWORK LIMITED | || |

T T - T o HT?epErt?n the Internal Financial Controls u{Tder*?IaUseF) oTSPﬁ-ﬂ?ctioF3§fS&$ioﬂ ‘*
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
|| | [ | | | LI | N

| | [We have audited the internal|financial controls over financial reporting of Sun TV Network |
| | ‘Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2016,in cor‘1junction with qumlfdit of the‘standﬂloqf |
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibiliéy forInternal Fihancigl Controls

‘H’he Company’s Management Es responsible foP estaﬂ)lishing and méir“éihing inter#‘nal finahci‘e&l |
| | |controls based on the internal control over financjal reporting criteria established by the |
| | HCompany considering the ess?ntial componenlﬁ ofin}ernal control stla}(ﬁj‘in the Gui‘dance L\lof? |

on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
| | IChartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the désigh, impleméntation and |
| ‘ ‘maintenance of adequate inteqnal financial con}rols tr}at were operat;n‘g pﬁectively Tor ensyriqlg ‘

the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s
| | Hpolicies, the safeguarding of itg assets, the préventidn and detectioh Uf‘ f}auds an& erroré, t% |
| | laccuracy and completeness of the accounting|records, and the timely |preparation of reljabje |
financial information, as requir?d underthe Corr‘lpaniﬁsAct, 2013. 1 | BN

| | I | | | LI | i
o | HAuditor’s Responsibility | | | T | N

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
| | financial reporting based onlour audit. We conducted our audit inl accordance with the |
| | |Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Cantrols|Over Financial Repprting (the “Guidance |

Note”) and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
. | ‘5013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial contjoﬂ,‘ (I)oth appl#cable jo EL |
| | laudit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Ghartered Accountarts of |
| | Hlndia. Those Standards and the Guidance‘ Notq require that ‘vm ‘comply With etPiCﬁl |

requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
| ‘ ‘L’adequate internal financial cohtrols over finantial rdporting was established and/maintdined |
| | jand if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. [ | | ] |

| \ I \ \ \ LTI \ L
| ‘ ‘pur audit involves performing ‘procedures to optain qudit evidence ?Q?H the adequacy qf tme ‘

internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
| | ‘budit of internal financial contr&ls over financial‘ repoﬁting included oi)ﬂa{iHng an unﬁerstar{diﬂb |
| | jof internal financial controls |over financial reporting, assessing| the |risk that|a material |

weakness exists, and testing and evaluating thf desi?n and operatiqg ?J!fctiveness of int rnagl
. | Hcontrol based on the asseséed risk. The procedures selected dL) nd on tHe aud tmj’ |
| \ liudgement, including the asseéssment of the fisks df material mis$thtement of the finahcial |

| | ‘Ftatements, whetherduetofralfd orerror. | | 1] | N

o | HWe believe that the audit evidence we have obfained is sufficient and ?ﬁgropriate fo prov‘de‘? |
basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial con{rols system ovlenJ inancial reporting.

| | I | | | 11T | LIl
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| ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE |
H STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF SUN TV NETWORK LIMITED | || |

I \ \ | [T | 1
WeaﬁinﬁofﬁteﬁalFinaﬁcia“‘FCoﬂroTsWerrl’naﬁ‘ciameﬁorfm%ﬂ‘ ‘* — T — | ] ‘*

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
Hreasonable assurance regard%ng the reliabilit)‘/ of firlwancial reportir{d ‘éﬁd the préparaticﬁn Hf‘
ffinancial statements for externjal purposes in accordance with generally accepted|accounting |
Hprinciples. A Company's inte(nal financial ccrntrol ‘over financial rmtjrting inclrtjdes tﬁw? |
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of recordé ,inreasonable detail,
laccurately and fairly reflect thel transactions and dispositions of the dskets of the Company; (2) |
‘provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as |necessary to p?rrrp't‘
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
Hprinciples, and that receipts land expenditurés of the Company‘zﬁé ‘being méade on‘ly in|
laccordance with authorisations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide |
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of u ? thorised acquisition,
Huse, or disposition of the Company's assets th‘at coJId have a mat ri@l szect on the finaLciﬂl |
lstatements. | | | LI | LI

I | | | LT | L
linherent Limitations of Internal Financial Coptrols Over Financial Reporting | | 1]
HBecause of the inherent IimiFations of interqal fin@ncial controls‘ oyer financiql repoqting,‘
including the possibility of col{usion or improper management overriie of contrals, malerial
Hmisstatements due to error or'fraud may occu¥ and not be detecteé.‘ ‘Iéo, projec{ions o) ar%/‘
levaluation of the internal financial controls over finang¢ial reporting to|fltuire periods|are subjelct |
to the risk that the internal financiaI control ovFr finﬂncial reporting Tﬁy become inadequaﬁe
| . . =P o |
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
lprocedures may deteriorate. | | | I | LI

I \ \ \ LI \ LI
|Opinion | | \ [T \ L

lin our opinion, the Company| has, in all material respects, an afléquate internal financial |
‘Fontrols system over financiﬂl reporting and ‘such ‘internal financﬁaf %)ntrols ov‘er finaPciﬁl‘
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2016, based on tLe internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Compahy considering thé ldssential domporentts |
‘pf internal control stated in thp Guidance Notra on /f\udit of Internql ﬁip@ncial antrols pvgr‘
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

ForS.R.BATLIBOI&ASSOCIATESLLP i | S
H \ o [T \ I

Chartered Accountants

HICAI Firm Registration NumberJ:1O1O49W/E306)004 | [T | I
I | | | [T | I

I | | | I | LI
HperAniruddh Sankaran ‘ ‘ ‘ [T ‘ I
IPartner | | | LTI | LI
IMembership Number: 211107 | \ \ LT | |1l
[Place : Chennai \ \ \ LT \ L
|Date: May 27,2016 | | | I | LI

I | | | LI | N
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| I | o 1111 T
Sun Ty Network Limited | | 111 L

Balance Shéet as at March‘31, 2616 1T | LIl
| | [ (All amounts are in crores of Indian Rupees, unless ptherwise stated) | || | | |l

| \ H | Notes | March 31,2016 | ||| IMarch 31,2015 |/ |
Equity and liabilities | - HH Y
Shareholders’ funds | o i R
Share capitatj 3 197.04 197.04
Rezerves and surplus | 4 1 331473 |11 38266 ||
ko —_— | | ST gy 3BT )
on-current liabilities
Deféerred tax|liability {net) \ 5 \ \ 18.81 [ [l | 22.08 || |
PthFr Iong-t?rm Iiabihities | 6 | ‘ 6.16 | |, . 385 || |
I 24.97 TTTT I 25.91\ T T
Current liabilities | | o N N
Trade payables
total outstahding ddes of micro enterprises and small enterprises ‘ ‘ SN ‘ I
Ttoqal outstapding dLHeS of creditors other than micr‘o enterprises ‘ ‘ 1] ‘ ]
and small enterprises 7 38.26 37.46
Other Currenit liabilities | 8 | | 171.95 | ||| 140.90 | |
Fhﬂrt—term p(ovisionﬁ | 9 | ‘ 13.91 | , 677
‘ 22412 1T 185.13 T
FOTAL | H | | _| 3,760.86 | ||| 3/590.74 | |
Assets \ | \ \ \ [TTT] \ T
“or‘vcurrent‘ assetsH | | | T | T
Fixed assets| I | | | LT \ Il
| TeTtngibIe aisets H | 10 | | 437.83 T ‘714.50 N
Intangible assets 11 386.17 359.6§
| Capital work-in-progress ‘ ‘ ‘ 0.57 | ||| | 049 |||
Non-current investments 12 620.20 462.40
Lonlg-term loans andl advances \ 13 \ \ 124.24 | |11} 249.21 I |
1,569.01 1,786.2
Cufrent assets | | | | LTI \ SN
Curfent investments | | 14 | | 209.83 | ||]] 231.16 || |
J‘PV ntories 15 1.13 0.48
rade receivables | | 16 L 74669 |11 683.53 I |
paqh and ba‘nk balances ‘ 17 ‘ ‘ 787.79 L] ‘690.52 I |
Short-term loans and advances 18 103.66 102.9
Dther current assets| \ 19 \ \ 34275 | |ll/ | 95.83 || |
| I | | ., 219185 | | 1,804.49 | |
TOTAL ' 3,760.86 ' '’ 3,590.74 "'’
Summary of [significant accounting policies | 2 | \ [T \ | 1] ]

The accompénying Hotes are an integral part of the financial statements. | 1T | N

As per our report of even date.

| | I | | | [T | N

Eor S.R. BATLIBOIﬁ ASSOCIATES LLP | For and ?n bepalf of the bo?rﬂ P\f directoTs
helrtered Aécounta ts

[CAl Firm registration number: 101049W/E300004 | | | L] | | 1]

| | I | | | LTI | L
Eer Anirudd‘h Sank?ran ‘ Kalanithi Marqn my;jpykumar‘ ]
a

ner Chairman anaging Director &
Membership/No.: 211107 | | | Chiief Executivie Officer || |
Plate : Cherlnai | | | | [T | I
ate : May 27, 2016 R. Ravi nnikrishnan
P P | H | Compan)l Secrlatary ng?FinanciQI Office‘r I

PIace:CLenna‘i [T ‘ I
| | \ I \ Date : May 27,2016 111 | U

| | I | | | 11T | LIl
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| STA'#EMENT OF PROFIT AND LdSS FOR THE YEAR I%NDED MARCLI‘ gLI‘, 2016

| \(AII amoynts are in crores of Indian Rupees, except in respeqt of number and per share mformation)\ |

0 | Notes | March31,2016 ||l ImMarch31,2015 |l |
ncome
Levenues fro‘m operauions | 20 | | 2,403.98 T 2‘,243.62‘ I
Dther income I | 21 | \ 89.32 | || | 87.83 |||
Expenses | I | | | [T | I
osts of revenues ‘ ‘ 22 ‘ ‘ 266.80 n ‘254.26‘ I
mployees' benefits expense 23 235.88 203.75
Othér expenses I \ 24 \ \ 185.39 | [ /1] l166.92 || |
dvertisement and marketing expenses ‘ 25 ‘ ‘ 7.43 N ‘ 4.48‘ I |
epreciation and amortization expense 26 483.16 587.83
Finance costs I | 27 | | 2.1 |1 222 |1
‘Tot?I (") ‘ H ‘ ‘ ‘ 1,180.77 ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ 1*219.46} H ‘
Profit before extraordinary items and tax (I) - (Il) | | | 1,312.53 | ||| | 1,111.99 || |
Extraordinarylitems (rlet) | 28 I 17.97 | II]] 4T
brojfit before‘ tax aftét" extraordinary items | | | 1,330.50 LTI 1‘,111.99‘ 1N
faxexpenses | | . 1111 Ll
Current tax 466.50 378.67
Deférred tax | H \ o 3.25) | 111 @91y ]
fTotal tax expense | ‘ ‘ | 463.25 | ||| | |374.76, || |
Profit after tax | | . 867.25 | |11 737.23 |||
Ear‘nings pel" share ianormation before extraordina‘ry items: | | T | I
Net |profit attributable fo equity shareholders before extraordinary items| | 849.28 | ||| |737.23 || |
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding | I3940,84620 | Il 3940l84620 Il
Basjc and dilyted earnings per share (Rs.) | | | 21.55 | ||| | 18.71 || |
‘Norr‘ﬂnal valut‘a of equiﬁy share (Rs.) | | | 5.00 ] | 5.00‘ 0
EarPings pej‘ share ig':formation after extraordinary items: | | 1] | BN
et profit attributable to equity shareholders after extraordinary items 867.25 737.23
|| | I | | | LI \ LI
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 39,40,84,620 39,40,84,620
Basic and dillited earnings per share (Rs.) | ‘ | 2201 | [ L1871 1

Nonpinal valu? of equiﬁy share (Rs.) ‘ ‘ ‘ 5.00 ]

§unpmary of §ignificarﬂt accounting policies ‘ 2 ‘ ‘

‘The‘ accompqnying nCﬂtes are an integral part of the fiqancial statementg. ‘
f\s per our refort of e\H/en date. | | |
or;S.R. BATLIBOI STASSOCIATES LLP
| | \ |
hartered Accountants

ICA| Firm registration jhumber: 101049W/E300004 | | | [ I]]]

‘ 5.00‘

For and ?n behalf of the boarfi ﬁf\ ?irectors ‘ ‘

ber‘Aniruddﬂ Sanka#an | KaIanithi‘MaraIA | ‘k‘\yijaykumér |

K;Ia ner #\j M ‘ Chairman‘ ‘ ‘ @Iﬁjnaging Dil[ector&
embership No.: 211107 ief Executive Officer

| | | I | | | LI | |
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| | HCASH FLOW STATEMENT F‘OR THE YEAR ‘ENDéD MARCH 31,‘ 56% | I
| | [ (All amounts are in crores df Indian Rupees, unless ptherwise stated) ||| | | |

o o1 | March31,2016 | |/|March31,2015 |||
Faﬁh flow fr‘om optﬂrating activities | | | 1 | ]
Net profit before taxation 1,312.53 1,111.99
lAdjL‘Jstments‘to recorucile: | | | LT | T
beﬂreciation‘ of tangible assets | | | 71.41 1T ‘79.58‘ in
Amortization| of intangible assets | | | 41175 |1 508.25] || |
(Profit) / loss| on sale|of fixed assets, net | | | 142 ||| | 0.28| || |
‘Trar‘wslation I?ss /(gahn) on monetary assets and IiaPiIities, net | | (1.11) 1] | 1.1 N
Erovision for‘doubtfl.v debts / movie advances and ‘other assets | | 20.65 I ‘10.03‘ 0

rovision for Litigations and Claims 1.08 1.01
ba& debts / ihput créhit written off | | | 2.95 i | A
Provision for FM Licénses Fees | | | 205 | [l | SN
Liabilities / provision$ no longer required written back | | (6.08) ||| [(1.98)] | |
Fnte‘rest income I ‘ ‘ ‘ (61.22) I (94.33)‘ N
Pivi‘dend inc?me / Nﬁt gain on sale of current inveﬁtments | | (11.47) I (‘13.43)‘ I
Interest expense ‘ ‘ ‘ 202 176
bpérating p‘rofit before working capital changeé ! ! 1,745.98 HHTT 1,é34.27‘ I
Movements in workil%g capital : ‘ ‘ \ LT | |1l
(Increase) / Decreasg in trade receivables | | | (76.06) | ||| (120.77)| || |
Klnqrease) / PecreasF in inventories ‘ ‘ ‘ (0.65) L] ‘ 0.09‘ Il |
Flnﬂrease) / IPecrean in other current assets | | | 11.35 11 (‘10.58)‘ Il
(Increase) / Decrease in loans and advances (0.78) (0.91)
ncrease / (decreasi) in trade payables and other liabilities | | 38.99 LT ‘16.05‘ I
incﬁease/(ljecreasé) in provisions ‘ ‘ ‘ 4.01 1] ‘(1.32)‘ ]
Cash generated from / (used in) operations | | | 1,722.84 | ||| 1,516.83| || |
Pirect taxes paid (net of refunds) \ \ \ (455.04) | ||| | (376.10) || |
Net cash flow from// (used in) operating activities (A) | 1267.80 | | 1140.73, | |
Cash flows (used in) / from investing activities | | | [ | | ] |
Futhase of ‘fixed asFets, capital work in progress | | | 1] | BN
including capital advances) (37.84) (27.90)
Lurchase of ‘intangibWe assets (including advances ‘towards | | LT | T
‘purjchase of‘intangityle assets) | | | (333.93) T (4LIO.68)‘ I
Purchase of lcurrent investments | | | (685.34) | [I]] (491.87) I |
Redemption |of curreht investments | | | 706.67 | ||| 475.01] |||
FroFeeds frqm sale ?f assets ‘ ‘ ‘ 0.50 N ‘ 1.12‘ I |
nvestment in Subsidiary (157.80) -
[ferm deposils placed with banks during the year | | | (642.11) LT (6‘03.75)‘ Il
LI'errln deposiis refun(ﬂed from banks during the yearL | | 649.23 1T 482.70 I
Intefrest received | | | | 62.95 | [l '63.63! Il |
Dividend income / Nét gain on sale of current investments | | 11.47 | ||| ] [13.43] || |
Net‘ cash frqm / (USﬁad in) investing activities ‘ (B) ‘ ‘ (426.20) L1111 (498.31) L]

| | I | | | 11T | LIl
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2‘(‘)‘16
| | [ (All amounts are in crores df Indian Rupees, Unless otherwise stated) | || | | ||l
b | march31,2016 | ||| March31,2015/ |||
Pash flows ﬁ used irw) | from financing activities ‘ ‘ ‘ N ‘ ]
oans availed 1,176.35 3.60

I:oa‘ns repalé ! | | | (1,176.35) L] (7Z3.60)‘ I
brobosed dl\l'ldends Q)aid | | | 2 LT (é8.67)‘ I
ffax/on propdsed dividends paid \ \ \ - LT (15.07)1 Il|
Interim dividends paid | | | (610.83) | ||| (443.35)| || |
‘Tax‘on interir‘n divide‘pds paid | | | (124.35) 1] (?5.98)‘ I
Interest paid, . ‘ ‘ ‘ (2.02) | (.76) |
Net cash (used in) /from financing activities ‘ (C) ‘ ‘ (737.20) S (654.83) -
Exéhange differences on translation of foreign Eurrency cash | ! T ! I
and cash equivalents | (D) | | 0.13) [ [1]] l(0.22)] I |
Netjincrease / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C+D) | 104.27 | ||| | 7.37) || |
pash and cash equi\ﬂalents at the beginning of the year ‘ ‘ 41.29 L] ‘33.92 Ly
Cash and cash equwalents at the end of the year 145.56 ‘41.29 ‘

[ (]
Notes \ H T T 11T T 171

E) 'ﬁhe recon‘ciliation”to the cash and bank balances as given in No{e 17 is as follows : [T | N

Cash and bank balamnces, per Note 17 | | | 787.79 | ||| 690.52| || |
Less : Term deposits| placed with banks ‘ ‘ ‘ (642.23) | ||| (649.23) || |
pash and cqxsh equ‘pvalents end of year | | | 145.56 | |, 41.29,
b) Components of cash and cash equivalents

Eagh and ch‘eques OL hand | | | 108.16 LT | 0.04‘ I
With banks -/ on curfent account ‘ ‘ ‘ 37.01 |11 140.991 1]
+ on deposit account|(unrestricted) | | | - L | -1
r on unpaid dividend|accounts (restricted)* ‘ ‘ ‘ 039 | 0 026 ‘

* Tr]ese baIaPces arﬁ not available for use by the ?ompany as they reprﬁsent correspon q P‘g‘ unpaid d|V|den(1
iabllities.

| | I | | | [T | |l \
As per our réport of éven date. \ \ \ LT \ N
| | I | | | LI | I
ror‘S.R. BA"I'LIBOI H&ASSOCIATES LLP | For and Pn bepalf of the bo?rﬂ ﬂf directox’s BN

Chartered Accountants | | | m | ol
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CA‘I Fi é; i JL ber: 101049W/E300004
| | I | | | I | LI

per/Aniruddh Sankéaran | Kalanithi Maran | K|Vijaykumar | 1]
Partner ‘ I ‘ Chairmaql ‘ | [Managing Djrector,& Il |
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| | I | | | LTI | L
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\ \ N \ by |
Né)TEs TO THE FINANCIAL S+ATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDéA MARCH 31, 2016

| \ [ (All amounts are in drores of Indian Rubees, Unless otherwise\sféfdd) \ Ll

% |Coreoratelnformation m R
|| | | Sun TV Network Limited (‘Sun TV or 'the Company') was incorporatéd|dn December 18,1985
| | as Sumangali Publications Frivate Limited.l The Pompany is e‘ngﬁqed in pr?ducing ewci

broadcasting satellite television and radio software programming in the regional languages o
| | | South India. | | | [T | I
| | I o | | | | [T | |
The Company is listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange (‘BSE’) and the National Stock
| | H Exchange ('NSE’) in India. THe Company currently 6perates televiéiEH A:hannels in four éoUtH
| | | Indian languages predominantly to viewers in India, and also|tp |viewers in Sri Lanka|
Singapore, Malaysia, United Kingdom, Europe, Middle East, United States, Australia, South
| | | Africa and Canada. The Co#npany‘s flagshiﬁ char#nel is Sun T\A Wé other m‘ajor sételii‘te[
| | | channels of the Company are Surya TV, Gemini TV|and Udaya TV. The Companyy is also it
the business of FM Radio broadcasting at Chennai,Eoimbatore and Tirunelveli. The Company
| | H also has the license to opéarate an Indian ‘Premi r League (I L"{‘f anchise “Sun F&is ‘rsj.
| | | Hyderabad". | | | LI | I
| | I | \ | LI | I

2, Summary of significant accounting policies
| | I | | | LTI | L

| ‘ H a) Basis of preparation offiqancial statemepts ‘ 1] ‘ IR

| | H The financial statements of the Company hal/e beén prepared in ‘akudrdance inth gen‘eréw

| \ | accepted accounting principlgs in India (‘Indian GAAP’). The Company has prgpared these
financial statements to compltv/ in all material respects with the Accougﬂ'ﬂg Standa(ds speci{jﬁj

| | H under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7' of the Companies (Ac nts) Rules, 2014{.

| | | financial statements have bgen prepared on|an agcrual basis and|yhder the hijstorical cgst

o | I convention. The accounting, policies adopte? in tqe preparation ?f‘ Ii‘n‘ancial st?temen}s ?ﬁ
consistent with those of previous year.

| \ I \ \ \ LTI \ N

| | | b)Use of estimates | L i o

| | | The preparation of financial statements | in cbnformity with lindian GAAP red]uintésl
| ‘ I management to make judg‘ments, estimatqs ang assumptionq ‘thpﬁ affect qhe regong

amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent
o ‘ H liabilities, at the end of the reporting peribd. Aithough these | éstimates are based 'on
| \ | management’s best knowledge of current |events and actions| uncertainty gbout these

assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material
| | ‘adjustmenttothecarrying ambuntsofassets(:Jrliabi“tiesinfuture péri‘dcﬁg. | 1T

o | I c) Tangible fixed assetsand‘depreciation | | 1 | BN

| \ | Fixed assets \ \ \ LI \ N
| | I \ | \ . LI \ | Il

Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.
] ‘ | Cost comprises the purchase‘price and any attributable cost of brinéiha the asset to its wérkﬁﬁd
|| ‘ I condition for its intended use; Borrowing costs, if any, relating to aqq‘qiﬂtion ofqu‘alifyinq fix@q

assets are also included to the extent they relate to the period till such assets are ready to be put
|| \ | to use. | \ \ T \ L
| | I | | | [T | I

Fixed assets under construcjion and fixed assets 1cquired but not Wt to use at the bﬂlarm:i
] | H sheet date are classified as capital work in proéress. T |

| | I | | | 11T | LIl
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NETES TO THE FINANCIAL S'}ATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDéD MARCH 31, 2016

\ [ (All amounts are in drores of Indian Rufpees, lnless othenmise\sﬁ‘éﬁdd) \ I

~ Subsequent expenditure related to an item of fixed asset is added to its book v Wu*e only ifﬁinc?ef?s

| the future benefits from the existing asget beyond its previously assessed sﬁanjw\ézrd of performance. ‘II |

| other expenses on existing fixed assets, including day-to-day repair and maihtenance expenditure and |

| cost of neplacing parts, are charged to‘the statement of‘ profit‘and loss for th? ﬁ)ﬁri‘od during‘ which FU?P |
expenses are incurred.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of fixed assets are measured as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount o asset and are recogni in the statemen

| net disposal ds and th in t of the asset and nized in the statement of!
| profitand loss when the asset is derecognized. | | 1] ] | | |] ]

' Deprediation \ \ \ LTI \ i

| Based unn an technical assessment ahd a review of pgst hiétory of asset u%b@ managément Jf tMe‘
| Company has determined that the estimates of useful lives of fixed asséts| s at March 31, 2014 |
| continLjJe to be appropriate and, accordingly, has not reYised ﬁuch useful Iive? ﬁcT mose refer(ed to wndﬁr‘

Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 (as amended).
I \ |11 \ |

| | \

Depreciation on tangible fixed assets other than aircraft and leasehold improvements is provided on
' written [down value method, using the rates arrived at based on the usefulllives estimated bﬂ/ thie |
| management. The Company has used the following rates to provide depreciatign pn its fixed assets. || |

| H | — Parclif o

. Buildings | T 5.00-1301] T

| I Plant and machinery \ \ 13.91-2000) | BN

| [ Computerand related equipments | | 40.00) ] ‘ R

| H Furniture and fittin?s | | 18.1?} 1y | B
Office equipments 13.91

| ” Motor Vehicles | — 258011 I

| [ i i i 1T | N
| Leasehjold improvements are depreciated over the lower of estimated useful lives of the dssets dr the |

‘;ir:rasln”ng primary period of the Ieas?. The average }Jseful‘llfe of Leaseh?lfi‘ rrpprovem?nts is F» 7 P‘

| Costs incurred towards purchase of dircraft are depreciated using the straighittine methdd based on|
| managfment's estimate of useful life ofsuch aircrafts, i.‘e. 15 Xears. 11 | BN

‘The grgss block of plant and machiniary as at March ‘31, 2616 includes cé)ét‘ E# progranl produ‘ctiéw
| equipment of Rs. 122.14 crores (Previous Year Rs. 151.24 drores), post prédiittion equipment df R. |
| 68.65 crores (Previous Year Rs. 68.52 crores), recepti?n anq distribution fa?il‘iHifg of Rs. 1?6.53 crores,
(Previous Year Rs. 142.64 crores), computer and related equipment of Rs. 118.40 crores (Previous
' Year R$. 108.79 crores) and aircraft of Rs. 295.15 croes (P}evious Year Rs! 295.15 crorés). The nlet |
| block of plant and machinery as at March 31, 2016 |includes the net block|of program produgtion |
equipment of Rs. 18.51 crores (Previous Year Rs. 19.20 crores), post production equipment of 1?
| 14.74 L’ores (Previous Year Rs. 12.0é crores), recepti%n ané distribution fa‘thus of Rs. 44.09 cnlor S |
| (Previols Year Rs. 46.24 crores), computer and related equipment of Rs. 19.86 ¢rores (Prievious [Yegr
‘Rs. 17.ﬁ500rores)and aircraftofRs.Ni”(PreviousYearI?s.25?.18crores). i | BN

‘d) Inta%gible assets and amortizati&n | | [T | N

| Intalungible assets acquired are meésured on initial Hecogrﬁtion at cost. F&)IH\Mng initial Pecogn%tio‘rln, |
| Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment |
losses, if any.
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|| | I \
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL SJTATEMENTS FJ)R TI-JE YEAR ENDEIJJ MARCH 3JI, 2016
| \ [ (All amounts are in trores of Indian Rd/pees, Wnless otherwisée étbkéd) \ Ll

| \ I \ \ \ LI \ |
S Tu fon@utﬁsoﬁwaﬁa - o i

Il
Costs incurred towards purchase of computer software are depreciated using the straight-lin
| | metrunod over a period based on Hanagement's egtimaté of useful Iiveé W&uch softWare béiné‘
|| | years, oroverthe license period of the software, whicheveris shorter. | ||| | | el

|
3
\
|| |a Filmjand program broadcasting rights (‘Satellite Rights’) | LI \ |l

| ‘ Acqwired Satellite Rights for the brqadcast offeaturq films‘and other Iongijqm‘programming sqch@q
multj-episode television serials are ftated atcost. | I | B

Future revenues cannot be estimated with any reasonable accuracy as these are susceptible to a
varigty of factors, such as the Ie\LeI of market aéceptahce of televisiM ‘;grloducts, drogran%m#r“&
| | viewlership, advertising rates etc., and accordingly cost related to film is fullyléxpensed dn the date of
| ‘ first Helecast of the film and the cost [elated to program brogdcasting right§/‘ mqlti episodps seri@s are
amortized based on the telecasteTj episodes. The maxi{num useful Iif? ?f Fatellite Rights 1n ﬁhﬁ

| : . \ 1] | |
opinion of the managementis not likely to exceed 10 years.

| | I | | | LI | I
| ‘EI Filrrhproduction costs,distributione]nd related rights‘ | 111 | B

Upan the theatrical release of a mcrvie, the cost of RrodUﬁtion / acquisiticTn ?r FII the rights relateﬂ tﬂ
| o o : . | | { \
each such movie is amortised in the ratio that current period revenue for the movie bears to the
| ‘ mar“agement’s estimate of the rembining unrecognised révenue for all riéHtQ érising from the nHO\}i‘e,‘
|| |  as per the individual-film-forecast method. The estimates for remaining unfécognised revenue for
o | eacp movie is reviewed periodically and revised‘if necTessary. The n]amimum useflfl life ch f'Im
proAuction costs, distribution and related rights in the opinion of the management is not likely to

| | exceed 10years. | | ! [T | |1

o ‘ ExpLE-nditure incurred towards prodhction of movies hot cdmplete as at balance sheet date if aHy, are
| | claskified asintangible assets under development. | | [ 1]]] | [ 1]

| la Licdnses \ ] [ \ I

| | Licenses represent one time entri/ fees paid to Ministn} of Information and Broadcdsting (WI‘E@’i
[ ] | undgr the applicable licensing policy for Frequency Modulation ('FM’) Radib|broadcasting. Cost|of
| | Iicerwses are amortised overthelice‘nse period, being 10y?ars. 1] | R

| ‘o Goddwill \ \ | LTI | i

[ ] | Goddwill is amortised on a straight-line basis over|a period of five years, [based on management’s
| | estijates. | o i o

| 'e) Imphairmentoftangible and intangible assets | | I | Il

[ ] | Atepch reporting date, the Compalny assesses whether there is an indidation that an gsset may|be
| ‘ impﬁ\ired. If any indication exists, or when annual fmpair‘ment testing fqr@masset is l"equireg, Wq
Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amountis the higher of
an ‘sset’s or Cash Generating Unik’s (‘CGU’) net sélling ;grice and its val‘ug M use. The‘ recovéraglel
| | amdunt is determined for an indivitlual asset, unless the asset does not/genérate cash inflows thiat
| | are Nargely independent of those frpm other assets or groups of assets. W‘I]qqe the carqying amount
of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is writ
1 g moun. the 3 orpf] rpalred g = Wi
own to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
| | discounted to their present value using a pre—tbx discount rate that reflects cufrent market
| |  assessments of the time value of money and the risks spegific to the asset.| I determining net selling
o | price, recent market transactions are taken into accfount, ff available. If nPﬁWh transa(ftions an‘l??
identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

| | I | | | 11T | LIl
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“Impairment losses of continuing oﬁera%nsﬁre?ecj

\ \ L] \ N
NéTES TO THE FINANCIAL S+ATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDI%D MARCH 31, 2016

[ (All amounts are in drores of Indian Rubees, linless otherwise\skéﬁeb) \ Ll

Enizﬁd ithheistatEmEWﬁfiproﬁanjﬁlosis. | Aifjt‘el"i
impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining
useful life. | | i | |1
An dssessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is anly|indication that previougly
recqpnized impairment losses may|no longer exist ormay have decreaSﬁeq.‘ I‘f ‘such indiﬂ;ation qxisﬁs*
the Company estimates the asset’s or cash-generating unit’'s recoverable amount. A previously
rec&‘gnized impairment loss is reversed only if theré has geen a change H Mé assumpkions uée& ‘t&
detdrmine the asset’s recoverablé amount since lthe laist impairment Idss lwas recdgnized. Thé
revq‘rsal is limited so that the carryipg amount of thq asset does not excqep‘ qt§ recover@ble amount;
nor ‘Texceed the carrying amount that would have been‘determined, nﬁ ﬂf\ deprecia‘tion, h?d m

impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the
stat&mentofprofitand loss. ‘ | | LT | Il

Franchisee Fees \ \ \ T | L

The annual franchise fee payable to the Board of Control for Cricket in India (‘BCCI’) is recognized as
an prense on an accrual basis irl1 accordance wi&h terrlns of the Comb%vs agreerﬁent wi*h Wné

BCCI. \ ] [ \ I
H \ . [ \ I

Investments
9 | | | [T | N

InveLtments, which are readily reali‘zable and inten&ed to ﬂ)e held for not rhcj)l% khan one )‘/earfro‘m M

datd on which such investments are made, aré classified as curréntl lihvestments. All lother
investments are classified as long-terminvestments,. ‘ L1 ‘ IR
On ipitial recognition, all investments are measured‘ at CO?t. The cost corpmiﬂas purchase pricF ﬂr‘]q
directly attributable acquisition charges such as brokerage, fees and duties.

Curﬂent investments are carried in t‘he financial statémentg at lower of cogt erné fair valué deterrlnir#écJ
on ah individual investment basis. LLong-term investments| are carried at ¢olst. However, [provision for
dimi‘pution in value is made to rgcognize a dec\ine ther than temqqrﬂry in the yalue q)f Wq
investments.

On cfisposal of an investment, the d‘ifference betwee‘n its c‘arrying amount‘ a‘r‘u‘:l ‘net dispo‘sal proc‘:ee‘(‘js‘
ischrged or credited to the stateméntofprofitand I&vss. ‘ [T ‘ I

ReVFnue recognition ‘ ‘ ‘ L] ‘ L]

|

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the

Company and the revenue can be reliably measureh. Thé revenue is recBéHiéed net of‘servicé ta& i*

any.| | \ \ LTI \ L

I | | | LTI | L

Advrrtising income and broadcast Fees are recognifed wr‘1en the related‘CﬂTPercial or‘ progrﬁmr‘r‘leﬁ
is telecast.

Intefnational Subscription Income |Lepresents income from the export of\p\rbb\ram software cohtdhtl
and|is recognised as and when the services are being rendered in accardance with the terms of
agrﬁements with customers. | | | 11 | R

I | | | LI | N
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NHOTES TO THE FINANCIAL SLI'ATEMENTS Fé)R TIJE YEAR ENDEH MARCH 3J|, 2016‘

[ (All amounts are in crores of Indian Ripees, lunless otherwise §théd) \ \
1N

~ Subscription income represents ?ubs?ripfon ﬁei billed to cable o*pem*rt] rs and Direct to Coérpii
i

(‘DTH’) service providers towards pay-channels operated by the Compa )l and are rjecogni e

the [period during which the service is provided. Subsdription fees billdd|to cable dperatofs Are
determined based on management's best estimat?s of the number of ﬁu‘tﬁ?ription pqints to quifl"\
the service is provided, at contractually agreed rates with the Company’s authorised distributor.
Suﬂ‘scription income from DTH customers is recoénised when the servicés!are beind rendered|td
the pustomer in accordance with the terms of agreements entered into with|the service providers. || |

Revenues from sale of movie distribution / sub-distribution rights are recognised on the theatrical
rele‘bse of the related movie, in accbrdance with thé term§ of agreement§ \MtchstomerLs. Revém‘lbé
from the theatrical distribution of movies are recognised as they are exhibited, based on box office
collections reported by the exhipitors after deduction of taxes an ibitor’'s share of net
oo P quetion f fypibtors ghare ¢F fe

Income from content trading represent revenue garned from mobile service providers and DTH
ser\ﬁice providers through exploitafion of content ?J/vned Fy the Compazy[ Iﬂzome is r cogni?ed‘ Ez
per the terms of contract with the respective service providers and b sg on the services bei

rendered to the customers. \ \ | I \ |

Incrﬂmefrom Indian PremierLeaguF representsfoll?wing:‘ 1 | B

Incc@me from franchisee rights is relcognised when {he rig‘hts to receive thé‘&ayments ig estab‘lis%(lj
as ler the terms of the agreement gntered with BCCI. Reyenue is recognisgd as per the information
prolided by BCCI or as per Management’s estim?te in ‘case the inforﬂ-uﬂgifn is not rfceivei. 'U:Z
revenue is allocated on a pro-rata basis to number of matches played durin {he year as against
total number of matches for the season. | | LTI | LI
LTI \ N

Incogme from sponsorship fees is recognised on completion of terms of th sorshi reement,
9 P P 09 Ipetio) 7 gpppeorshipaareemen |

Inccﬂme from sale of tickets is recggnised on the Jiates Bf the respecti\‘/é ‘rjngtches. The Cor%péw
repdrts revenues net of discounts dffered on sale of tickets. [ 111 | [ ] |

I \ \ | LTI \ L
Prize money is recognised when ri%htto receive pay‘ment is established. 0

Rev&nues from barter transactions,‘ and the related‘costs,‘ are recorded ét ‘fé‘iH values of the se‘rvi&aé
rendered and services received, as gstimated by management. [ | | ] |

|11
Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstandin
and the applicable interestrate. | ‘ ‘ LT | |l

Divi(ﬂend income is recognised wqen the right to rpceivg payment is eﬂa?lfshed by Fhe reqoqipg
date.

I | | | LT | L
Expdrtincentives are recognized on availment of thelbenefits under the respéltive schemes. | | |

I | | | [T | I
Revenues recognised in excess of‘billings are discIPsed ?s “Unbilled R?;/ rHe” under Pther cFrrﬁn‘t
assets. Billings in excess of revenue recognised are disclosed as etlerred Revenues” under
currént liabilities. | \ \ LI | LI

nnual Repprt
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR END ARCH 31, 2016
| I (All amounts are in drores of Indian Rupees, Unless otherwise! stated) | | 1] ]

‘i) Reti‘t'ementand other employee Qenefits | | T | 1

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company
| has Hno obligation, other than thé contribution ﬂayablé to the proviHéHt‘fund. THe Conlmpéw
| recggnizes the contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as| an| éxpenditure when the
ema‘loyee renders the related servi?e. | | I | B

|  Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation. The cost of providing penefits under the plan jis
determined on the basis of actuarial valuation at each year- end using the projected unit credit
method. Actuarial gains and losses are recognizeé in full in the period‘illwwvhich they‘occur En H\é
|  statément of profitand loss. | | | [T | [l

Accwmulated leave, which is expe?ted to be utiIizeF witth the next 12 rm:rtr‘ls is treated as Fhfrt\_
term employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost o guch absekces as ILe
| additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the uhused entitlemént that has accumulalted at

| thergporting date. \ \ \ 11T | LI

| TheHCompany treats accumulated ‘Ieave expected io be (‘:arried forward‘b‘e‘)‘/(‘)nd twelvc‘-:‘ montl‘w,‘gs‘

‘ IongU-term employee benefit for medsurement purpoées. Such long-term &o‘rﬁbbnsated absencés aré

‘ prowﬁded for based on the actuarial‘valuation using }he prq)jected unit cre’di‘tmnpthod at the yeal(-elp‘d{
Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred.

| TheHCompany presents the entire I‘eave asa curreﬁt Iiabi‘lity in the balarwe[ Eheet, sinde it doés Ho{
|  have anunconditional right to defer jts settlement fori 12 months after the repofting date. | |l

j) Income Taxes
! 9 | | | LT | L

| Tax ‘Laxpense comprises current aﬂd deferred tax. burrell'lt income-tax ig ‘rjn‘éasured a{ the ar#onni
|  expécted to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the Incomettax Act, 196/1 enacted jin
India. The tax rates and tax Iawa used to complfte th? amount are m??? that ar? enacﬂed‘ Fr‘
substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

|  Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of timing differences betweén| taxable income dnd
| accounting income originating during the current P/ear ?nd reversal of‘ Himipg differe‘nces f?r Wq

earlier years. Deferred tax is measured using the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively
| enattedatthe reporting date. ‘ ‘ \ LI \ L

| I | | | [T | I

‘ Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxabPIe timing differenceﬁ querred ta?( asse*s are
recognized for deductible timing differences only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that
sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can

| sufficient future taxable i ill be available against which such deferfed tax assets can be

| realized. | | i I

\ I \ \ \ LI \ 1N
At ejch reporting date, the Company re-assesses anec?gnized deferriclt) x assets. ‘: reCOﬁniiﬁ
| n

unrecognized deferred tax asset té the extent that it has become reaso certain that suffici

| futurle taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets ¢can be redlized. | || |
\ I \ \ \ LI \ N
\ I \ \ \ LI \ N

| I | | | | | i
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N%TES TO THE FINANCIAL SJrATEMENTS FéR TH‘E YEAR ENDéﬁ‘MARCH 34, 2016‘ I
| | I (All amounts are in drores of Indian Rupees, Unless otherwisel statdd) | | 1]

“The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are rfvievT d at each @ptﬂm?ﬂatg The CUerauwi
writes-down the carrying amount of deferred tax asset to the extent tha Jt is no IongeL‘ reasona I;}
| | cert4in that sufficient future taxablel income will be available against which déferred tax asset canlbe
| | realized. Any such write-down is reversed to the Fxten} that it becomﬁs‘ ﬁasonably‘ certaip tﬂa}

sufficient future taxable income will be available.

|| | Deférred tax assets and Deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set/off
| ‘ curr?nt tax assets against current th liabilities and Qeferrqd tax assets aqd‘q!ﬁ‘erred tax ‘Iiabilitiqs. Il |

k) Earnings pershare

| |  Basjc earnings per share are calculated by dividing|the net profit or loss for the period atttributable td
o | equ"ty shareholders by the weightefi average numb?r of eﬂuity shares ou}st?gding duriqg the pFriﬂdl

The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events
| | such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share split and reverse share split that have
| ‘ chawged the number of equity shar?s outstanding, inthouq a correspondiqq (Pppnge in resources. || |

For che purpose of calculating di‘uted earnings Aer sh‘are, the net plLo‘f‘t‘ lar loss fo‘r the pLerU)J
|| | attributable to equity shareholdersland the weighteld average number of shares outstanding during
| ‘ the Weriod are adjusted for the effec‘ts of all dilutive p?tentia“lequity sharesr 1] ‘ N

| ) Leabes | | 1] L
|| o | | 1] L

| ‘ Opel‘ratinq Ieases(wheretheComp@nvistheIessee) ‘ ]| ‘ |l

Leases, where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and Eenefits of ownership of{he
| | leased item, are classified as operating leases. Operatihg lease payments lare recognized as lan
| | expense in the statement of profit anpd lossona straight-linF basis overthq Ipﬂ%e term. ‘ N

ODe‘Latinq leases (wheretheCompgnvisthe Iessor)‘ | LT | Il
| \ I \ \ \ LT \ L

|| | Leages in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of ownershig
of the asset are classified as operating leases. AsTets srbject to operatinra leases ar? includeﬂ iq

fixed assets. Lease income on an ot)erating lease is'recognized in the sta‘té ént of profitand Idss J)

| | a stfaight-line basis over the lease term. Costs,|including depreciation, |are recoghized as |an
expense in the statement of profit and loss. Initial dﬁrect cPsts such as Iegﬂ FPStS’ brolﬁerage ﬁcoﬂs

| | At | . |
etc. are recognized immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

| | I | | | LI | N
|| m) Cashand Cashequivalents | | | [ | N

Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of cash flow statement comprise cash at bank and in
| | hand and short-term investments with an original méturitybfthree months of less. | N

‘ ‘ ‘n) Forﬁign currency transactions ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ H ‘ ‘ ‘ H ‘

Initizgl recognition | | | 1T | i
|| | Fordign currency transactions arel recorded in the repofting currency, by applying td the foreign
I | currency amount the exchange rat? between the rqporting currency and‘ tlpﬁ f‘oreign currency Ft Wq
date of the transaction.

| | I | | | 11T | LIl
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I (All amounts are in drores of Indian deees, Unless otherwisel §téfdd) | | 1]

Conyersion
\ \ N \ L
Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the c}osing rate. Non-monetary items which are
carrled in terms of historical cost dehominated in a f&reign‘currency are réddﬁéd using the excﬁaﬁéd
ratejat the date of the transaction. Non-monetary items which are carried|at fair value or|other similar
valu\ftion denominated in aforeign furrency are rep?rted lTsing the exchawe rates that ?xisted Wl"ﬁzq
the values were determined. I |

I \ \ \ LT \ L
Exchange differences | | | [ | LIl

All %change differences arising on settlement / cor‘wersipn of foreign cyrrency monet?ry iter’rps are
included in the statement of profit and loss.

Therremium or discount arising at the inception of forward exchange‘ dontract is amortized dnd
recognized as an expense/ income over the life of the|contract. Exchange differences on| such
contracts, except the contracts which are long-term foreign currency monetary items, are recognized
in thL statement of profit and loss in' the period in wh*ch thé exchange ratés‘éijwénge. AnyJ profit Ar I&sé
arising on cancellation or renewal of such forward exchange contract is als¢ recognized jas income pr
as erpenseforthe period. | | | 111 | BN

ProU/isions | ‘ ‘ I | | 1] ]

A prpvision is recognized when theg Company has g present obligation as & result of past event, itlis
probable that an outflow of resourFes embodying Jeconcwmic benefits erl‘ Pﬁ required‘to settle Wq
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are not
discbunted to their present value and are determined based on the best estimate reqdired to settle
the ‘pbligation at the reporting daFe. These estimptes are reviewed at ‘qqiq:h repor‘[ipg datg qmq
adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Contingent liabilities | I i | |10
I | | | [T | N

A contingent liability is a possible pbligation that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the
con#rol of the Company or a preserl.t obligation that ‘is not ‘recognized beéédé itis not Erobablke tHa{
an dutflow of resources will be required to settle tHe obligation. A contingent liability also arises Jin
extremely rare cases where therer is a liability th?t can‘not be recognﬂzFﬂ ‘because ‘it canqot \tﬁ
measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence
in the financial statements. \ \ | LT | L

[ [ [ [ [T [ [
Segment reporting \ \ | 1] ] | N

The Company considers business segments as its primary segment. ‘H‘u‘a‘éompany‘s operations
pre(ﬂominantly relate to Media and Entertainment aHd, acdordingly, this is‘tﬁé‘dnly prima\’y repoHaHIé

segment. \ ] [ \ I
H | . 1] \ I

TheHCompany considers geographi‘cal segments as‘its set‘:ondarysegmem.H | | ol
I | | | LT | L
I \ \ \ LTI \ L
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Sun TV Network Limifed \ \ \ |1 \ |1l

‘ #\IOTES U'I'O THE FINANCIAL STATEI\)IENTS FOR THE YEA‘R ENDED MAk‘éH 31, 2016‘ i

| VAI/ amolints are in crores of Indian Rupeeﬁ:, except in respedt of number and per share Hformation)\ | 1] ]

‘ | Mi‘rclﬁ1,7201§ ., March 31,2015
8. | Share gapital | | o i L
| | I | | | LT | Il
| Authorized shaﬂes | | I | B

45,00,00,000 equity shares of Rs 5/- each

|| (March[31, 2015 - 45,00,00,000 of Rs. 5/- each) | | 225.00 | [I]] 225.00 |l |
| | | Il | | | [ | | [
I I I I I I I T I I [
| | Issued, subscrjibed and fully paid-up shares ‘ ‘ LI ‘ | ]
| | I | | | LT | |1l
| | 39,40,84,620 equity shares of Rs 5/- each | \ \ [ 1] ] | LIl
o (March ‘31, 201? - 39,40,84,620 of Rs. 5/- eac‘h) | | 197.04 I ‘197.04‘ N
| \ H \ | \ 197.04 | |[] 197.04! |

| | H | . [T | N
| a. Regonciliation of the Equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the jend of the reporting| |

Peried | o I Y
\ \ I | March 31,2016 | | ||| March 31, 2015| || |
| | H Number /Amount Number |__Amount
- At the beginning of the year 39,40,84,620 | 197.04 39,40,84,620 o 197.04
| Issued Furing trﬂe year Nil‘ ‘ Ni! ‘ ‘l\‘lfl‘ ‘ '\lilH ‘
| Outsta?ding aﬁ the end of the year 39,40,8}4,620 } 197.?4 39,4‘0},}8}4},620 } 19"(.0}4‘( }

b. Rig}hts atthhed to equity shares | | | T | I
| | I | | | LI | i

| The Company |has only one class of equity| shares having @ par|value of Rs.5| per jshare. Each holder of
equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees.

| The dividend p*oposed by the Board of Directors is subject ta the abproval of the sharéholders ih the ehsﬂﬁnb

| AnnuaI‘Generah Meeting. | | | 1] | BN

During the yeaig ended March 31, 2016, thT amount of per share dividend reco?r}ifed as dﬂstributionf to
| equitys‘harehol erswas Rs. 15.50/- share (March 31, 2015: Rs.‘11.2 /-share). Tl T

| In the évent ofHquuidation of the Company, the holders of eq\uity shares will be ehtitled to receive rerr%aiﬂﬁnb
| assets Pf the Cﬁ)mpany, after distribution of aLI]I preferential arpountf. However, nq ?T@/P prefereptial argoyms

exists currently. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the
| shareholders. | | | [T | I

| c. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company [T ‘ I

\ | I \ \ \ LTI \ LI
Equity ‘shares Hof Rs. 5 each fully paid March ?1, 20‘16 ! ‘March 3‘1, 2015‘ N

|
N b % holdi N % holdi
| | H | Number | “%holding  Number | % holding

Mr. Kalfnithi Mﬁran | 29,55,63,457 | ‘75.00% 2?,?ﬁ,?3,457 | 7?.0?“%1

As per records of the company, including its register of shareholders / members and other declarations
receiveld from $hareholders regarding beneficial interest, the abovie shareholding represents both legal and
benefiﬂial own?‘rships of shares. | | | m | ]
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NOTES LLI'O THE FINANCIAL STATEI\)IENTS FOR THE YEA‘R ENDED MAH&H 31, 201&

(All amounts are in crores of Indian Rupees, Unless otherwise stated) ||| |

— e R, A 4 1 H
Reserves and surplus
| I | | | LT | L
| Securities premium account | | | 471.82 L] |471.82 || |
General reserve | | | [T | I
| I | | | LI | I
Balance‘ as per Hhe last financial statements ‘ ‘ 483.80 n ‘483.8q I
Add: Amount transferred from surplus balance
in the statement of profit and loss ‘ ‘ ‘ - T ‘ LI
| Closing Balande | | | 483.80 L] |483.80 || |
| Surplus‘ in the Ltatement of profit and loss | | | T | I
| I | | | [T | I
Balance as per last financial statements 2,227.04 2,019.1
| \ A | | ! LI f I
Profit for the year 867.25 737.23
Less: Appropriations | | | 1T | Il
| Interim dividend|[Rs 15.50/- per share | | | [ 111 | [ ] ]
(March 31, 201%: Rs 11.25- per share)] | | ‘(610.83) I (‘443.35 I
Tax on interim dividend (124.35) (85.98
 Total appropriations \ - (735.18) [T (529.33) II'|
| Net surplus in the statement of profit and lgss | 12,359.11 L1 2,227.04 || |
| I | | 1 —HH 1 —H
Total re‘serves ‘:‘md surplus | | 3,314.73 3,182.66
I FTTTT I I
| Deferred tax Liability (net) | | | [T | |1
| I | | | LT | L
| Gross Deferred tax Liability | | | LTI | N
| Tangible Assets|and Intangible Assets | | | [ 1111 | [ ] ]
| - Impadct of timifg difference due to depreciation/ amortization| | 72.40 L1 | 65.00 || |
‘ Gross qeferreq‘ tax liability ‘ ‘ | 7240 L[] ] | 65.00 ||
| Gross 6eferrec” tax Asset | | | T | I
| - Provision for doubtful debts / Movie advances and other Assets | (46.95) I (38.72) Il |
| - Sec. 40(a)(ia)|disallowances | | | (4.25) [ | (3.24) | |
- Othe|j | | | | (2.39) Ll  (0.98)
Gross eferreJ tax asset " (53.59) T (42.94) '
| I | | i BRI i ]
| Net deferred tak liability | | | 18.81 [ 1]]] | 22.06 || |
\ [ | | | LI | I
Other Ic‘)ng-terrﬂi liabilities | | | O | R
| Interest free degosits from customers | | | 6.16 1] ] | 3.85 || |
| H | | L 616 ||| | 385 || |
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Suq T\( Network Limi}ed

\ |
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2016
(All amounts are in crores df Indian Rupees, Unless btherwise stated) I

- March 31 ! ?ﬁ%ﬁi

\
Mar‘c

"5, 21

\
7
\
\

|
7
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
5
|
|
|
|
|

| Trade pAyabIes H
| | I

3826
1111

5746
i

| There is/no overldue amount payable to Micro land Small Enterprises as defined under|Micro, Small and|Medium
|Enterprises Devglopment Act, 2006. Further, the Company has not paid any intgrest to any Micro and Small
| Enterpriﬁes durin‘P the current and previous year.‘

| | [
| Other CTlrrent Iﬂabilities

|
Investor Education and Protection Fund will be credited by

‘followiné amounus (as and when due)
'~ Unpaid dividend

'Deferred revenues

lInterest free deposits from customers

| Advances from ¢ustomers

|Dues payable in|respect of fixed assets
|Directors' Remuneration payable
|Employee benefjts payable

‘Retentio‘n MoneY payable

‘Statutory dues H

| | I

Short Term Provisions
‘Provisién for elunployee benefits
‘Provisioh for Ieau/e benefits

| | I

|Other p#ovisior“s (Refer note 37)
'Provision for Iitid\ations and claims
|Provisioh for FM license fees

' lo/39 \ 026
| 13)93 | | 4.08
| 15129 | |560
21146 | 2050
| 240 (187
116,91 \ 96.51
13497 | 1669
| 948 109
{112 | 1449
171,98 14090
111 o
111 L
111 1l
lgdo Py
T6ld0 [ T2
111 ol
| l4)ds EEYY:
| 12005 I
| 17/01 | |3.88
13.91 | |exr
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\ \ L1
#\IOTES J'I'O THE FINANCIAL STATEI\)IENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAE(H-I 31, 2016
\ [ (All amounts are in crores of Indian Rupees, Unless btherwise stated} ] \

| | \ |
| L1 | | Wprch 37,2016, ||| March 41,2075 |,
12 Non-current investments
| Long Term Invé[stments (At cost) - Trade | | | 1T | N
| | Equity instrumgnts (Unquoted) | | | L] | | 1]
| ‘-In Subsidiary Companies : | | | I | B
12,13,05,000 (Maroh 31, 2015 - 12,13,05,000) fully paid
| |equity shares of|Rs 10/- each in Kal Radio Limited | | 121.31] ||| 124.31 | || |
| i M\ | . | | LTI | LI
22,69,92,000 (March 31, 2015 - 14,80,92,000) fully paid
| lequity shares oflRs 10/- each in South Asia FNI Limited \ \ 305.89/ |11 148.09 | [l
| | I | | | LT | |1l
| ‘Prefere}wce sheJ]res (Unquoted) | | | |11 | I
| |-In Subsidiary Companies : | o i I
L 14,01,0?,410 (March 31, 2015 - 14,01,00,410), fully paid 0.1% Compulsorily I BN
Convertible Preference Shares of Rs 10/- each in South Asia FM Limited  140.10 146.10
| | I | | | LTI | LI
| 5,28,80,P00 (M?rch 31, 2015 - 5,28,80,000) fufly paid 0.1% Cqmpulﬁorily Emn N
Convertible Preference Shares of Rs 10/- each in Kal Radio Limited 52.90 55.90
| | I | | | | \ LI
Total Unquoted Non current Investments 620.20 462.40
| m \ | | | L[] LIl
| | I | | | I | LI
13 |Long term Loans and advances (Unsecured) | | [ 1]]] | [ ]
| | I | | | LTI | LI
| | Capital advances \ \ \ LI \ N
| Congidered Pood ‘ ‘ ‘ 59.07‘ i 17?.66 N
Considered doubtful 26.58 18.22
| | [ | | | 85.65 | |1 190.88 | I
| Provision fori doubtful capital advances | \ \ (26.58)| || | (18.22) | || |
59.07 172.66
| | I | | | I F LI
| | Security deposit (Considered good) \ \ \ LT \ N
‘ ‘ Rental and otheH' deposits ‘ ‘ ‘ 577‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ P56 ‘ H ‘
Deposits with Government agencies .35 2.36
\ \ I \ \ \ 8.12 111 792 | Il
| | I | | | LT | Il
o Other I?ans anf advances (Considered gocrd) | | T | BN
| | Advancé incomé-tax (net of provision for taxation) \ \ 56.59 | ]| 68.05 | |||
| Prepaid‘expensTFs | | | 0.46 L] p.58 L]
57.05 68.63
I REAR ] N
Total 124.24 L 249.21
I
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| I | o 1111 T
Sun Ty Network Limited | | 111 L

| | H \ I UL \ N
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2016

| \ [ (All amounts are in crores of Indian Rupees, dnless btherwise statedj ] |

|| | I | | | [T | \
. S - - = 0 0= __ March 31,2016 March 31, 2015
I I I I I T

il \

I I

o | H | No or Unitf Amount | ‘N‘o‘ of Unlts Amo‘unh |
14 Current investments

Current investments (valued at lower of cost and fair value, unless stated otherwise)

| \ I \ \ \ T \ i
| | Quoted equitylinstruments \ \ \ LI | N
| | City Union Bank Limited \ 6,04,628 041 |[[]16,04,628 0.41! |

| \ I \ \ \ LTI \ i
|Unquoted Mutual Funds \ \ \ [T \ N

| | HDFC FMP 1167D January 2016 (1)-Regular{Growth  1,00,82,777 10.03 ||| | | |
| HDFC ITMF’ 1183D January 2016 (1)—Regu|arj ‘ ‘ B ‘ N
Growth-Series-35 1,00,06,421 10.00 - -
o Relianc‘e Fixed ‘L—|orizon Fund-XXX-Series | | LT | T
| | 2-Growth Plan | \ 80,03,144 8.00 | [l -| |
| | IDFC Cprporatd Bond Fund Regular Plan-Growth 60,838,876 6.05 ||| - | H
| | ICICI Pfudential FMP Series 78-1190 Days Plan | | L1 | [
o E Regufar PIanHCumuIative | 60,‘00,00? 6.00 I -‘ | ‘-‘ |
Franklin India Corporate Bond Opportunities
" | Fund-Growth | 53,04,808 750 |11 -‘ L
' | HDFC FMP 453D February 2014 (1) Series | . N \ ]
29-Regular-Growth 52,76,06 5.28 2,76,064 2
| H aqw \ \ [ \ | |
| Reliance Fixed r—|or|zon Fund-XXVI-Series | | ] | ||
2-Growth Plan 52,40,006 5.24 §2,40,000 ézﬁ
. FraninA India J‘Itra Short Bond Fund-Super | | T | |
| | Institutional Plah-Growth | 51,02,424 10.24 ||| - | H
| | ICICI Pfudential FMP Series 72-440 Days Plan | | [1]]] | |
o L Dire(:l‘1 Plan Clﬂlmulative | 50,‘90,32? 5.09 N ‘?0,90,326‘ 5‘.0?‘ |
o Sundar?m Fixeﬁ Term Plan Hi Regular Growtr‘1 50,‘71,26‘2 5.07 m —‘ | ‘-‘ |
| ICICI Péudentia‘l‘ FMP Series 78-1168 Days | H : m | U
Plan-I-Growth 50,15,59 5.02 -
| | HDFC FMP 372D Dec 2013 (1) Series | | | LI \ LI
29-Regular-Growth 50,00,00 5.00 -
| plar-Graw | p0.009 1111 T
| DSP Bl?ckRoclﬁ FMP-Series 150-13M-Reg-GTowth SO,P0,00? 5.00 ] ‘?0,00,000‘ ﬁ.O?‘ |
Blrla Sun Life Fixed Term Plan -Series KR
R
| (1124days)-Gr. Regular (385days+739 days a‘dded) 50,b0,006 5.00 1T -‘ L
| UTI leéd TermHIncome Fund Series XVIII-IV | | | [T | N
1127 Days)-Grpwth Plan (366days+761days 50,00,00 5.00 -
|| P LI \ |l
| Kotak F‘MP Ser”es 191-Growth ‘ 50,p0,00@ 5.00 I y ‘ il
| IDFC CPrporatEﬂ Bond Fund Regular PIan-Grqwth 49,?8,77? 5.00 1] . M|
o HDFC ?hort Te“m Plan-Growth | 37,‘12,87? 10.00 ] ‘%7,12,876‘ 1q 09‘ |
| ICICI Prudentia] FMP Series 68-369 Days | 1] | N
Plan 1 Regular Plan Cumulative SO,b0,00b 3.00 :%0,00,000 306

| | I | | | 11T | LIl
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| L | _ March31,2016 | ||| |March3{,2015 || |

\ | H \ I UL \
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2016

| \ [ (All amounts are in crores of Indian Rupees, dnless btherwise statedj ] |

1l
1l
| H

|1l
799
\[H
|0l
B
| W

I N
o
- ©=

N
S,

o
-

A
N N

‘ ‘ I ‘ No qf Uni;s Amount ‘ \NH of Units‘ Amoan ‘
‘ Birla Sqn Life Fixed Term Plan-Series KI (109?days)- ‘ N ‘
Gr.Regular (368days+731days add 02.03.15) 30,00,0&0 3.00 -
| Relianc‘e ReguILr Savings Fund-Debt PIan-Gr‘owth | | 1T |
| Plan-Growth Option | 28,87,336 550 | [[!] -
| Reliance Dynarhic Bond Fund-Growth | | | [ 1] ] |
| PIan-Gr‘owth Owtion | 26‘,40,61‘3 5.00 N ‘%6,40,613‘
Tata Sh‘ort Ternn Bond Fund Regular PIan-Gro‘wth 26‘,35,81‘6 7.00 1] -‘
Kotak F‘MP SeriHes 190-Growth | 25‘,00,00‘0 2.50 ] -‘
DHFL Pramerica Short Maturity Fund-Growth 21,90,382 5.48 -
Birla SlJn Life DHynamic Bond Fund-Retail- | | | LT |
| Growth!Regulat Plan \ 20,22,637 5.00 |l -
| DHFL Rramerica Short Maturity Fund-Growth | 19,96,614 500 |||l |
| Reliance Short ferm Fund-Growth Plan-Growth Option 19,17,994 5.00 | |]]19,17,994|
| ICICI Prudentia| Short Term-Regular | | | 1] ] |
| PIan-Gr‘owth O;ﬁtion | 17‘,18,26‘6 5.00 T —‘
IDFC Super Saver Income Fund-Investment
| Plan-Growth-(Regular Plan) \ 1465,936 5.00 |l J
| IDFC Super SaVer Income Fund-Investment | | | I |
‘ PIan-quwth-(ﬂFgular Plan) ‘ 12‘,93,3§1 4.42 n 7
| HDFC I‘-Iigh Intt—ﬂrest Fund-Short Term PIan-Gerth 12‘,48,516 3.50 111 7
| SBI Magnum In‘f:ome Fund-Regular PIan-Grothh 11‘,84,0?9 4.00 1 |
Birla Sun Life Treasury Optimizer
Plan-Growth-Regular Plan | 197,898 350 | !ll1253237
‘ Kotak dorporat& Bond Fund ‘ ‘ ‘ [T ‘
| Standard Growth (Regular Plan) ‘ 146,607 9.00 || g
‘ Axis Ba‘nking Dﬁabt Fund-Growth(BDGPG) ‘ ‘36,54ﬁ7 5.00 M ‘1,96,203‘
UTlI Tr%asury Atﬁivantage Fund-Instituitonal Plﬁn | | 11 |
(Daily Dividend Option)-Reinvestment - - 61,140
| IDFC-S%IF-Shcﬂrt Term-Plan A-Fortnightly Divi‘dend | | - - 11 ‘33,90,087‘
| HDFC Illigh IntJrest Fund-Short Term PIan-Di\‘/idend | . _ ‘§1,64,683‘

| Axis Sh‘ort TerrrU Fund-Institutional Regular | | | [T |

‘ Dividenp Reinv?stment ‘ ‘ |- - ‘43,82,576‘
Temple*on IndieH Low Duration Fund-Monthly ‘ ‘ ‘ 1] ‘
Dividend Reinvestment - - g3,19,116

| HDFC IJ—'MP 37JD Dec 2013-1-Regular-GR | | | - - [l ‘A0,00,000‘

| Birla SJn Life Fuxed Term Plan-Series Kl | | | T |
| (1099days)-Gr.RRegular | | | - - 111/130,00,000|
| IDFC Fixed Term Plan Series 77 Regular | | | [ 1111 |
| Plan -G‘rowth (%‘99 Days) | | b aa ‘ATO,OO,OOO‘

Birla Su‘n Life F‘i‘xed Term Plan -Series KR (38‘5 days)-Gr. Reg‘ular | - - N ‘5‘0,00,000‘

| IDBI FI\/‘IP-SerieHs 1V-387 Days (March 2014)-(.‘3 Regular PIan-C\%roth - - " ‘2‘0,00,000‘
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March|31, 2016

NOTES ‘LI'O THE FINANCIAL STATE'\%ENTS FOR THE YEP‘«R ENDED MA‘R‘éH 31, 2014
(All amounts are in crores df Indian Rupees, Unless otherwise stated) | || |

| |[[|March 31,2015 || |

. | H | No of Units

| UTI Fixgd TermHIncome Fund Series XVIII-IV ‘ ‘ ‘
(366 Days)-Growth Plan -
||

ICICI P‘rudentiau Banking & PSU Debt | | |
| | Fund-Weekly Dividend Reinvestment | \ -

| | Birla Sun Life Tfeasury Optimizer Plan-Monthly | |
o DividenF-Regulﬁar Plan-Reinvestment -

IDFC Super Saver Income Fund-Short Term P‘Ian- | |
|| Monthly Dividend-(Regular Plan) | L
' | DWS Short Mai‘urity Fund-Growth(Enam) ‘ ‘ A
' | Reliance Money Manager Fund-Growth Plan-Growth Option | L
| | BarodalPoineer Liquid Fund-Plan A Growth | \ -

| | ICICI Prudential Liquid-Regular Plan-Growth | | -

| | SBI-SHF-Ultra $hort Term Debt Fund- | | |
L Regulal" PIan-Dfin Dividend -

\ \
Reliance Fixed Horizon Fund-XXV-Series 19-Growth Plan -

Amount ‘ Mq of Units‘ Amopnﬂ ‘

! %0,00,000
i

| 12/10,71,513
LI
LI

| 11141,32,853
| 11121,90,382
VI 94,357
1111 62,447
| 1]]12,41,825

7,15,923

299

500

| |l
| 21.46
\ |l

P
L 47
| 5.48|
. 18.00/
| 1d.00|
| 5.00!
\ |l

80,48,833 8.05
o TATA Fi‘xed MatHurity Plan Series 46 Scheme I\‘/I-Plan A-Growth‘ ‘— - . ‘f-‘)0,00,000‘ 5‘.0(‘)‘ |
- Kotak FMP Serpes 145-Growth | | ‘— - ! ‘;6,08,565‘ ;.6“ |
o DWS SLort MatHurity Fund-Growth | | ‘— - 1 ‘49,96,614‘ A.O(g‘ |
. FranklirL India é‘hort Term Income Plan-Retail blan-Growth | ‘— LT 34,974‘ 1d.06‘ |
|| | I | | | [ | N
" | Total Current Investments | | | 200.83 | || | 23116/ |
| \ I \ \ \ T \ I
' | Total Value of Quoted Current investments/ | | 041 | [l | 0.41/ |
| | I | | | LT | L
| | Market|Value df Quoted Investments | | | 573 | ||| | 5.84/ |
| | \ I \ \ \ | \ i
| | Total Value of Unquoted Current investments | | 209.42 | ||| | 230.79 |

[This space has‘been intentiona‘ly Ieft‘blank]
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NOTES ‘LI'O THE FINANCIAL STATE'\%ENTS FOR THE YEP‘«R ENDED MA‘R‘éH 31, 2014
(All amounts are in crores df Indian Rupees, Unless otherwise stated) | || |

17 I | arch 31, 2016 March 31, 2015 | |
" Inventories (vglued at lower of cost and net realizable value) Y ‘ -
| Consumables gnd media | | 1‘.%‘ | | 0.48‘ I
| Total | H \ | | 1.13 | ' 0.48 ||
| | I | | | [T | I
18| Trade recelvaples | o 1111 o
- Trade ‘receivaﬂ)les (Unsecured considered‘ | | i L] | 1T
good unless stated otherwise)
| Outstahding foLL a period exceeding six montHs from the date Hhey Are due for pay#n@r#t‘ | 1
|| | I | | | LT | L
| | -Considered good | | | 64.77| | | 27.75 || |
- Conﬁidered qoubtful ‘ ‘ ‘ 854‘1‘ | | 71.991 |
] | o iyt | )
Provision for doubtful receivables (86.41) (71.99)
| | I | A) | 64.77 | 27.75 11
| | I | | | LI | I
| | Other trade regeivables | | (B) | 681.92 | 655.78 || |
|| \ I \ \ —-HH 1 —HH
| o Total (A B) | o L
+I'raﬁe recei\}ables iﬂmlude: | | | [T | N
Dués from Private Cbmpanies in which the Compahy's directors aré members / directors: | | | | |1
| | I | | | LI | I
o Sun Di(ect TV h:’rivate Limited | | | 129“% | ‘1 24.21‘ N
Sun Distribution Services Private Limited 84.94 91.46
. Kal Pul)lication‘g Private Limited | | (Hﬁé‘ | | 0.68‘ Il
| | I | | | [T | I
17 | Cash and bank balances | | | 1] ] | I
| Cash gnd cas'p equivalents ‘ ‘ ‘ ]| ‘ |l
| . | | | LI | I
Balances with banks:
| On curLent acc‘gunts | | | 3%.&1‘ | | 40.99‘ I
| on unﬁnaid dividlend account | | | 0.39 | 028 Il
|| Cheques on hgnd | | | 108.12] | | 0.02 ]|
| Cash an hand I ‘ ‘ ‘ 0.04 | | 0.02 |
1 ouer bank 6 | o 14998, el BT
er bank balances
. Deposi‘ts with (ﬂriginal maturity of more than :4 months | | [T | I
| butless than 12 months | | | 642.23 | 649.23 | |
|| \ I | | | L[] \ L 1]
o | H | | 642.28 | 64923 | |
| | I | | | 78775 | o052 |1
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NOTES ‘LI'O THE FINANCIAL STATE'\%ENTS FOR THE YEP‘«R ENDED MA‘R‘éH 31, 2014
(All amounts are in crores df Indian Rupees, Unless otherwise stated) | || |

Short term Loans and advances (Unsecurc;ad)

|| Advandes recolerable in cash or kind
| | Considered godd
| Considpred douﬁjbtful

Provision for doubtful advances

I Other I‘oans ar‘}d advances

Prepaid expenses - Considered good

| Balancés with 4tatutory/government authorit%es

|| - Considered gbod
| | - Considered dpubtful

Provision for doubtful balances with statutory ‘and

government authorities

‘19 ‘ Other Current”assets

| | Unsecured, corsidered good unless stated otherwise |

Interes} accrue

| -on fix‘ed depﬂsits

' | Other receivables

[ ] -|from Rélated Parties

| y Insuran‘pe Claim Receivable (Refer - ‘Note 28) ‘

Unbilled Revenues

|| \ [
| | Total | [

| 29,57 | 13247| || |
- 1,99, 147, )|
R =1t
@ 29.57' ‘3247 ]
. 111 o
. 111 ol
| 111 ol
Ll e U
. 111 o

| | 60.18/ | l60.191 I |
| | IF] | 221 || |
o 499, 1727y
| 1 L @zi) I
® 74.09' | '70.50 [
. 111 L
— | I
Total (A+ B)‘ | 10%‘??\\ ‘102.97‘ 1 |
. 111 ol
| 111 ol

| 111 o

. 111 L
. g gqg 1
. 711 R
. 111 ol
| 6.88] | | 644 || |

| 260.99; T

\ \ 342.75 | 1 95.83 || |
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“OTES ‘LI'O THE FINANCIAL STATEI\)lENTS FOR THE YEP‘«R ENDED MA‘R‘&H 31, 2014

| | [ (All amounts are in crores df Indian Rupees, Unless otherwise stated) | || |

‘20 | Revenu‘e from gperations

I Revenu‘es fromH services
‘Advertis‘ing incou’ne

' |Broadcast fees |

| |International Subscription Revenue
| | Subscription incbme

| Income from mq‘vie distribution
| Income r‘rom cowtent trading

| Income from Incﬁian Premier League

| | I
| \ I
21 | Other income |

| |Interestlincome|

| |- on bank deposits

| |-on oth&ers I

o Dividen(? incom? on current investments

| Net gaiq on saleﬂ of current investments
Gain on foreign exchange fluctuation (net)

Liabilities / provisions not required written back

] Rental Ihcome H
' |Business Suppcﬂrt Services
| | Miscellaheous Ihcome

22 Cost of Revenues

| Prograrrln producjkion expenses

Telecasg costs

| [ Cost of brogran% rights

| | Consumables and media expensed
| | Pay channel seryice charges

| License§ H

| Franchi?e fee c<ﬁst

o Others | |

| . 121071/ 11136.09 !
\ \ \ 110.08 | 11464 ||
| | 14349 | 137.72 11 |
| L 815.42) | 738.00 | |
| I 148 | | 019
| o 2081 | 16871
| L atul 10949
ziolty  zasl
| L i N
| o i N
| o 61.07 | 6421 || |
| o Q18| | 012
| o il | 109% )

L 1949 Il

4.38 1.45

L il | ped Il
| o 44| | a74 Il
| o 395 | 194 I
| o 0.49 | 097 Il
| | m RN
| I 89.32) | 87.83 )|
| L i N
| o i N
| o sd ol grad I
| . 52.64 | | 51.00 ||
\ \ \ 50.96 | | 48.73 || |
| | | 0.28 | | 067 |||
| L 25.44 | 2953 || |
| . §-67 | | 644
| L fjgiu | szjj N
| e
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“OTES ‘LI'O THE FINANCIAL STATEI\)lENTS FOR THE YEP‘«R ENDED MA‘R‘&H 31, 2014

[ (All amounts are in crores df Indian Rupees, Unless otherwise stated) | || |

| | \ |

— — 1  March 31, 201p March 3% 2119 1+

53 Employees’ benefits expense

ploy p

| ‘Salaries‘, wages”and bonus | | | Sd.d)BH | 68.7§ ]

| | Gratuity|expensg (Refer note 38) | | | 0.86] | | (0.04) || |
Contributions to provident fund and other fund 7. 7.6

| | ? | yd | N
Staff welfare expense . 3.9

' | Directors' remurleration | | | I | N

|| - Salary I | | | 2710 | | 26.89 || |

o -Ex—gr?tia/Bowus | ‘ ‘ 116.91 L 96.51 |

- 235.88 203.75 '

| | I | \ \ [T \ N

24 | Other expenses | . 11 R

| ‘Legal ar‘ld profeﬁsmnal fees | | | 68\.??\ | | 74.25‘ 0
(Refer details below for payments made to auditors)

| ‘Travel ahd coaneyance | | | ‘H&@ | | 8.4+ in

| |Rent | I | | | 14.93 | | 1163 I |

| | Electricity expense | | | 11.51 | | 10.72 || |

| |Powerandfuel | | | Sl | 88

| ‘Repalrs‘and ma‘l‘ntenance | | | | | 0
- Building J&y O.Q:Ls

| Plant énd mac“]ine | | | éé@ | | 4 I
- ry 10. 9.8

| |- Repairs Otherd | \ | 8.40 | | 8.48 |||

| | Commupication| | o 168 | 194 ||
Utiliti 11. 9.7

| Utiites oy | o 1Al 978
Insurance 1.03 0.87

| ‘Bad dedts / Inptﬂt credit written off | | | &5‘51 | | ‘ I

' I Provisioh for dolibtful debts/ movie advances and other assets ‘ 20.65 | ' 10.03 Il

| | Provisiohs for Claims and Litigations | | | 1.08 | | 1.01 |||

| |Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility (Refer Note - 30) | 9.60 | | 562 |

| Loss on‘sale Ofﬁssets (net) / assets scrapped‘ | | 'Htﬁ‘ | 0.2% I
Rates and taxes 3.71 2.46

| ‘Miscella‘neous e‘L(penses | | | ib@‘ | 4.0‘} I

| | I | \ \ 185.39 | 166.92 || |

| |Payment to auditor | | | LT | Il

| |Asauditor: | o 1111 N
Audit fe . 0.3

|oruetiee | | il a1
Limited review .18 0.1

| ‘Service H’ax | | | | (H)‘é‘ | 0.0é I

| | I | | | LTI | LI

| |In other capacity: | | | LT | |1l

‘ ‘Other se?rwces (Hcertlflcatlon fees) ‘ ‘ ‘ QPH‘ ‘ 0.0% I

| ‘Reimbu‘rsementHofexpenses | ‘ ‘ 9'9\1\\ ‘ 0.0] L

‘ ‘ 0.67 060
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NOTES ‘LI'O THE FINANCIAL STATE'\%ENTS FOR THE YEP‘«R ENDED MA‘R‘éH 31, 201&
[ (All amounts are in crores df Indian Rupees, Unless otherwise stated) | || | | |

, ‘ ‘ __March 31, 2016 March 31, L
55 Adverti‘sement”and marketing expenses | | | I | i
| ‘AdvertisLement A‘nd marketing expenses | | | Hﬂ’J | | 4.4§ 1
|| \ I \ \ \ 7.48 | | 4.48 |||
| | I | | | [T | I
?6 Deprecﬁation a?d amortization expense | | | i | BN
Depreciation of tangible assets 71.41 79.58
| Amortlzgtlon of JL\tanglbIe assets | | | 414 %‘ | 508.2% I
| | I | \ \ 483.16 | '587.83 |||
27 |Finance costs | | I 1 RN
Interest
| -on Ioa‘ns agairwst deposits | | | 4%‘ | | 1.0; I
|| - others H | . 0.26 | 069 Il
| |Bankcharges | | | | 0.09 | | 046 |||
| | | | o 21 222
28 Extraordinary items
| Impalrm‘ent of teﬂnglble assets | | | 242.&5‘ | | LI
|| | I | A 242.08| | | oL
|| Insuran(Fe cIaimHagainst damaged assets ‘ ‘ ‘ L] ‘ N
ZGQQQ\ I I T
|| | I | | (‘B) 260.00 \ T
| | I | | | |1 \ I
| |Net extraordinary items ‘ ‘ (B) - (A) 17.97 | | t o0

&9 | Capital

‘During Hhe yeary Company's aircraft sustaineg damage due tp rooEs in Chennai. 'Wq determirPation cPf Tﬂq
financial effects thereof was pending as at March 31, 2016 in view of highly technical nature of the assessment
‘involved‘. Subsé‘quent to year end, upon corﬁpletion of such‘ techﬁical assessméﬁt‘,‘ﬂhis aircréft has ‘béén‘
| assessed as bejng beyond economic repair and declared a constryctive total loss. Accordingly, the carrying
value of the alrcn'aft as at the date of the incident of Rs. 242.03 crores has been recor ed loss in current ye

‘The Co‘mpany has recognised insurance jalm of Rs. 266 cronles based on thé‘m prmcn;fle apéro al‘
| received from thle insurers. Both of the above, lhave been recorded and disclosed as lgxtraordinary items(net).|
‘The mar‘1agemerH1tisconfidentaboutthecollecti?n ofthe same. | | 11 | BN

and otﬂ‘er commitments

| @) Capital Commitments (net of advances)

| Particulars

March 31, 2016 | |

March 31, 2015 |

| Outstanding commitments on capital contracts | | | 4.29|]] | | 6.19 ||
Cq;mm|tments for qpqwsmon of film and program ‘broadcastlng rlg‘hts | 81. 52‘ 1L 1166.24 ||
~Total | 8581 16243
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Sun Ty Network Limited | | 111 L

o NOTES ‘LI'O THE FINANCIAL STATE'\)IENTS FOR THE YEP‘«R ENDED MA‘R‘éH 31, 201& T
| | [ (All amounts are in crores df Indian Rupees, Unless otherwise stated) | || | | ||l

| | \ I | | | [T | 1
p) | Bxport Qbligatiops T - f T - 7\\7\\7 ] 7\7\\ \7
The Company has obtained licenses under the Export Promotion Capital Goods (EPC&%) Scheme #or importing
| capital gbods ath concessional rate of customs Uuty. Under the terms df the scheme, thé‘ébmpany Has an éprrt‘
| | obligatign equivalent to six to eight times the duty saved to be fulfilled within a period |of six to eight years| from|
date of import of the capital goods.

o AccordirLeg, theﬁCompany currently has an exp‘ort obligation ag‘grega‘ting to Rs. Nil (}\/I‘a‘r‘c‘h 31, 201‘5 Rs. é‘lZ.QS‘
|

| lcrores) | H \ \ [ | N

| | I | | | LI | I
f:) ‘Royalty FayabItho Ministry of Information and Qroadcasting (‘MIP‘) ‘ N ‘ ]

The Company has obtained licenses to permit them to carril FM operations in ﬂwemnai, Coi batorj aﬂd
| ‘Tirunelv li. TheHCompany is required to pay ro;‘/alty of4% of gross révenue earned ch these FM Operatio s‘
| | during the finandial year or 2.5 % of One Time Entry Fees paid, whicheVer is higher to|MiHistry of Infarmation ahnd|
| Broadcasting, ag required by terms of requirements of the Grant of‘Permission Ag‘rﬁ;?ment betw;:/len SLrn "I"V‘

Network Limited (“the Permission Holder”) and Ministry of Information and Broadcasting (‘MIB’) dated

| | September4, 2006 (“GOPA”). | | | T | i

| | I | | | LI | I
g) ‘Franchi§e rights‘pommitments ‘ ‘ ‘ ] ‘ N

| ‘As per the termi of the franchise agreement ertered into by th Corr‘1pany with the Fgﬂ the Corr]pany Pa a‘

commitment to pay BCCI, Rs. 85.05 crores per annum from 2013 season to 2017 season. From the 2018 IPL
| |season,|the Company is required to pay licehse fees at 20% on the Franchise Incdme earned during thel
‘ ‘relevant‘ year from the operation of the IPL frgnchise to BCCI.‘ In th? current year mq ‘q.ompany ‘has paid an

amountaggregating to Rs. 25.52 crores as franchise license fee for the 2016 IPL season.

| \ H \ \ \ [T \ N
| 30 Corpbrates&ial Responsibility (CSR) | | | [T \ I

. ‘ ” ‘ " TMarch31,2016 ' March31/2015 |
|| |Gross$ amount required to be spent by the company during thelyear | 21371111 2079 | ||

| | |AmountSpentduringtheyearon: | | | L] | Bl
| | : - March31,2016 . Mareh 31,2015 . .
o | H Paid‘ Yetto be paid‘ To‘tal Paid Yt‘at‘ W ‘be paid | Total ]

| Cons{ruction/uacquisition of any asset 2] - ‘ ] - [T1T] T
| | |Onpurposes ¢therthan (1) above 9.60 - | 9|60 | 5.62 |14 | 5.62| || |
| | l 9.69 - | 9801562 | 1562 ||
|| Contribution Made to Related Parties:  4.55 N KPR N

| | I | | | LI | N
g1 | Litigations & Glaims | | | [ | N

| \ I \ \ \ LT \ L
Note1:
| \ [ \ \ \ L1

a) Matters wherein management has concIuJed the Company's liability to be prob‘a“é ‘and have accordingly
| | providéd forin the books. Refer Note 37. | | | LI \ LI

| | b)Matters wherein management has concluded the Company's liability to be possible gnd have| accordingly|

o disclos‘ed undeHrNote (2) Contingent Liability | LI |

c) Matters wherein management is confident of succeeding in these litigations and have concluded the Iie‘lbiJi}ty‘
| | tothe Company to be remote. This is based on the relevant facts of judicial precedehts &hd as advised byllegal
|| couns I which i‘pvolves various legal proceedir"ng and claims, in pifferqnt stages of pracess, in relatiqn to civ‘il aﬂd‘

criminal matters.

| | I | | | 11T | LIl
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2016

|| \ [ (All amounts are in crores df Indian Rupees, dnless obtherwise stated) I \ Ll

| \ I \ \ \ | \ i
o *NFteT‘:Cﬁtirﬂ*gerﬁliaFility* - | | | - \ﬂ\\i o T 7\7\\ ‘*

' || Partictlars | \ 'March 31,2016 || March 31,2015 | || |

| Incom¢ Tax* [ | | 423.75 [T 331.14 | [

o Servicc? tax ***H ‘ ‘ ‘26.56 L 28.26 ‘ BN
i T i i 513‘94 T 423.03 i |

| ! I ! ! ! AN ! L

*The Company received demands of income tax disallowing the manper of allowance clajmed bytqe Company
| for cert‘ain exptﬂ;nses. The Company'’s appeal iﬁ respect of various yegrs has been ail&x}v@d by both'the firs aﬁb |
| the secFond appellate authorities in the previops years. Accorqingly, |management q>ql;§\(es that bpsed on the |

favourable judgment as well as relying on judicial pronouncements and other arguments, its position is likely to
| | beaccépted bylthe revenue authorities. | | | I | LI
. The Co‘mpany Puwas received demand ofincome‘ tax disallowing (‘:ertain‘ expenditure cl‘aMw‘e‘d in Asses‘sment‘Ye!lr‘
| | 2013-14. The Gompany has made an appeal against the said demand and based on thé legal advise obtadined |
by it, thF mana%ement believes thatthe Comp?ny’s claimis Iikefy to b? accepted by tr‘u.? ﬁp‘pellate aLIthoriti(ﬁs. I

| | ™ The Gompany has received demand for differential customs duty aggregating to Rs. 0|50 crores op account(of|

incorrect classification of certain assets imported during FY 2007-08. The Company has gone on appeal against
| | the said demanu:i, and based on its argument§ at such appella{e proEeedings, manéégﬁent believes that the |
| Companpy’s clair‘p is likely to be accepted by the Puthorities. ‘ ‘ 1] ‘ ]|

| | @ FurtHer to enluiries by the customs authorities on customs duty ekemptions availed by the Company ih the |
| previous year, tr‘1e company has received a foLmaI show caus? notice containing a ch/iFional der‘nand gf R&‘
63.13 crores. Tﬁen the Company has filed its responses to this notice and has also degg itedasumofRs. 61.
| | crores under priotest pending final resolution|of the matter. The Management has péén advised by senior|
counsels that appropriate legal remedies aref available to the Company in this matter and is accordin%ly
| confidehtofrec&vering the duty paid. | | T | T
- ***The C‘)ompanH received show cause notices‘ from the Servic‘e tax d‘epartment see‘ki‘n‘ ‘ Lervice ta‘x on ce‘rta‘i‘n |
' | services and disallowances of input credit avaliled on certain services. The Compalw ds filed ap\peals for all |
| such sﬂow cauFe notices / orders received with various auﬁhoriti s. The Comp rwzased on‘the jugicﬁl‘
pronouncements and other arguments believes its position is likely to be accepted by the ‘authorities.

| | I | | | [T | |1
82 | Value ofimports calculated on CIF basis | | | [ | | 1]

| | | Particulars | | [March 31,2016 ||| March |31, 2015]] |
|Capital goods [ ‘ ‘ ‘ 26.66 | ||| 19.82 | ||
Others ! | L 982 120,
Total \ H \ \ 26938 2172 |

83 | Expenditure infforeign currency (on accruallbasis) | | [ | | 1]

March 31, 20%‘ il March‘ 31, 2(*15H

Particulars
‘Trévelling ahd relat&-d expenses | | | 2.08 T ‘4.28 Tl
‘Achuisition Bf film a%d program broadcasting rightls | | 214 [T L1.36 e
| Satellite Hire Charges \ \ \ 16.09 | I 1551 | ]
| Legal and professiohal charges | | | 24.07 | []]] 2951 | ||
| Others | I | | | 5.56 | []]] 720 | || |
Tofal | H | il 6086 | |

| \ H \ I |11 \ |1
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\ |
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2016
(All amounts are in crores df Indian Rupees, dnless otherwise stated} I

|| ‘ H Particulars ‘ ‘ ‘ March 31, 20‘19‘ || Marcn 31, 2?1?\ ‘
‘Intqrnationaf Subscr‘fption Revenue ‘ ‘ ‘ 143.42 L[] 13f7'72 |
|Adyertising jncome | | | | 029 || 1042 | |
{Income from Content trading | | | 047 ||| | -
‘Incpme from Indian ‘Fremier League ‘ ‘ ‘ 1 10.71 N
|| | | | | [ 14418 ||| 14885 | 11|

85 | Leases H \ \
| | Operatingleases (As alLessee) | |

The Company rhas taken a KU band satellite t(ansponder and office premises on nPn ?ancellab'e operﬁtinp
|| \ e \ il Id
lease. Further, there are no restrictions imposed by the lease arrangements and there are no subleases.

Particulars | |

| March 31, 2016 | |

March 31, 2015 | |

|Lease payments regognised in the statement of profit and loss |

|
‘for‘the year‘ H | | | 34.43 i ?1.13 B
‘Mimimum Lpase Pﬂyments ‘ ‘ ‘ L1111 ‘ |
1No‘y later thﬁn one yﬁaar | | | 29.47 NI ?0.51 L
Later than 1 year byt not later than 5 years ‘ ‘ ‘ 92.78 2739
IR \ 1 \ \ \ AR \ 11
Later than 5 years 17.25 12.86

bpérating leases (As a lessor) | \

rutnfre mininTum renﬁ‘als receivable under non-canc‘ellable operatinge Ieas?s are as foIIons‘:‘ I

ﬁ'hej ComparLy has Iéjased out certain parts of its O\Lvned corporate Bf‘fice ‘ouilding to its rlal‘ét&i parties.‘ These‘ nc% |
cancellable leases have remaining terms of between 1 and 10 yedrs. Ag per para 46 of Agcounting Standard 19 |
!_eaﬁes issuefd by thﬁ; Institute of Chartered Accouptants of India, ﬁhe GrPss block valu? ﬂf\ ?uch Ieast pro?er‘ty‘
determined based on the area occupied aggregates to Rs. 19.25 crores (Previous Year - 19.92 crores) and the
acclumulated deprecibtion and net book value of thé same was amounted to Rs. 6.42 crores (Previous\Year -15.80
Proqes) and Rs. 12'83H crores (Previous Year-14.12 qrores) respectiv?ly.

Particulars | |

| March 31, 2016 | |

March 31, 2015

|
T

‘Leqse inconpe recoq‘nised in the statement of profi} and loss ‘
|

‘for ‘the year H ‘ ‘ 3.29 L ‘3.71 L

'Minimum Lease Rentals Receivables ‘ ‘ ‘ S ‘ -

}NoJ‘[ later thd‘n one yiuéar i i i 3.42 T }3.32 —

‘LatLar than 1‘year ka not later than 5 years | | | 15.49 T H9.23 Il

Later than 5‘years H ‘ ‘ ‘ 13.36 | 1] 1358 | |l
|

88 | /ﬁ\nnyal Repoﬂ 2015-52016 ‘ ‘
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\ \ H \ R L \ N
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2016

\ \ [ (All amounts are in crores df Indian Rupees, dnless obtherwise stated) I \ Ll

| |
The Company joes not use any derivative instruments to hedfe its Ereign currenc ijﬁosure. Tl‘1e detiils ﬁ)f\

| foreign currency balances which are nothedgeh as atthe balance sheetdateareasb
\ \ | \ \ \ | L \ i
| ‘ I ‘ March 31* 201q ‘ \MP\rCh 31, 2P15 L
| | | Amount in | Amount Amountlin Amount || ||
|| ParlicularsH (:Ft::::ir?:y CFL?r:'Zir?:y | i;:‘f;ei:: CFL?r{rZLi‘y igtlll:o:ien I
| | l | | | LI | LU
Tqade ReC?ivableSH usD ‘ 0.58 ‘ 38*25 P,‘W\ ‘ 29.45‘ Il
Tqade RecgivabIeSH AUD | 0.03 | 1*36 p‘qz | | 1.04‘ 1Ll
Tqade ReC@ivabIeSH CAD | 0.01 | 0.109 L 1]t] | 1L
Trade Receivables) GBP | 0.02 | 1,90 0.02) | 1.94 | ‘
Trade Payables | usbD | 0.01 | 0461 | 1]t] | 1L
| Advance from custpmer usSbD ‘ - ‘ | - 0.01 | 050 ||
Advance from custpmer CAD | 0.01 | 0,08 | ]t] | 1
| Sgcurity Deposits from | o il I
customers | [ AUD | 0.01 | 0425 0,01 | 024 |||
| Security Deposits ffom | . 1111 o
| customers| [ USD | 0.04 | 2{78 003 | 162 ||
| Security deposits paid uUsSbD | 0.02 \ 1419 003 | 1.60 ||

\ \ H \ | LI \ i
\ \ H \ . el e 5l 8
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| I | o 1111 T
Sun Ty Network Limited | | 111 L

i #‘JOTES H'I'O THE FINANCIAL STATEI\)IENTS FOR THE YEA‘R ENDED MAQ&H 31, 2016‘ il

| \ [ (All amounts are in crores of Indian Rupees, dnless btherwise statedj I \ N

A \ \ \ \ | | \ i
?7
\

As required by \S

1 LA L1 1 N N, 1
| \ y Accounting Standard (AP-ZQ) Provisions, (%ontlngent LI??“HIGS and ‘Contngcfm
|

Assets" the details of Provisions are set out as under-

| Nature of Provision | Opening Balance | Provision for the |Provision written backl| Closing Balahce |
|| 1 | year | fadiusted | )y | Ll
| Claims related to | | 11 |l
‘Se‘rwce tax‘ | 3.88 | 1.08 | - L 4‘1.96 o
FM License fees - - 205 - 205 |
— | H 3.88 313 — main 701 1T

| \ I \ \ \ LTI \ N

?8 ‘ Emploxee ben?fit plans - Gratuity ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ H ‘
The Company rjas a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every empfyee who has coman'et@d five years or more oe[

| service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last draw salally) for each co AI téd year of‘servic 'ﬁlj'n

| | schemeis fundgd with aninsurance Company in the form of a qualifying insurance poljicy. | | | [ ] |

‘ The following tables summarize the componen}s of net benefit expense recognised in mﬁe Ptatemen} of profit an
loss and the funded status and amounts recognised in the balance sheet for the Gratuity plan.

| \ I \ \ \ LTI \ LI
Statement of Profit ard Loss | | | [T | N

| P‘articulaﬂs | | | Year ended ML Yealj ende& I

| | [ | | March 31, 2016/ ||| March 31, 2015 || |
qurent seryice coq‘t ‘ ‘ ‘ 1.0@ 1l ‘ 1.0?6 I |
Interest cost on benefit obligation | | | 0.61 1, ., 059 |
Ex‘pected réturn on”plan assets | | | (0.7‘3)‘ il | (0.é5)H |
Né-t actuarigl (gain)H/ loss recognised in the year | | | (0.0H‘ | | (1.&)4)H |
Net benefit expense \ \ \ 0.86/ /|| . (0.04) | |
Adtual return on plgn assets | | | 0.69| 11| | 0.61] |
| | | | | | LI | L ]

. As at s at
| Particulars | | | 4 é | f |1l
March 31, 20 March 31, 2015
Defined behefit obligation \ \ \ 8.811] [ 803 [T
Fdir value df plan assets | | | (9.99)/ | | | (8.13)]] |
Plan Liabiljty / (Asset) \ \ \ (1.14) || | (0.10)]] |
Experience adjustments on plan liabilities | | | 0.1 | 1.08 |
E)ﬁperience‘ adjustnﬂents on plan Asset | | | (0.q3‘)‘ | | (0.q4) I
| | I | | | LI | I
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows: Ll | L1
I I I I I I T [ [ [
Particulars Year ended Year ended

| ? f | || March 31,2016 ||| March/31,2015 /|
Opening défined bénefit obligation \ \ \ 8.03/ /| |78l |
Current service cost | | | 1.06| || | | 1.06 | |
Inqerest cost [ [ [ [ 0.6‘1‘ I [ 0.59 Il |
Acrtuarial (qains)/lﬁ)sses on obligation ‘ ‘ ‘ (0.11‘)‘ ‘ ‘ (1.98}‘ ‘
Benefits pajd H \ \ \ 0.78) |, . (030)
Closing defined benefit obligation 8.81 | . 803
[ [ I [ [ [ EEN [ 11

| | I | | | 11T | LIl
90\Anqual Repqrt 20157?016 ‘ ‘ ‘ L1 ‘ |l |




kOTES ‘LI'O THE FINANCIAL STATEI\)IENTS FOR THE YEAlR ENDED MA}\‘%H 31, 2016‘ i

| | I (All amounts are in crores df Indian Rupees, unless btherwise stated) | || | | | 1] ]

|| \ I \ \ \ |1 \ |l
*‘Chﬁgeginﬁefﬁrv?lueﬁfplﬁas*sets*areﬁsfﬂow? e

. | . H | | | Year ended T Year‘ende& I
Pa}rtlcularf
| | \ \ \ March 31, 2016/ ||| March 31, 2015 ||
| Falir value of plannéd assets at the beginning of the year | | 8.13/| | | 6.88 |
| Expected return on plan assets | | | 0.73, || | 0.65
| antribUtions I | | | 1'9\0\ | | 0'9\4 il
= [ 1 \ \ \ N \ 1
Benefits paid (Oj85 (O.éO)
' Actuarial géin / (Ios;u~‘.) on plan assets ! ! ! (O.dﬂ)‘ |l ! (O.(ﬁ4)H
| Fair value bf plan assets at the end of the year | \ 9.95/ || | 813

| | L
LI'he experience adjustments on plan liabilities and assets, and net (surplus) / deficit for the years ended March %31,
2014, March/31, 2013 and March 31, 2012 are as follows: . [T | AT

|| .. | | As at | | Asat ||l Asat | |l
| PT“'CU'arHS /| March 31,2014 | March 31,2013, | March 31,2012 |,
‘ quined bemefit oblipation at the end of the period‘ 7‘.76 ‘ 7‘.1‘9’;‘ ‘ 6.24 |
' Fair value of plan assets | (6.88) | (5.24) | (4.46)
' Net deficit | | ! 0.88 | 1,89/ - 178
| Experienceladjustments on plan liabilities \ 0.50 | 0.21 | 018l
| Experience|adjustments on plan assets | (0.10) | (0,03) |  (0.04)

Ll'he[ principa‘l actuarual assumptions used in deteljmining gratuity gbligahon for the Co‘r’ru)%y’s pIang are s‘hou/ri
below: | I | | | LI | i

As at As at
| | Particulais | ' March 31,2016 ||| March 31, 2015
| Discount rate H \ o 8.00% | [l | 7.80% |
| Expected rate of refurn on assets | | | 8.35% | ||| | | 9.00% ||
| Employee turnover | | | 2.00% ||| | | 2.00% ||

‘Thﬂ overall e‘xpected‘rate of return on assets is determined based on‘markeft prices prevai\irrg ﬂn that datF, appli‘calﬂlﬂ
to the period over which the obligation is to be settled. The estimates of future salary increases, considered in
Ectt‘iarial valhation, t‘gke account of inflation, seniclrity, promotion énd ot‘her relevant fam&rg, such aé supplil e#\d
demand in the employment market. Based on the experience of the previols year, the company expects fto contfiblite
Bs.ﬂ 40 crores to thq‘gratuity fund in the next year. ﬁowever the actyal coptribution by thfe company wil, be ba§eq ‘iq
the actuarial valuation report received from the insurance company.

| | I | | | 11T | LIl
| ‘ [ ‘ ‘ ‘ 9ﬂ \‘ ‘%Mmual Reqort 20]5@0‘16
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| | H | | 1 | |1l
Sun TV Network Limited | I 1 | N

i #‘IOTES H'I'O THE FINANCIAL STATEI\)IENTS FOR THE YEA‘R ENDED MAuéu 31, 2016‘ S

| | I (All amounts are in crores of Indian Rupees, Unless btherwise stated) I | | 1] ]

] L | L ] L
39 Relatedpartytransactions | o

N@mes of related partles | | | L | L

1.‘ Inle{duaI owmng an interest in voting p?wer of the Compan}( that gives thflq ﬁontrol | NN
Mr. Kalanithi Maran

| 2.‘ Enter"prises w which Key Management pFrsonneI or ther’r releﬂtives have sigmiﬂ'ﬁant ianance R
| Kal Cbmm PH‘vate Limited | kal AiMays Private L‘rrHtEH | N
| | Kal Cables Piivate Limited | Kal Publications Private|Limited | [ 1]
o Sun Direct T | Private Limited | K. Epterprises Priv?tﬁ Hmited | R
Udaya FM Private Limited Sun Foundation
- Sun ﬂ)lstrlbut&)n Services Private Limited | I\‘/Iuras!)li Maran Fami‘y‘ -H'L‘Jst | I
|| Sun Business Solutions Private Limited | Kal Méddia Services Private Limited | LI
| Spichet Limiﬁed (Upto February 23, 2015) ‘ ‘ ‘ ] ‘ N

- 3 Subs‘idiary dompanies ‘ ‘ ‘ [T | i

South Asia FM Limited | ] [T | 1T
| Kkal Radio Limited | | | [T | | I] ]

| 4.‘ Asso‘ciates Af South Asia FM Limited | | | [T | 1T

| AV Digital Networks (Hyderabad) Private Limited | | [T \ N
| | Asia Radio Bfoadcast Private Limited \ \ | [T \ L]
| | Digital Radio|(Kolkata) Broadcasting Limited | | 1] ] | ||| |
| Metrq Digital W\letworks (Hyderabad) Privatq Limited ‘ ‘ I ‘ L
o Optin‘wm Meﬁiia Services Private Limited | | | 1] | B
Digital Radio (Mumbai) Broadcasting Limited
| Decc‘an Digitll Networks (Hyderabad) Priva‘te Limited | | 1] | A
Pionéer RadiL Training Services Private Lirhited | | LT | Il
| Digital Radio (Delhi) Broadcasting Limited | . [T | i

|| Soutth Asia Multimedia Private Limited \ \ \ 11T \ |1l

1 \ b \ \ \ T \ I
5. Key Management personnel ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘

L] 1
[ l l T l l l 1T l l [
| | Mr Kalanithi Maran — Executive Chairman | | | L] | | 1]
Mr. K Vljayk ar — Managing Director and ?hlef Executive Pfﬂce
Mrs. Kavery kalamthl Executive Director
- Mr. V‘C Unnllﬂrlshnan — Chief financial Ofﬂ&er | | [T | I
| | Mr. Rl Ravi —|Company Secretary | | | [ 1]]] | [ ]

\ 1 \
6. Relat‘ives of f(ey Management personnel ‘

| Mrs. Mallika Maran | | | I | N

92 | Annual Report 2015-p016 \ I | | |11
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NOTES ‘LI'O THE FINANCIAL STATEI\)IENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAH&H 31, 201(4

Segmentinformation

The Company considers business segments as its primary segment LI'he Company's operations predomlna
relate to Medialand Entertainment and, accord\lngly, thisis the dnly prl\mary reportablé é@dment.

Geogrpphical Hsegments

(All amounts are in crores of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated) | || |

L
]
\ ]

Year e‘nded Mchh 31, 2016 | India | Others I Total‘
| I | | | LU |
T T T T T T T
| I | | | T |
Revenue
Sales | ” 225080 || | 14418 |!l11 2403.08
| I | | | [T |
Other egmer!t information | | | I
Segment assets 3,649.74 54.54 3,704.2%
| I | | | T |
Total gssets | | I 1111 |
Capital expenditure:
Tangible fixed assets | 3869 || | - I 3869
Intangible fixed assets | 438.27 | | - [I1l1] 438.27
Capita\ work inH Progress | 0.57 | | - Iy 0.5‘7
\ I \ \ \ [T \
i i i i i
Year ended March 31,2015 | India | | Others I Total‘
Reven\ue | | I |11 |
Sales | I | 2,094.77 | | 148.85 I 2,243.6%
Other segmerit information | | | T |
Segmefnt asseﬁs ‘ 3,466.72 ‘ ‘ 55.97 i 3,522.6?
Total assets | | | [T |
Capital expenditure: | | 1] |
Tangible fixed jssets 24.87 - 24.87
Intangible fixed assets | 396.67 | - | 396. 6'}
Capital work in| Progress | 0.05 | - [T 0.0%
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NOTES ‘LI'O THE FINANCIAL STATEI\AENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAH&H 31, 201& T
| [ (All amounts are in crores of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated) | || | | ||l

IrWesﬁneﬁ inFu&idErie?oﬁraﬁgﬁ R?dio*buﬁne?s r T - m | | ] |
Under ‘the relevant frameworks of the MinistJ'y of Informatio:l and Froadcasting ﬂf tPe Government of Inrij
(‘MIB’), the Company, its subsidiaries and its investees involved in FM Radio o éljations had subr%ité

applications to migrate existing FM Radio licenses (including six of which expired onlMaré¢h 31, 2015 and othélrs
expirinp on varipus datesin FY 2016-17 and thFreafter) from anse Il‘to the Phase III‘ Iiﬁqqsing regir‘ne as V\(ellj?ﬁ
applications for participating in the e-auction process for new FM Radio frequencies in the Phase lll licensing
regimeJ. The C%mpany has direct / indirect investments in FM Radio bperations agg‘ré&ﬂing Rs 620.20 c#orgs,‘
the recoverabiljty of which is dependent upon maintaining profitable operations. [ | | ] |

Two investees of the Company were permitted to participate in e-augtion process based on a favourable order
of the Delhi High Court. The Union of India’s appeal there against has been dismiss j tjy the Hon’ble Supreme
Court, herebyietting aside the Government'’s rejection of the gpplic tions citing sef rE Jreasons; Subsc—lugn{
to the Halance gheet date, (a) two investees halve been granted llicencles in respect of(3| | stations, far which the
Grant fPermiision Agreement (‘(GOPA) has H)een signed; (b) the MI? has offered m‘iql‘ﬁqon of exiﬁting Iic?nﬁ?ﬁ
owned by the Company’s investees to the Phase lll licensing regime subject to payment of the requisite fees
and cohplianc& with otherterms and conditioHs, which the mar{agem‘ent is confidenﬂdf‘d&mplying with. | (]

With réspect tdthe Company and its subsidiaHes, (a)An interim order of the Madras Hi‘g‘h Court had peanitﬂéd
these Companjes to participate in the e-auctions in Phase llI. (b) With reference to mijgration from Phase Il tg
Phase Il statef above, the relevant companﬂes have been permitted to continue existing opera’&ons by way
of inte#im orders by the Madras High court. While the matter continue to be sub-jL‘JMle at the Madras Hgﬂ
Court, having regard to the recent judgment df the Supreme Court as well post-year/end events, in relation td
investees of the Company, management iF confident of r’eceiv‘ing the requirﬁi‘ ‘ﬂpprovals ‘again t ﬁr‘lﬂ
applications by the Company and its subsidiaries, to enable continued profitable operations of these FM Radio
stations and the recoverability of the Compan%’sinvestments,directdnd indirect, in its radio operatibns. L

In the third qugarter of the current year, the bompany has also made additional investments of Rs 157/80
crores jn South Asia FM Limited ("SAFM”), a subsidiary, against a rights issue by SAFM towards funding ngw
licences and the migration plan as per Phase Il licensing regime.

Provis‘ionaIAthachment order from Enforce‘ment Directora‘te | ] | B
During the quzrter ended June 30, 2015, thi Company and one of its subsidiariﬁ South Asii FM Llrmjﬂ
ndia

(“SAFI\‘/I”), received an order from the Enforcement Directorgte, Ministry of Fina cL,‘ ‘Government of 1

(“Enforicement| Directorate”) provisionally attaching certain Freehold Land and Buildings of the Company
aggreqating Rﬁ' 266 crores, and fixed deposilﬁlwith banks anﬂl mutu‘al fund investn'ﬁrms‘ of SAFM‘aggregPath
Rs. 21.34 crores, under the Prevention of Money Laundering Act, 2002 (“PMLA”) in connection with an
investi@ation not involving the Company. With reference to the Provisional Attachment Order (“PAO") undet
PMLA,‘the Cor’ppany has filed a Special Lea\qe Petition (“SLP“’) chal‘lenging the saip ‘(Pryer beforq the Han’qu
Supreme Court of India which has stayed the adjudication proceedings under the PMLA and accordingly the
entitieé continJLe to be in full possession of thelse assets. Baseh on Iégal advise, méngéément is cbnfiderlnt tllw‘a{
the said PAO is|not legally tenable and is confident of a favourable outcome in due course and, accordingly, is of
the viethhat n(ﬂ accounting adjustments are c?nsidered neces?ary in‘these financial‘sﬁaﬁments in }his regfzr(h |
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o NOTES ‘LI'O THE FINANCIAL STATEI\AENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAH&H 31, 2014 T
| | [ (All amounts are in crores of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated) | || | | ||l

43LPmr¢eamonlpamiv% L __ bt

\
Previous year pigures have been regrouped /‘reclassified, wh(‘ere ne‘cessary, to corLchrm to this year’s
|| classification. | \ \ \ I \ LI

| | I | | | LT | Il
' | As perlour report of even date. | | | I | N

| | ForS.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP | For and on behalf of the board of directors | | |
| Chartered ACC?untantS ‘ ‘ ‘ L] ‘ |l

| | ICAIFirm registration number : 101049W/E300004 ‘ ‘ L] ‘ |l

per Aniruddh Sankaran Kalanithi Maran K Vij mar

| n | | Marq layku | L
| | Partner [ ‘ Chairman ‘ Managing Director & | || |
| | Membership Np.: 211107 ‘ ‘ ‘ Chief|Executive Officer | || |

| \ H \ ] [ \ I
| | Place jChennai \ . [ \ I

| | Date:May 27,2016 \ R. Ravi | \ V C|Unnikrishnan | ] |
| | [ | Company Secretary Chief|Financial Officer | || |
| | I | | | LI | I
| | I | Place : Chennaj LI | I
| \ I \ Date : May 27,2016 LTI \ N

| | I | | | LI | i
|| | I | | | LTI | L
| | I | | | LT | L
| \ I \ \ \ LTI \ L
| | I | | | LTI | L
| \ I \ \ \ LTI \ N
| | I | | | LI | i
[This space has‘been intentionahy Ieft‘blank] 1T | I
| | I | | | LT | L
| \ I \ \ \ LTI \ L
| | I | | | LTI | L
| \ I \ \ \ LTI \ N
| | I | | | LI | i
|| | I | | | LTI | L
| | I | | | LT | L
| \ I \ \ \ LTI \ L
| | \ l \ \ \ L \ i
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON CONSOLIDATED
\ I | FINANCIALS STATEMENTS | 11T \ | Il

' Hothe Members of Sun TV Network Limited | | (I L
‘ IReport on Consolidated financial statements | LTI | LI

\ We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statemeénts of Sun TV Network |
‘ HLimited (hereinafter referred ‘to as “the Hold‘ing Cpmpany"), its Wpﬂdiaries (qhe Ho'dimg‘
Company and its subsidiaries together refe(red to as “the Gro‘uP”g), and its ‘associfte?,‘
| Hcomprising of the Consolidaéed Balance Sheet aé at March 31, ﬁ J16, the consolidated
\ IStatement of Profit and Loss and Consolidated Cashl Flow Statement/forithe year then endeld, |
| jland a summary of significant accounting |policies and other| explanatory |information |

H(hereinafter referred to as ‘the (Eonsolidated Finfxncial‘Statements’). 1 | B

| HManagement’s Responsibilily forthe Conso‘lidated Financial Statements

| H'I'he Holding Company’s Bogrd of Directors‘ is re‘sponsible for Méw)reparaticln of thegu
| lconsolidated financial stateménts in terms with the tequirement of thél Companies Act, 2018 |
‘ |(“the Act”) that give a true and fair view of the consolidated finangia| |position, consolidated |
financial performance and consolidated cash flows of the Group of its associates |
I . < oqneol f| flows of the Group fq of lts agsociatps
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting
‘ IStandards specified under Section 133 of the Ack, read with Rule! 7 of the ‘Compénié%‘
| I(Accounts) Rules, 2014. The tespective Board of Directors of the comjpanies included in the |
| HGroup and of its associates arﬁ responsible for Wnaint?nance of adeqﬁiﬁ Fccountin‘g recor‘ds‘ip |
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Group and of its
| Hassociates and for preventing ‘and detecting fréuds énd other irregl‘JléHti‘es; the sélectioﬂ aruj |
| lapplication of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments |ahd estimates that afe|
‘ Hreasonable and prudent; anql the design, irr‘lplem?ntation and rmiﬂtfanance qf adequa‘tp‘
internal financial control that were operatin? effectively for ensurin? the accuracy and
| Hcompleteness of the accountill\g records, relevant t& the preparatidn‘ g‘nd presenéation o‘f tr“e‘
| ffinancial statements that givela true and fair View and are free from Imaterial misstaterent, |
‘ ‘thether due to fraud or error; which have bepn usgd for the purpose pf preparption o[f t”‘?\
consolidated financial stateantS by the Bo?rd of Directors of tr? Holding C?mpany, ?f
| Haforesaid. | | |

| I | | | [ | N
| |Auditor’s Responsibility | ‘ ‘ [T | L

\ lOur responsibility is to express|an opinion on these cansolidated finahtiallstatemenits based oh |
‘ jour audit. While conducting thq audit, we have }aken Fnto account thg Hrpyisions oqthe ACF, tlme ‘
accounting and auditing standards and matterf which are required to He included‘in the Zui(t‘
| Hrepor’t under the provisions of the Act and the Rules nLade thereundelr.‘ WLL: conducted our audit
| lin accordance with the Standards on Auditing, iésued‘by the Institutelof Chartered Accountanits |
| jof India, as specified under Section 143(10) of the Act; Those Standards require that we comply |
with ethical requirements and plan and perform‘the alfdit to obtain re;ﬁ?r‘wﬁable assu@nce ﬁbOHt |

whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

| H/—\n audit involves performing ‘procedures to &btain‘audit evidencé Hﬁé)ut the arlnounts‘ arlnh‘
| |disclosures in the consolidated financial staterhents.| The procedures selected depend oh the |
uditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material ,misstatement o
| ditor’s jud t, including th f isks of tﬂ'ﬁl"tt‘ t thfa‘
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
| Hassessments, the auditor cgnsiders internél finelncial control ‘réié\}ant to the Ho‘dirlub‘
\ ICompany’s preparation of the consolidated finahcial statements that givie & true and fair view ifi |

| I | | | |11 | |1l
| [ | \ \ 191 jAnnual Report 201§-2016
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L \ bbbl
INDEPENDEL]T AUDITOR’S IJ{EPOJRT ON CONSOLII%ALI'ED
| | I FINANCIALS STATEMENTS (Continued)| ||| | I

., order to design Eudfpro*ced?res*that*are* appropriate in the c?cwﬁ?t ances. An audit ano*

| L | _ P i ey

includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
| ‘ lthe accounting estimates made by the HoIdihg C&mpany’s Board lof ‘Directors,‘ as well 8/
|| | levaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. We beljeve that the|
o | Haudit evidence obtained by us and the audit evifjenceﬁ obtained by th?QtPFr auditorF in terr‘ns‘?f‘

their reports referred to in paragraph of the Other Matters below, is sufficient and appropriate to
| | ‘provide a basis for our audit op#nion onthe consblidatéd financial statEMéﬁtS. | I

| | I | | | LTI | i
| \ |Opinion \ \ \ LTI \ i

| \ lin our opinion and to the best of our information and according to thé eXplanations|given to us, |

| ‘ che consolidated financial statqaments give the ipformfation required tM m\?Act in th? manner so,
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally

| | Haccepted in India of the cons&lidated state of éffairs‘of the Group dn‘d B its assol:iates, Es‘ét‘

|| | [March 31, 2016, their consolidated profit, and their consolidated cash|flows for the|year ended|
onthat date.

| \ [Emphasis of Matter \ \ \ LTI \ i

| | HWe draw attention to notes 43J and 44, regardihg mAtters of materiél ‘dM:ertainty ih relatibn ‘tU
| | lassets of the company and invéstments in subsidiaries respectively. Our opinion is hot qualified |
| | Hin respect of these matters. | | | 1 | N

o ‘ HReporton Other Legal and Régulatory Requiremehts [T ‘ I

| | I | | \ LI | I
‘rAsrequired bysection143(3)?ftheAct,werepfrt,to}heextentappli‘c?ﬁlﬁ,that: | B

| | @  We/the other auditors whose reports we have relied upon have|sought and|obtained gll |
the information and ex;ﬁlanations whicg to the best of our chTV\LIEdge and belief were
necessary for the purpose of our audit of the aforesai | nsolidatéd fingncUal‘
|| | I statements; | | | LTI | L

(b) In our opinion proper bé)oks of account gs required by law re‘aL(i‘rLé to prepaLation éf tMe‘
| \ [ aforesaid consolidated financial stateménts hive been kept solfdrlas it appears from olr|
| | H examination of those bqoks and reports ?fthe ?ther auditors; 1] | N

|| | llc)  The consolidated Balance Sheet, conlsoliddted Statement of| Profit and Loss, ahd|
| ‘ H consolidated Cash Flow Statement dea|t with‘ by this Report#at:ﬁ i‘n agreerqent witp trp‘e‘

books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
‘ ‘ ‘ H Statements; ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ H ‘

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the
| ‘ H Accounting Standards Epecified under Eectioh 133 of the A&t‘, ‘rbbd with R*ule 7 6f tHe‘
| | [ Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 ; | | 1] ] | | |] ]

| | H(e) On the basis of the wrihen representat#ons réceived from tHe‘ H‘illectors of‘the HJIdng‘
| | [ Company as on March 31, 2016 taken on record by the Board|of|Directors of the Halding|

Company and the reports of the auditors who are appointed uncLeir ?ection 1 ?9 ofth? AT;t, |
of its subsidiaries and associate compakies iAcorporated in IL Ja none of the directo#s
| \ I of the Group’s and of its|lassociates companies incorporated ih India is disqualified as o/
| | H March 31,2016 from befng appointed as@ direPtor interms ofﬁaﬂtipn 164 (2? oftheq’-\cq;‘ |

|| \ I \ \ \ [T \ i
102‘ \ Annual quort 20”5-2016 ‘ ‘ ‘ L1 ‘ |l |
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I \ | | | 111 \ |1l

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON CONSOLIDATED
I | FINANCIALS STATEMENTS | 1111 \ | 1] |

— &f) — The matters describedihtheEmphasis &Ma&ersparagraph %Uv‘erin ourdpinion,‘mé&/ L [
[ have an adverse effect on the functigning of the Holding| Campany, its subsidiary |
companies and its associates companies.

I \ \ | LT | L

H(g) With respect to the adelequacy and the perat{ng eﬁectiveneﬁ f the internal financiag‘
controls over financial reporting of the Holding Company, its Q ihiaries ar#d assotiak

| companies incorporated in India, refer|to our separate report|in|“Annexufe 1” tg this |

report; and

I | | | I | LI

H(h) With respect to the other matters to be includfd in the Audit?r"f I‘erort in ]accordfniﬁ
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, iJ1 ouropinion and to the

| best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: | [ ] ]

I i. The Consolidated findncial statements disclose the impact of pénding litigations on its |

H consolidated financiar position of the @roup‘and its associa}tﬁ,\?ﬂ Refer N?te 35 tP tr‘wF ‘
consolidated financial statements;

\ | LT | A

ii. The Group and its associates did not have any material foreseeable losses in Ionﬂ-
H term contracts includihg derivative conltracts. [ | | |

iii. There has been no éielay in transferrjing arkounts, require‘dwcl Be transférred, tJ) tf“—:“
[ Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company, its subsidiaries and |
associate companies incorporated in India.

H \ e 111 L
Other Matter \ i \ N

The accompanying consolidated fin‘ancial statements include total assets of
I Rs. 850.72 crores as at March 31, 2016, and total revenues ahd net cashloutflows of
H Rs. 169.80 crores and Rs. 209.15 crorqs for tpe year ended ‘op‘(ﬂat date, ip requct f‘

certain subsidiaries which have been audited by other auditors, which financial
[ statements, other finarlcial information/and auditor’s reports lhave been furnished to |
H us by the management. The consoIiFated financial statgnljrpts also Jnclud th |

Company’s share of ne& profit of Rs. 10.63 crgres for the ye rJ nded March 31, 2016,
[ as considered in the consolidated ffinancial statements,| fin| respect| of certdin|

associates, whose financial statements, other financial information have been audit E
H by other auditors arhd whose repgrts IJ'lave been fL‘Jr iﬁwed to Es by' t |
[ Management. Our opinion on the congolidated financial statements, in so far jas|jt|

relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries and
H associates, and our reﬁort in terms of sub-selctions (3) and HH of Section 143 of the |
I Act, in so far as it relates to the afoqesaid‘subsidiaries, @qlcm gssociateﬁ is bgsgg‘
| solely on the reportsofs‘uch otheraudito‘rs. | i | 1
Our opinion on the consolidated finaniial statements, and ir rf’port on Other egagl
and Regulatory Requirements above, is not modified in resﬁ M f the above m tteL' |
[ with respect to our reliance on the work done and the repprts of the other auditors |

and the financial statements and other financial information certified by the
I Management. \ | LT \ |1

For S.R. Batliboi &Associat‘es LLP | | T | T
IChartered Accountants | | | [ | LIl
HICAI Firm Registration Numbﬁr: 101049W/E390004‘ 11 | BN

I | | | LT | L
per Aniruddh Sankaran

Partner | . 1 o
[Membership Number: 211107 \ \ ] ] \ |l

IPlace : Chennai | | | LT | N
HDate : May 27, 2016 ‘ ‘ ‘ N | BN

I | | | 11T | LIl
I | \ \ 103 | Annual Report 2015-2016
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. | | ANNEXURE 1 TO THE INI:;EPENDENT AUBlToQ’s REPORT 0|L E\‘/EN DATE BN THE Il
| | I CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS|OF SUN TV NETWORK LIMITED | || |

T T - T o HT?epErt?n the Internal ﬁna@iaI*CoﬁtroTs tﬂﬁder FlaﬁseTi) J?tﬁ)ﬁ&ticﬁ 3Tof S*eﬁtﬁrn ‘*
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
| | I | | | LT | |1l

| \ ITo the Members of Sun TV Nétwork Limited | \ [T \ LI
| | [ | \ \ 1]

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of Sun +V Net\‘/vo‘ru
| | ILimited as of and for the year‘ended March 3ﬂ, 201‘6, we have audlitéd!the interhal finahcial !
| | [controls over financial reporting of Sun TV Network Limited (hereinafter referred to as the |

“Holding Company”), its subzidiaries (the Hchding Company and |‘t? rilubsidiarirs togeth r‘
. | Hreferred to as "the Group" ) and its associates compgnies, which arle ccl panies incorporat
| | lin India, as of that date. | | | [T | LI

| ‘ HManagement’s ResponsibiliqyforInternalFipanciglControIs B ‘ N

| | IThe respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company, its subsidiaries andl associates |
| ‘ ‘pompanies which are compaqies incorporateq in Ingia, are respoqutpl‘q for estaqﬂishing‘ aqug ‘
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal contr?l ?ver financial reportin
o | Hcriteria established by the Holéing Company cInside‘ring the essentigl (J:émponenth of intérn‘fl |
| | lcontrol stated in the Guidance Note on Auditl of Internal Financial CGontrols Over Financial |
| ‘ HReporting issued by the InstitPte of Chartereq Accquntants of Indim ‘ ‘T‘hese responsibi‘litigm
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
Mhat were operating effectivel)l for ensuring thé ordelrly and efficierh ucmduct of it‘s busiAes‘é, |
| | lincluding adherence to the regpective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its|assets, the |
I ‘ Hprevention and detection of frauds and errors, trpe accuracy anﬂ ‘qompleteqess of‘ tr‘lfz‘
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
| | lunder the Act. | | | LTI | L

| | H | o 1111 I
| | Auditor’s Responsibility | L i I

‘bur responsibility is to express‘an opinionon thla GrOL‘Jp'S and of its agécu:i%tes inter#wal finahcigl |
[ ] | Icontrols over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted odifaudit in accordance with |
| | ‘the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Finﬁncial Fontrols Over‘F‘imncial Rei)orting‘(tme‘
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, both, issued by Institute of Chartered
| | HAccountants of India, and deémed to be preséribed‘under section ‘1 é(‘10) of thé Act, t(l) tl%‘
| | lextent applicable to an audit of internal financial contfols. Those Stdridatds and the Guidance |
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and rm the audit to obtaj
| I 1 gments and plan and peffo plitto obtaj,
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
] ‘ Hreporting was established and maintained and if such controls &)ﬁéﬁted effedtively in all |
| | material respects. | o 11 I
o | HOur audit involves performing ‘procedures to ot‘>tain a‘udit evidence r‘:\t‘n‘)u the adeq‘uacy o‘f ttue |
] ‘ linternal financial controls systém over financial Peportfng and their ode\’é‘tihg effectiveness| OUr |
| | jaudit of internal financial contrels over financial reporting included obtginjng an ungerstanding |
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing tl risk that a maLeri |
] | HWeakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operatin‘g‘ if‘ectivenes‘s of int rn@l |
| | lcontrol based on the assessed risk. The procedlres selected deldend on the auditor’s |
| ‘ judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial |
statements,whetherduetofralfd orerror. | | I | B

|| \ I \ \ \ [T \ i
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ANNEXURE 1 TO THE INIJEPENDENT AUIJJITORJ’S REPORT o# EW:'N DATE BN THE |
I CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS|OF SUN TV NETWORK LIMITED | || |

I \ \ \ |1 \ |l
‘TWeFelieVe that the aﬁdit@vid?nce*weihavgo?t*aineﬁi and the alﬁit‘eﬁifj{fnceiobt?ﬁed*byﬁf ‘7
other auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is
‘Euﬁicient and appropriate to brovide a basis ‘for odr audit opinioer UH ‘the interﬁal fina‘nci‘él‘

[controls system over financial reporting. | | [ 1] ] | [ ]

‘Plleaning of Internal Financia‘ControIs OverrinanfialReporting‘ m | B

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regardfng the reliabilitﬁl of financial reportiﬁd and the préparati&n of |
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted| accounting |

rinciples. Acompany's internﬂl financial contrql over‘financial reporthﬂ mcludes thPse pol‘ici?f |
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
Laccurately and fairly reflect th<—:J transactions anH dispbsitions of the égsléﬂs of the c&mpani/; (H) |
lprovide reasonable assurance that transactions jare recorded |ds | hecessary to permit|
‘Preparation of financial stat?ments in accqrdancp with generqllwqccepted ‘accouptir‘mg‘

rinciples, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
Eccordance with authorisationg of managemerJt and hirectors of the‘cUranany; an(J (3) prévi&} |
Freasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection ofluHalthorised lacquisition, |
Juse, or disposition of the company's assets thgt cou‘ld have a matqri‘qlwﬁect on t‘he fina‘nciﬁl ‘
pratements. | o i R

therentLimitationsoflnterrLaI FinancialCoL‘:troIs‘OverFinanci;I‘IﬂeLorﬁng | Il
I \ \ \ LTI \ L

Because of the inherent limitations of interrlal financial controls| éVer financidl repotting, |
‘Fncluding the possibility of col’usion or improger mqnagement ovqrqigp‘ of contrqls, maFeri@l‘
‘fnisstatements due to error or fraud may occur and Eot be detecte?.ﬁljo, projec}ions oLaT |
evaluation of the internal finanéial controls over financial reporting to fu{u € periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over findncial repor‘[ing\ Hnw become\inadeduakb\
fpecause of changes in condjtions, or that the degree of compliance| with the| policies or |
‘Procedures may deteriorate. | | | 11 | R

bopinion | | i T
H | | i o

In our opinion, the Holding Company, its subsidiariés and associatels companies, which are |
jcompanies incorporated in India, have, maintained in all material| respects, an adequate |
internal financial controls syst?m over financiﬁl repo‘rting and such inL nal finan?ial coqtrﬂlﬁ
over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 264 , Lased on the internal
control over financial reportind criteria established Hy the Holding bb‘rjnbany conéideriné} the |
lessential components of intefnal control stated in the Guidance Npte on Audit of Internal |
‘rinancial Controls Over Finan?ial Reporting issPed b)( the Institute of‘ q‘lﬂ'tered Ac?ountarvts ﬂf |
ndia.

I \ \ \ LT \ L
I | | | [T | I
I | | | LI | I
I | | | LI | I

I | | | 11T | LIl
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] | ANNI%&(URE 1 TO THE INDEPENDEb‘lT AUDITOR’S RJEPOQT OF EVEN DAH% %N THE | I
| \ CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF SUN TV NETWORK LIMITED \ |1l

| OtherMatters | | I R | N
| | H | | R | |1l

| Our report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal

}inancial ‘controIsHover financial reporting of the' Group and of ité assot:iates, insofar %g‘itt ‘relates to‘ these b I

| subsidiady and 10 associates companies, which are companies indorporated in Ihdia, is based on the || |
‘ porrespopding rePor‘[s of the auditors of such suQsidiaryand asso‘ciates‘incorporatediq Iﬂqip. ‘ ||

| ‘ForS.R. Eatlibo#‘&Associates LLP | | | T | I
| bharterehAccouﬂ'ntants ‘ ‘ | I | [ I] ]
| ICAIFirm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004 | \ LI \ LI

| ‘perAnirl‘Jddh Saanaran | | | LT | T

" lpartner | I \ \ \ i \ N
| Membership Number: 211107 | \ \ LT \ |1l

| | I | | | [T | I
‘ ‘Placeof$ignaturﬁe:Chennai ‘ ‘ ‘ L] ‘ ||

Date: May 27,2016
| Y ﬂ \ \ \ LT \ L

| | I | | | LTI | L
| \ I \ \ \ LTI \ N
| | I | | | LI | i
|| | I | | | LTI | L
| | I | | | LT | L
| \ I \ \ \ LTI \ L
[Thisspacehasbeenir‘ntentionallyleftblank] | LT | ]
| \ I \ \ \ LTI \ N
| | I | | | LI | i
|| | I | | | LTI | L
| | I | | | LT | L
| \ I \ \ \ LTI \ L
| | I | | | LTI | L
| \ I \ \ \ LTI \ N
| | I | | | LI | i
|| | I | | | LTI | L
| | I | | | LT | L
| \ I \ \ \ LTI \ L
| | \ l \ \ \ L \ i

|| \ I \ \ \ [T \ i
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| | H Consolidated Balar‘we Sheet as at‘ March’: 31, 2016 1T | LIl
| | [ (All amounts are in crores of Indian Rupees, ynless otherwise stated) | || | | |l
g r_- v _ i T
|| \ [ \ Nates | March31,2016 | March31,2015 || |
‘Eqpityand'iabiliti% | | | LIl | |
Shareholders’ funds ‘ ‘ ‘ e ‘ b
| Share capital H \ 3| 197.04 | 197.04 |||
|Reserves and surplys | |4 | 3,329.30 | 3,151.10 || |
| | ! | ] 3.526:34 H34814
Minority Interest | | . 175.56 | | 5467 |l
| | I | | | LTI | LI
‘Prqference§haresirﬂsubsidiaryheld byminoritysh§reholders ‘ ‘ QCMW ‘ 93.49 I |

Non-current liabilities
‘De#erredtaQIiabiIitanet) | ‘5 | 12“#]H | 22.555 I
|Other long-term liabilities | 6 | 6.18 | | 385 |l
|Long-term provisions | |7 | | 111 | 047 ||
24, 26.9
| o | o 9 289
Current liabilities | ‘ ‘ ‘ T ‘ I
|Trade payables | | o i I
- total outstanding dpes of micro enterprises and small enterprises
| I . |11 T
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises
‘anél small eﬁterpriseﬂs 8 | 8W7W | | 71.9* I
|Other current liabilities | |9 | 173.80 | [142.63 || |
‘ShPrt-term Rrovisiqu | 1‘0 | 14.81, | 736 |
2035 22190
" I totaL! ” | . 4,000.64 | 374502 ||
| | I | | | [T \ R
Aspets | | | | L Y
Nop-currentassety | o i o
Fixed asset
‘Tangible assets | | 1 453.66 | 1731.13 I |
|Intangible assets | | 12 | 455.06 | |448.08 || |
‘Ca italworlj—in-prog ess | | | 324‘ | | 1.8Z I
Non-currentinvestments 13 336. g 225.6
| Deferred tax assets ﬁnet) | 14 | 1.4 | | LI
|Long-term Idans and advances | 15 | 181.99 | |307.51 || |
‘OtWernon-cHrrentaﬁsetS | 1‘6 | 31.%‘ | 27.34} I
| | ” | . 1,460.57 | 174149 ||
|Currentasgets | \ \ \ LT \ N
Currentinvestment 17 255. 280.1
\l Ft. N 9 | 1\8 | 113\ | 04 N
nventories . .
‘Trgde recei\JabIes H | 1‘9 | 821.&3‘ | ‘757.4 I
'Cash and bank balafces | 20 | 1,093.06 | 1759.29 || |
|Short-term lpans and advances \ 21 \ 111.95 | [109.50 || |
‘Otr‘wercurrerrtassetﬁ‘ | %2 | 343.71 | 96.61 |
2,630.07 2,003.53
| toTALl H | . 4,090.64 | 3,745.02 || |
|| \ | \ \ \ L \ | L]

[T \ i
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Sun TV Network Limited | | 1 L
|| | | | | | LI | LI
| | | Consolidated BalaJ’uce Sheet as at‘ March 31, 2016 1T | I
| | [ (All amounts are in crores of Indian Rupees, ynless otherwise stated) ||| | | |1
L +r v __+___ 1 S S N L
Surhmary of significdnt accounting policies | 2 | | [T \ N
| \ I \ \ \ LTI \ N
‘Thq accompgnying rﬂotes are an integral part of thq financial staten‘\ents.‘ 1] ‘ ]|
As per our report of even date.
| \ I \ \ \ LTI \ L
For'S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP | For and on behalf of the board of directors | | I'|
Chartered A¢countanits | | | LT | L
ICAI Firm registration number: 101049W/E300004 | \ \ [T \ N
|| | I | | | LTI | L
| | I | | | LT | L
| \ I | \ LTI \ L
er Aniruddh Sankaran Kalanithi Maran K Vijaykumar
Ea ner | ! Chairman | ManagiLg‘Elrector &‘ _
f\/lenjnbership‘No.: 214107 | | | Chief E&&mive Officér I
| | I | | | LI | i
|| | I | | | LTI | L
Place : Chennai | | | | LT | L
Datg : May 27, 2016 | R. Ravi | | V C Unnikrishnan | | ] |
I ‘ H ‘ Company Sechtary ‘ Chief Fi‘ngmial Officely N
| \ I \ \ LTI \ N
Place : Chennai
| | I Date:May27,2016‘ LI | i
|| | I | | | LTI | L
| | I | | | LT | L
| \ I \ \ \ LTI \ L
|| | I | | | [ | N
| \ I \ \ \ LTI \ N
| | I | \ | LI | i
o | I [This space has‘been intentionaxly Ieft‘blank] 1 | BN
| | I | | | LT | L
| \ I \ \ \ LTI \ L
|| | I | | | [ | N
| \ I \ \ \ LTI \ N
| | I | | | LI | i
|| | I | | | LTI | L
| | I | | | LT | L
| \ I \ \ \ LTI \ L
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Consolidated Statement of Profit‘ and Loss for tlile yea‘r ended Marc‘h‘ %‘, 2016

| (All amounts are in crores of Indian Rupees, except in respedt of number and per sharg| iriformation)|

||
- March 31, 2015

\
| u | Nofes | Warch 31, 2918, T
ndome | H | o 111 I
evenues flom opetations \ l23 | 2,560!/78! 12,395/38 | |
|Other income I | 124 | 110163 | 98191 |
‘To$al revenue (U] I ‘ ‘ ‘ 2,680.41, | 2,494,29 ‘
\Ex\enses \ I \ \ \ LI \ N
‘CoEts of re\)enues H | ‘25 | 30‘1 ‘éb‘ | 287.‘50H |
‘Erﬁployees“benefité‘ expense ‘ 26 | 27163/ | 235l08! |
|Other experises | | |27 | 210/48| | 188162 |
‘Adyertisemgnt and lﬂnarketing expenses ‘ ‘28 ‘ 1‘1 iEF?\ ‘ 6{94” ‘
Depreciation and amortization expense 29 50 615,31
Depreciation and amortization exp | 29 A3t 8153
Finance costs 30 2.20 ‘ 229
Total () | H | . 1,302/73/ 133574 |
|| \ I \ \ \ TTTTT [ IRIR
|Profit beforte extradrdinary items and tax () - (1) | | 1,377/68| 11,158/55| |
| | I | | | I | LI
‘Exﬁraordlnal"y |temsH | ‘31 | 1‘7ﬁ)h | IR
‘Prc:‘)fit befor‘e tax aAer extraordinary items | | 1,39‘5.‘&‘ | 1,158.‘55‘ a
| \ I \ \ \ LI \ N
|Tax expenses I \ \ \ LI \ N
|Current tax | I \ \ \ 474{52| | 384{08] |
‘er‘umum Al}ernatlwﬂ Tax credit ‘ ‘ ‘ F@?‘ ‘ (4T74M ‘
‘DeIerred ta>‘< H | | | (5,02) ‘ (3,38) |
Total tax expense 475.49 ' 375.96
| Profit before minoJlity interest & | | | FT ! T
'Share in Net Profitlof associates | \ | 920/16/ | 782/59 | |
|| \ I \ \ \ LI \ N
‘Shgre in Prqflts fronH1 Associates ‘ ‘ ‘ 1pﬁ>§‘ ‘ 13153” ‘
| ‘ I ‘ ‘ ‘ L1 | L1
Profit after taxes ‘ o 930.79 | 79612 ‘
[TTTT \ [
Profit attributable to: \ I N \ ]
|Owners of equity | \ \ \ 918138 | 78204 |
‘Mir‘writy Inte‘rest H | | | 17,41 | 14,08
930.79' ' 796112
| \ I \ \ \ 11T | 1|
‘Pr?fit after‘taxes H ‘ ‘ ‘ 913,38, | 782,04 ‘
| | |

mSH ‘Annual &epoﬂ %01@-2016
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| \ I
Suq T\( Network Limi}ed

Con&olldated Statement of Profi
| ] |(All amolints are in crores of Indian Rupee

it
5

and Loss for the yeiar ended March h %‘1‘, 2016

except in respect of number and per sharg riformation) [ |||

|
March 31, 201

\ |
6 March 31,2015

| EJrnings per sharL information before extraorhinary items:

‘ th profit aqtributabhe to equity shareholders befor‘e extraordinary items ‘

‘ Wéighted aL\/erage }Humber of equity shares outsténding ‘ ‘

| Basic and diluted earnings per share (Rs.)
| N?minal va!ue of ecﬂuity share (Rs.)

| Edrnings per share information after extraordihary items: | |

Net profit attributabve to equity shareholders after ‘extraordinary ite‘ms

‘ ngghted average lpumber of equity shares outstqnding ‘ ‘

Basic and diluted earnings per share (Rs.)
| Némlnal vaiue of e(Qunty share (Rs.)

‘ Sl{mmary ofsignifiCﬁant accounting policies

\ |
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

| ForS.R. BATLIBOII& ASSOCIATES LLP

| Chartered Accountgnts

As‘ perour réport of lven date.

| ICAIFirm registration number: 101049W/E300004

| pe‘rAnirud(‘ih SankHaran

| Pgrtner | H
| Mémbership No.: 211107
| | I

| \ I
‘ Plgce:Chepnai I
| Dqte:May%7,2016H

2 ]

LI | N

LI | N
89341 | 78304
39,40,84,620 39/40,84,620! |
2272 | 1984 |

Nk I

LI \ N

913.38 785 04|

39,40 84 @g‘q 39,40, 8:9@:? |
‘é b‘d " 500

For and on behalf of the boatd|df directors LI

Kalanithi Mar‘an

Chairman

R. Ravi | |
Company Seﬁretary‘

Place: Chenn‘ai |
Date : May 27,‘ 2016‘

LI | i
LTI | L
LT | L
LTI \ L
KVija‘yL‘u‘r‘nar | ]
ManaéiH&birectoré I

ChiefExecutive Offider | |1
[T | |1

i T
VCUnnikrishnan |

Chlefrlﬂﬂmalomc?r B
LI | i
LTI | L
LT | L
LTI \ L
L \ i
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\ \ AN
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH
(All amounts are in crores df Indian Rupees, Unless btherwise stated) ||| |

|
March 31, 2016

March 31, 2015 | |

Faﬁh flow fr‘om opﬂrating activities

ket‘ profit before taxation

] Deﬁreciatio% on tangible assets

| Amortisatioh of intangible assets
| (Profit)/Loss on sale of fixed assets, net |
| Trapslation ‘Foss / (gain) on monetary assqts and Iiabilities‘

9

Provision for claims and litigations

Provision f

| Bad debts /Hlnput credit written off

ProL/ision fo

A‘djustmer{ts to regoncile:

r doubtful debts/Movie advanﬁes and other ASFets |

r FM License fees

1,377.68

75.81 |
429.683 |
152
(1-11)
gl
1.08
2,05
478

| Liabilities / provisions no longer required written back and|Revetsal of LT

| proyision fof bad and doubtful debts
| Intqrest inc?me

| Divi‘

Intqrest expense

dend inﬁome/ Net gain on sale of curr?nt investments

(6.43)
(79.18)
il

2.03

1,‘158.54 I
RN
' 89.21 Il
1526.10 || |
| 039 |||
I N
1999

1.01
\ I

L
| B
| (2.02) || |
1(72.83) | |
‘(15.8%)
176

bpérating p‘rofit before working capital changeé

Movements in workir%g capital :
[ ] (Increase) /|Decrease in trade receivableg
|| (Increase) /|Decrease in inventories
o (Inﬁrease) /HDecrease in other current assFts

(Increase) / Decrease in loans and advances

Increase

/ (P_')ecrease) in trade payables and other Iiabilitie‘s
Inchease / (Hi)ecrease) in provisions

1,813.04
[T

[
(80.26)|
(0-65),
(7@@)
S
0.83 |

1,697.76
\ LIl ]
| LIl
(135.30) || |
- 0.09 |y
(36.80) | |
(4.20)
| 24.44 I

0ad) I

Cash generéted from / (used in) operations
Dirgct taxes paid (nel of refunds)

1,787.61 |
(462.21)|

1)545.87 || |
383.60) || |

Net|cash flow from |/ (used in) operating activities (A)

1325.34

(
1/162.27 || |

Purchase of fixed assets, capital work in progress

Eurjshase of‘

f’urf:hase of purrent ”nvestments
Beqemption ‘of currenﬂ investments

Cash flows (used in) / from investing activities

intangib“e assets and expenditure on intangible assets unde
development (including advances towards purchase of intangible assets)

|
including capital advances) (40.00)

i
I
i

(333.46)

(718.12)

il
i
i
i
i
L1

| LI
(29.30
\ f

(#10.70) || |
(P14.76‘) 1IN

‘494.11‘ N
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| I | o 1111 T
Sun Ty Network Limited | | 111 L

| \ H | N NIy \ N
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2016

| | [ (All amounts are in crores of Indian Rupees, unless|otherwise stated)| | | | | ||l

March 31, 2016 March 31,2015 |

\ \
: : :

r’rOfeeds frﬂm sale Wf assets | | | 0 6‘ I | 1.17 B
Investment in Associates (100.00) -

lTerrln deposi{s place% with banks during the year | | | (969‘.&&“ | (2383.31; Il
ﬁ'errln deposi{s refuncyed from banks during the yearL | | 737‘.54‘ | 542.20‘ I
Interest received | | | | 80l58 | | 66.47 | |l |
Pividends income / Net gain on sale of current invegstments | | 13123 | [16.82 | || |
Net cash from / (used in) investing activities (B) | | (586,65), | (518.30) | |
| | | I | | | LT | L
‘Cas‘h flows ‘(used irﬁ) I from financing activities | | | m | ol
Loa‘ns availe‘d H | | | 1,17&.%&%‘ | ‘793.66 I
Loa‘ns repaid | | | | (1,17@.%5‘ t793.6(ﬁ) ]
Proteeds from Issudl of Equity Shares in Subsidiary \ \ 105.20 | \ N
Proposed dividends paid | | | || H | | (88.67) || |
‘Tax‘on propqsed divqpends paid ‘ ‘ ‘ RN ‘ (15.0{) Il |
Fnte‘rim divid?nds paﬁp | | | (61(%.%5?‘ *443.3?) N
Tax,on interim dividends paid 124. 85.9

faxjon Interim dividepds p | o (12599, 8598
Interest paid (2.03? (1.76)
| | I | | | LI | I
Net cash (used in) / from financing activities (C) ! ! (632.01)’ (634.83) '
| | I | | | LI | I
Exchange differences on translation of foreign currency cash \ \ I \ LI
and cash equivalents (D) | o (0.13)] | | (0.20) || |
| | I | | | [T | I
Plet‘ increas? / (decnﬂease) in cash and cash equi‘valents (A+B+P+D )‘ 10?.??‘ | | 8.94} N
‘CasTh and ca§h equi\ﬁalents at the beginning of the year | | 4%.4}% | | 39.54} N
:Cas:h and césh equ::ivalents at the end of the ye::ar 155.03 ‘ 48.4$ o

| |
[This space has‘been intentiona‘ly Ieft‘blank]
\ \
| |

|| \ I \ \ \ [T \ i
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\ \ AN
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH
| (All amounts are in crores df Indian Rupees, Unless btherwise stated) ||| |

\ N
31,2016

Notes | | ‘ | March 31,2016 |

March 31, 2015

a) The reconciliation to the cash and bank balances as given in Note 20 is as follows :

. Cas‘h and bLnk balances, per Note 20 | | | 1,094.&5‘ | ‘759.2$ I
| Lesg : Terdeeposits placed with banks | | | (9354.6{%&‘ é710.8{) I
] Cash and cash equivalents, end of yea# ! ! 155.03! | | 48.48 I |
| | I | | | LI | I
b) Gomponents of cash and cash equivalents | | | 1] ] | | ]
| Casrh and cpeques on hand ‘ ‘ ‘ 10%.]%)‘ ‘ ‘ 0.07[ IR
o Wit‘h banks‘r on current account | | | 4?4?\ | | 48.1? N

- on unpaid dividend accounts (restricted)*

| L | L il I Y

* These balances are not available for use by the Company as they represent corresponding unpaid dividen
ablitios. T P fey re eSPAN pid dividgnd
LI | I

| \ I \ \ \
ﬁs ﬁ)erourrﬁportofﬁven date | | | 1] | B
I | LI

| | [ | | |
ror‘S.R. BA"I'LIBOI ﬁASSOCIATES LLP | For and on bePalf o‘f the board ofﬁimctors | BN
LT \ L

phqrtered chountaq}ts ‘ ‘ ‘
ICA‘I Firm re?istratiorH] number: 101049W/E300004‘ m | ol
I \ L

\
K Vijaykumar \ N

| | I | | |
ber\Anirudd\h Sankaran | Kalanithi Maran |

Ela ner ‘ q ‘Chairman ‘ ‘ Managi‘np‘ Rirector &‘ ]
embership No.: 211107 Chief Executive Officer

| | I | | | [T | I
biake - Chodnai ! | | 1] L
Date : May 27, 2016| | R. Ravi | | V C Unhikrishnan | [ 1]
o | H | Company Sechtary | Chief F‘irﬁr‘wﬁ;ial Officar N

| Place : Chenndi |

o | H | Date : May 27,‘2016‘
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] | \ \ LI | Lol |
NOTES 1Jo THE EONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR LrHE YEAR ErJDHJ MARCH 31, 2016

|| \ [ (All amounts are in crores of Indian Rupees, Unless btherwise stated} ] \ Ll

o ‘1 ~ Background and corporate information N

Sun TV Network Limited ('Sun TV' or 'the Company') was incorporated on December 18, 1985 as
Su#\angali Publications Private LiLnited. The ComL)any ig engaged in pH(JjM:ing and tgroadcgstmg
| ‘ satéllite television and radio software programminb in the regional Ianghéﬁds of South India! The
[ ] | Company is listed on the Bombay $tock Exchange ('BSE’) and the National $tock Exchange ('NSE’)
| | inipdia. | o 1 I
| \ I \ \ | LT \ LI

The Company has two subsidiaries — Kal Radio Limjted ('KRL') and E‘@uth Asia‘ FM Li‘mijjj
("SAFML") both of which are incorporated in India. KRL was incorporateé c‘>i1 ctober 7, 2005 as Ka
| | Radio Private Limited and 97.8% (March 31, 2015 1 97.8%) of its paid up eduity share capital is héld
| | by $unTV. SAFML was incorporated on Novembeér 9, 2005 as South Asia FIM Private Limited dd
| |  asatthe balance sheet date, the Gompany holds 59.44 % (March 31, 2015 +59.15%) of its paid|up
| | eqtﬂity share capital. KRL and SAF‘:ML are engagep in pwoducing and bmﬂi?asting reﬂdio soffwzﬂ'q

programming in Indian regional languages. KRL and SAFML are hereinafter collectively referred to

as 'Eubsidiaries‘. | | | T | T
| | I | | | LTI | L
| ‘ Sun TV along with its Subsidiaries is hereinafter coll‘ectivdly referred to as 'the ‘Group’. ‘ I
| | I | | | LI | i
| | The Group currently operates television channels in four|South Indian languages predominantly to
I ‘ vie\ﬂvers in India, and also to view§rs in Sri Lanka, ‘Singa‘pore, Malaysia‘, Hr‘]ifed Kingd‘om, EWOP\91
Micﬂ‘dle East, United States, Australia, South Afric? and ‘Canada. The ?r\%“frls fIagsth chawne ‘is‘
Sun TV. The other major satellite channels of the Group are Surya TV, Gemini TV and Udaya TV. The
| | GrJup is also into the business of ‘FM Radio broadkastinb at Chennai, ééiHﬁEatore anH Tirunielv@li.‘
| | Thé Company also has the license to operate an Indian Premier Leagué |(‘IPL’) franchisel “Sin
| | Risgrs Hyderabad”. KRL operates| 18 Frequency Modulation ('FM’) stations in South India. SAFML
| | opeﬂrate323 FM stations. | | | 1] | BN

| \ [ \ \ \ LT \ L
SAFML'’s strategic alliance with Red FM | O 0

. | ThJ Group, through its subsidiary %AFML had ente‘red into a strategic tie-up with Red LM Grc‘>up to

] | further its FM Radio broadcasting‘business in the North,‘West and East Indian markets. As 6ar{‘o%
|| | theltransaction, SAFML has taken lip a 48.9% beneficial interest in the Réd FM Radio Companies|by
|| \ acquiring the equity of their holding Companies atpar. | LI \ | ]
|| | I | | | LTI | L
| | I | | | LT | L
| \ I \ \ \ LTI \ L
| | I | | | LTI | L
| | H [This spacé has been intent#onallﬂ left blank] 1T | N
| | I | | | LI | i
|| | I | | | LTI | L
| | I | | | LT | L
| \ I \ \ \ LTI \ L
| | \ l \ \ \ L \ i

|| \ I \ \ \ [T \ i
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|
. SAFML has e?ec:tﬂ*ted*cer@n agreements with Te promoters of‘T?edTMT)y WhicFit‘ ﬁaf‘&taﬁedﬁigrﬁi?arﬁ
|

\ \ | \ \ I
thTES TO THE gONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR EN$E[L MARCI-X 31, 2&16
\ \ [ (All amounts are in crores of Indian Rupees, Unless btherwise stated) ] \ Ll

which are incorporated in India: |

influence in the following Red FM companies, all o

| | H Name | | Effective holding of the Group L
| | | | }Marct}\ 31, 2016 ¥ }l\‘n‘grch 31, ‘2015 my
Peccan I.?igital Nnatworks (Hyderabad) Private Himited* | 1}7.22% N 17.14°/T my
Netro Di?ital Netﬁ/vorks (Hyderabad) Private Lir?ited* | 1i7.22% e 17.14°/T -y
AV Digital Networks (Hyderabad) Private Limited* ‘ 17.22% L 1714% L

bioneer I&adio Tr”aining Services Private Limitec‘i** | 2‘9.06% o 28.92"/0 i
%outh Asiia MuItirLedia Private Limited** | | 59.06% 1T 28.92"/; il
Optimum Media Services Private Limited™ | | 29.06% LY R
Asia Radio Broadcast Private Limited** | | 29.06% 1T 289205 1 111
Digital Radio (Délhi) Broadcasting Limited** | | 29.06% T 28.929% i
Digital Radio (Mumbai) Broadcasting Limited ** | 29.06% T 28.92% I
Digital Radio (Kolkata) Broadcasting Limited ** | 29.06% T 28.92% 1)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies

| \ I | | | LT | L
*-ISAFMLﬁeffectiveholding is28.99%. | | | I | B

| ThF Comp?nies listed above are hereinaftFr collectively ref‘erred Fo as 'Associatgs" n | R

> 7 SAFMH"S effective holding is 48.89%.

\ \ I \ \ \ I \ L
| a)‘Basistpreparation | | | ] | B

Thﬁ ConscHIidated Financial Statements $‘CFS’) of the GToup Wave been preyiar d in accorjance Yvith‘ |

generally accepted accounting principles in India (Indian GAAP). The Group ha ;L ééared these financigl

| stdtements to comply in all material respelcts with the Accdunting Standards spéctified under section 138 |

‘ of Fhe Act, ﬂead with Rule 7 of the Compar‘\ies (Accounts) Fﬁules, ‘2014 to reflect ‘tnﬁe‘fi‘nancial pPsition Png‘ ‘
the results of operations of the Group. The Consolidated financial statements have been prepared on an

| actrual basis and under the historical costiconvention. The‘accodnting policies aJdUﬂtEd inthe dreparakioH |

| of financialjstatements are consistent with those of previous year, 1] ] | | |] ]

\ b) | Princigles of consolidation \ | | [T \ LI

[ | Subsidiaries: | | | [T [ [

a e consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prep ased on a line-by-

| | Tp1 lidated fi ial é f th GE hg b gr%é‘b d A li ‘b)ﬂ |
| | line consolidation of the Balance Sheet, at March 31,/2016 and Statemeént of Profit and Loss |
a‘Pd CashFlowsof SunTV, KRL% SAFML forthe P/ear epded March 31 | %W P | N

\ | The financial statements of the, Subsidiaries used foq consolidation |grg drawn foq the same |

| | erorting period as that of the Co‘mpanyi.e.year?nded ‘March 31, 201?.‘ I | B

‘ a AJl material inter-company tranpactions and bqlancefs between the‘ ?p‘ti‘ties incluped in‘thﬂ ‘
consolidated financial statements have been eliminated.

| | I | | | 11T | LIl
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\ \ \ \ \ \ I
thTES TO THE !:ONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENI£EI$ MARCI-X 31, 2316
|| \ [ (All amounts are in crores of Indian Rupees, Unless btherwise stated} ] \ Ll

L+ 1 A _ 1
| ? Soonrlfglllldatlonuls applied from the date of ob}almng control b}/ the Proup, till the (ﬁtﬁ \(vhen the ‘Group ‘Io%ﬁ

| @ On cessation of control, the difference between the proceeds from the disposal of invéstment in the subsidiary
o and th carryirwg amount of its assets less Iiatfilities as of the dﬁte of ‘disposal is rec?qr‘lﬁed in the Ftatemﬁn} ‘of
Profit and Loss as the profit or loss on the disposal of the investment in the subsidiary.

| @ Anyexcess/ghortage of cost to the Group of its investment in the Subsidiaries overlits proportionate share|in
the equity of shJch subsidiaries as at the date of the investment are (ecognized as ijwill / capiﬁal reserv? iq

| | | \ Il
the CFS.

|| | I | | | LT | L

| & Minority interdsts have been excluded. Minodrity interests represent that part of thie/mét profit or lloss and het
| assetﬁ ofsubshdiaries thatare not, directly or irpdirectly, owned Pr confrolled by the grﬂlﬁ.‘ | BN

Associates:
| | I | | | LI | I
@ The in‘vestmeqt in the associate companies has been accounted UI"lder the equity@nﬁtmod as pe‘r Acconth
Standard 23 — ‘Accounting for Investments in Associates in Consolidated Financial Statements’ notified by the
| Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2014 (as amended). The Group’s shard in profits / losses of lan
| associate company is accounted for to the e?(tent of the Grogp’s difect and indire?twﬂcentage poldinq inth
share capital of the respective associates.

| & Any excess / shortage of cost to the Group of its investment in the associates over its b‘rbbortionaté sharelin thé
| equity‘ofsuch ﬁassociates as atthe date of the investment are iqentifiqd as goodwill / ijtgl reserve inthe (PF% ‘

o All material unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between the group and the associates are
| eliminated to the extent of the group’s interestin the associate. \ [T \ N

P Equitw accounwing for associates is applied frq)m the date of oQtaining significant inf\ugqqe by the @roup, }ill qu
date when the Group loses significantinfluence.

The/ CFS have been drepared using uniform accounﬂing policies, excépt stated otherwise, forllike transactions and are
pre§ented to Fhe exte’pt possible, inthe same manner as the Company’s segarate financial §qqqqments. ‘ N

c) Useofestimates
| Tlhe prepaL'ation olﬂfinancial statements in conforrhity with Indian dAAP #equires manaée‘rwnt to makéjudgn%er“s,‘
| estimatesjand assjumptions that affect the reportéd amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the
| disclosure‘ of contjngent liabilities, at the end of the reporting ﬂeriod. Although these‘fﬁf[i]mates aLe basrt]d zg
rA]anagement’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertain{y about these assumptions and esti a{
| cbuld result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in futlire

| periods. H | I R | N

d‘) TangiLIefixeth assets and depreciation | | T | I

Hixed assets

ﬁixed asséts are ékated at cost less accumulated depreciation an‘d impgirment Iosses,‘ i# QHy Cost c&mprisés W\(—:l

| purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for jts intended use. Borrowing

| crsts, if any, relatirwg to acquisition of qualifying fi)ﬁed assets are alfo incl‘uded to the extfm }r‘\ey relate ‘to the Rerﬁtﬁ
till such assets are'ready to be putto use.

|| \ I \ \ \ [T \ i
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NOTES TO THE éONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCI-X 31,2016

| \ [ (All amounts are in crores df Indian Rupees, dnless btherwise stated) I \ |1l

| |
| Tix&i aiset?unfer ‘construction EndeeTas%tsEcqﬁrecT bwt*not*?ut*to use at t?ﬁtﬁﬁncgsh‘éet Eaﬁe*?ﬁ*
classified as capital work in progress.

| |Subsequent expénditure related to an item of fiked asset is added to its book value only fflit increases the future
| ‘benefits Irom thelexisting asset beyond its prevjously assessed stan(ifrd of performTcgt.‘All other ﬁxpenses Tg
existing fixed assets, including day-to-day repair and maintenance expenditure and J) of replacing partg, é

| |chargedto the statement of profit and loss for the period during which such expenses are in¢urred. | [ ] |

| | I | | | LI | I
Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of fixed assets arf mejsured as the jifgf&rz]nce bet\Teen the nej
|

| disposal‘proceegs and the carrying amount of khe asset and are recognized in the st ent of profit an Ic%
| |whenthe assetis derecognized | | [ 1] ] | [l

|| \ I \ \ \ LT \ L
| ‘The Group ident&fies and determines separate useful life for ezj:h ma}jor componenﬁ ?f‘ me fixed arsets, if trmy‘

have useful life that is materially different fror% that of the remaining asset and the cost of aquisition of the
| |componéntto thd total cost of the assets is matefial \ \ LT \ N

| | [ | I 1] | |
| |Reprecigtion \ I 1] \ I

| ‘Based onan teCTicaI assessment and a review of past history oI asseLusage, managﬁﬂfpt ofthe CLompa y rlﬁ
determirJed thatJ e estimates of useful lives of fixed assets as at March 31, 2014 continue to be appropriate and,

| |accordingly, has Inot revised such useful lives td those referred to under schedule Il to thelCompanies Act,|2013
| |(asamended). | o 1111 I

Depreciation on tangible fixed assets other than aircraft and leasehold improvements is provided on written down
| value méthod, using the rates arrived at based J)n the useful Iivés estirlnated by the m%hgdement. The Corﬁpéw
| |hasused the follgwing rates to provide depreciation on its fixed agsets. | [T | [

|| \ f \ \ \ Percent ||| N
| Buildings | \ \ \ 5.00 - 13(91 ] LI
|| Plant and machinery | | | 13.91-20001 | \ |l
| Conpputer aﬂ1d related equipment ‘ ‘ ‘ 40.00‘ i ‘ N
| Furniture and fittings | | | 18.10, || N
|| Offie equipment | - 1391 4 Ll
Mot?r Vehic‘l‘es 25.89
I I

| ‘Leaseho‘ld improHvements are depreciated over ‘the lower of estir‘nated‘useful lives of Me‘ ‘a‘ssets or tr‘m rem:‘jinir‘\g‘
| \primary ﬁ)eriod ofithe lease. The average useful life of leasehold iﬁnprovéments is3to 8\y@érb. | L

| |Costs ircurred towards purchase of aircraft are depreciated using the straight-line method based |on
| ‘manage@ent'seftimateofusefulIifeofsuchair?rafts,i.e.15yea‘rs. | Emn | N

| \ I \ \ \ LTI \ N
| ‘Fixed anets indiridually costing Rs 5,000/- orlefs are entirely dﬁpreci?ted on purchaﬁe‘.‘ I | B
|| | I | | | LTI | L
| | I | | | LT | L
| \ I \ \ \ LTI \ L
| | \ l \ \ \ L \ i

| \ H \ | LI \ i
| \ H \ . B el At 2 UL
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thTES TO THE !:ONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENI£EI$ MARCI-X 31, 2316
|| \ [ (All amounts are in crores of Indian Rupees, Unless btherwise stated} ] \ Ll

|| \ I \ \ \ [T \ |1l
The gross block of plant and machinery as at March f T?;67ncﬁde§c *Loﬁ)roﬁra*pro*d (ﬂ -
| eduipmen ofRs. 122.14 crores(PreviouéYearRs. 151.72 crores), post producﬁi ‘équipmen ofRs.%Q.?g
|| crores (Previous Year Rs. 68.52 crores), feception and distribution facilities of R${195.76 crores (Previous
Year Rs. 210.60 crores), computer and related equipment of Rs. 128.77 crores (Previous Year Rs. 118.63
| crbres) and aircraft of Rs. 295.15 crores (Previous YearlRs. 295.15 crores). The het block of plaﬁt dnd
| mgchineryﬂ as at March 31, 2016 includgs the net block ‘of program productiq)rggquipment pf Rs. ‘18@1‘
crores (Previous Year Rs. 19.25 crores), post production equipment of Rs. 14.80 crores (Previous Year
|| Rs. 12.09 krores), reception and distribution facilities of Rd. 50.91 crores (Previous Year Rs. 57.86 crores))
| C mputercuand related equipment of Rs. 20.27 crores (I?revio&:s Year Rs. 1%.%‘1‘ ?rores) aTd aircr‘aft‘ ‘oﬁ
Rs. Nil crores (PreviousYearRs.255.18i:rores).
| | I | | | LI | I
| The man Pement of the subsidiaries and associates based on internal and e t? nal technical evaluati
regssesszd the remaining useful life of assets primarily cﬁnsis#ing of Plant an>L rL\L:\chinery, urniturt eﬁg
| fixtures arjd motor vehicles with effect ffom April 1, 2014. The useful lives of cgrtain assets required| g
change from the previous estimates and accordingly the subsijdiaries and assocjates have adopted ﬁhe
| egtimated seful life as referred to underéchedulellto the bomp‘aniesAct, 201:4(1@ émendedi. N
| | I | | | LI | I

e) Intangible assets and amortization

| \ I | | | LI | I
o In{angibleH assets acquired are measulfd on initial re ogniti‘on at cost. Fcrll@wlr;g initial recognitign
Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumul tla impairrAent losse ,i}

| anly. H \ ] [ \ I

5 Cgmputer\\soﬁware | | | LI | i
|| | I | | | LTI | L
o Costsinc ‘rred towards purchase of computer software arzdepr ciated using tlegir ight—line‘metho orfr

at)eriod ased on management's estimate of useful lives of such software 53 years, or over (4
| license pefiod of the software, whichever s shorter. | | [T | [

a] Fi‘m and p‘Logram broadcasting rights (‘Sgtellite Rights’) | | LT | ]

\ I \ \ \ LTI \ N
quuired atellite Rights for the broadcast of feature films‘and oﬁher long-form Rr?ﬂr?mming s‘uch as ‘mﬂl‘ti-‘
episode television serials are stated at cost.
| I | | | LTI | L
Fltture revenues cannot be estimated with any reasonable accuracy as these ar‘e jéj ceptible ﬁo a varﬁet ‘of
factors, such as the level of market Lacceptance of elevislion products, d Jramming viewership,
| advertising rates etc., and accordingly cost related to film is fully expensed on the|date of first telecast of the
film and the cost related to program broadcasting rights / multi episode series are amortized based on the
| telecasted episodes. The maximum useful life of Satellite Righﬂs in the opinioﬁ of the manadement‘is hot
| | [lkelytoexgeed 10years. | o 111 I

| la Film prodtﬂction costs, distribution and related rights | | [T | N
|| \ I \ \ | |11 \ i
Upon the theatrical release of a movie, the cost of production / acquisition of all the rights related to each
| such movie is amortised in the ratio that ¢urrent period revenue for the movie bears to the ménagenﬁerﬁ‘é
| estimate ‘fthe remaining unrecognised revenue for all riqhts ar]sing from the mqyi‘q, as per tr}e indiv‘idtﬁlc}
film-forecast method. The estimates for remaining unrecognised revenue for each movie is reviewe
|| periodically and revised if necessary. The maximum useful lifd of film produdtiohl tosts, distributioh and
| refated righﬂs in the opinion of the managqment is not Iikely‘to ex?eed 10 years. i | N

| Expenditure incurred towards productionlof movies not completé as at balance shekt date arelclassifiedlad
| in}angible‘ﬁssets under development. | | | i | NN

|| \ I \ \ \ [T \ i
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\ \ \ \
NOTES TO THE gONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR

‘THE YEAR El\‘llgg[g MARCI-X 31, 20‘16H |

| I (All amounts are in crores df Indian Rupees, dnless btherwise stated) I \ |1l

Libenses | \ \ \ LTI \ i

\ I \ \ \ LTI \ N
Licenses r‘epresent one time entry fees p@id to Ministry ofLInformation and Bro;?ﬁf ting ('"MIB’) und er
agplicablé licensing policy for Frequency Modulation ('FM’) ‘Radio broadcast gF Cost of licenses i

arnortised|over the license period, being 10 years. | | L1 | |

Gi)odwill eUrising on Consolidation

\ I \ | | LTI \ L
The carryi‘Pg amount of goodwill arising T—tn consolidation ‘including those arisirE ?E‘ investments made Ey
the group'in its associates is not amortized and is reviewe& for impairme { in' accordance wi#h % é
requirements of Accounting Standard 28 “Impairment of Assets” and impairment losses are recognised

wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

| | | o [T | N
Impairment of tangible and intangible assets | | L] | | 1]

At‘each reu)orting date, the Group assessés whethertheré isan i‘ndication that An‘ égéet may bie impaiPecH I%
any indicaﬁion exists, or when annual imgairment testing ﬁor an Esset is requirqd‘, ‘thg Group qstimatgs Wq
asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amountis the higher of an asset’s or Cash Generating
Uhit's (CGU’) net selling price and its vallie in use. The recoveradble amount is determined for an individual
azset, unlﬁss the asset does not genera}e cash inflows trat arﬁ largely indepﬁr‘feﬁt of thoie from otﬂer
assets or groups of assets. Where the 'carrying amount of an asset or CG L( eeds its recovéra I(—:l
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written|down|to its recovergblé|amount. |n assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the rigks specific‘to the asset!
In‘determiping net selling price, recent market transactions are‘taken into accqqm,‘if availab|e. If no s%n
tre‘msactiows can beidentified, an appropr‘iate valuation mc‘>del is ‘used. i | -
Irqpairmerwt losses are recognized in the statement of p[ofit apd loss. After immi(ment, deﬂpreciaﬂiomiﬁ
provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful IifL,-.

| I | | | LT | L
An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any, i ii ation that previously
reL:ognize impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. IH 43 tfindicatijn existL, @14
Group estimates the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s recoverable amount. |A| previously recognized
impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the
asset’s re¢overable amount since the last impairment loss was ‘recognized. Thelreversal is limited so that
thF carryig‘g amount of the asset does nol1rexceed its recoYerabI? amount, nor qxpqu the carr‘ying arpown}
that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the
agsetin prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the statement of profitand loss, | | | | [ ] ]

Franchisée Fees | | \ [T [ [l

| I \ \ | LI | L
The annual franchise fee payable to thefoard of Control for Cricket in India (r‘f(ilfl’) is recognized as zﬂ
expense on an accrual basis in accordance with terms oftHe Coranany’s agree é with BCCI. I

| H | L m o
Investmants | | i Il

In{/estmer#ts, which are readily realizable'and intended to be held for not more than éne yearﬁrom thé date
on which such investments are made, are classified as‘currept investments‘ ,ﬁll‘ 9ther invqstmen*s are
classified as long-term investments.

Oninitial recognition, all investments are measured at cost. The cost comprises|purchase pricg and diregtly
attributable acquisition charges such as brokerage, fees and duties.

‘ [ ‘ ‘ ‘ ]1@’ Annual Rpport 2‘019-3016
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|| \ [ (All amounts are in crores of Indian Rupees, Unless btherwise stated} ] \ Ll

| \ [ \ \ \ LT \ Il
— — — Currentinvestments arecarriedin the fimanciat statementsat lowerof cost and fair vatue determined oman—

| individual Investment basis. Long-term investments are carried/at cost. Howevelr, provision for dimitiution
| invalue is made to recognizeadeclineotfperthan temporiry in the value of the @/ Lments.On dischsaf OI

aA investrment, the difference between 'its carrying amount eind net disposal Eﬁ ceeds LJ, charged B
|| credited tg the statement of profitand loss. | | [ | | ] |

Investment in associates

I

Investments in associates are initially stated at cost. The carrying values of such investments are adjusted

| b)J the Gro‘hp’s (directand indirect) share in profits / losses ofthe Pespective assodiate Group. | N
of

|

|
' li)Borrowing costs : | | | LT | LI

Ggodwill eﬂrising on acquisition of an ass!)ciate by the Gréup hgs been incIude‘d‘iH Jhe carryirlug amohn{
| inyestments in the associates and has beéen disclosed separately. L] ] | ||

| Borrowirl\g cost iAcIudes interest and amortizati&n of ancillary cogt incu‘rred in connect\oH With the arrjangem‘enpmL
| |borrowings. | | | | LT | L

| |Borrowimg cost directly attributable to the acquisition, construction dr production of an &sset that necedsarily
o takes a ?ubstant"al period of time to get ready fcir its intended use or sale are capitaliaeﬂ "f‘? part oftr‘1e cost Pf W%
respective asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur.

j) Revenue recognition

‘ Revenuq is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the q;conomic benefits wi\l T'ﬂ"Y to the G(oup aq\d Wq
revenue can be reliably measured. The revenue is recognised net of service tax if any.

g Advertisi“wg income and broadcast fees are recogniseH when the related ¢ommercial or progréamHuel
| 'p telecagt. | o i N

| | o Internatidnal Subscription income represents income from the export of program software cdntent, and|is
recognised as and when the services are being rendered in ac?ordance with th? terms of agreement with
| dustomeﬁs. \ \ T | LI

a] éubscripuion income represents subscr‘iption fees biIIeJ to caLIe operators a‘nu Hirect to I—Jome (‘bTLH
[ ] service pfoviders towards pay-channels operated by the Group, and are recdgnised in the period during

which the service is provided. Subscription fees billed to cable operators are determined based on
] anagement's best estimates of the number of subscri‘ption boints to which th service is! providbd,‘ at
| ontractLﬂaIIy agreed rates. Subscription income from D‘TH cqstomers is rec?gpﬁed when Lservic s are

being rendered to the customers in accordance with the terms of agreements entered into with the
| service pfoviders. \ \ \ LTI \ N

' | @ Revenues from sale of movie distribdtion / sub-distribution rights are re&ddﬁi‘sed on the theatrital
| rﬁlease q‘f the related movie, in accordance with the termF of aqreements with Fﬁtxmers. quenue§ fr?m

the theatrical distribution of movies are recognised as they are exhibited, base box office collections
| reported py the exhibitors after deduction of taxes and exhibitor’s share of net dollgdtions. | [ 1]

" | @ Ihcome from content trading represent revenue earned from mobile service bﬁd¢iﬁers and DTH servicé

I Hrovideri’[hrough exploration of contentJowned by the Company. Income is reqo&r@ged as pﬂthe teﬂmﬁ‘of
contract with respective service providers and based on the services being rend tothe customer.

o  Income from Indian Premier League repl"esents foIIowing‘:

| Iﬂcome from franchisee rights is recogniFed when the rights to Leceive the paymjnrﬂs is establishedjs ;ﬂfr
the termé of the agreement entered with BCCI. Revenue is recognised as per th * formation provided )J

| BCCI or &s per Management’s estimate|in case the information is not received] The revenug¢ is allocatéd
on a pro-rata basis to number of matches played during the year as against the total number of matches

| for the season. | | | LT | I

|| \ I \ \ \ [T \ i
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NOTES TO THE gONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR

\ \ N
THE YEAR EN$E$ MARCI-X 31, 2016
\ [ (All amounts are in crores of Indian Rupees, Unless btherwise stated) ] \ Ll

\ I \ \ \ |1 \ |l
TPcoﬁe fr‘?)ms*porgorsihip feesis re&grﬁsedion cﬁmﬁetiﬁfn of@rm?ofﬁe sﬁorﬁiﬁ)ﬁmp a@eﬂTnerﬁ | ] |
Ipcome fﬂom sale of tickets is recognisqd on the dates op‘ the r@spective matcpgﬂ. ﬂ'he Company rqpqqtq
revenues net of discounts offered on sale of tickets.

F"rize mowey is recognised when right to feceive paymenﬁ is est?blished. i | BN

Revenqu from barter transactions, an\d the related costs, are recorded at \f@i\r\ Yalues of \the sewing
rendered and services received, as estimated by management.

\ I \ \ \ LI | I
Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account th? ﬁrpount outﬁst&mdinp qnq
gl il | | | |
the applicable interest rate.

?ividend“income is recognised when the‘ rightto receive prayme‘nt is establisheTj Hyﬁhe reporti‘ng dat?. N
I%xport inﬁ:entives are recognized on avaflment ofthe benpfits upderthe respeqtiyﬁ srchemes. ‘ ]

Revenues recognised in excess of billings are disclosed as| “Unbilled Revehue” under dther currgnt
ssets. Billings in excess of revenue recognised are disclosed as “Deferre enues” under curren
| I | | | LI | I

Retiremént and other employee benefits | | [ 1] ] | [ I] ]

Retirement benefit in the form of proviHent fund is a défined contribution s¢héme. The droup hasno
qbligatiorw, other than the contributiorp payable to thp proyident fund. Th?\ ‘q}roup reqognizeﬁ mq
contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expenditure when the employee renders the
rEIated s&rvice. | | | [T | N

ératuity Iuability is a defined benefit oblig‘ation. The cost o‘f prov#ding benefits under the plan is deterr‘ninu:‘c}
on the bdsis of actuarial valuation at each year-end using the projected unit credit method. Adtuarial gaing
qnd Ioss?s arerecognized in fullin the pefriod in which the‘y occgr inthe statememt‘cmprofit anq loss. N

ccumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within nex months, |g treated as short-
lated | hich i ted to be utilized within th t12 t treated hort-t
mployee benefit. The Group measurelsJ the expected ﬁost of such absenceés eﬁ the additrifnal arpokjm
t atitexjectsto pay as aresult of the unused entitlementthathlasaccumulate g He reporting date.

The Group treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term
émploye& benefit for measurement purboses. Such Ionb-terrﬁ compensated‘a‘diénces are‘providéd for
Qased on the actuarial valuation using the projected ‘ unit q:redit method at ‘qh‘e year-erpd. Act‘uaﬂa|
%ains / I0ﬁses are immediately taken to tTe statement of p‘rofit ar‘1d lossand are ‘n?‘t ‘d‘eferred. | K
'I"he GI’Olﬂp presents the entire leave asla current liability in thﬁ—z balance shee}, ﬁim:e it doeﬂ not ha‘ve‘?q
unconditional right to defer its settlement for 12 months after the reporting date.

Income Taxes \ \ \ [T | |1

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current income-tax is|mggsured at|the amount
expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the Income-tax Act, 1961 enacted in India.,

he tax rates and tax laws used to cohpute the amou‘nt aré those that aré ‘éruacted or éubstar{tivgly)
enacted, at the reporting date. | | | 1] ] | | |] ]

Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of timing differences between taxable income and accountinﬁ
income d}iginating during the current yeér andreversal o*timiné; differences foPtHé Earlier yeérs. De*errlé
tax is me@asured using the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively gnacted at the repprting

ate.
1 I \ \ \ LI \ N
\ I \ \ \ L1 \ | [l

| [ | \ \ 121] jAnnual Report 201§4-2016

Lt

A

SUNTV
NETWORK



| I | o 1111 T
Sun Ty Network Limited | | 111 L

\ \ \ \ \ \ I
thTES TO THE !:ONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENI£EI$ MARCI-X 31, 2316
| \ [ (All amounts are in crores of Indian Rupees, Unless btherwise stated} ] \ Ll

|| | I \ \ \ [T \ |l
eferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable timing differences. Deferred tax assets ar
. icogniztd for deductible timing differinces only to th exte[nt that there ig Eigonable ier’[aint tﬂael
| sufficient|future taxable income will be gvailable against/which such deferred tax|gssets can be redlized|
!] situatij)ns where the Group has unaﬁlsorbed depreciation or’ carry forward tﬁj E)sses, all deferr?d }zg
ssets are recognized only if there is virtual certainty su?)ported by convinciné idence tha& they can
| realized &gainst future taxable profits. | | | [ | | 1]

[ ] At each|reporting date, the Group re-assesses unrecognjzed deferred |tax| pssets. It recognizes
nrecogmized deferred tax asset to the extent that it has becorL-ne reasonably firt in that sufficient (uttﬁr?
taxable income will be available against which such defe#red tax assets canbe'r gli&ed.

'ILhe carr;H/ing amount of deferred tax aséets are revieweé at ea‘ch reporting dgté.‘ J1'i1e Group‘writes-‘douﬂ
| the carrying amount of deferred tax asset to the extent that it is ho longer reasdndbly certain that sufficient
o fPture tif(able income will be available against Whigh deferred tax asiﬁﬁan be r?alized[ AEW
such write-down is reversed to the extent that it becomes reasonably certain that sufficient future taxabl
|| income Will be available. | | | LI | N

eferred|tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforc right exists to se

| Deferred|t ts and deferred tax liabiliti ffset, if & legally enforceable right exists to setioff

| urrent tax assets against current tax liabilities and the geferrﬁd tax assets qnﬂ Flfaferred taxes relptq ‘tq
the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

] I\‘/IinimumH alternate tax (‘MAT’) paid in a ‘year is charged lo the ‘statement of pr‘oH ‘a‘nd loss a‘s currer‘lt t“a‘x.‘
| The grOL“p recognizes MAT credit available as an asset oHIy to the extent! that there is convi\nciﬂwd
| evidence that the group will pay normal income tax during|the specified periqd, i.e., the period (for
which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the year in which the Group recognizes MAT credit

s an a ‘set in accordance with the Guidance Note oh Acc&unting for Créd‘i{ ‘Available i‘n respiect‘ ‘o#
| Minimum Alternative Tax under the Incbme-tax Act, 1961, the said asset is created by way of credit ta
the statement of profit and loss and sqown as “MAT Cx'edit I.?ntitlement." Tne‘ P‘r?up revieyvs the “‘Mﬁﬂ"
credit entittement” asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the group does
| not have convincing evidence that it will pay normal tax during the specified pefiod| | | LI

' | m) Earnings pershare | | | LT \ LI

| Basic eafinings per share are calculated by dividing the nét profit or loss for the peridd attributable to equity
| qhareholﬂjers by the weighted average number of eqqity sqares outstandi‘ng‘ p‘uring the‘ period‘. T‘mq

weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as
| onus is&ue, bonus element in a rights issue, share split and reverse share é;fﬂt‘ ﬂhat have Ehangéd illwe[
| number df equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding ¢hange in resoyrees| | [ 1]

| For the plirpose of calculating diluted earnings per share| the net profit or loss fof|the period attributable|td
?quity shareholders and the weighted, average numer of ﬁhares outstan?ipﬁ Furing thf; perio‘d ?ﬁ
adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

n) 6perating leases

éperatinq leases (where the Group is the lessee)

. L‘eases, \H/vhere the lessor effectively re{ains substantial‘ly all t‘he risks and b‘er‘u‘a‘fiks of ownc‘srship ‘of #1(—:I
| leased itém are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments arelrecdgnized as an expense
| irp the staﬁement of profitand losson a stqaight-line basis qverthp lease term. ] ‘ N

|| Qperating Ieases(wheretheGroupisthg lessor) ‘ ‘ I ‘ N

| Heases ivw which the Group does not trqnsfer substantiqlly all Fhe risks and bppﬁfi([s of ownprship Pf lm\q

asset are classified as operating leases. Assets subject to operating leases are included in fixed assets.

| ﬂease income on an operating lease is'recognized in the staﬁement of profit‘eirllé‘loss on a‘ straigljmt-llrllé

| ] basis overthe lease term. Costs, including depreciation, are re¢ognized as an expense in the|statement of
rofit and loss. Initial direct costs such as legal costs, brokerage costs, etc. are recognized immediately,i

t estateAwent of profitand loss. ? r ? ﬁ ﬁﬁ? | } 3(‘ q

|| \ I \ \ \ [T \ i
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\ \ \ |
thTES TO THE !:ONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR

o) CashandCashequivalents
| © fashanf

\ \ I
THE YEAR ENI£EI$ MARCI-X 31, 2316
\ [ (All amounts are in crores of Indian Rupees, Unless btherwise stated} ] \ Ll

(Pash anﬂj cash equivalents for the purposes of cash floyv stat?ment compris? quh at banlﬂ and in‘ hqrpq
and short-term investments with an original maturity of three months or less.

ﬁoreign N;urrencytransactions | | | i | BN

Initial recognition \ \ \ 11T | LI

Foreign durrency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currencyl
ﬁmount ﬁhe exchange rate between trpe reporting curfency‘and the foreiqn‘ qyrrency aq the d?te‘ ‘of
the transaction.

onversion
Q—}% | | | I | LI

Foreign ﬁ:urrency monetary items are reported using the clo?ing rate. Non-m?matary items whiﬁh ?ﬁ
| o . | NARE \

carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate
dt the date of the transaction. Non-monetary items which are carried at fair vallie Orlother similar valtiation
qenominFted in a foreign currency are (eported using tl‘1e ethange rates thpq ﬁx‘isted whqn the walq?g

ere detprmined. | L i R

I.Thxchanqﬁedifferences | | | 1] | B

Il exchange differences arising on s?ttlement / convFrsion‘ of foreign cur‘remﬂ/ monetafy iterrws ?ﬁ
includedin the statement of profitand loss.

'|Lhe premium or discount arising at the inception of forward exchange conLr‘act is an‘lortizec‘l a‘ru
rbcogniz&d as an expense/ income over the life of the contract Exchange differences on such conﬂ'adﬂsl
qxcept tlwe contracts which are Iong-qerm foreign currency, monetary itemﬂ \are recogpized i‘n Wq
statement of profit and loss in the period in which the exchange rates change. Any profit or loss arising on
ancellaﬂ on or renewal of such forward éxchange contraEt is algo recognized és‘ iH ome or asl, expen‘se

the periodl. \ \ \ [ \ I

Provisions | | | [T \ | I] ]

A provisi&m is recognized when the GrOL‘Jp hasa present‘obligdtion asa result‘o‘f‘ddst event, itis probaﬁld
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and g
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are not discounted to their
6resent l‘/alue and are determined based on the best éstimgte required to E&ﬁé the obliéation gt Me[
reportind date. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflegt the curreént
Restestipates. | o 1111 L

Contingent liabilities \ \ \ [ 1] \ | I] ]

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whpse existence will be
onfirmet by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the conﬁroJ
f the GrJ up or a present obligation that is not recogniged bekause it is not ﬁr@ggble that ln outhLJwL)

resourcels will be required to settle the obligation. A contihgent liability also arises in extremely rare cases

Khere thFre is a liability that cannot be recognized bec?use iﬂ cannot be meﬁwﬁ,\d relianyT. The @rqtm
oes notrecognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

e | o i R
$egmentreporting | | i R

|
The Groyp considers business segmenls as its primary egmint. The Group'? ﬁ@arations predomiTarHIy‘
relate to Media and Entertainment and, accordingly, this is the only primary reportable segmeLﬂ.

'ILhe GrOLUp considersgeographicalsegrhentsas itsseco#wdarygegment. LT | Il
\ I \ \ \ LTI \ L

| I | | | |11 | |1l
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\ \ |
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2016
| VAI/ amoﬂnts are in crores of Indian Rupeeé, except in respedt of nu}'nber and per shErQ Hformation)‘ |

1 + March 31,2016 | | March 31, 2015, |,

$ |Share capital | | I i | i

| [ [ [ [ [ LI [ [l

| Authorised Shares | | I | B
45,00,00,000 equity shares of Rs 5/- each

| [(March 31, 2015 - 45,00,00,000 of Rs. 5/- each) \ \ 225.00 | I1]] 225.000 |II|

|Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up Sharep ‘ ‘ LI ‘ | ]
39,40,84,620 equity shares of Rs 5/- each

| H \ | | LT L
(March 31, 201& - 39,40,84,620 of Rs. 5/- each) 197.04 J197.04

\ \ | \ \ ! 197.04 1111 Yo7.0a 11

‘a. Recorllciliatio#l of the Equity shares outstahding at the beéinninb and at the eﬂ& uf‘the repohing périUd‘
\ \ I \ \ \ LTI \ L

| | H | March 31,201‘6 | | ml\}larch 31,‘2015 I

| | I Number Amount Numbler | Amount |

| At the beginning|of the year 39,40,84,620 197.04 | 39,40,84,620 | 197.04 |

Issued d‘uring the year | Nil . Nil, 11 Nil | . Nil',

Outstanding atThe end of the year 39,46,84,620 197.04 39,‘46‘,34‘1,6 ‘ 197.04
TTTTT

| | I ! ! !
Ib. Rights attachkd to equity shares \ \ | I

‘The Company has only one class of equity share‘s having a par vaXue of ES.S per share. ‘E‘a‘t‘:fl holder o# equity ‘shares
lis entitled to one Viote per share. The Company déclares and pays dividends in Indian rupeés! The dividend proposed
‘by the BPard of Pirectors is subject to the apprf)val of the shar?holdﬁrs in the ensuirﬁ; ‘A‘\r‘mual Geweral Mrseﬁim;.

‘During the year ended March 31, 2016, the amount of per shdre dividend recognizb&i‘éé distributions to‘edlhiﬂy
‘shareholgers was Rs.15.50/- share (March 31, 2q15: Rs. 11.25/- sr‘lare). | 1] | R

‘In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled tcl r‘e‘(‘:e‘;ive remai‘ning as‘se{s‘ o‘f
lthe company, aftér distribution of all preferentiallamounts. HowevVer, nd such preferential @mounts exists currently.
‘The distrﬂbution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held bP/ the sharehoIdFrﬁ N I

I \ \ ' \ \
‘c. Detailg of sha#eholders holding more than é% sharesin the‘comﬂany 1T | I
|Equity shares of Rs. 5 each fully paid | March 31,2016 | | || March31,2015 | || |
‘ ‘ I Nunpber %‘holdipg qul?er % hqlqu
‘Mr. KaIarJ’nithi Margn 29,55,%3,457 J75.00&/0 2&9,@3,&33,457 | 7%.06‘%‘
| | I | | | LTI | L

As per records othhe company, including its register of shareholders / members and othendeclarations received f m

nd beneficial ownershi

ps

shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholdin‘g represents both legal a

| lofshares. I

124‘ \ Annual quort 20”5-2016 ‘




| l\‘IOTES T‘O THE (HZONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL‘ STATEMENTS | FOR‘THE YEAR El\‘l[‘)‘E‘s MARCIJ 31, 20‘16‘ il
| | I (All amounts are in crores Af Indian Rupees, Jnless btherw:se stated, J 111 | |1l
|| \ | \ \ \ LI \ |1l
i, 5 L
| Reserves andsprplus | o i NN
| Securities premlium account [ | | 47182 | 471.82] |
| | I | | | [T | I
| |Generaljreservg | o 1 I
| ‘Balance ‘as per tLe last financial statements | | | 4%%6 | 483‘.86‘ |
| ‘Add Ambunt traﬂwsferred from surplus balance ‘ln the | | [T | AT
| statemenit of profit and loss | | | ITTL \ LA
| |Closing/Balance | | | 483,80 | 483.80] |
| | I | | | [T | I
‘ ‘Surplus‘in the ﬂtatement of profit and loss ‘ ‘ ‘ 1] ‘ ]|
| ‘Balance‘as per Igst financial statements | | | 2,143%.‘4& | 1,942‘.7%‘ |
| IProfit for the yeal | . 913/38 | 78204/ |
| ILess: Appropriations | | | LT | |1l
| |Interim dividend [Rs 15.50/- per share (March 31, 2015: Rs 11.25- per share)]  (610.83) | (443.35) |
| [Tax on interim diyidend \ \ \ (124.35) | (85.98) |
‘ ‘Total apQropriati?ns ‘ ‘ ‘ (735.18) | (529:33) ‘
| | I | | 1 HHH ‘ H-|
| ‘Net surp‘vlus in tHhe statement of profit and Io‘ss | i 2,3‘7? ‘6‘8‘ ‘ 2, 195‘ 48H |
| ‘Total reéerves Jnd surplus | | | 3,3%.@6 | 3,1511.16‘ |
|| \ I \ \ \ T \ N
| | I | | | [T | I
5 [Deferred tax Ligbility (net) | | | LI | I
| ‘Gross deferredHtax Liability | | | 1T | I
‘ ‘Tangible‘Assets and Intangible Assets ‘ ‘ ‘ LTI | I
| |- Impadt of timifig difference due to depreciation / amortisatior | 72140 | 6553 |
|| \ I \ \ \ | T \ N
‘ ‘Gross dpferred Htax liability ‘ ‘ | 72,40 | 65,53, ‘
| | I | | | LI | I
Gross Deferred tax Asset

- - Provisi‘on for dLubtfuI debts/Movies advance‘s and other asse‘ts | 4‘6‘.5‘)‘5‘ | (38 ‘ ) a
| - Sec. 40(a)(ia) cHiisaIIowance | (4.%( | (3. &4;

| |- otherd ” | . (2/39) | (0bg) |

' |Gross deferred|tax asset ‘ ‘ ‘ (dﬂfﬁbﬁ \ (42.b4$\ \
| | I | | | [T | I
| |Net deferred tax liability | | | 18,81 | 2259 |
| | I | | | LI | I
| | \ l \ \ \ L] \ | 1]

| | I | | | |11 | |1l
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| \ I \ \ \
Suq T\( Network Limi}ed ‘ ‘ ‘

|| |11
T 1 - Mereh3LETE Meren 312008
‘6 ‘Other Io‘ng-termHhabllltles | | | O | K
| Interest free depdsits from customers | | | B6/15] | 3182| |
| Security deposits | | | 003 | 003
Loy ] Le; \ I 618, | 385
ong-term Provisions T ‘ o
| | I | | | LI | I
| Provision for employee benefits ‘ ‘ ‘ ] ‘ N
| Frovisioq for grawity (Refer note 39) | | | L[] ‘ 0147\\ ‘
‘ ‘ H ‘ ‘ ‘ L | \-\ | 0ﬁ47H |
T \ 11
8 Trade Payables
| rade pa‘yables | | | | 8‘1 Wl‘ | 71‘.91H |

ﬂ'here is po overque amount payable to Micro arpd Small Enterpqlses as defined under MI‘CI’O Small pnd qulp‘n]
Enterprises Development Act, 2006. Further, the Group has not paid any interest to any Micro and Sm

Enterprisies during the current and previous year!

|
? pther cu‘rrent Iigpilities ‘
|

| Invesﬁor Edu%’mon and Protection Fund will be
by following announts (as and when due)

credited

- Unpaid dividend 0.26

. Deferred reve%ues | | | B‘S%‘ | 4‘08H |
| Interegt free cﬂaposits from customers | | | b‘éé‘ | ‘60‘ N
| Advances from customers ‘ ‘ ‘ 20[24/ - 2126l |
| | Dues payablelin respect of fixed assets | | | 2140 | 1/87/] |
| | Director's Remuneration Payable | | | 116191 | 9651 |
| Emplqyee Bewefits Payable ‘ ‘ ‘ 1?@?‘ ‘ 6.‘69” ‘
o Retention MoPey Payable | | | Pﬁ?\ | 0'\49\\ |
o Statut‘ory DueHs | | | ‘8.‘1‘?‘ ‘ 5'\87\\ ‘

173.80 | 142,63
lIO ghort Term ProJmons | | | T | N
|| \ I \ \ \ LT \ L
| Provision for employee benefits | | | I \ LI
| Provision for leaJe benefits | | | 6190 | | 2189|| |
| | | | o 6:90| | 289 |

Other provisions

| Erovision‘ for Iitiggtions and claims (Refer note—£8) | | ‘4‘9%‘ | 3.‘88‘ a
| brovisioH for tangtion | | | b@&)‘ | O.‘59H |
| Provisior for FM license fees (Refer note-38) ‘ ‘ ‘ 2l05! ‘ [T
| | I | | | 791/ L alaTl] |
| | I | | | 14,81 . 736] |
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\ | \ \ | L1
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENI‘DE? MARCH 31, 2016‘

| | I (All amounts are in crores df Indian Rupees, Jnless btherwise stated) ||

|
~ 13 Non-current investment N ‘ . March 31, ztﬂ 6, March 31, 2015 |
| L‘ong Terr‘n Inves@ments (At cost) - Trade | | | i | o
| | I | | | LT | L
| Equity instrumenits (Unquoted) | \ \ LT \ L
|| | I | | | [T | I
| -I‘n Associ?te Com‘ anies : | | | 1] | 0
| AV Digital Networks (Hyderabad) Private Limited | | LTI | LI
| 4/13,605 (March 311, 2015 - 4,13,605) fully paid equity shares | | L] | | 1]
| ofRs10~gach | | o 9-6A1 | | 08
| S‘hare of P‘roﬂt / (HPSS) from the Associate Comp‘any | | (Qﬁip‘) | (01661)1 |
| | I | | | [T | I
' 2/10,00,000 (March 31, 2015 - 2,10,00,000) fully paid 0.1% cumulative [ | N
‘ preferencq sharesHof Rs 10/- each ‘ ‘ ‘ au@m ‘ 21‘.7%‘ ‘
| | _ | | | |11 | |||
Share of Profit / (Loss) from the Associate Company (0‘(‘)‘7) ‘ (Q.ﬂ)
" total | | | A 21.54 2161
|| \ I \ \ \ [T \ I
| Metro Digital NetWorks (Hyderabad) Private Limited | | LI | LI
| 413,605 (March 31, 2015 - 4,13,605) fully paid equity shares of Rs 10/- each 11116 | 8.99| |
| S‘hare of F"rofit/(HPss) from the Associate Comp@ny | | ‘ @p‘ | 2!.57‘! |
1.16
| | I | | | \ HH | I
| 640,00,000 (March 31, 2015 - 6,40,00,000) fully paid 0.1% cumulative I | N
‘ p"eferencq sharesHof Rs 10/- each ‘ ‘ ‘ 7\6\.1}})\ ‘ 76‘.3(?” ‘
|| | I | | | - 1 —H
Total B 89.29 87.46
| | I | | | T ! T
| Deccan DEgitaI Nétworks (Hyderabad) Privatel Limited ‘ ‘ [T ‘ I
| 413,605 (March 3/1, 2015 - 4,13,605) fully paid equity shares | \ I | LI
| of Rs 10/-pach | | | | 9-TA | 709 |
| S‘hare in P‘rofit/ ( Lﬁ)ss) from Associate Company‘ | | 121.% | 21.7%1 |
1.94 9.74
| | I | | | LT | I
| 5/70,00,000 (March 31, 2015 - 5,70,00,000) fully paid 0.1% cumulativel LT | |1l
‘ p(eferencq sharesHof Rs 10/- each ‘ ‘ ‘ q@p‘ ‘ 67\.96}\ ‘
| | I | | | L | ||
Total Cc 79.90 77.70
|| | I | | | H } —
| Asia Radio Broadcast Private Limited ‘ \ \ LI | L
| 28,57,000|(March 31, 2015 - 28,57,000) fully paid equity shares | | [T | I
| ofRs10/-gach | I 1503 41y
| S‘hare of P‘rofit / (HPSS) from the Associate Compﬁny | | 0,97, | 0.90, |
Total D 6.00 503
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Sun TV Network Limited \ \ \ LT

\ | | \ \ \ | L1
l“lOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR EI}II‘)E?

| I (All amounts are in crores of Indian Rupees, unless btherwise stated) | ||

MARCH 31, 2016

- i - March 31,2016 March 31,2015
Pioneer R‘adio Trﬁining Services Private Limit‘ed | | O | K
28,57,000/(March 31, 2015 - 28,57,000) fully paid equity shares of Rs 10/- each 15,69 | 11ggl |
Share of Profit / (Ubss) from the Associate Comp‘any ‘ ‘ 3.l ‘ 3.83 |
| Total | I | ' E | 18.80 | 15.69] |
| | I | | | LI | I
‘ thimum‘Media ﬁervices Private Limited ‘ ‘ ‘ ] ‘ N
| 2%,57,000‘(March ‘Eﬂ, 2015 - 28,57,000) fully pai‘d equity shares ‘of Rs ‘10/- each 1‘8UIJI | | 14‘.49‘ y
| S‘hare of Isrofit / (L‘Bss) from the Associate Comp‘any | | 5‘%@‘ | 3‘.6ﬂ 3
| 1b,00,00,dOO 12% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares | | [T | N
| of Rs. 10/4 each (March 31, 2015 - Nil) \ \ \ 100100/ \ N
| Total | I | CF 120.70| L1811
| | I | | | | \ | I
| TPtaI Unqyoted l\ﬂon current Investments | [A+B+C+D+ETF] | 336,23 | 225,60 |
| | | I \ \ \ LT \ L
14 Deferred tax Assets (Net)
| Gross D‘eferred Htax Asset | | | LT | I
| ‘Tangible‘Assets gnd Intangible Assets | | | [T | I
L Impacﬂ of timier difference on fixed assets | ‘ ‘ 085! ‘ A
| |- Sec. 40(a)(ia) disallowances \ \ \ 0/39 \ I
| Net deferred tax asset | | 1.24] IER
|| \ I \ \ \ LT \ L
‘15 F_ong ter‘m LoaqF and advances (Unsecured? | | 1] | BN
| bapital Advancé‘s | | | LT | Il
| Considefled good \ \ \ 60105] | 172/87] |
| Considered doultful | | | 26158 | 18122 |
| o | | 86183, | 19109y
| ‘ProvisiorT for dOLﬂPtful capital advances | | | QPT?W ‘ (18r2%] |
I | @ i AR
| ‘Loans tcL AssocHates - Considered good | | | 3‘7‘&1‘ | 34‘.46‘ a
| | I | ) | 37104/ " 34046 |
| Isecurity! deposit (Considered good) \ | | LI | I
|| | I | | | LT | L
| ‘Rental ar‘1d otheereposits | | | Pma‘ | gTOﬁ\ |
| ‘Deposns‘wnh Gﬁvernment agencies | | | 161‘2‘?9‘)1 | 6[6%‘1 |
15.99 15.67
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| | I | | | LTI | L
| \ I \ \ \ LTI \ N
|| | | | | | LI | LI
| \ I \ \ \ | L1 \ |
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2016
|| | I (All amounts are in crores of Indian Rupees, unless btherwise stated) 1 | |1
g r_- v U
— — |  March 31, 2016, March 31, 2011
Advances recoverable in cash or kind
| ‘Conside ed goo | | | ‘4‘414‘ | 2‘.1%‘ |
| | H | o | EPY T ol47T |
|| | I | | | LTI | L
|  Other loans and advances (Considered good) \ \ LI \ N
| \ I \ \ \ [T \ i
| f\dvance‘incomewtax (net of provision for taxati?n) | | %Pﬂ | 74[69\\ |
Minimum Alternative Tax credit 1.08 7.07
| Prepaid ‘expenseHs | | | ‘Mé | 0‘.58H |
I | ©® Y il
|| | I | | | LTI | L
| [Total | I [(A+B+C+D4E) | 181.99 | | 307/51/] |
| \ I \ \ \ LTI \ L
‘16 Pther N?n currﬁnt assets | | 11 | BN
| ‘Unsecur‘ed, coanidered good unless stated otherwise | | I | N
| Non-current bank balances (Refer note 20) | | | 31.65 | 2734 |
| | H | ] 3169 | 2734
| | I | | | LT | L
| \ I \ \ \ LTI \ L
| | I | | | LTI | L
| \ I \ \ \ LTI \ N
| | I | | | LI | i
|| | I | | | LTI | L
| | I | | | LT | L
| \ I \ \ \ LTI \ L
| | I | | | LTI | L
| | H [This space has‘ been intentionafly Ieft‘blank] 1] | BN
| | I | | | LI | i
|| | I | | | LTI | L
| | I | | | LT | L
| \ I \ \ \ LTI \ L
| | I | | | LTI | L
| \ I \ \ \ LTI \ N
| | I | | | LI | i
|| | I | | | LTI | L
| | I | | | LT | L
| \ I \ \ \ LTI \ L
| | \ l \ \ \ L \ i
|| | I | | | | | i
|| | I | | | 131/ pAnnual Report 201§-2016
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| I | o 1111 T
Sun Ty Network Limited | | 111 L

| | | \ \ \ | L1 \ iR
| l“lOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENI‘JE? MARCH 31, 2016

I (All amounts are in crores df Indian Rupees, Jnless btherwise stated) || | I

[ | March 31, 2016 | ||| March 31, 2015, || |
‘ I ‘ No of‘Unitq Amount ‘ Nq‘of Units ‘ AmoqntH ‘

‘17 ‘Current‘lnvestTents ‘ ‘ ‘ 1] ‘ ]|

| ‘Current‘lnvestrﬂlents (valued at lower of co§t and fair valu?, unlerss stated oth?wlfe) | BN

| \Quoted\ | | | LT | Il
| ‘City Union Bank Limited | 6,04,628 041 llle0a628' 04l
| | I | | | LT I
Un&]uoted Mutual Flinds ‘ \ | LT
' |HDFC FMP 1167D January 2016 (1)-Regular-Growth ~ 1,00,32,777 10.03 | 1] -
| |HDFC FMP 1183D January 2016 (1)-Regular-| | | LI

equity ynstruments

| ‘Growth-§eries-31ﬁ | 1,00,({6,42” 10.00 i o I
| ‘Relianc Fixed Worizon Fund-XXX-Series | | 11 | R
2-Growth Plan 80,63,144 8.00 - -

' libFc Corporate/Bond Fund Regular Plan-Growth 60,38,876 605 ||l | i
| licicl pridential FMP Series 78-1190 Days Pldn . 1T | N
‘ ‘E Regulgr Plan ﬂ;umulative ‘ GO,Q0,00Q 6.00 L] - | ]
‘ Franklin‘lndia C?rporate Bond Opportunities ‘ ‘ ] ‘ N

Fund-Growth 53,84,808 7.50 - -
| ‘HDFC F‘MP 453PI) February 2014 (1) Series | | LT | T
| [29-Regular-Growth \ 52,76,064 528 | |152,76,064 | 5128| |

|Reliance Fixed Horizon Fund-XXVI-Series | | | [T \
|

\ \
| ‘2-Growtr Plan I | 52,4T0,000‘ 5.24 K ‘?%,40,000 5'\24\\ |
Franklin India Ultra Short Bond Fund-Super
| linstitutional Plan-Growth | 5102424 1024 | !ll] | N
' licicl PrldentialFMP Series 72-440 Days Plan o [T \ I
‘ ‘L Direct ‘Plan qu‘lulative ‘ 50,90,32@ 5.09 |l ‘§9,90,326 ‘ 5.‘09“ ‘
‘ ‘Sundaram Fixeq‘ Term Plan Hi Regular Growtq 50,7‘1,26% 5.07 N o IR
| ‘ICICI PerentiaIHFMP Series 78-1168 Days | Emn | N
Plan-I-Growth 50,45,59§ 5.02 - -
| ‘HDFC F‘MP 372‘5 Dec 2013 (1) Series | | | 1T | I
| |29-Regular-Growth | 50,00,000 5.00 ||| - | -]
| | DSP BlackRock|FMP-Series 150-13M-Reg-Grpwth 50,00,000 5.00 | |50,00,000 | 5)00| |
‘ ‘Birla Sunp Life Fiﬁ(ed Term Plan -Series KR ‘ ‘ ‘ LI ‘ |l
| ‘(1124da?/s)-Gr. Regular (385days+739 days at‘jded) 50,?0,000‘ 5.00 O - | | _H |
UTI Fixed Term Income Fund Series XVIII-IV
' (1127 Days)-Grdwth Plan (366days+761days)| 50,00,000 500 ||l -| |l
| |Kotak FMP Seriés 191-Growth \ 50,00,000 500 | [l - |1
|  |IDFC Cdrporate|Bond Fund Regular Plan-Growth 49,28,779 5.00 ||]|] - [ 4]
| |HDFC Short Terin Plan-Growth | 37,12,876 10.00 | ||BV,12,876| 10.00|| |
| |ICICI Prudential FMP Series 68-369 Days | | | 1] ] | | |] ]
Plan 1 Regular Plan Cumulative 30,00,000 3.00 30,00,000 3.00

|| \ I \ \ \ [T \ i
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l“lOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENI‘JEI? MARCH 31, 2016

I (All amounts are in crores df Indian Rupees, Jnless btherwise stated) || | I

[ | March 31, 2016 | ||| March 31, 2015, || |
I ‘ No of‘Unitq Amount ‘ Nq‘of Units ‘ AmoqntH ‘

‘Birla Sunp Life Fiﬂ(ed Term Plan-Series Kl (109%days)— ‘ N ‘ ]
Gr.Regular (368days+731days add 02.03.15) 30,80,000 3.00 - -
‘Reliance‘ ReguIaHr Savings Fund-Debt PIan-Gr(‘)wth | | 1T | I
| |Plan-Growth Option \ 28,87,336 550 | [[l] - | |-l
| |Relianceé Dynaniic Bond Fund-Growth | | | [T \ |1
| ‘Plan--Gr‘owth Oﬁtion | 26,ﬁ0,61fs‘ 5.00 K \12?’40’613 | 5'\00\\ |
| ‘Tata Short Term HBond Fund Regular PIan-Grov‘vth 26,:?5,816‘ 7.00 1] - | | -H |
| ‘Kotak Fl‘\/IP SeriTs 190-Growth | 25,(‘)0,000‘ 2.50 ] - | | -H |
DHFL Pramerica Short Maturity Fund-Growth 21,90,382 5.48 - -
| ‘Birla Sur‘1 Life D)‘lnamic Bond Fund-Retail- | | | LT | I
| | Growth-Regular|Plan \ 20,22,637 5.00 |l -1 N
| |DHFL Pramericd Short Maturity Fund-Growth | 19,96,614 500 | |[l] - [ -] |
| |Reliance Short Term Fund-Growth Plan-Growth Option ~ 19,17,994 5.00 | |[119,17,994 | 5)00]| |
ICICI Prudential|Short Term-Regular
| u I g \ | | LT | L
| PIan-Grc‘)wth Opﬁion | 17,1‘8,266‘ 5.00 T - | | -H |
IDFC Super Saver Income Fund-Investment
' |Plan-Growth-(Régular Plan) | 14,65,936 500 |l | i
' |IDFC Super Savier Income Fund-Investment | | | LT \ |1l
‘ ‘Plan-Gr?Wth-(R?gular Plan) ‘ 12,%3,381‘ 4.42 ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ - ‘ ‘ -H ‘
| ‘HDFC Wigh Inteﬂest Fund-Short Term PIan—Gr?wth 12,?8,54(% 3.50 111 ol RN
| ‘SBI Maqnum Inﬁome Fund-Regular PIan-Gronth 1 ,?4,059‘ 4.00 1 - | | -H |
Birla Sun Life Treasury Optimizer
| PIan-Gr&)wth-Re@ular Plan | 1,907,898 350 |!!l2532371  4lod! |
‘ ‘Kotak Cbrporaté‘ Bond Fund ‘ ‘ ‘ [T ‘ I
‘ ‘Standarg Growtlw (Regular Plan) ‘ 46,607‘ 9.00 L] - ||
Axis Banking Debt Fund-Growth(BDGPG 6,547 5.00 1,96,203 25,00
| \ 9 | | I | H]

| UTI Tre?sury Advantage Fund-Instituitonal Plap | | 11 | N
(Daily Dividend Option)-Reinvestment - - 61,140 6.12

| ‘IDFC-SéIF-Shoﬂt Term-Plan A-Fortnightly Diviéend | -‘ - N ‘&%90,087 | 3.‘47H |

| ‘HDFC I—Jigh Inteﬁest Fund-Short Term PIan-Div‘idend | ] _ ‘éH,64,683 | 3.‘37H |

| |

‘Axis Sh&rt TermHFund-InstitutionaI Regular | | [T | I
‘ ‘Dividenq Reinvqptment ‘ ‘ 1 - Hfl]3,82,576‘ 4'\45\\ ‘

‘ ‘Templet n IndiaHLow Duration Fund-Monthly ‘ ‘ L] ‘ ||
Dividend Reinvestment - 93,19,116 9.63

\
\ \ b \ HTEY \ ol ]
HDFC FMP 372D Dec 2013-1-Regular-GR -

| | - ,00,000 5.00
‘Birla SwL Life Fiﬂ<ed Term Plan-Series KI | | LT | 1T
|(1099dalys)-Gr.Regular \ |
| |

|

\ \

| 1 - [ [180,00,000| 300/ |

| |IDFC Fixed Term Plan Series 77 Regular | [ 1111 | [ 1]

| ‘Plan -Gr‘owth (3?9 Days) | | i K ‘4‘1?,00,000 | 4'\00\\ |
Birla Sun Life Fixed Term Plan -Series KR (385 days)-Gr. Regular - 50,00,000 5.00

| ‘IDBI FM‘P-Seriel IV-387 Days (March 2014)-G Regular PIan-Growth‘- - - H2(‘),00,000 | 2.00

| \ H \ | LI \ i
| \ H \ . e B
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| L1
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2016
| (All amounts are in crores of Indian Rupees, unless btherwise stated) 1

© March 31, 2016

| ||| March 31, 2015, || |

No of‘Unitq Amount

‘ Nq‘of Units ‘ AmoqntH ‘

‘ UTI Fixed Term anome Fund Series XVIII-IV ‘ ‘ ‘

(366 Days)-Growth Plan -

| ‘ICICI PridentialHBanking & PSU Debt | | |

' |Fund-Weekly Dividend Reinvestment | o
| |Birla Suh Life Treasury Optimizer Plan-Monthly \ \
| Dividenq-Regulﬁr Plan-Reinvestment ‘ ‘ 1

| ‘IDFC Super Sav[Fr Income Fund-Short Term P’an- |
Monthly Dividend-(Regular Plan)
\ \

‘DWS Srlort Matlwrity Fund-Growth(Enam)
‘Reliancé MoneyHManager Fund-Growth Plan-érowth Option
| IBaroda Poineer Liquid Fund-Plan A Growth | |
' licicl PridentiallLiquid-Regular Plan-Growth | |
' ISBI-SHF-Ultra Short Term Debt Fund- \ \

PN T SR (RN DN R

‘ ‘Regular‘PIan-DeHily Dividend ‘ ‘ i
‘ ‘Reliancg Fixed Iﬂlorizon Fund-XXV-Series 19-§rowth Plan ‘ 1
| ‘TATA Fi)fed Matlﬂlrity Plan Series 46 Scheme M-Plan A-Growth‘ 7
| ‘Kotak FMP Seri?s 145-Growth | | 7
| ‘DWS Sqort Matlwrity Fund-Growth | i

Franklin India Short Term Income Plan-Retail Plan-Growth -
| ‘TATA Flo‘ater FuLd Plan A - Growth 11,773‘
| ‘ICICI PrLdentiaIH Short Term Regular Plan Gro‘wth option 4,83,601‘
| ‘TATA Sh‘ort Terrr‘l‘ Bond Fund Plan A - Growth | 2,86,970‘
| ‘HDFC F“oating Igate Income Fund Short Term ‘Plan | |
| |Whole Sale Dividend Reinvestment Daily | 54,689,382
| |IDFC Money Mahager Fund - Investment Plan|- | |
| ‘Weekly Pividenﬁ | 5,?1 ,51q
| ‘::[))FC M?pey Mamnager Fund - Investment Plan‘- d 2

aily Dividend 42,07,92

| ‘ICICI PrbdentialHSavings Fund - Direct Plan - érowth é9,671‘
' 'HDFC Liquid Fund - Direct Plan Growth Option 17,566
‘ ‘SBI UItré Short ‘H’erm Debt Plan - Regular Plan‘- Growth i5,634J

I Telle] PrhdentiaIHMoney Market Fund - Direct Plan - Growth 48,151‘
| |HDFC Floating Rate Income Plan - Short Terml Plan - \ \

‘ ‘Wholeseye Opti(ﬂn - Growth ‘ 11 ,7‘0,08}
| ‘DHFL Pramerican Insta Cash Plus Fund - |
Direct PJan Growth 2,85,25%
| ‘IDFC Ca‘sh Fun!‘i Growth (direct Plan) | 42,323‘
| ‘IDFC Mgney MeJ‘nager Fund Investment Plan -‘ | |
rowt egular Plan 140,
| |G h ( Reguldr PI | 6,48,158

2.4
1.14
0.50

5.51

0.56

4.74
0.83
2.25
3.00
1.00

3.00

4.02
2.25

1.50

L) \
50,00,000

[T |
| 2,10,71,513 |

111 |
| 1]] 715923

5 ‘4‘1‘1,32,853 |
\

1154 90,382
111 gg 557
11 g9 447
111241825 |

1 |
i 2
| 1$0.48,833
| |19f.00.000,
,08,565
e |
19,96,614
1R |
KRl
11,773

i |
““5,06,970‘
i |
| [151,71,997 |

i |
21,954
1] P21,954

a ‘h&,07,922 |

11T 3g,674
1] |
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B
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\ \ \ | L1
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2016
| (All amounts are in crores of Indian Rupees, unless btherwise stated) 1

March 31,2016

No of‘Unitq Amount

‘Kotak B§nking 8]1 PSU Debt fund - Daily Dividepd ‘ 1
| HDFC fIPating r:ﬂte fund | | 7
‘Prinicipﬁl Debtﬁpportunities Fund ConsewatiYe Plan - | |
Direct plan growth 463
| IDFC D)Jnamic Iﬂond Fund - Quarterly dividend | ]
'IDFC Sdper Saver Income Fund - Fortnightly Dividend | |
| Franklin/India Ldw Duration Fund - ‘ ‘ ‘
‘Monthly‘DividenHj Reinvested ‘ ‘ 1
‘Franklin‘lndia S?vings Plus Fund ‘ ‘ 1
‘Axis Trerury A(ﬁivantage Fund - Daily dividenc? | 7
‘Prameri?a Liqui(ﬁ Fund - Daily Dividend | | i
Pramerica Ultra Short Term Bond Fund - Direct Plan -
| 2 | ]
Prameric‘:a DynaHmic Bond Fund | -‘
‘IDFC Su‘per Saver Income Fund - Short Term Plan Growth -‘
Tata Short term Bond Fund - Plan A - Growth -
‘ICICI Pr‘udentiaIHShort Term - Regular Plan - G‘rowth Option | -‘
‘SBI PreJnier Liq&id fund - Regular Plan Growtﬁ ‘8,48§
‘HDFC F\oating Iﬁate Income Fund - Short Ternl1 Plan - | |
| Wholesale Optidn Growth | 7,80,732
|UTI Treasury Adyvantage Fund - Institutional Plan - Growth |7,387
‘SBI UItr@ Short 'H'erm Debt Fund - Regular Plaqn Growth 10,41%
‘Axis Tregsury Aﬂlvantage fund - Growth- (TAGIf’G) ‘6,01q
‘IDFC Money Mzﬂnager Fund Investment Plan 7
Growth- Regulanj Plan 4,%1 ,75§
‘PrameriJ:a Insta ‘bash Plus Fund - Direct Plan l | |
| Daily Dividend Reinvestment | 1,01,172
|ICICI Prudential|Money Market Fund - | | |
1,20,378

‘Direct Pl‘an- GroHNth | ‘ |

\ | | | |
Total Current Investments
\ \ I \ \ \
‘Total Va‘lue of &uoted Current investments | | |

‘Market {lalue oa Quoted Investments | | |

| | I | | |
' Total Vdlue of Unquoted Current investments | |
| | I | | |
\ \ I \ \ \
\ \ l \ \ \

I b
RSN
L
| ||| March 31,2015, || |
‘Nq‘ofUnits‘AmoqntH‘
TOLAL073) 375
|1 PE3M2 087
0.10 [T 463‘ 0.‘08H |
- 14086407 114!
| 1Tho,08,436! 113! |
i I
- |]1PpB4082) 227
T |1p64244) 816
© oy 08639, 1070
382 0RT
5,024 0.50
L 1,428\ e
LIPSO (R
- | “56,35,100‘ 5.‘19H |
HHL1,03,503‘ 1.‘14”‘
b00 |11 N
i o
200 ||| L
150 || SN
200 |y | N
100y A
oo NI 0
i o
1.02 |/ -
5o |11 o
i T
HHH T
255.66 280.16
R 1 |
YTERALL —alaT !
TTTT] T 17
573 TTIT] I slgdl |
11T R
25525 | [[l] | 27975/ |
1111 R
i o
111 |l
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| | | \ \ \ | L1
l“lOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR EI}II‘JE?

(All amounts are in crores of Indian Rupees, unless btherwise stated) | ||

\
March 31, 2016,

|
:

\ iR
MARCH 31, 2016

|
T
\

Inventories (vaﬂued at lower of cost and neﬁ realizable vallﬂe)
|

Consurqables aﬂ\d media | ‘1 ﬂ?‘
| Total | H \ \ \ 13, 048
| | I | | | LI | I
19 | Trade recelvables | | 1] o
| ] ) \ \ \ . LTI \ N
| ‘Trade rt‘ecelvabﬂes (Unsecured, considered Pood unless st"ated cTtherW|se) ] | R
o Unsecu‘red, corulsidered good unless stated‘ otherwise | | m | ol
. Outstan‘ding for Ha period exceeding six monthg from the | | T | I
" Idate the‘y are due for payment ‘ ‘ ‘ T ‘ I
| - consideredlgood | . 90!57! | 40log! |
|| - considered|doubtful | . 86! | 74l00! |
| | I | | | 177138l " 12399 |
| I Provisioh for dolibtful receivables | | | (Sb‘éﬁ | (74.‘00‘)‘ |
| | H | (@A) 90.57 | 49l99! |
| | I | | | LI | I
| | Other trade recdivables \ | \ 733199 | 707501 |
| | H | . (B) 733/99) . 707/50 |
| | I | | | LI | i
| [Total | I | (A +B) 824.56 | 757149/ |
| | I | | | LI | I
| | I | | | LI | I
| |Trade réceivables include: | | | LT | Il
| \ I \ \ \ LTI \ N
| | Dues frdm Private Companies in which the Company's directors are Imembers / diréctors: | N
| | I | | | [T | I
| | Sun Dirgct TV Private Limited | | | 129143 | 124/52] |

| Sun Distribution|Services Private Limited 84194 91/46/| |

| Kal Publications|Private Limited 7189

¥
7164] |

\

\

\
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| \ | \ |11 \ | ]
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2016
| | I (All amounts are in crores of Indian Rupees, unless btherwise stated) 1 | |1
L o 11| N
| T | | March 31,2016, Warch 31,2013,
‘20 Cash ar‘id bankHbaIances | | | m | 0
| ‘Cash aIJId cashHequivaIents | | | [T | I
| Balance‘s with bﬂznks: | | | [T | N
| | On currént accounts \ \ \ 46145 | 48[15] |
| | On unpaid dividénd account | | | 0/39] | 0/26/| |
| | Cheques on hand | | | 108412 | 0,02 |
N L | s 157,93, 248
| \ I | | | I | LI
Other bank balances
] Deposité with onjxginal maturity for more than S‘months but | | [T | I
| |less than 12 mopths* | | | 938103 | 71081 |
| o | ) 969,88, 13819,
| | I \ | \ 4 gg\ | | £ I
Less: Disclosed under non current assets - Refer note 16 (C) (31.65) (27.34)
| | I | | | I | LI
| ITotal | ” | (A+B+C) 1,093.06/ | 750/29] |
| | I | | | LTI | LI
| | I | | | LTI | LI
21 | Short term Loans and advances (Unsecured) \ \ L1 \ ||
| ‘Advanc‘es recollerable in cash or kind | | | LT | I
| ‘Considejred goouj | | | jO‘.éb‘ | 32!4%‘ |
| [ Considéred doubtful | I 11,58 1147 |
| | I | | \ 41.85 | 4394 |
| | Provisiop for doubtful advances | | | (11.55) | (11:47) |
| | H | . 3030 | 3247
Loans to related, parties 1. -
| |Loanstqrelatedp | | K T
' | Other 10ans and advances | | | [T | LI
| | Prepaidlexpensés - Considered good \ \ \ 18.55 | 15/55] |
| | Advance income-tax (net of provision for taxatjon) | | |1.42 | 1120 | |
| Balance‘s with s#atutory/government authoritieg | | 1T | I
' |- Considered gobd | | | 60.18 . 60l28] |
| |- Considered doubtful | | | 114 | 2121|| |
| | I | | | 80.15 7924 |
| Provisiop for dowbtful balances with statutory ﬁnd government ‘autho[ities L1117 | (2T21M ‘
| o | | 8018 1103
‘ ‘ ‘ H ‘ ‘ ‘ 11\1\'\9\5\ | 109750\ |
[ITT] \ 11

[T \ i
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\ \ \ | L1
l“lOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENI‘DE?

I (All amounts are in crores of Indian Rupees, unless btherwise stated) ||

FZ | Other ?urrent ‘Fssets

Unsecured, cocjrsidered good unless stated

Interest accrue

Other receivab

| -on fixéd depolits

Ié‘s

| - from &elated &’arties
| - Otherg (ReferHNote 31)

Unbilled‘ RevenLUes

Total

23 Revenue from operations

|
\
|
|
|
|
|
\
\
|
L |
24
|
|
\
\
\
|
|
|
\
\
\
|

Revenues from services

Advertising income

Broadcast fees

\
Income from m

Income from In

Other income

| International Sukscription Revenue

| Subscription income

ovie distribution

| Income from content trading

Jian Premier League

Interest income

- on bank deposits

-onloanstoa

- on others

ssociates

Dividend income on current investments

Net gain on sal

e of current investments

Gain on foreign exchange fluctuation (net)

Liabilities / provisions not required written back

otherwise

Reversal of provision for bad and doubtful debts

Rental Income

Business Support Services

Miscellaneous

Income

oods | eoad
34371/ " o661 |
[TTTT \ 7 |
1] | N
1] | N
1] | N
1,385.‘&4 | | 1,289‘.3&‘ |
116%‘ | 114‘64H |
145.‘4‘%‘ | 137‘.72H |
81%.‘4‘%‘ | 738‘.00H |
s o
06 ger
wo | s
2,565.%‘ ‘2,395‘.38” |
[T \ 17 |
1] | N
o ot
b o
w o
1.8(L> 15.82
! " oss
4 e
1T | NN
6.51 2.02
il | NN
\2'\9@\ | 3\31\\\
i e
LT \ NN
?'ﬁﬁ 1 1§01H \
110.63 98.91
ITT1
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l\‘IOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL‘ STATEMENTS | FOR THE YEAR EI\‘II‘JEs MARCH 31, 2016
|| | I (All amounts are in crores of Indian Rupees, unless btherwise stated) 1 | |1
L 1| A | N
L | | | | | March 31 2‘ m 1March 311 201? L
g0 | Cost of Revenges | o m N
' | Telecast costs | ‘ ‘ ‘ 28.98 | 2740 ||
| | Program produdtion expenses | | | 70.80 | | 68.37 || |
‘ ‘Cost of prograry rights ‘ ‘ ‘ 59.%‘ ‘ 48.7% N
| Consumables awd media expensed | | | Z%ﬁ | | 0.61 I
Pay channel service charges 25.44 29.5
| ‘Licenseg H | | | 2é&4‘ | | 22.36 I
' |Franchisee feesl \ \ \ 85.05 | | 85.05 Il |
| [Others | I \ \ \ 14.84 | | 545 |1
| | H | | 30188 | 128750 )|

ributi&n and related IjldMé which is‘disclogedH |

‘Coét of Revénue exﬂludes amortisation of film proéluction cost, disﬂ
\

in Note - 29 |

26 | Employees' benefit expense

| Salaries‘, wagesHand bonus
|

| Gratuityl expensk (Refer note 39)

|
|

|

|

F
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|

| Contributions to|provident fund and other funds \
| Staff we‘lfare exwense | |
Directors' remuneration
| Sala H | |
. Ex-grétia / Bohus | |
| | I | |
| | I | |
7 , Other expense
| xpensep

‘ (Refer details below for payments made to au&jitors)

Legal aAd profelsional fees

|

| Travel and conveyance | |

|Rent | H | |

Electrici}y experﬂse |
Power and fuel

| Repairs‘and mauntenance
|- Building | | |
|- Plant qnd macminery ‘ ‘

- Others

Commu‘nication ! | |
[ Utilities | ” | |
| Insurance I | \
| Bad debts / Input credit written off | |

112,09 | | 9607 ||

160 | 088 Il |

| 10.28 | | 983 |||
| 290 430
| 2770 o749 ']
| 116.01 | | 9651 Il
| 271.63 | 235.08 || |
| T IR
| 1 o
| 7155 | 7404 !
| 1 I
| 8.25 | 923 || |
| ﬁ-fﬂ\ | 122? In
oo
| 4.28 | 094 |||
| 11-?@\ | 1;-29 N
O
| 14.48 | 247 11
| 146 | 099 Il |
| 478 | I
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\ \
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR E
|| | I (All amounts are in crores of Indian Rupees, unless btherwise stated,

~

Z—
—0—
m
o

MARCH 31, 2016

L ‘ . B ‘ . March 31,2016 March 31, 2 15‘ |
— \ T \ \ \ maEm \ —
I I L \ \ \ LT \ N
Provisions for claims and litigations 1.08 1.01

o Provisio‘n for do&btful debts / Movie advances ‘and Other Asset‘s | 23‘9@ | | 10.38 .
o Expendi‘ture on ﬁ?orporate Social Responsibilit‘y (Refer Note - 44) | é%‘d | | 5.6% I
. Loss on‘sale of Lssets (net) / assets scrapped | | ‘HSH | | 0.35 Il
| ‘Rates ahd taxeg‘ | | | AHJH | | 2.64 I
| I Miscellaneous é&penses | | | 3.04 | 477 I
| | H | o 210.48 | l1es.63 1|
| | I | | | [T \ IR
' |Payment to auditor | | | T \ i
| | I | | | LT | L
| |As auditor: | \ \ \ LTI \ L
| [Audit fee I | | | 0.40 | 033 ]|
| |Limited review | \ \ \ 0181 | 018 | |
| |Serviceflax | | . 9-08 | | 008
| | | | |

‘ In other‘ capaci}y:

Other services (certification fees)

| Reimbu‘rsementHof expenses

| | I

\ \ I

| | I

28 | Advertisementland marketing expenses
| | I

| | Advertisement and marketing expenses
|| | I

| \ I

29 | Depreciation and amortization expense

| Depreci?tion of Hangible assets

| ‘Amortizsfltion of Wtangible assets

| \ I

FO ‘Finanaﬁ costs H
| Interest‘ |
|

- on loans against deposits

|
- others

Bank charges

)

obl| ool I
0.77 " o064 |l
T T 1T
i I
i o
i o
11.59 | | 694 |||
11.59 | | 6.94 |||
i I
i I
i o
798| | 8929 |
42?.%‘ ‘526.1q 0|
504-94 | 61531 1
i I
| L[] R
1.76 1.07
057 oes |
047 o5 |
2.20 229

| | I
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31 Extraordinary Items

Impairment of Tangible Assets

(A)
| | I | | | TTTT] \ 1N
] Insuranée cIaimHagainst damaged assets | | | 266.bH | | LI
| | H (B o 260.00 LI
| | I | | | [T \ IR
| I Net extraordinarly items | (B)-(A) | | 17.97 | | L

During the yéar, Conipany's aircraft sustained damage due to floods in Chennai. The detetrination of the financigl |
Ff‘f(acts thereFf was ;lending as at March 31, 2016 ‘in view of highly technical nature ofihemssessment involve?. |
Subsequent to year end, upon completion of such technical assessment, khis aircraft ha g en assessled as beiné

beyond ecoromic repair and declared a constructivie total loss. Acdordingly, the carrying Valde of the dircraft as at |
‘the pate of tqe incide‘ t of Rs. 242.03 crores has been recorded Iossr in cuwrent year. The pﬂrppany has ‘recogn‘iseﬁi ‘
insurance claim of Rs. 260 crores based on the in-principle approval received from the insurers. Both of the above

have been recorded and disclosed as extraordinary‘items(net).The rJnanag%ment is confident'about the ¢ollection of |
the same. | H | o 1 I

[T \ i
1111] W}nnual quort 2@1%2p16

Lt

A

SUNTV
NETWORK



Suq T\( Network Limi}ed ‘ ‘ ‘

2

33 |

\ \ \
NOTES TO THE @:ONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR

\
(All amounts are in crores of Indian Rupees, dnless otherwise stated) ] \ \
| I | | | |11 | \

o ] T B TPt T oy B = Pyt Yy P prptil st TP s iy -3 Tl T P iy Wl 7_‘7
Goocfwnl I (Cfpltal Reserve) arisingon |nv‘estments ofthﬁ grouP inits Assom?lﬁ? | | |
L

THE YEAR El\‘llgglg MARCI-“ 31, 2316

[ |

| | | I\%Iarch ;31, 2016 and I\:néirfih 31,2015: R

|1 NemeoftheAssocia Sy o] (ol e} | 111

Beccan I{l)igital Networks (Hyderabad) Igrivate Limited | d.41 il ‘6.38 | I

I\j/letro Digjj;ital Networks (Hyderabad) Prijvate Limited j 01.41 j j HI&;)BO j 1T

/s;\v Digita;;l Networks (Hyderabad) Privat;e Limited ‘ 0;.41 ‘ ‘ ‘ ;(?.37) ‘

P‘ioneer Iﬁadio Training Services Privat? Limited | 2‘.86 N ‘\?.29 | B

(?ptimurrm Media Services Private Limit(ﬁd | 21.86 L 1”.29 | B

Prsia Rad‘Fo Broadcast Private Limited ‘ ‘ 2‘.86 L] ‘9.35 ‘ NN

l 981 | 113124 I

| I | | | [ | N

Capital and other commitments | | | [ 1] ] | [l

a) dapital Commitments (net ofadvances)‘ ‘ ‘ LI \ L

| l | | | LI \ I

‘ H Particulars ‘ March‘ 31, 2016 I\{I;m:p 31, 201? BN

Qutsta'nd‘jng commitme.n.ts. on capital contracts | | 4.29 i 6.1? BN
Commitmients for acquisition of film and

program proadcasting rights | | | 81.52 | []]| 156.24 | 1]

\ I \ \ | 8581 | |[|[| 162.43 N

| I | | | LI | I
The Group hﬂs obtained licenses under the Export Promotion Caljp;ital Goods (Erligﬁ) Scheme for im oréigﬁ
capital goods at a concessional rate of customs duty. Under the terms of the scheme, ”e Group }J1as an ex|
obligation equivalent to eight times the duty saved to be fulfilled within a period [of igight years|from date|of

impthofthecHapitaI goods. | \ \ [T \ N
W1 | \

Acco‘rdingly, t‘Le Group currently has an exr‘mrt obligation ag‘;greggting to Rs.Nil kMaroh 31, 2015 Rs. ‘42‘.%
crores ) I | | | LI | LI

| | | . [T | I
c) Royalty Rayable to Ministry of Information and Broadcastjng (‘MIB’) 1] ] | | |] ]

The proup ;]ﬁs obtained licenses to permit them to carry FM ‘operations in ‘ qﬂmai, Coimbatorg q:mi
Tirunelveli. The Group is required to pay royalty of 4% of gross revenue earned from these FM Operations
during the financial year or 2.5 % of One Time Entry Fees paid, whichever is higher| to [Ministry of Information
and Broadcasting, as required by terms of requirements of the Grant of Permission Agreement between Sun
TV Network Limited (“the Permission Holdér”) and Ministr;) of Information and B%ébcasting t‘MIB’) dated

b) éxport OLIigations
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\ \ \
NOTES TO THE @:ONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR

d) l?anaﬂs?rigms commitments

\ \ I
THE YEAR EN$E$ MARCA 31, 2316
\ [ (All amounts are in crores of Indian Rupees, dnless otherwise stated) ] \ Ll

As per the terms of the franchise agreehent entered into by the Group with tHe ‘BCCI, the ‘Group hat a
commitmgnt to pay BCCI, Rs. 85.05 crofies per annum from 2013 season to 2017|geason. From the 2018
II‘DL season, the Group is required to an license fees at EO% o‘n the Franchis? m;Tme earn?d duriTg W?
relevant year from the operation of the IPL franchise to BCCI. In the current year the Group has paid an

amount e{‘ggregating to Rs. 25.52 crores as franchise license fee for the 2016 IPL season. | I
\ I \ \ \ LTI \ L

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) ‘

| |11 | L1
March 31,2016 March31,2015

Grosé‘amounhequiredtobespentbytheGréupduringtheyeEr ! 21.94i il 21‘.02 T

AmOLfntSpen‘quringtheyearon: ‘ ‘ ‘ 1] ‘ ]

‘ ! ' March31,2016 ' ' ""March31,2015 ' T/

\ I Paid| Yettobepaid Total Paid | |lYettobepaid [Total

Cons}ruction/fcquisition ofanyasset - -

On purposes other than (1) above 9.60 | - | 5.60 5.62 | H-‘ | 5‘.62 T
| H 9.60 | - 060 562 |l 562 | [I]
| I | | | [T | I
Contr‘ibution Wadeto Related Parties: | 4.55 | | 1.12 i | BN
| I | | | LI | I
| I | | | T | LI
Litig?tions amd Claims ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ H ‘
Note: | | o il N
a) Matters wherein management has condluded the Group's liability to be problableland have accordingly

b)

c)

Note 2 : Contingent Liabilities | . 1T | I

qrovided Norinthe books. Refer Note 38 ‘ ‘ ‘ I ‘ N

l\%atters \/U/herein management has conéluded the Groui:)‘s IiaEiIity to be posgiulé‘and havé accorhinBI)L
disclosed under Note (2), below | | \ LI | N

Matters wherein management is confi?ent of succeeding in these litigations Z[;d have concluded Jhe
Iigbility to‘the Group to be remote. This is based on the rel vantlfacts ofjudicial‘pt' Ledents and as achi J—:'cj
by legal ¢ounsel which involves various legal proceeding and claims, in differdnt stages of procéss |in

relation tq civil and criminal matters.
patonigew! m | I 111 | N

\ [ \ March 31,2016 | March 31, 2015 I
Income Tax* | | | 423.75 1] 331.14] N
Customs puty™ @ | | | 63.63 | ||| 6363 |l
waice tahx*** | | | 26.56 W 28.26} B
Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debt | . 0.0 L 0.10

[ T [ [ "s14.0 R N

|

| I | | | |11 | |1l
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\ \ \
OTES TO THE @:ONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR

\ \ I
THE YEAR EN$E$ MARCA 31, 2316
\ [ (All amounts are in crores of Indian Rupees, dnless otherwise stated) ] \ Ll

*The Group received demands of income t?( dEaIIcTwing*th?* manner of aTFow%ﬁefcf iﬁed‘By tFe C;Toup?ow’f
| ] , | | [ | e

certain expenses. The Group’s appeal in respect of various years has been allowed by both the first and the
second appeHIate authorities in the previou% years. Accordfngly, hanagement believes that based on the
favourable judgment as well as relying on judicial pronouncements and other arguments, its position is likely|to

be acr:epted tﬂythe revenue authorities. | | | 1] | BN

The Group has also received demand of incpme tax disallowing cqrtain expendittir?ﬁlgimed in ‘Asses§mﬁnF
Year 2013-14. The Group has made an appeal against the said demand and based on the legal advise
obtaiJ‘ned by it, the management believes that the Group's claim‘is likely to be ‘akuejpted by t‘he apdellgté
authdrities. | | | | LI | I

**The Group\has received demand for differential customs dhty agbregating to Rs.10.50 crores on accountlof
incorrect clasgification of certain assets imported during FY 2007-08. The Group has gpne on appeal agairst
the said demand, and based on its arguments at such appellfate pr?ceedings, mamagﬁment beIiFves th‘at H]?
Group’s claimis likely to be accepted by the authorities.

@ Further to enquiries by the customs authorities on customs duty exemptions availed by the Group in the
previé)us yeaﬁ, the Group has received a #ormal show caL‘Jse nétice containiné H ‘drovisiona‘l demgnd‘ ‘o%
Rs. 63.13 crdres. Then the Group has filed its responses to this| notice and haks|also deposited a simi|of
Rs. Gﬂ .08 crofes under protest pending final‘ resolution of thq mattqar. The Managefnpﬂn‘t has beep adviqed‘ P¥
senior counsels that appropriate legal remedies are availabl‘e to the Group in this matter and is accor‘dinﬁw

confiéentofrtﬂcovering the duty paid. | T ‘
\ | | || | \ | L)

***The Group received show cause notice #rom the Service‘ tax department see‘(i‘ng service tax on certain
services and disallowances of input credit availed on certain services. The Group has filed appeais for all such
show| cause| notices / orders received Wwith various authorities. The Group |based on|the judi¢ial
pron?uncemﬁnts and other arguments belie\fes its positionis ‘ikelytP be accepted t?y‘ m? authorit}es. BN

\ H \ ] [ \ I
Leases | \ . [ \ I

Operpting Ie?ses (As aLessee) ‘ ‘ ‘ LI ‘ L]
The éroup hrLLs taken a KU band satellite tr‘ansponder and ‘office ‘premises on a‘ rlc‘)wcancellagle ope‘rat%é
leasel. Further, there are no restrictions impolsed by the lease arrangements and there bre no subleases.| || |

! I ! ! ! mEN ! N
Particulars March 31, 2016 Mqr‘ql? 31, 201§
[ [T [

Le}ase payuhwents recognised in the statelinent of profit ‘ ‘ I
and loss for the year | | | 38.49 [l 35.18 [
Mi‘nimumHLease Payments | | | L1 | NN
N?t later truwan one year | | | 32.89 111 34.19 N
La!ter thanH1 year but not later than 5 yeﬁrs | | 98.52 L 35.7? BN
La‘ter than 5 years 22.41 16.87‘

I

I
Operating leases (As alessor) | | | ] | | ] |

The Group hds leased out certain parts of itd owned corporate office building to its related parties. These non
cancgllable Iq@ses have remaining terms of Qetween 1and1 dearq. As per para 4q qu\Fcounting‘ Standc?rd‘ ‘1 9
lease issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, the gross block of such leased property
deteanined bgsed on the area occupied aggtlegates toRs. 16‘.58 cr&res (Previous %éH Rs. 17.4b croreé) AM
the accumulated depreciation and net book|value of the same was amounted to Rs.|5.57 crores (Previous
Year-‘ Rs. 5.0?) crores and Rs. 11.01 crores (r’revious Year - FTs. 12.?4 crores) respreﬂi‘vfly. | 1l
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\ | \ \
I\LOTES TO THE gONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR
(All amounts are in crores of Indian Rupees, Unless btherwise stated) ]

\
ru@e ﬁni@m?entﬁ?ls receivable under non c%ceﬁab@op@’atﬁg I?Eseg‘ar@s follows:

THE YEAR EI“IEQE[L MARCI-X 31, 2C‘i1(‘3H |

| | H Particulars | March h1, 2016 MérUH 51, 2015i I
| Lease incothe recognised in the statement of profit | | FITT \ LI
and} loss forche year | | | 2.75 W 3.71 | N
Minimum Lease Rentals Receivables
Notilater thgn one year | | | 2.89 T 3.32i I
Latér than 1‘1 year but not later than 5 yearg | | 13.08 any 19.23i Il
| [ Latér than 5 years | T 1928 | TTITT 1358l I

37 Un-hedged foreign currency balances

| forelgp currenn:;y balances which are not hedqed asatthe balapce sneetdate are as‘bﬁlﬂlv:

The Group ddes not use any derivative instruments to hedde its foreign currency|ékposure. The details jof

|| \ H | March 31, 2016 | | [ March 31,2015 | ||
| | | Amount in | Amount Ampount in Amount ||
o o E I Foreign Joreign ‘in Intian F?I;@Ifg i‘n Indian [
articulars Currency urrency Rupees Curi y Rupees
| | | I | | | [T | |l
| Trade Recelivables | usD 10.58 | 38.25 0.47! | | 29.45 ||
| Trade Recelivables | AUD [0.03 | 1.36 0.02 | | 1.04 |
| Trade Recgivables | CAD 10.01 | 0.09 0.00 | | 0.00 |
‘ Tr@de Recqivables I GBP ‘0.02 ‘ 1.90 QQ?\ ‘ ‘ 1.94 I
| Tr?de Payalbles | uUsb 10.01 | 0.?‘1 Cﬁ)?1 | | 0.0q T
| Advance from customer uUsbD ,0.00 . 0.00 0.01 . 050
| Advance frém custgmer CAD ‘0.01 | 0.68 . b‘ | | 0.0d i
| Security Deposits H T I
from customers | AUD 10.01 | 025 0.0M! | 024 |l
| Selcurity Déposits | \ \ \ I \ |l
| from customers | uUsD |0.04 | 2.78 0.03 | | 1.62 |
| Security deposits paid uUsb |0.02 | 119 Q.08 | | 1609 |

P8

Assets" the Jetails of Provisions are seto

tas under-

Eons, Contingent Lﬁaﬁifi‘ties and‘Contir‘lg?m

[ | |
Nature of Provision

Opening Balance

|
As required by Accounting Standard (ﬁS-ZQ) "Provis
\

Provision for

Provision written

Closing Balance

the year back /adjusted
‘Cléims rela{ed to | | | | T | T |
| Service Tax| I 3.88 \ 1.08 \ \ - 1111 496 | |||
\FM License\fees | - | 2.05 | | - L] 2.@5 | 1
| | | 3.88 313 - | Ty
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| | \ \ \
NOTES TO THE !)ONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR
|| \ [ (All amounts are in crores of Indian Rupees, Unless btherwise stated) ]

\ I \ \ \
*Enﬁ)loﬁe?naitrﬁansﬁGﬁtuﬁ o -

the funded status and amounts recognisedin the balance sheet fo
| | I | | |
Statement of|Profit arid Loss | | |

the Gratuity p
LT

THE YEAR El“l[gg[g MARCI-X 31, 20‘1(:3H |

Thq Group Pas a defined benefit gratuity Plan. Every employee ‘who has comqlqtﬁq five years or more ‘of

service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service.

The scheme is funded with an insurance Group in the form of g qualifying insurance policy.The following

tables sumgarize the components of net benefit expense r: cogn'Lsed inthe statmmt of profit ‘and Ios‘s awc{
t lan!

B Par‘ticularsH | | | Year endet‘i HH Yea‘r ende‘d |
- | H | | | March 31, 2&1H l Marclll 31, 261&‘
‘CuL’rent ser\‘/ice cos“ | | | 1.43 [T ‘1 37 ]
‘Intérest cos{ on ben‘L—:‘fit obligation | | | 0.73 [T ‘0.68 1l
‘Exbected réturn on ‘blan assets ‘ ‘ ‘ (0.91) [ {0.79) |1l
|Net actuarial (gain) I loss recognised in the year | | | 035 |l (0.39) | |l
| Net benefit expense | | | 1.60 | [/[] 0.87 | |l
| Actual return on plah assets | | | 0.87 ||| |0.75 | ||
| | I | | | LI | i
B Par‘ticularsH | | | As at o As at -
. | H | | | March 31, 261‘& [l Marcﬂ 31, 261%‘
Defined benefit obligation | Y 908 | |l
Fair value of plan assets \ b (12.39) [T (10.00) | Il
'Plan Liability / (Asset) | \ \ (1.07) 111 (0.02) | |l
| Experience ladjustments on plan liabilities | | | 0.32) | [l 043 | |l
| Experience ladjustmlents on plan Asset [ | | 0.03) | I[l] (0.04) | ||
| | I | | | LI | I
Phﬁnges intr‘we pres%t value of the defined benefit oPIigation are as f?llows‘: 1] | BN
|| Particulars | | | Yearended!!|!|  Yearended !
| | | | | | March 31,2016 | || March 31, 2015
| Opening defined benefit obligation | | | 9.98 ||| B8.82 | ||
| Current service cosf | | | 143 | 111} 1.37 | |
‘Intgrest cost l ‘ ‘ ‘ 0.73 1L ‘0.68 L1l
‘Ac}uarial (g?ins) / Iques on obligation ‘ ‘ ‘ 0.32 LLIL (p.43) L
Bepefits paid | I N AT Q4n |y
‘Cl?sing derined bﬁnefit obligation | | | 11.32 m ?.98 M
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| | \ \ \ \ N
NOTES TO THE !)ONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR EN$E$ MARCI-X 31, 2016
|| \ [ (All amounts are in crores of Indian Rupees, Unless btherwise stated) ] \ Ll

| \
7Fh%1ge§ inﬁe fair vemilueﬁplain assets are as f(Wow? o

\
Particulars

RERR
Year ended

Year ended
- | H | | | March 31, 261‘&‘ | Marclll 31, 261&‘
‘Fa#r value oLf plannéh assets at the beginning of th‘e year | | 10.00 T ‘8.04 1]
‘Exbected réturn on ‘blan assets | | | 0.91 [TIT] ‘0.79 [
| Contributioris H | ] 265 | Il 168 | |l
 Behefits paid I | | | (1.14) [ I11] (0.47) | |l
| Actuarial gdin / (los$) on plan assets \ | \ 0.03) | I]] (0.04) | |
| Fair value of plan agsets at the end of the year | | | 12.39 | ||| 10.00 | ||

*hé experieﬁce adju&tments on plan liabilities and Essets, and net %SUI’pH‘JS) / deficit for ﬂhg %ars endéd Maréh §‘1J

201ﬂ, March p1 ,201 E@ and March 31,2012 are as follpws:

L1l
R
March 31, %01%
T

| |
Marcr:1 31, 24)1#
[ [

‘ Pe%rticular::s ‘ March 31, #014 : 13, ‘
" Defined benefit obligation at the end of the period 8.82 ‘ 794 T '6.86
" Fair value of plan assets ! (8.04) | (5.88) 111 (5.12) | 1l
| Net deficit | I | 0.78! \ 2.06 | [I]] 1.74 | |l
| Experience adjustments on plan liabilities | 0.51] | 0.24 | ||| |0.18 | ||
‘ Ef(periencef: adjustr‘pents on plan assets ‘ (0.10) ‘ (0.03)‘ 1 ‘0.03 |

The principal actuarial assumptions used in determir‘ﬂng gratuity obli%ation Forthe Group’s F

lans are shown below:

] Pa‘rticularﬂs |
| | I |

| Aear 1T
| March 31, 2016 ||

Asat 1l

Marcﬂ 31, 2615‘

'Discount rate I |

| 7.80 % -8.009 | |

7.80 % - 8.00 %

|Expected rdte of return on assets \

| 8.00 % -9.00% ||

8.00 % - 9.00 %!

|Employee tlirnover | \

| 1.00 % -3.00 % | |

1.00 % - 3.00 %/

Ll'he‘ overall expected rate of return on assets is deter‘mined based on‘marke

t prices prevaiJirLé]‘o‘n that date, appli‘caule‘

to the period over which the obligation is to be sdttled. The estimates lof future salari/ ‘ihHeases, consideted lin
pctqarial vallyation, tpke account of inflation, seniqrity, promotion qnd ot‘her relevant chp@, such as supply qmq
demand in the employment market. Based on the experience of the previous year, the Group expects to contribute
hs. b.1 5to thb gratuitlg/ fund in the nextyear. Howevehhe actual contr\butiorll by the Group \)\/ih‘ﬂé based in‘the act‘uaHai

valuation repprt receijed from the insurance company.
| \ I \
| | I |
|| | I |
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| \ I
Suq T\( Network Limi}ed

I‘LOTES T‘O THE gONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

Relaﬁed part¥ transactions

Nam$ of relaﬂed parties

Mr. Kalanithi Maran

\ 1N
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR EN$H$ MARCI-X 31, 2&16
(All amounts are in crores of Indian Rupees, Unless btherwise stated) I | Ll

IndideuaI oaning aninterestin voting power ofthe Comgany tlpat gives them‘ qqmrol ‘ N

| 1) Enterptises in'which Key Management personnel or their relatiVes have significant influerice | || |

[ ] \ I

| | Kal Corhm Private Limited

| | Kal Cables Private Limited

| | Sun Dirgct TV Rrivate Limited

| Udaya IfM Priveﬁte Limited

o Sun Di%tributior” Services Private Limited

| SpiceJeTt Limiteﬁi (Upto February 23, 2015)
| Kal Puqlicationﬂ Private Limited

\ \ [T \ IR
D.K. Enterprises Private Limited| | [ 1]

LTI \ i
Muraspli Ma(an Family Tru§t‘ | ‘ |

Sun Foundation

Kal quia S?rvices Private‘Himi}ed ‘ N
Sun Btrlsine%s Solutions Priyﬁ? ‘Limited | R
Kal Air]ways Frivate Limited‘ M | ]

\ \
2.‘ Associfztes

- AV Dlgllal Netwu)rks (Hyderabad) Private Limi

. Asia Rszlo Brogdcast Private Limited
. Digital ﬁ(adio (I%L)Ikata) Broadcasting Limited

| Optimuh Medid Services Private Limited
|| | I

led

" | Metro digital Nétworks (Hyderabad) Private Limited

D|g|taI‘Rad|o‘ (Mumbai) Broaécastlng leited

Deccal‘n D|g|4al Networks (I-‘ydéljabad) PnL/ate Li}nitud‘
Pioneér Rad‘io Training Serbi@éé Private Ilimited‘ ]
Digital lRadid (Delhi) Broad¢asting Limited iy
South Asia Multimedia Privaté Limited | N
[T | I

| 3/ Key Management personnel

o | |
| | Mr. Kalanithi Mgran - Executive Chairman

|| Mrs. Kayery Kal‘pnithi - Executive Director

o Mr.VC‘Unnikriﬁ‘hnan - Chief financial Officer
Mr. R. Ravi - Company Secreta
| 3 nnp y ry

| | Mr. KVijaykumgr - Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer |

| Mr. K St‘wanmug?m - Managing Director of Kal Iﬁadio Limited ang Souqh Asia FM Limiqu K ‘ ]

| 4 | Relatlv‘es of Key Management personnel

| Mrs. Ma‘llika Maﬂan
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| ILIOTES TlO THE Q:ONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL‘ STATEMENTS‘FOR J'I'HE YEAR ErJIﬂEH MARCH‘ 31, 2d1 6‘ N
(All amounts are in crores qf Indian Rupees, qnless ptherwise stated% [ ] | | |] ]

4 ‘Sebment irJformati%n
| \ I

‘Thg Group q:onsideq§ business segments as its pri‘mary segment. The Group's operatio‘ng‘ pqedominanptly

[relate to Media and Entertainment and, accordingly, this is the only primary reportable segment. | | 1]

|Gejpgraphical segments

|Year ended March 31, 2016 | | India Othelrs | Totall |
'Revenue | I \ \ \ I \ LI
|Sales | H | 12,425.60 14418 | 2,569.78 |
Other segrﬂent information | | | [T | ]
|Segment assets | | |3,968.43 54,54 | 4,022.97| |
|Total assets I \ \ \ LT \ L
\Capital expenditure] | \ \ LI \ N
|| Tangible fixed dssets | 4202 [T | 4200 |
| | Intangible fixed assets | | 438.32 [ | 438.32 |
| | Capitallwork in|Progress | | 073 - | 0.73 |
|| \ I \ \ \ LI \ N
| \ I \ \ \ LI \ N
'Year ended March 31, 2015 | | India Others | Total !l |
'Revenue | I \ \ \ I \ LI
Sales | I \ | 2,246.53 148.85 | 2,395.38] |
'Other segment information | | | LT \ |1l
|Segment assets | | | 3,606.10 55.97 | 3,662.07] |
Total assets I \ \ \ LI \ N
Capital expenditure; | o 1111 L
Tangible fixed assets 26.12 - 26.12
| Intangii)Ie fixed‘assets | | 39%.67 111 | 396‘.6% |
| | Capitall work in[Progress | | 0.05 E | 0.05] |
i Il Il i i Il | i Il 1l Il

| | |

| | |
[This space has ?een intentionaIIP/ left t‘T)Iank]

| | |

| | |

[T \ i
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| I | o 1111 T
Sun Ty Network Limited | | 111 L

| lllOTES 1J0 THE kONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL‘ STATEMENTS‘FOR J'I'HE YEAR EIJE;EH MARCH‘ 31, 20‘1 6‘ y

| ] | | (All amounts are in crores of Indian Rupees, ynless otherwise stated) ||| | | [ ]|

|| \ I | | |1 \ |l
*4fAdditiﬁr1aﬁnf<ﬁm§tiorﬁ'eqﬁreﬁbyfsclﬁdlﬂé IMOtheCrr‘\ﬁ iies Act, 2013~ — — — — — — —

. | NameHof the entity | Net assets | Share in profit orloss || |

[ | | | As%of‘ | ‘Ae“’/oof | RN

|| | [ | consolidated | |Amount onsglidated || Amount| |

| | | Il | net asset\s | p\ro\lt \Or IOSS | | I

1 \ 1 \ \ \ AR \ I
SHm T‘V Netwow’k Limitﬂd | 77.30 | ‘2933.70 N ‘%&17 | 8(?7.:%3‘
Subsidiaries

128 | H | BN N R
Indian

L 1, L \ \ \ |1 4 \ | %\
South Asia FM Limited 412 156.55 .50 13.
Kél Rgdio Limiked H | 5.09 | | 193.26 |11 ‘i.31 | 51%&‘

| | I | | | [T | I
Minority Interest in all dubsidiaries \ \ \ LT \ N
Saouth|Asia FM| Limited| | 4.54 | | 172.33 | 1]1.82 | 16.92|
qu Rgdio Limi}ed I ‘ 0.08 ‘ ‘ 3.23 I ‘Q.OS ‘ ‘Oﬂlp‘

| \ I | \ \ LTI \ N
Associates (investment as per the equity method
jeopiates (ipvestmg ? N m N

Indian

A\‘/ Dl‘gltal Netv‘vorks (HHyderabad) Private Limited | 0.57 | | 21.54 a ‘6‘01) | (6.09)‘
Aéla FJEadlo Br&adcast H’rlvate Limited | 0.16 | | 6.00 1] ‘6).11 | ‘o.éb‘
Digital Radio (Kolkata)/Broadcasting Limited \ . - AT |l
Meétrol Digital Networks| (Hyderabad) Private Limited | 2.35 | | 89.29 | 1110.20 \ 11.88
Optimum Media Services Private Limited | 3.18 | | 120.70 | 1110.28 | |2.59 |
Digitaf Radio (I}/Iumbai)‘ Broadcasting Limited ‘ - ‘ - R ‘ N
Defccan DigitaI‘Networﬂfs (Hyderabad) Private Limiteﬂl 2.11 | | 79.90 ] ‘9.24 | 2.%P‘
Pioneer Radio ‘Trainin%‘ Services Private Limited | 0.50 | | 18.80 N ‘?.33 | ‘3 “I‘1 |

Digital Radio (Delhi) Broadcasting Limited - - -

ScLuth‘Asia MutimediaHPrivate Limited | - | | - 1T - | | H-‘

| Totall I | 100.00 | 3,795.30 ' 100.00 | 930.79/

4?J Iﬂvestmeﬂtin Suﬂgidiaries operating in Radio bhsiness | | [T | I

Undet the relevant franfeworks of the Ministry of Information and Broatcasting of the Govetnment of India (‘MIB’), tHel
C?mppny its SLbe|d|ar|?s and its investees involved in ﬁM Radio operatlcrns hag submitted apqllfﬂtlpns to mlqrate eX‘IStlﬂg‘
FM Radio licenses (including six of which expired on March 31, 2015 and others expiring on various dates in FY 2016-17
and tHereafter)\from Phase Il to the Phase I Ilcensmﬁ; regime as welllas apbllcatlons for pérhU ﬂ)atlng in the e-auction!
process for new FM Raﬂlio frequencies in the Phase IlI chensing regime. ‘The Cpmpany has diqeﬂ( jndirect inyestmeptq ;n‘
FL\JA Radio oper?tions agﬂgregating Rs 620.20 crores, thc‘a recoverability o‘f whicl‘"n is dependent ‘up‘)‘o‘n‘ maintaini‘ng prof‘itaﬂe‘
operations.

Two investees ¢f the Company were permitted to participate in e-auction|process based on a favdlitable order of the Delhil
High CEourt. Th% Union oﬁ India’s appeal thereagainst haﬁ been dismissed Py the F—|on'ble Supren‘wq ﬁqurt, theret?y settiqg I

|| \ I \ \ \ [T \ i
156‘ \ Annual quort 20”5-2016 ‘ ‘ ‘ L1 ‘ |l |



] | | \ I | 1] | | I
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDI‘ED MARCH 31, 2016

| | [ (All amounts are in crores of Indian Rupees, unless btherwise stated) ||| | | |l

A‘asi&e the Goizemmetﬂt’s rejection of the applications cjitingsecurity_teajsons;éubsequentiotkéuglanceshe‘ei dale,‘ (ab‘tv(ta
qustees haye been E/Iranted licences in respect of 3 ‘stations, for whiqh the Grant of Permispi‘qr[u Agreemeqt (‘GO A‘) ‘hgs

een signed; (b) the MIB has offered migration of existing licenses owned by the Company’s investees to the Phase Il
licehsing regime subject to payment of the requisite fees and compliance| with other terms |and conditions, which|the

uanagemen is confiient of complying with.

ith respect to the Company and its subsidiaries, (a) An interim oréer of lthe Madras Hig‘h‘ Ho‘urt had p‘ermitte‘d t”e‘se
Corhpanies to participate in the e-auctions in Phase llll. (b) With reference to migration frorh [Phése Il to Phase Ill statéd
Elbove, the relevant caﬂmpanies have been permitted t? continue existing operations by way of i@)tmim orders by the Q/Ij?rﬁs
igh court. While the matter continue to be sub-judice at the Madras High Coth, having regarg e recent judgment of the
Bupreme Court as well post-year end events, in relation to investees of the Company, management is confident of recejying
he required approvals against the applications by the Company and its subsidiaries, to f ble continued profil ble
pe%ations of‘these FM Radio stations and the recoveJrabiIity of the Co%pam)‘s investments,‘dir@jt and indirLect, in #ts zdio

pperations. | H \ ] [ \ 1N

|

n the third qugrter oftpe currentyear, the Company his alsomade additionaIJ vestments of Rsr ‘1457.80 crorﬁs in So?th ﬁaia
M Limited (“SAFM”), a subsidiary, against a rights issue by SAFM towards funding newlice#ce gnd the migration plg s
per Phase Il licensingregime. | | | [ 1111 | [ ] ]

| \ I \ \ \ LT \ L
TM ‘ProvisicTnaIAttif:hmentorderfrom Enforcem?ntDirectorate | | N | BN

During the quarter ended June 30, 2015, the Company and one of its subsidiaries, SoutL A‘\si‘a FM Limited (“SAI—lM”),
received an order from the Enforcement Directorate, Ministry of Financé, Government of Indié,‘(}‘thforcemeht Diredtorgté”)
ProYisionaIIy ﬁttachin certain Freehold Land and Builgings ofthe ComPany a‘ggregating Rs. g@p‘qrores, anql fixed qepﬂsits
with banks and mutual fund investments of SAFM aggregating Rs. 21.34 crores, under the Prevention of Money Laundering
Act| 2002 (“PMLA”) in connection with an investigation not involving the Company. Withl reference to the Provisidnial
ttachment Order (“PAQ”) under PMLA, the Company has filed a Special Leave Petition (“SL i hallenging the saing der
efore the Hon’ble Supreme Court of India which has)ltayed the adjudiéation L)roceedings un é me PMLA and accord rLgﬁy
the entities continue td be in full possession of these dssets. Based on |egal ddvise, managemént|is confident that the|said
PAQ is not legally tenable and is confident of a favourable outcome in due course and, accordin?Iy, is of the view that no
Lacci)unting afjustmer“ts are considered necessary in these financial reéults in‘this regard. ] | 1

#5 | Prior year comparatives \ \ \ LI | N

Preyious year figures”have been regrouped/ reclassjfied, where necessary, to conformto thig y@ar’s classrfificatio‘n. Il |

| | H | | i ]
As perour report of even date.
| |Asperopirreport | | i o

| ‘ForS.R.‘ BATLI%OI&ASSOCIATES LLP | Foran‘d on b‘ehalfofthe bo‘a‘r‘d‘c‘)fdirecto‘rs I
| ‘CharterédAcchntants | | | [T | I
| lICAIFirh registration number: 101049W/E300004 ] [ \ [T
| | [ | | | LI | N

| | perAniruddh Sankaran | Kalanithi Maran | | |[KVijaykumar | || |

| |Partner I ‘ Chairman | | | Managing Director &| |

| ‘Member‘ship Noﬂ: 211107 | | | N ﬁ)rief ExecHJtive Of"ﬁc?‘r |

| \ | | | | LTI | L
Place : Chennai

| ‘Date:M‘ayZ?,Zgw | R. RavE | a ‘\‘I‘CUnnikrEshnan‘ Il

| | H | Compe{nySeL:retary | Hd‘:hiefFinan‘cial Off%ce‘rJ |

| | I \ Place :IChenhai [ I]]] | |1
| | [ | Date : May 27,2016 [T | |1
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STAJI'EMENJJ' PURSUANT TO GENERAL EIRCULAR NO
ISSUED BY MINISTRY OF CORPORATE AFFAIRS RELATING TO SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES | || |

: 2/20

[ (All amounts are in crores qf Indian Rupees, qnless ptherwise stated% [

J|1 DATED 8TI-J Il-'HéRUARY E011 |

I \ | \ | | [11] \ N
| Ne‘lme of th‘e Com;H>any KAL RADIO‘LIMIT‘ED S‘OH"I'I‘-I ASIA F‘M LIMI‘TE‘I‘) |
] | } ! | | LI | L
‘ quticularq [ Mprch 31, 2016 March‘31, 2015 Marq:h m, 2016 March q1, QOﬂS
| SAare Capikal H | 176.94 | 1%6.94 ‘GLI%.BG | 483‘.8&‘ |
| (Incl. Share application money) | | | L] ] | | ]
| Reserve & Surplus| | 19.56 | (2.45) | (7136) | (169.73) |
| | | II | | | [ | | [
[ [ [ 1T [ [ [ [ [ [ [
Total Liability(*) 19.27 16.55 67.06 21.4&?
| \ I | | | | TTT | LI
| Total Assets (#) | | 215.76 \ 191.04 635.06 | 335.61 |
| | | Il | | | I | | | [
1 \ 1 \ \ \ Tl \ I
| To‘tal Incom‘e (incluﬁing other income) | 89.24 | ‘81.05 ‘1‘0‘2‘.‘78 | 8‘4.1‘1‘ |
| Profit / ( Loks) befofe Tax | 3424 | |27.19 | B0.91 | 19.50 |
1 i 1 i i i R i 1
‘ Prpvision f?l' Tax I ‘ 12.24 ‘ ‘ 1.20 LI - ‘ 0
| Profit / (Loss) after Tax " 2200 || 2509 | 50.01 | 1050 |
[ | | | | | [ TTT] | [ 1
‘ Perosed inidendH(including Dividend Tax) ‘ - ‘ |- s ‘ N
| Investments (included in Total Assets) 1341 | I33.90 1311.84 | 19425 |
I \ | \ \ \ T \ IR
"‘ (Long TerP1 Borrowings + Deferred tax liability (net) + Other Long term Liabilities + Curant Liabilities) LI ‘ L]
# (Net Tangible Fixed assets + Net intangible Assets + Capital work in Progress + Non Current Investments + Eeferred tax Assets (Net) +

| | Long Term loans anfi advances + Other Non Current assets + Current Assets) |
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Murasoli Maran Towers, 73,MRC Nagar Main Road, MRC Nagar, Chennai - 600 028, India.
Tel : +91-44-4467 6767 Fax : +31-44-4067 6161 Email: tvinfo@sunnetwork.in

ot

GROUP Website: www.suntvin  CIN.: L22110TN1985PLC012491
-5t January 2017
BSE Limited,
Floor No.25, P ] Towers,
Dalal Street,

Mumbai - 400 001
Sir,

Sub: Business Responsibility Report for the Financial Year 2015-16
Ref: Regulation 34(2)(f) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015
Scrip Code: 532733 - Scrip Id: SUNTV

Pursuant to Regulation 34(2)(f) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, we are enclosing herewith the Business Responsibility
Report for the Financial Year 2015-16.

This is for your information and records.
Thanking you,
For Sun TV Network Limited
o
R. Iggvi

Company Secretary &
Compliance Officer
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Business Responsibility Report
Section A: General Information about the Company

Corporate Identity Number (CIN) : L22110TN1985PLC012491
Name of the Company : Sun TV Network Limited
Registered Address : Murasoli Maran Towers
73, MRC Nagar Main Road
MRC Nagar
Chennai - 600028.
Website s www.suntv.in
Email id : brr@sunnetwork.in
Financial Year reported : April 1, 2015 - March 31, 2016
Sector(s) that the Company is engaged in (Industrial activity code-wise):

Division | Group | Class | Sub-Class Description

601 6010 Television programming and broadcasting
60 & & 60100 activities and Radio broadcasting
602 6020

8.

10.

Three key products / services that the Company manufactures / provides (as on
balance sheet):

The Company mainly provides Broadcasting Services and is engaged in the business
of Broadcasting of various Regional Television and airing FM Radio Channels.

As a part of the said broadcasting business, the Company earns revenues from

Advertisements, Broadcasting Fees and Subscription of Channels both Domestic and

International.

Total number of locations where business activity is undertaken by the Company:

i.  Number of International locations: Nil

ii.  Indian operations of the Company are carried out through over twelve offices
located in major commercial hubs of the Country including Bangalore,
Chennai, Cochin, Coimbatore, Hyderabad, Madurai, Mysore, New Delhi,
Thiruvananthapuram, Tiruchirapalli, Tirunelveli and Visakhapatnam.

Markets served by the Company - Local/State/National/International:

Company’s Television and FM Radio Channels reach out to millions of viewers /
listeners over a dozen Countries.
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1.

Section B: Financial Details of the Company

Paid up Capital (INR) : Rs. 197.04 crores
Total turnover (INR) : Rs. 2,403.98 crores
Total Profit after taxes (INR) : Rs. 867.25 crores

Total Spending on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) as percentage of profit
after tax (%):

The Company’s total spending on CSR is 1.11% of its current profit after taxes by
way of Donations.

List of activities in which expenditure in note - 4 above has been incurred:

The major area in which the above expenditure has been incurred is towards
education of the poor and needy and relief for flood affected people.

Section C: Other Details

Does the Company have any Subsidiary Company/Companies?

As at March 31, 2016, the Company has two direct subsidiaries namely
M/s. Kal Radio Limited and M/s. South Asia FM Limited.

Do the Subsidiary Company/Companies participate in the BR initiatives of the
parent Company? If yes, then indicate the number of such subsidiary company(s)

Business Responsibility initiatives of the parent company are not applicable to the
subsidiary companies.

Do any other entity/entities (e.g. suppliers, distributors etc.) that the Company does
business with participate in the BR initiative of the Company? If yes, then indicate
the percentage of such entity/entities? [Less than 30%, 30-60%, More than 60%]

No.
Section D: BR Information

Details of Director/Directors responsible for BR:

a) Details of the Director/Directors responsible for implementation of the BR
policy/policies:

As part of the day-to-day functions and operations, the Company ensures that
the Business Responsibility and / or related policies including that of CSR are
continuously implemented across the different management level and also
periodically reviewed for changes.



b) Details of the BR head:

Sr No Particulars Details
1 DIN Number 03578076
2 Name Mr. K. Vijaykumar
3 Designation Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer
4 Telephone Number (044) 44676767
5 E mail Id brr@sunnetwork.in

2. Principle-wise (as per NVGs) BR Policy/policies (Reply in Y/N):

The National Voluntarily Guidelines on Social, Environmental and Economic
Responsibilities of Business (NVGs) released by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs has
adopted nine areas of Business Responsibility. These briefly are as under:

P1 - Businesses should conduct and govern themselves with Ethics, Transparency and
Accountability.

P2 - Businesses should provide goods and services that are safe and contribute to
sustainability throughout their life cycle.

P3 - Business should promote the well being of all employees.

P4 - Businesses should respect the interests of, and be responsive towards all
stakeholders, especially those who are disadvantaged, vulnerable and marginalized.

P5 - Businesses should respect and promote human rights.

P6 - Businesses should respect, protect and make efforts to restore the environment.

P7 - Businesses, when engaged in influencing public and regulatory policy, should do
so in a responsible manner.

P8 - Businesses should support inclusive growth and equitable development.

P9 - Business should engage with and provide value to their customers and consumers
in a responsible manner.



Sr.

Questions

Business
Ethics

Product
Respons
ibility

Employees
Wellbeing

Stakeholder
Engagement

Human
Rights

Environ
ment

Public &
Regulatory
Policy

CSR

Customer
Relations

P1

P2

P3

P4

P5

P6

P7

P8

P9

Do you have a policy /
policies for

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Has  the  policy  been
formulated in consultation
with the relevant
stakeholders?

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Does the policy conform to
any national / international
standards?

NA

Yes

NA

Yes

Yes

NA

NA

Yes

NA

Has the policy been approved
by the Board? If yes, has it
been signed by MD / Owner
/ CEO / appropriate Board
Director?

Yes

Yes

Yes

Does the Company have a
specified committee of the
Board/ Director / Official to
oversee the Implementation
of the policy?

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Indicate the link for the policy
to be viewed online?

Www.suntv.in

Has the policy been formally
Communicated to all relevant
Internal and external
stakeholders?

Yes

Does the Company have in-
house structure to implement
the policy/ policies?

The overall responsibility for implementation of BR / CSR Policies of the Company is under

Mr. K. Vijaykumar, Managing Director & CEO along with Senior Management of the Company.




Does the Company have a
grievance redressal
mechanism related to the
policy/policies to address
stakeholders’ grievances
related to policy /
policies?

the

Yes

10

Has the Company carried out
Independent audit /
evaluation of the working of
this policy by an internal or
external agency?

Policies are evaluated regularly by the CEO and/or respective Senior Executives.

2a. If answer to Sr No 1 against any principle, is ‘No’, please explain why: (Tick up to 2 options)

Sr. Business | Product | Employees | Stakeholder | Human | Environ Public & CSR | Customer
No Questions Ethics | Respons | Wellbeing | Engagement | Rights ment Regulatory Relations
ibility Policy
P1 P2 P3 P4 P5 P6 P7 P8 P9
1 | The Company has not
understood the Principles
2 | The Company is not at a
stage where it finds itself in a | As the Company is in existence for long, policies relating to employee and employee wellbeing, human
position to formulate and | rights, customer relation etc. has been formulated and reviewed and revised from time to time as and when
implement the policies on | required. These are done and implemented by the Senior Management including the Managing Director &
specified Principles Chief Executive Officer under the supervision and guidance of the Board of Directors.
3 | The Company does not have
financial ~or  manpower
resources available for the
task
4 | It is planned to be done
within next six months Board
Director?
5 | It is planned to be done
within next one year
6 | Any other reason




3.

1.

Governance related to BR:
Indicate the frequency with which the Board of Directors, Committee of the Board
or CEO assesses the BR performance of the Company. Within 3 months, 3-6

months, Annually, More than 1 year -

The Managing Director along with the Senior Management of the Company
regularly reviews and assesses the BR performance.

Does the Company publish a BR or sustainability Report? What is hyperlink for
viewing this report? How frequently it is published?

The BR report is/shall be available at www.suntv.in.

Section E: Principle-wise Performance

Principle 1: Businesses should conduct and govern themselves with Ethic Transparency
and Accountability

1.

Does the policy relating to ethics, bribery and corruption cover only the Company?
Yes / No. Does it extend to the Group / Joint Ventures / Suppliers / Contractors /
NGOs / Others?

The Code of Conduct for Corporate Governance adopted by the Board of Directors
is applicable to the Board of Directors and Senior Management. The HR policy
applicable to the Company prohibits accepting or giving bribery in any form.
Though, at present there is no formal written policy on corruption and bribery
covering external stakeholders, controls are in place installed at every level to
prevent bribery and corruption.

How many stakeholder complaints have been received in the past financial year and
what percentage was satisfactorily resolved by the management? If so, provide
details thereof, in about 50 words or so.

68 investor complaints were received during the FY 2015-16 all were resolved and
no complaint is pending as on date.

Principle 2: Businesses should provide goods and services that are safe and contribute
to sustainability throughout their life cycle

1.

List up to 3 of your products or services whose design has incorporated social or
environmental concerns, risks and / or opportunities.



The Company meticulously follows the applicable regulation / guidelines issued
from time to time by Ministry of Information and Broadcasting (MIB), Telecom
Regulatory Authority of India (TRAI) and Indian Broadcasting Federation (IBF) in
rendering its services.

. For each such product, provide the following details in respect of resource use
(energy, water, raw materials etc.) per product (optional):

As part of Media and Entertainment Industry, the Company consumes negligible
energy.

. Does the Company procedure in place for sustainable sourcing (including
transportation). If yes, what percentage of your inputs was sourced sustainably?

The unique business model adopted by the Company adequately motivates the
content providers to stay with the Company. As the Company is a market leader
some of the production houses are associated with the Company since inception.
The Company also conducts various event-based programs to identify and
encourage budding talents.

. Has the Company taken any steps to procure goods and services from local and
small producers, including communities surrounding their place of work? If yes,
what steps have been taken to improve the capacity and capability of local and small
vendors?

The Company has regional channels in the four Southern States which sources
identifies and nurtures talent from the small producers and local vendors.

. Does the Company have a mechanism to recycle products and waste? If yes what is
the percentage of recycling of products and waste. (Separately as <5%, 5-10%,

>10%). Also, provide details thereof, in about 50 words or so.

Not applicable.

Principle 3: Business should promote the well being of all employees

1. Please indicate the total number of employees:

1906

2. Please indicate the total number of employees hired on temporary / contractual /

casual basis:

514



3. Please indicate the number of permanent women employees:
224

4. Please indicate the number of permanent employees with disabilities:
NIL

5. Do you have employee association that is recognized by management?

No

6. What percentage of your permanent employees are members of this recognized
employee associations?

Not Applicable

7. Please indicate the number of complaints relating to child labour, forced labour,
involuntary labour, and sexual harassment in the last financial year and pending as
on the end of the financial year:

NIL

8. What percentage of your under mentioned employees were given safety and skill up
gradation training in the last year?

The Company periodically organizes training sessions on safety and it also
sponsors its employees to skill up gradation programs conducted by various
professional bodies.

Principle 4: Businesses should respect the interests of, and be responsive towards all
stakeholders, especially those who are disadvantaged, vulnerable and marginalized.

1. Has the Company mapped its internal and external stakeholders?

Yes. The Company has mapped its internal and external stakeholders and the
main categories of the same are as follows: (i) Viewers / Subscribers (ii)
Investors, (iii) Banks, (iv) Content Producers, (v) Vendors, (vi) Service Providers
(vii) The Ministry of Information & Broadcasting, (viii) The Department of
Telecommunication, (ix) Telecom Regulatory Authority of India, (x) Ministry of
Corporate Affairs, (xi) Reserve Bank of India, (xii) Foreign Investment Promotion
Board, (xiii) Stock Exchanges and (xiv) Depositories.



2. Out of the above, has the Company identified the disadvantaged, vulnerable and

marginalized stakeholders?
Yes

Are there any special initiatives taken by the Company to engage with the
disadvantaged, vulnerable and marginalized stakeholders? If so, provide details
thereof

The Company as part of regular functioning encourages talents among various
sections of the Society it also gives opportunity to new and innovative programs.

Principle 5: Businesses should respect and promote human rights

1.

Does the policy of the Company on human rights cover only the Company or extend
to the Group/Joint ventures/ suppliers/ contractors/ NGOs/Others?

The policy of the Company on human rights largely applies to the Company and
extends to the major stakeholders to the extent applicable.

2. How many stakeholder complaints have been received in the past financial year and

what percent was satisfactorily resolved by the Management?

The Company has not received any complaint on human rights violation.

Principle 6: Businesses should respect, protect and make efforts to restore the
environment

1.

Does the policy related to Principle 6 cover only the Company or extends to the
Group/Joint Ventures/Suppliers/Contractors/NGOs/Others?

As a responsible business entity we feel the importance of protecting and
safeguarding the environment. The Company implemented new, modern and
scientific green initiatives at its newly built registered office.

Does the Company have strategies/initiatives to address global environmental

issues such as climate change, global warming, etc.? Y/N. If yes, please give
hyperlink for webpage etc.

No
Does the company identify and assess potential environmental risks? Y/N

No



4. Does the Company have any project related to Clean Development Mechanism? If
so, provide details thereof in about 50 words or so. Also, if Yes, whether any
environmental compliance report is filed?

No. The Company is engaged in broadcasting activity.

5. Has Company has undertaken any other initiatives on - clean technology, energy
efficiency, renewable energy etc? Y/N. If yes, please give hyperlink to web page etc.

Not applicable. The Company is engaged in broadcasting activity.

6. Are the Emissions/Waste generated by the Company within permissible limits
given by CPCB/SPCB for the financial year being reported?

Not applicable. The Company is engaged in broadcasting activity.

7. Number of show cause/legal notices received from CPCB/ SPCB which are pending
(i.e. not resolved to satisfaction) as of end of financial year.

Nil

Principle 7: Businesses, when engaged in influencing public, clients and regulatory
policy, should do so in a responsible manner

1. Is your Company a member of any trade and chambers or association? If yes, name
only those major ones that your business deals with.

The Company is a member of
i) Indian Broadcasting Foundation
ii) News Broadcasters Association

2. Have you advocated/lobbied through above associations for advancement or
improvement of public good? Yes/No; if yes, specity the broad areas

Yes, The Company through these associations has supported/advocated the
implementation of digitalization, as laid down by the Ministry of Information
and Broadcasting.



Principle 8: Businesses should support inclusive growth and equitable development

1. Does the Company have specified programmes / initiatives / projects in pursuit of
the policy related to Principle 8?

The Company has taken initiatives in formulating and implementation of
policies relating to Corporate Social Responsibility. The Company regularly
contributes to Sun Foundation, a charitable trust to support the various social
welfare activities as carried out by the trust.

2. Are the programmes / projects undertaken through in-house team / own
foundation / external NGO / government structures/ any other organization?

The programmes are undertaken through own foundation.

3. Have you done any impact assessment of your initiative?

No

4. What is Company’s direct contribution to community development projects-
Amount in INR and the details of the projects undertaken?

The Company has donated Rs.9.60 Crores as mentioned below to carry out various

welfare activities.

Project Activity Amount
Chief Minister’'s National | Relief for Flood Affected People 5,00,00,000
Relief Fund
Education to poor children Promoting Education 4,55,00,000
Others Relief for Flood Affected People 5,00,000

5. Have you taken steps to ensure that the community successfully adopts this
community development initiative?

Yes




Principle 9: Businesses should engage with and provide value to their customers and
consumers in a responsible manner

1.

What percentage of customer complaints/ consumer cases as on the end of financial
year?

No material consumer / customer complaints outstanding as at the end of the
financial year.

Does the Company display product information on the product label, over and
above what is mandated as per local laws?

Not applicable
Is there any case filed by any stakeholder against the Company regarding unfair
trade practices, irresponsible advertising and or anti-competitive behavior during
the last five years and pending as of end of financial year?
None
Did your Company carry out any consumer survey/consumer satisfaction trends?
The Company has subscribed to BARC (Broadcast Audience Research Council) /
TAM (Television Audience Measurement). BARC / TAM provides periodical

television popularity and viewership reports which the Senior Management
reviews and acts upon.

For queries related to

Business Responsibility Report: Compliance:

K. Vijaykumar R. Ravi

Managing Director & Company Secretary &

Chief Executive Officer Compliance Officer

Tel: 91 44 44676767 Tel.: 91 44 44676767, Fax: 91 44 40616161

E-mail: brr@sunnetwork.in E-mail: ravi@sunnetwork.in



